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ANNUALMEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
I,

The annual meeting ofEl Paso Electric Co. willbe held in the Sixth-
Floor Conference Room of the Company's offices located at the
Centre Building, 123 Pioneer Plaza, El Paso, Texas, 79901, on
Monday, May 23, 1994, at 10 a.m„El Paso time. In connection with
this meeting, proxies willbe solicited by the Board ofDirectors of
the Company. A notice of the meeting, together with a proxy
statement, a form ofproxy and the Annual Report to Shareholders
for 1993, were mailed on or about April 12, 1994, to shareholders
of record as ofMarch 25, 1994.



Shareholder Information
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

Corporate Headquarters

Street address:
400 East Van Buren Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Mailing address:
P.O. Box 52132
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2132

Main telephone number: (602) 379-2500

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Thursday, May 19, 1994
10:00 a.m.
Wigwam Ballroom
Wigwam Resort
300 East Indian School Road
LitchfieldPark, Arizona

Stock Listing

Ticker symbol: PNW on Ncw York Stock Exchange and
Pacific Stock Exchange
Newspaper financial listings: PinWst

Form 10-K

Pinnacle West's Annual Report to thc Sccuritics and
Exchange Commission on Form 10.K willbc availablc after
April 1, 1994 to sharcholdcrs upon written request, without
charge. Write: Office of the Secretary.

Statistical Report

A detailed Statistical Report for Financial Analysis for 1988-
1993 willbe available in Aprilupon request. Write: Investor
Relations Department.

Pinnacle West Stock Purchase and Dividend
Reinvestment Plan

Pinnacle West's Stock Purchase and Dividend Rcinvcstment
Plan provides a convenient, simple method of buying shares
ofcommon stock. Participation in the Plan is open to Pinnacle
West shareholders, APS preferred shareholders and customers,
and all employees ofPinnacle West and its subsidiaries. For
more information, call the Shareholder Department toll free at
1-800-457-2983 (379.2500 in the Phoenix area) or write to
the Sharcholdcr Department.

Transfer Agents and Registrars

COMMON AND APS PREPERRED STOCK

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation
Stock Transfer Dcpartmcnt
P.O. Box 52134
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2134
Telephone: (602) 379-2519

PINNACLE WEST COMMON STOCK ONLY

The First National Bank ofBoston
Transfer Processing
Mail Stop 45-01-05
P.O. Box 644
Boston, Massachusetts 02102-0644
Tclcphone: (617) 575-2900

Shareholder Account and Administrative
Information

Shareholder Department telephone number
(toll free): 1-800 457-2983

Investor Relations Contact

Rebecca L. Hickman
Manager, Investor Relations
Telephone: (602) 379-2568
Fax: (602) 379-2640

Statewide Association for UtilityInvestors

A new organization, thc Arizona UtilityInvestors Associa-
tion, has been formed to represent the interests of utility
investors throughout the state ofArizona. Ifinterested, send
your name and address to:

Arizona UtilityInvestors Association
P.O. Box 34805
Phoenix, Arizona 85067



Officers
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Pinnacle West Arizona Public Service (Cont.) SunCor Development

RICHARD SNELL
(63) 1990~
Chairman 8t President

HENRY B.SARGENT
(59) 1957
Executive Vice President 8c

Chief Financial Officer

MICHAEL S. ASH
(40) 1983
Corporate Counsel

ARLYN J. LARSON
(59) 1980
Vice President ofCorporate
Planning 8t Development

NANCY E. NEWQUIST
(42) 1987
Vice President 8t Treasurer

FAYE WIDENhlANN
(45) 1978
Vice President of Corporate
Relations 8t Administration Bc

Secretary

Arizona Public Service

WILLIAMJ. POST

(43) 1973
Senior Vice President, Planning,
Information 8c Financial Scrviccs

JACK A. BAILEY
(40) 1989
Assistant Vice President, Nuclear
Engineering 8c Projects

JAN H. BENNETT
(46) 1967
Vice President, Customer Service

JACK E. DAVIS
(47) 1973
Vice President, Generation 8c

Transmission

ARMANDO B. FLORES
(50) 1991
Vice President, Human Resources

JAhlES hl. LEVINE
(44) 1989
Vice President, Nuclear Production

RICHARD W. MACLEAN
(47) 1991
Vice President, Environmental,
Health &Safety

RICHARD SNELL
Chairman of the Board

JOHN C. OGDEN
(48) 1972
President 8t Chief Executive Officer

HENRY B.SARGENT
Executive Vice President

GEOFFREY L. APPLEYARD
(40) 1987
Vice President, Finance

DUANE BLACK
(41) 1989
Vice President
Construction - Development

STEVEN GERVAIS
08) 1987
Vice President 8c Gcncral Counsel

hlARGARET E. KIRCH
(44) 1988
Vice President
Commercial Development

El Dorado Investment

RICHARD SNELL
Chairman of the Board

MARK DE MICHELE
(60) 1978
President 8t Chief Executive Officer

WILLIAMF. CONWAY
(63) 1989
Executive Vice President, Nuclear

JARON B. NORBERG
(56) 1982
Executive Vice President tie

Chief Financial Officer

E.C. SIMPSON
(46) 1990
Vice President, Nuclear Support

WILLIAMJ. HEhlELT
(40) 1980
Controller

NANCY C. LOFTIN
(40) 1985
Secretary 8t Corporate Counsel

NANCY E. NEWQUIST
Treasurer

RICHARD SNELL
Chairman of the Board

HENRY B.SARGENT
President Ac Chief Executive Officer

SHIRLEY A. RICHARD
(47) 1984
Executive Vice President, Customer
Service, Marketing Bc Corporate
Relations

*The year in which thc individual was first employed within the Pinnacle West group of companies.



Board of Directors
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

DONALD N. SOLDWEDEL

(69) 1958*

Chairman of thc Board,

Western Newspapers, Inc.

Committeest

Human Resources

Audit

MARK DE h1ICIIELB

(60) 1982

President & Chief Executive

Officer, APS

Committee:

Finance and Planning

RICIIARD SNELL

(63) 1975

Chairman &.President

JOH'N R. NORTON III
(64) 1982

Chairman &. Chief Executive

Officer,

J.R. Norton Company
Committees:

Finance and Planning, Chairman

Human Resources

IIBNRY B. SARGENT

(59) 1976

Executive Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer

MARTIIAO. IIBSSE

(51) 1991

President, Hcssc Gas Company,
Dolan Energy Corporation, and

Sierra Blanca Gas Company
Committees:

Audit
Human Resources

DOUGLAS J. WALL

(66) 1976

Of Counsel to the Law Firm of
Mangum, Wall, Stoops &Warden
Connni ttees:

Audit, Chairman

Human Resources

BILLJhh1IESON, JR.

(50) 1991

Archdeacon, Episcopal Diocese

of Arizona

Comrnitteest

Audit
Finance and Planning

PAMELA GRANT

(55) 1980

President, TableScapes, Inc.
Commdteest

Human Resources, Chairman

Finance and Planning

ROY h. IIERBBRGBR, JR.

(51) 1992

President,

American Graduate School of
International Management

Comntdteest

Audit
Finance and Planning

*The year in which thc individual first joined the Board of Pinnacle West or a predcccssor corporation.



15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Pinnacle West estimates that the carrying amounts of its cash

equivalents and commercial paper are reasonable estimates

of their fair values at December 31, 1993 and 1992 due to

their short maturities. The December 31, 1993 and 1992 fair

values of debt and equity investments, determined by using

quoted market values or by discounting cash flows at rates

equal to the Company's costs ofcapital, approximate their

carrying amounts.

It was not practicable to estimate the fair values of several

investmcnts in joint ventures and untraded equity securities

because costs to do so would be excessive. The carrying

value of these investments totalled $45.6 million and $63.6

million at year-end 1993 and 1992, rcspectivcly.

On December 31, 1993, the carrying amount of long-term

debt liabilities (excluding $30 millionof capital lease obliga-

tions) was $2.682 billionand its estimated fair value was

approximately $2.911 billion. On December 31, 1992, the

carrying amount of long-term debt (excluding $32 million of
capital lease obligations) was $2.848 billion and its estimated

fair value was approximately $3.020 billion.The fair value

estimates were determined by independent sources using

quoted market rates where available. Where market prices

were not available, the fair values werc estimated by discount-

ing future cash flows using rates available for debt of similar

terms and remaining maturities. The carrying amounts of
long. term debt bearing variable interest rates approximate

their fair values at December 31, 1993 and 1992.



14. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Consolidated quarterly financial information for 1993 and

1992 is as follows:

Nolkrsin Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

QUARTER ENDED March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Operating revenues
Electric
Real estate

Operating income (a)

S 371/03
3,799

S 107,335

$ 407,375 S 524,483 S

6,277 10,093

S 129,155 $ 207,954 $

383,129
12,079

88,209

Income from continuing operations
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

for income taxes

Nct income

Earnings per average share of common stock outstanding
Continuing operations
Accounting change

Total

$ 27,474 S 38,899 $ 86,734 S 16,871

19,252

$ 46,726 S 38,899 $ 86,734 S 16,871

$ 0.32
0.22

S 0.45 $ 0.99 S 0.19

$ 0.54 8 0.45 $ 0.99 $ 0.19

Dividends declared per share 8 S S 0.20

(Dollarsin Thousands, Except Per Share Amourtts)

QUARTER ENDED

Operating rcvenucs
Electric
Real estate

Operating income (a)

March 31

S 344,947
2 323

S 87,408

lPP2

June 30 September 30 December 31

S 409,012 $ 516,960 $ 398,760
3,894 9,372 4,370

$ 138,079 S 214,623 S 107,367

Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations

Net income

Earnings per average share ofcommon stock outstanding
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Total

Dividends declared per sharc

S 7,763 $ 38,726 S 85,306 S 18,645
6,000(b)

$ 0.09 $ 0.44 $ 0.98 S 0.21
0.07

$ 0.09 $ 0.44 $ 0.98 S 0.28

S $ S $

8 7,763 $ 38,726 $ 85,306 $ 24,645

(a) APS'perations are subject to seasonal fluctuations
primarily as a result ofweather conditions. The results of
operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative
of the results to be expected for the fullyear.

(b) Represents income tax benefits related to the disposal

ofMeraBank. See Note 2.
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Chemical cleaning was performed during Unit 2's current

mid-cycle outage, and willbe performed in the next refueling

outage ofUnit 3 (which willbegin shortly) and of Unit 1

(which is scheduled for March 1995). APS has concluded

that Unit 1 can be safely operated until the 1995 outage and

has submitted its supporting analysis to the Nuclear Regula-

tory Commission, but a mid-cycle inspection later in 1994

is possible.

As a result of these corrective actions, all three units

should be returned to fullpower by mid.1995, and one or

more of the units could be returned to full power during

1994. So long as the three units are involved in mid-cycle

outages and are operated at 86%, APS willincur additional

fuel and purchased power costs averaging approximately $2

million pcr month (before income taxes).

Because of schedule changes associated with the tube

issues and other circumstances, it now appears that all three

units willbe down for refueling outages at various times

during 1995.

When significant cracks are detected during any outage,

the affected tubes are taken out of service by plugging. That

has occurred in a number of tubes in Unit 2, which is by far

the most affected by cracking and plugging. APS expects

that this willslow considerably because of the foregoing

remedial actions and that, while it may ultimately reach some

limiton plugging, it can operate the present steam generators

over a number ofyears.

CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM

Total construction expenditures in 1994 are estimated at

$312 million, excluding capitalized property taxes and

capitalized interest.

$79 million, subject to an annual limitof $ 10 million per

incident. Based upon APS'9.1% interest in the three Palo

Verde units, APS'aximum potential assessment per inci-

dent is approximately $69 million,with an annual payment

limitation of$8.73 million.
The Palo Verde participants maintain "all risk" (including

nuclear hazards) insurance for property damage to, and

decontamination of, property at Palo Verde in the aggregate

amount of$2.75 billion, a substantial portion ofwhich must

first be applied to stabilization and decontamination. APS

has also secured insurance against portions of any increased

cost of generation or purchased power and business interrup-

tion resulting from a sudden and unforeseen outage of any of
the three units. The insurance coverage discussed in this and

the previous paragraph is subject to certain policy conditions

and exclusions.

EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY BANKRUPTCY

The other joint owners in the Palo Verde and Four Comers

facilities (see Note 12) include El Paso Electric Company,

which currently is operating under Chapter 11 of the

Bankruptcy Code. A plan whereby El Paso would become

a hvholly-owned subsidiary ofCentral and South West Cor-

poration would resolve certain issues to hvhich APS could be

exposed by the bankruptcy, including El Paso allegations

regarding the 1989-1990 Palo Verde outages. The plan has

been confirmed by the bankruptcy court, but cannot become

fullyeffective until several additional or related approvals are

obtained. Ifthey are not obtained, the plan could be with-

drawn or terminate, thereby reintroducing the APS'exposures.

FUEL AND PURCHASED POWER COMMITMENTS

APS is a party to various fuel and purchased power contracts

with terms expiring from 1994 through 2020. APS estimates

its 1994 contract requirements at approximately $136 million.

However, this amount may vary significantly pursuant to cer-

tain provisions in such contracts which permit APS to decrease

its required purchases under certain circumstances.

NUCLEAR INSURANCE

The Palo Verde participants have insurance for public liabili-

ty resulting from nuclear energy hazards to the fulllimitof lia-

bilityunder federal law. This potential liabilityis covered by

primary liabilityinsurance provided by commercial insurance

carriers in the amount of$200 million, and the balance by

an industry-wide retrospective assessment program. Thc

maximum assessment per reactor under the retrospcctivc

rating program for each nuclear incident is approximately



12. Jointly-Owned Facilitics

At December 31, 1993, APS owned interests in the following
jointly-owned electric generating and transmission facilities.

APS'hare of related operating and maintenance expenses is

included in utilityoperations and maintenance.

(Dollars in Thousands)

Percens Plans Conssruclion
Oioned By in Accurnuiased Workin

i(PS Sersnce Deprecia sion Progress

GENERATING FACILITIES
Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station - Units 1 and 3
Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station - Unit 2 (See Note 11)
Four Corners Steam Generating Station - Units 4 and 5
Navajo Steam Generating Station - Units 1, 2 and 3
Cholla Steam Generating Station - Common Facilitics (a)

29 1%
17.0%
15.0%
14.0%
62 8%

S 1,825,842 S

552,798
140,408
135,073
69,678

371,818
114,118
46,884
70,397
30,440

S 17,995
17,946
1,220

11,865
1,324

TRANSMISSION FACILITIES
ANPP 500 KVSystem
Navajo Southern System
Palo Verde-Yuma 500 KVSystem
Four Corners Switchyards
Phoenix-Mead System

35.8%(b)
31.4%(b)
23.9%(b)
27.5%(b)
17.1%(b)

62,619
26,742
11,411
3,045

13,849
14,386
3,006
1,790

910
6

3
8,983

(a) APS is thc operating agent for Cholla Unit 4, which is

owned by PacifiCorp. The common facilities at the Cholla

Plant are jointly-owned.

(b) Wcightcd average of interests.

13. Commitments and Contingcncics

LITIGATION
Pinnacle West and its subsidiaries are parties to various

claims, legal actions and complaints arising out of the normal
course of business. Various claims have been asserted against

Pinnacle West and against present and former directors of
Pinnacle West and MeraBank. A settlement agreement that
would resolve the preponderance of these claims has been

approved by the court. An appeal of the settlemcnt by two
non.settling individuals is pending. In the opinion ofman-

agement, the ultimate resolution of these claims willnot have

a material adverse effect on the operations or financial posi-
tion ofPinnacle West.

PALO VERDE TUBE CRACKS

Tube cracking in the Palo Verde steam generators adversely

affected operations in 1993, and willcontinue to do so in
1994 and probably into 1995, because of the cost of replace-

ment power and maintenance expense associated with unit
outages and corrective actions required to deal with the issue.

The operation of Palo Verde Unit 2 has been particularly
affected by this issue. APS has encountered axial tube crack-

ing in the upper regions of the two steam generators in Unit 2.

This form of tube degradation is uncommon in the industry
and, in March 1993, Ied to a tube rupture and an outage of
the unit that extended to September 1993, during which the

unit was refueled. Unit 2 is currently completing a mid-cycle

inspection outage which revealed further tube degradation.

Unit 2 willhave another mid-cycle inspection outage later

in 1994.

The steam generators of Units 1 and 3 were inspected late

in 1993, but did not show signs of axial cracking in their

upper regions. Allthree units have, however, experienced

cracking in the bottom of the steam generators of the types
which are common in the industry.

Although its analysis is not yct completed, APS believes

that the axial cracking in Unit 2 is due to deposits on the

tubes and to the relatively high temperatures at which all

three units are now designed to operate. APS also believes

that it can retard further tube degradation to acceptable lev-

els by remedial actions which include chemically cleaning the

generators and performing analyses and adjustmcnts that will
allow the units to be operated at lower temperatures without
appreciably reducing their output. The temperature analyses

should be concluded within the next several months. In the

meantime, the lower temperatures willbe achieved by oper-

ating the units at less than full power (86%).
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A reconciliation of the funded status of the plan to the

amounts recognized in the balance sheet for 1993 is

presented below:

(Thousands ofDollars)

Plan assets at fair value, funded at
December 31, 1993

Less accumulated postretircment
benefit obligation:

Retirecs
Fully eligible plan participants
Other active plan participants

Total accumulated postretirement obligation
Plan assets less than accumulated

benefit obligation

Plus:
Unrecognized transition obligation
Unrecognized net gain from past

experience different from that assumed
and from changes in assumptions

Accrued postretirement liabilityincluded in
other deferred credits

$ 28,154

49,493
13,671

138,364

201,528

(173,374)

175,023

(2,089)

s (440)

Principal actuarial assumptions
Used were:

Discount rate

Initialhealth care cost trend rate-
under age 65

Initialhealth care cost trend rate-
age 65 and over

Ultimate health care cost trend rate

(reached in the year 2003)

Annual salary increases for life insurance

obligation

7.50%

12.00%

9.00%

5.50%

5.00%

Assuming a one percent increase in thc health care cost

trend rate, the Company's 1993 cost ofpostrctiremcnt bene-

fits other than pensions would increase by $6.9 millionand

the accumulated benefit obligation as ofDecember 31, 1993

would increase by Q0.8 million.
In 1993, Pinnacle West adopted SFAS No. 112, "Employ-

ers'ccounting for Postemployment Benefits." The new stan-

dard requires a change from a cash method to an accrual

method in accounting for benefits (such as long-term disabili-

ty) provided to former or inactive employees after employ-

ment but before retirement. The adoption of this ncw stan-

dard resulted in an increase in 1993 postemployment benefit

costs of approximately $2 million.

10. Supplemental Income Statement Information

Other taxes charged to operations during each of the three

years in the period ended December 31, 1993 are as follows:

thousands ofDollars) IP93 1992 r99I

Ad valorem $ 124,630 $ 119,173 $ 121,936
Sales 84,901 83,185 80,815
Other 12,814 14,705 12,790

Total other taxes $ 222,345 $ 217,063 $ 215,541

11. Leases

In 1986, APS entered into sale and leaseback transactions

under which it sold approximately 42% of its share ofPalo

Verde Unit 2. The gain of approximately $ 140,220,000 has

been deferred and is being amortized to expense over the

original lease term. Thc leases are being accounted for as

operating leases. The amounts paid each year approximate

QO,D4,000 through December 1999; Q6,285,000 through

Dccembcr 2000; and $48,982,000 through December 2015.

Options to renew the leases for two additional years and to

purchase the property at fair market value at the end of the

lease terms are also included. Lease expense for 1993, 1992

and 1991 was $41,750,000, Q5,838,000 and Q5,633,000,

respectively.

APS has a capital lease on a combined cycle plant which it
sold and leased back. Thc lease requires semiannual pay-

ments of$2,582,000 through June 2001, and includes

renewal and purchase options based on fair market value.

This plant is included in electric plant in service at its original

cost of$54,405,000; accumulated depreciation at December

31, 1993 was $37,315,000.

In addition, Pinnacle West and its subsidiaries lease certain

land, buildings, equipment and miscellaneous other items

through operating rental agreements with varying terms,

provisions and expiration dates. Rent expense for 1993, 1992

and 1991 was approximately $21,535,000, $26,104,000 and

$28,185,000, respectively. Annual future minimum rental

commitments, excluding the Palo Verde and combined cycle

leases, through 1998 are as follows: 1994, $22,879,000; 1995,

$ 17,183,000; 1996, $14,146,000; 1997, $ 14,120,000; and 1998,

$ 14,126,000. Total rental commitmcnts after 1998 are esti-

mated at $ 198 million.
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(Thousands ofDollars) I993 I992 I99I

Service cost - benefits
earned during
the period

Interest cost on
projected benefit
obligation

Return on plan assets

Net amortization
and deferral

$ 17,051 $ 17,227 $ 14,831

35,046 33,633 31,216

(52,026) (23,225) (65,262)

13847 (15,097) 28,924

Net consolidated
periodic pension cost $ 13,618 $ 12,538. $ 9,709

The discount rate used in determining the actuarial present

value of the projected benefit obligation was 750% in 1993

and 8.25% in 1992. The rate of increase in future compensa-

tion levels used was 5.0% in 1993 and 1992. The expected
long. term rate of return on assets was 95% in 1993 and 1992;

in 1994, the company willassume a 9% rate of rctum.
A reconciliation of the funded status of the plan to the

amounts recognized in the balance sheet is presented below:

(Thousands ofDollars) I993 I992

Plan assets at fair value
Less actuarial present value of

benefit obligation, including
vested benefits of$350,812 and
$288,456 in 1993 and 1992,
respectively

Effect of projected future
compensation increases

$ 421,563 $ 391,827

375,800 309,607

128,797 106,218

international common stocks and bonds and real estate. Pen-

sion cost, including administrative cost, for 1993, 1992 and

1991 was approximately $ 14,267,000, $ 14/84,000 and

$ 10,90,000, respectively, ofwhich approximately

$6,833,000, $4,279,000 and $5,262,000, respectively, was

charged to expense; the remainder was either capitalized as a

component of construction cost or billed to other owners of
facilities for which APS is operating agent.

The components ofnet periodic pension costs are as

follows:

In addition to the defined benefit pension plans described

above, Pinnacle West and its subsidiaries also sponsor quali-

fied defined contribution plans. CoHectiveiy, these plans cover

substantially aH employees. The plans provide for employee

contributions and partial employer matching contributions

after certain eligibilityrequircmcnts are met. The cost of
these plans for 1993, 1992 and 1991 was $6,391,000,

$5,404,000 and $2,756,000, ofwhich $3,114,000, $2,607,000

and $ 1,392,000 was charged to expense.

(Thousands ofDolkrs)

Service cost - benefits earned
during the period

Interest cost on accumulated
benefit obligation

Net amortization and deferral

$ 9,710

15,755

9,212

POSTRETIREillENT PLANS

Pinnacle West and its subsidiaries provide medical and life
insurance benefits to their retired employees. Employees may

become eligible for these retirement benefits based on years

of service and age. The retiree medical insurance plan is con-

tributory; the retiree life insurance plan is noncontributory.
In accordance with the governing plan documents, the compa-

nies retain the right to change or eliminate these benefits.

During 1993, Pinnacle West adopted SFAS No. 106,

"Employers'ccounting for Postretircment Benefits Other
Than Pensions," which requires that the cost of postretire-

mcnt bcncfits be accrued during the years that the employees

render service. Prior to 1993, the costs of retiree benefits

were recognized as expense when claims were paid. This

change had the effect of increasing 1993 retiree benefit costs

from approximately $6 million to $35 million; the amount

charged to expense increased from approximately $2 million
to $ 17 million for an increase of$ 15 miHion including the

amortization (over 20 years) of the initial postrctircment ben-

efit obligation estimated at January 1, 1993 to be $ 184 mil-

lion. Funding is based upon actuarially determined contri-
butions that take tax conscquenccs into account.

The components of the estimated postretircmcnt benefit

costs for 1993 are:

Total projected benefit obligation

Plan assets less than projected
benefit obligation

Plus:

Unrecognized net loss from
past experience different
from that assumed

Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized net transition asset

Accrued pension liability

504,597 415,825

(83,034) (23,998)

51,551 8,097
14,866 15,893

(39,371) (42,597)

8 )33,988) 8 (42,603)

Net consolidated periodic
postretirement benefit cost 8 34,677
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(g) Redeemable at $ 102.12 through May 31, 1994,

and at par thereafter.

(h) Redeemable at $ 107.09 through May 31, 1994, and

thereafter declining by a predetermined amount each year to

par after May 31, 2002.

(Dolhsrs in Thousands)

Number
of

Shares
Par Value
Amount

Balance, December 31, 1990 1,924,532 $ 192,453

issuance

$ 10.00 Series U

Retirerrtenls

$ 10.00 Series H
$8.80 Series K
$ 12.90 Series N
$ 1130 Series R

500,000

(16,000)
(40,275)
(24,975)
(70,500)

50,000

(1,600)
(4,027)
(2,498)
(7,050)

Balance, December 31, 1991 2,272,782 227,278

Issuance

$7.875 Series V

Retirements

$ 10.00 Series H
$8.80 Series K
$ 12.90 Series N
$ 11.50 Series R

250,000

(8,677)
(4,725)

(2D,280)
(39,750)

25,000

(868)
(472)

(21,328)
(3,975)

Balance, December 31, 1992 2,256,350 225,635

Retirements

$8.80 Series K
$ 11.50 Series R
$8.48 Series S

(45,000) (4/00)
(35,250) (3,525)

(200,000) (20,000)

Balance, Dcccmbcc 31, 1993 1,976,100 $ 197,610

8. Common Stock

Pinnacle West's common stock issued during each of the

three years in the period ended December 31, 1993, is as

follows:

Ifthere were to be any arrearage in dividends on any of its

preferred stock or in thc sinking fund requirements applic-

able to any of its redeemable preferred stock, APS could not

pay dividends on its common stock or acquire any shares

thereof for consideration. The combined aggregate amount

ofpreferred stock redemption requirements for the next five

years are: 1994, $65,775,000; 1995, $ 13/25,000; 1996,

$ D$25,000; 1997, $D$25,000; and 1998, $13/25,000.
Redeemable preferred stock transactions ofAPS during

each of the three years in the period ended December 31,

1993, arc as follows:

(Dollan in Thousands)

Balance, Deccmbcr 31, 1990
Common stock issued

Balance, Dcccmbcr 31, 1991
Common stock issued

Balance, Dcccmbcr 31, 1992
Common stock issued

Balance, Dcccmbcr 31, 1993

Number
of

Shares

86,873,174
136,800

87,009,974
151,898

87,161,872
261,945

Amount (a)

$ 1,646,570
319

1,646,889
(117)

1,646,772
(3,989)

87,423,817 $ 1,642,783

(a) Including premiums and expenses of preferred stock

issues ofAPS.

9. Pension Plans and Other Benefits

PENSION PLhNS

Pinnacle West and its subsidiaries have defined benefit pen-

sion plans covering substantially all employees. Benefits are

based on years of service and compensation utilizing a final

average pay plan benefit formula. The plans are funded on a

current basis to the extent deductible under existing tax reg-

ulations. Plan assets consist primarily of domestic and

The Pinnacle West Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvest-

ment Plan provides that any participant may purchase shares

ofPinnacle West common stock directly from Pinnacle West.

Both Pinnacle West and APS have employee savings plans

under which contributions by participating employees and

contributions by employers could involve the issuance of
ncw shares ofPinnacle West common stock. Contributions

made by Pinnacle West and APS to their respective employee

retirement plans may also involve one or more such issuances

ofcommon stock.

However, Pinnacle West plans to continue making market

purchases of its outstanding stock to meet its needs related to

the Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan, the

employee savings plans and the employee retirement plans.

Under the Pinnacle West Stock Option and Incentive Plan,

non-qualified stock options (NQSOs), incentive stock options

(ISOs) and restricted stock awards may be granted to officers

and key employees ofPinnacle West and subsidiaries up to an

aggregate of3 million shares ofPinnacle West common stock.

The plan also provides for the granting of stock appreciation

rights, performance shares, dividend equivalents or any com-

bination thereof. Another plan provides for the granting of
NQSOs to Pinnacle West's directors up to an aggregate of
500,000 shares ofstock. As ofDecember 31, 1993, approxi ~

mately 333,000 restricted shares, 1,789,000 NQSOs, 10,000

ISOs and 30,000 dividend equivalent shares were outstanding

under the plans.
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Substantially all utilityplant other than nuclear fuel, trans-

portation equipment and the combined cycle plant, is subject

to the lien of the first mortgage bonds. The first mortgage
bond indenture includes provisions which would restrict the

payment ofdividends on APS common stock under certain

conditions which did not exist at December 31, 1993.

Pinnacle West and its subsidiaries incurred interest

expense of$264/06,000, $286/47,000 and $333,923,000 in
1993, 1992 and 1991, ofwhich $ 1,840,000, $ 1/89,000 and

$ 1,194,000 was capitalized in each year, respectively.

APS had approximately $370 million ofvariable-rate long-

tcrm debt outstanding at December 31, 1993. Changes in

intcrcst rates would affect the costs associated with this debt.

7. Preferred Stock of APS

Non-redeemable prcfcrred stock is not redeemable except at

the option ofAPS. Redeemable preferred stock is redeem-

able through sinking fund obligations in addition to being
callable by APS. The balances at December 31, 1993 and

1992, of preferred stock ofAPS are shown below:

Number o Shares Par Value

NON.REDEBhlABLB:
$ 1.10 preferred
$230 preferred
$2.36 prcfcrred
$435 prcfcrrcd
Serial preferred

$2.40 Series A
$2.625 Series C
$2.275 Series D
$3.25 Series E

Serial preferred
$8.32 Series J
Adjustable rate-

Series Q
Serial prcfcrrcd

$ 1.8125 Series W

Outstanding at
December 31,

Outstanding at
December 31,

Authorized

160,000
105,000
120,000
150,000

1,000,000

i993

155,945
103,254
40,000
75,000

I992 Per Share

155,945
103,254
40,000
75,000

$ 25.00
50.00
50.00

100.00

4,000,000(b)

240,000
240,000
200,000
320,000

240,000
240,000
200,000
320,000

50.00
50.00
50.00
50.00

12,000
12,000
10,000
16,000

12,000
12,000
10,000
16,000

500,000
10,000,000

3,000,000

500,000

500,000

100.00

100.00 50,000

25.00 75,000

50,000

50,000

1993 199>

(Thousands ofDollars)

$ 3,898 $ 3,898
5,163 5,163
2,000 2,000
7,500 7,500

Call
Price Per
Share (a)

$ 27.50
51.00
51.00

102.00

50.50
51.00
5050
51.00

(c)

(d)

Total 4,874.199 2,374,199 $ 193.561 $ 168,561

REDEEhlABLE$
Serial preferred:

$8.80 Series K
$ 1150 Series R
$8.48 Series S

$830 Series T
$ 10.00 Series U
$7.875 Series V

142,100
284,000
300,000
500,000
500,000
250,000

187,100
319,250
500,000
500,000
500,000
250,000

$ 100.00 $ 14,210 $ 18,710
100.00 28,400 31,925
100.00 30,000 50,000
100.00 50,000 50,000
100.00 50,000 50,000
100.00 25,000 25,000

(c)
(fl
(g)

Total 1,976,100 2,256550 $ 197,610 $ 225,635

(a) In each case plus accrued dividends.

(b) This authorization covers both outstanding non-
redeemable and all redeemable prcferrcd shares.

(c) Dividend rate adjusted quarterly to 2% below that of
certain United States Treasury securities, but in no event less

than 6% or greater than 12% pcr annum. Redeemable at par.

(d) Redeemable at par after December 1, 1998.

(e) Redeemable at $ 103 through February 28, 1994 and at

$ 101 thereafter.

(f) Redeemable after Junc 1, 1994 at $ 105.45, declining by
a predetermined amount each year to par after June 1, 2003.



interest coverage ratios. Additionally, cumulative dividend

payments for the period April 1, 1990 through any dividend

declaration date are limited to 50% ofcumulative consoli-

dated net income (as defined) for the same period. As of
December 31, 1993, Pinnacle West could have declared divi~

dends of approximately $241 millionbased on this formula.

Pinnacle West's aggregate investments in its existing sub-

sidiaries (excluding APS) and new investments are generally

limited to $ 15 million and $20 million, respectively, until
the lenders are repaid. Pinnacle West must maintain certain

interest coverage ratios and meet certain funded debt tests.

Additionally, Pinnacle West would be required to use the

net cash proceeds from the sale ofSunCor or El Dorado

or substantially all of their assets to repay debt. The follow-

ing table presents long-term debt outstanding as of
December 31, 1993 and 1992.

(Thousands ofDoIIars) Maturity Dates Interest Rates

December 31,

l3t92

APS
First mortgage bonds
Pollution control indebtedness
Revolving credit
Capitalized lease obligation

1997-2028 5.5%-13.25%(a)
2009-20 15 Adjustable (b)

1993 LIBORplus 0.30% to 0.45%(c)
1994-2001 7.48%

$ 1,729,070
369,130

29,633(d)
2,327 833

$ 1,615,602
424,330

75,000
32,048(d)

2,146,980

PINNACLE WEST
Bank term loans
Debentures
Notes payable

1996-1997
1994-2000

1997

8.91-1036%
11.36-11.61% (e)

10.5%

112,663
451,029

563,692

170,326
451,029

94,382

715,737

SUNCOR
Notes payable

Total long-term debt
Less current maturities
Total long-term debt less

current maturitics

1994-1998 20,936

2,712,461
78,841

$ 2,633,620

5,805

2,868,522
94,217

$ 2,774,305

(a) The weighted.average rate at December 31, 1993 and

1992 was 8.25% and 8.70%, respectively.

(b) The interest rates at year-end varied from 2.80% to

330% for 1993 and from 3.20% to 4 40% for 1992.

(c) The weighted-average rate at the end of 1992 was

4.41%.

(d) Represents the present value of future lease payments

(discounted at the interest rate of7.48%) on a combined

cycle plant sold and leased back from the independent

owner-trustcc formed to own thc facility. See Note 11.

(c) Includes $310,411,000 of 11.6% senior secured deben-

tures at Dcccmber 31, 1993 and 1992, which are due in 2000

and are rcdecmable at thc option ofPinnacle West pursuant

to a make-whole formula related to U.S. Treasuries.

The balance of$ 140,618,000 represents senior deben-

tures ofwhich $65,618,000 is due in 1994 with the remain-

der due in 1995. The weighted-average interest rate was

1L36% at December 31, 1993.

(0 Includes $8,065,000 of fixed-rate notes with year-end

rates from 10.25% to 12% in 1993; interest rates on the

balance vary with the lenders'rime rates. The 1992 bal-

ance consists of fixed-rate notes bearing interest at 12%.

Aggregate annual principal payments due on total long-

term debt and for sinking fund requirements through 1998

are as follows: 1994, $78,841,000; 1995, $82,625,000;

1996, $43,858,000; 1997, $231,543,000; and 1998,

$ 110,297,000. See Note 7 for redemption and sinking fund

requirements of redeemable preferred stock of APS.



At December 31, 1993, Pinnacle West had federal NOL
carryforwards ofapproximately $304 millionwhich may be

used through 2005 and state NOL carryforwards of approxi-

mately $218 millionwhich expire in 1994 through 1996.

Pinnacle West also had ITC carryforwards of approximately

$41 millionwhich expire in 2000 through 2005.

See Note 2 for tax benefits recorded in connection with
discontinued operations.

thousands ofDollars)

Federal income tax
expense (benefit) at
statutory rate 05'/o
in 1993, 34'/o in 1992
and 1991)

Increases (reductions)
in tax expense
resulting from:

Tax under book
depreciation

Palo Vcrdc cost defer

Disallowed Palo
Verde costs

Preferred stock
dividends ofAPS

ITC amortization
State income tax

net of federal
income tax benefit

Change in federal
tax rate

Other

I993 I992 I99I

$ 111>448 $ 99>293 $ (165>217) 5. Lines of Credit

APS had committed lines of credit with various banks total-

ling $302 million at December 31, 1993 and 1992 which werc

available either to support thc issuance of commercial paper
or to be used for bank borrowings. The commitment fees on

these lines were 0.1875'/o per annum through April29, 1992

and 0.25'/o thereafter through December 31, 1993. APS had

commercial paper borrowings outstanding of$ 148 million at

December 31, 1993 and bank borrowings of$ 130 millionat

December 31, 1992.

In 1992, APS also had a $70 million letter ofcredit com-

mercial paper program. Under this program, which expired
in November 1993, APS had $65 millionof borrowings out-

standing at December 31, 1992. The commitment fees for
this program were 0.30'/o per year.

By Arizona statute, APS'hort-term borrowings cannot

exceed 7'/o of its total capitalization without the consent of
the ACC.

Pinnacle West had a liquidityfacilityof$40 millionat

December 31, 1993 and $50 millionat December 31, 1992.

The facility is available for payments of principal and interest
on Pinnacle West's outstanding debt with a maximum of$20

million for principal payments. Any borrowings on this facil-

itywould be secured by the APS common stock owned by
Pinnacle West and would bear interest, at Pinnacle West's

option, at rates based on the prime rate or on LIBOR. Pin-

nacle West pays a 0.3125'/o commitment fee on the facility
based on existing long. term credit ratings. There were no
borrowings outstanding under the liquidityfacilityat Decem-

ber 31, 1993 or 1992.

21,814

(4,063)

17,671

ral
17,499

22,236

11,357

(9,275)

11,034

(6,124)

10,794

(6,002)

21,604 21,589 (16,307)

(4,855)

(2,214) (1,693) (6,161)

Income tax expense
(benefit) $ 148,446 $ 141,598 $ (145,616)

The components of the net deferred income tax liabilityat

Dcccmbcr 31, 1993, were as follows:

(Thousands ofDollars)

Deferred tax assets

NOL and ITC carryforwards
Alternative minimum tax

(can be carried forward indefinitely)
Defcrrcd gain on Palo Verde Unit 2

sale/leaseback
Other
Valuation allowance

Total deferred tax assets

I993

$ 159,490

100,461

66,754
126,905
(43,818)

409,792

Income tax expense (benefit) differed from the amount com-

puted by multiplying income from continuing operations

before income taxes by the statutory federal income tax rate

due to the following:
Year Ended December 31,

Deferred tax liabilities
Plant-related
Income taxes recoverable through

future rates - net
Palo Verde deferrals
Other

Total dcfcrrcd tax liabilities

Accumulated deferred
income taxes - nct

751,520 6. Long-Term Debt

585,294
158,424

92 993

1,588,231

$ 1,178,439

In January 1990, Pinnacle West restructured the majority of
its long-term debt. Pinnacle West granted the affected

lenders a security interest in the outstanding common stock
ofAPS and agreed not to incur new debt except to reduce,

refinance or prepay existing debt. Pinnacle West's ability to

pay dividends is dcpcndcnt upon the satisfaction of specified
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Excess Capacity Issue

The ACC deemed a portion ofPalo Verde Unit 3 to be

excess capacity and, accordingly, did not recognize the relat-

ed Unit 3 costs for ratemaking purposes. This action effec-

tively disallows for thirty months a return on approximately

$475 millionofAPS'nvestment in Unit 3. APS recognized

a charge of$ 181.2 million ($ 1095 million after tax), repre-

senting the present value of the lost cash flowand to that

extent temporarily discounted the carrying value ofUnit 3.

In accordance with generally acccptcd accounting princi-

ples, APS is recording, over the thirty-month period, accretion

income on Unit 3 in the aggregate amount of the discount.

During 1993, 1992 and 1991 APS recorded after-tax accretion

income of$45.3 million,$40.7 millionand $3.2 million,

respectively. APS willrecord $20.3 millionafter tax in 1994.

In December 1991, APS stopped deferring Unit3 costs and

recorded a $240.6 million ($ 1553 millionafter tax) write-off

ofUnit 3 cost defcrrals duc to a portion ofUnit 3 being

deemed excess capacity. At that time, APS began amortizing

to expense and recovering in rates the remaining $320 million

balance of the deferrals over a thirty-fiveyear period as

approved by the ACC.

4. Income Tax Expense

Effective January 1, 1993, Pinnacle West adopted the

provisions of SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"

which requires the use of the liabilitymethod ofaccounting

for income taxes. The cumulative effect on prior years of this

change in accounting principle resulted in an increase to net

income of$ 19.3 million,due primarily to the recognition of
deferred tax benefits relating to state NOL carryfotwards of
Pinnacle West. As a result ofadopting SFAS No. 109, APS

recorded additional deferred income taxes related to the

equity component ofAFUDC; the debt component of
AFUDC net-of-tax; and other temporary differences for which

deferred income taxes had not been provided. Deferred tax

balances werc also adjusted for changes in tax rates. The

adoption ofSFAS No. 109 increased deferred income tax

liabilities by $585.3 millionat December 31, 1993. Histori-

cally, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the

ACC have allowed rcvcnues sufficient to pay for these

deferred tax liabilities and, in accordance with SFAS No. 109,

a regulatory asset was established in a corresponding amount.

The components of income tax expense (bcncfit) from

continuing operations arc as follows:

Future Retail Rate Increase

APS agreed not to file a ncw rate application before Decem-

ber 1993 and the ACC agreed to expedite the processing of
a future rate application. APS and the ACC also agreed on

an average unit sales price ceiling of9385 cents per kilowatt-

hour in this future rate application, iffiled prior to January 1,

1995. APS'993 average unit sales price was approximately

9 cents per kilowatt-hour. This ceiling may be adjusted for
the effects of significant changes in laws, regulatory require-

ments or APS'ost ofequity capital. Management belicvcs

that the unit sales price ceiling willnot adversely impact

APS'uture earnings and has not yct determined when a

rate case may be filed.

Dividend Payments

APS agreed to limit its annual common stock dividends to
Pinnacle West to $ 170 million through December 1993.

sALE oF cltoLLA a

InJuly 1991, APS sold Unit 4 of thc Cholla Power Plant

to PaciflCorp for approximately $230 million. The resulting

after-tax gain of approximately $20 millionwas defcrrcd and

is being amortized as a reduction to operations expense over a

four-year period in accordance with an ACC order. The trans.

action also provides for transmission access and clcctrical

energy sales and exchanges between APS and PacifiCorp.

(Tbousands ofDollars)

Current
Federal
State

Total current

Deferred
Depreciation - nct
Palo Verde cost dcfcrral
Disallowed Palo

Verde costs
Refund obligation
Investment tax

credit (ITC) - net
Alternative minimum tax
Palo Verde start-up costs
Palo Verde accretion

income
NOL and ITC

carryfotward utilized
Loss on reacquired debt
Change in federal tax rate
Taxes, pension costs

and other - nct

Total deferred

Total

Year Ended December 31,

I993 I992 I99I

43,881 31,042 2,500

58,844
(5,015)

8,454

76,175
(5,015)

8,454

58,310
47,527

(213,394)
(21,273)

(6,028)
(53,212)

(1,335)

(5,574)
(40,434)
(28,976)

(9,275)
(2,500)
(1,381)

29,618 26,668 2,168

81,494
4,288

(4,855)

81,180
10,266 (1,O66)

(7,688) (12,188) (7,232)

104,565

$ 148.446

110,556 (148,116)

$ 141,$ 98 $(14$ ,616)

$ 43,065 $ 30,418 $ 2,500
816 624
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G. NUCLEAR FUEL AND DECOMMISSIONING COSTS

Nuclear fuel is charged to fuel expense using the unit-of-pro-

duction method under which the number of units of thermal

cncrgy produced in the current period is related to the total
thermal units expected to be produced over the remaining
life of the fuel.

In 1993, APS recorded $65 millionfor decommissioning

expense. Based on the most recent site-speciTic study to com-

pletdy remove all facilities, APS expects to record $ 11.4 mil-

lion for decommissioning expense in 1994. APS estimates it
willcost approximately $2.1 billion ($407 million in 1993 dol-

lars), over a thirteen-year period beginning in 2023, to decom-

mission its 29.1'/0 interest in Palo Verde. Decommissioning

costs arc charged to expense over thc respective unit's operat-

ing license term and included in the accumulated depreciation
balance until Palo Verde is rctircd from service.

As required by the ACC, APS has established external

trust accounts into which quarterly deposits are made for
decommissioning. As of December 31, 1993, APS has

deposited a total of$35.0 million. The trust accounts are

included in "Investments and Other Assets" on the Consoli-

dated Balance Sheets and have accumulated a $44.7 million
balance at December 31, 1993, including investment earning.

II. STATEMENTS OF CASII FLOWS

Temporary cash investmcnts and marketable securities with
an initial maturity of three months or less are considered to
be cash equivalents for purposes of thc Consolidated State-

ments ofCash Flows. During 1993, 1992 and 1991, Pinnacle
West and its subsidiaries paid interest, net ofamounts capital-

ized, of$243.9 million, $286.4 millionand $305.4 million,
respectively. Income taxes paid were $455 million,$33.8 mil-
lion and $ 19.7 million, respectively; and dividends paid on

preferred stock ofAPS were $30.9 million,$32.6 miHion and

$33.1 million, respectively.

I. PALO VERDE COST DHFERRALS

As authorized by the ACC, APS deferred operating costs

(excluding fuel) and financing costs ofPalo Verde Units 2

and 3 from each unit's commercial operation date until the
date each unit was included in a rate order. The dcferrals arc

being amortized and rccovcred through rates over thirty-five
year periods.

2. Discontinued Operations

In 1989, a settlement was reached which resolved claims

made by certain federal agencies with respect to MeraBank,
resulting in a $450 million capital infusion by Pinnacle West

into MeraBank. The settlement rclcascd Pinnacle West from

its purported obligations under a capital maintenance stipula-

tion relating to MeraBank. Because of certain unresolved fed-

eral income tax issues, Pinnacle West could not at the time

record an income tax benefit related to the loss incurred as a

result of the settlement. In January 1992, the Internal Rev-

enue Service issued a ruling which allowed Pinnacle West to

deduct, for federal income tax purposes, its remaining invest-

ment in MeraBank including the capital infusion. As a result,

Pinnacle West recorded income from discontinued operations

in 1991 of$ 1535 million representing the tax benefit of a fed-

eral net operating loss (NOL) carryforward.

In 1992, Pinnacle West recorded $6 millionof income from
discontinued operations representing the recognition of a

portion of the state NOL carryforward.

3. Regulatory Matters

RATE CASH SHTTLEhIENT

In December 1991, APS and the ACC reached a settlement

in the retail rate case that had been pending before the ACC
since January 1990. The ACC authorized an annual net rev-

enue increase of $665 million,or approximately 5.2'/o. In
turn, APS wrote off$577.1 million of costs associated with
Palo Verde and recorded a refund obligation of$53.4 million.
The after-tax impact of these adjustments reduced 1991 net

income by $407 million. A discussion of thc components of
the disallowance follows.

Prudence hudil
The ACC closed its prudence audit ofPalo Verde and APS

wrote off$ 142 million ($ 101.3 million after tax) ofconstruc-

tion costs relating to Palo Verde Units 1, 2 and 3 and $ 13.3

million ($8.6 millionafter tax) of deferred costs relating to
the prudence audit.

Inlerimor Temporary Revenues

The ACC removed the interim and temporary designation on

$385 millionof revenues collected by APS from 1986 through
1991 that had been previously authorized for Palo Verde Units
1 and 2. APS recorded a refund obligation to customers of
$53.4 million ($32.3 million after tax) related to the Palo

Verde write-offdiscussed above. The refund obligation has

been used to reduce the amount ofannual mte increase granted
rather than require specific customer refunds and is being

reversed over thirty months beginning Dcccmber 1991. During
1993, 1992 and 1991 after.tax refund obligation reversals

recorded by APS as electric operating revenue were $ 12.9 mil-

lion, $ 12.9 millionand $0.9 million, respectively. APS will
record $5.6 millionafter tax in 1994.
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Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

(Thousands ofDolkrs)

Year Ended December 31,

I993 I992 I99I

Retained Earnings (Deficit) at Beginning of Year $ (165,047) $ (321,487) $ (134,625)

Net Income (Loss)

Common Stock Dividends

Retained Earnings (Deficit) at End of Year

189,230 156,440 (186,862)

(17,466)

$ 6,717 $ (165,047) $ 021,487)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts

ofPinnacle West Capital Corporation and its subsidiaries:

Arizona Public Service Company, an electric utility;SunCor

Development Company, a real estate development company;

and El Dorado Investment Company, a venture capital firm.

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform

to the 1993 presentation.

B. UTILITYPLANT AND DEPRECIATION

Utilityplant represents the buildings, equipment and other

facilities used to provide electric service. The cost of utility
plant includes labor, material, contract services and other

related items and an allowance for funds used during con-

struction. The cost of ~etired depreciable utilityplant, plus

removal costs less salvage realized, is charged to accumulated

depreciation.

Depreciation on utilityproperty is provided on a straight-

line basis. The applicable rates for 1991 through 1993

ranged from 0.84 /o to 15.00/o, which resulted in annual

composite rates of3.37'/o. Depreciation and amortization of
non-utility property and equipment are provided over the

estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 3 to

33.3 years.

C. REVENUES

Electric operating revenues are recognized on the accrual

basis and include estimated amounts for service rendered

but unbilled at the end of each accounting period.

D. ALLOWANCE FOR FUNDS USED DURING

CONSTRUCTION

AFUDC represents the cost of debt and equity funds used

to finance construction of utilityplant. Plant construction

costs, including AFUDC, are recovered in authorized rates

through depreciation when completed projects are placed

into commercial operation. AFUDC does not represent

current cash earnings.

AFUDC has been calculated using composite rates of
7.20 /o for 1993, 10.00 /o for 1992 and 10. 15 /o for 1991.

APS compounds AFUDC semiannually and ceases to accrue

AFUDCwhen construction work is completed and the

property is placed in service.

E. INCOhtE TAXES

Pinnade West and its subsidiaries file a consolidated U.S.

income tax return. Provisions for income tax are made by
each subsidiary as ifseparate income tax returns were filed.

The difFerence, ifany, between these provisions and consoli-

dated income tax expense is allocated to Pinnacle West.

Investment tax credits were deferred and are being amortized

to other income over the estimated lives of the related assets as

directed by the ACC. In 1993, Pinnade West adopted State-

ment ofFinancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109,

"Accounting for Income Taxes" (see Note 4).

F. REACQUIRED DEBT COSTS

APS amortizes gains and losses on reacquired debt over the

remaining lifeof the original debt, consistent with ratemaking.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

(Thousands o/Dollars) r993

Year Ended Deeensber 31,

>992

CASII FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(NOTE I)

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Items not requiring cash

Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes - net
Palo Verde cost deferral (Notes 1 and 3)
Provision for rate refund - net (Note 3)
Disallowed Palo Verde costs (Note 3)
Palo Verde accretion income (Note 3)
Other - net

Changes in current assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable - net
Accrued utilityrevenues
Materials, supplies and fossil fuel
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Accrued interest
Other current liabilities

Additions to real estate
Sales of real estate
Other - net

S 169,978

258,562
139,725

(21,374)

(74,880)
(168)

31,090
(8,839)
2,252

(S,782)
(27,196)
(21,391)

(905)
(18,408)
(29,290)
21 396
34,292

259,637
84,146

(21,374)

(67,421)
(1,829)

268,153
(128,863)
(133,954)

52,057
577,145

(5,306)
(4,235)

(31,71S)
(7,055)
5,094
2,N2
9,547

45,962
(16,593)
(16,549)
(12,647)
14,622
5,973

18,006
1,0N

(8,490)
(478)

18,866
(18,902)

(3,588)
3,364

(18,593)
7,787
4,407

S 150,440 $ (340,317)

Nct Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities 449,062 402,280 288,063

CAS)I FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital cxpenditurcs
Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Sale of property (Note 3)
Other - net

(234,944)
2,326

89
1,609

(224,419)
3,103
5,480
(6,555)

(182,687)
3,902

233,875
(2,630)

Nct Cash Flow Provided By (Used For)
Investing Activities (230,920) (222,391) 52,460

CASII FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuance of long-term debt
Issuance of preferred stock
Short-term borrowings (repayments)
Dividends paid on common stock
Repayment of long-term debt
Repayment ofpreferred stock
Other - net

535,893
72,644

(47,000)
(17,466)

(711,241)
(78,663)
(8,108)

649,165
24,781

195,000

(1,109,181)
(27,850)

2,407

485,844
49,375

(159,000)

(593,252)
(15,175)

6,N2

Net Cash Flow Used For Financing Activities (253,941) (265,678) (226,166)

Nct Cash Flow

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End ofYear

(35,799)

87,926

S 52,127

(85,789) 114,357

173,715 59,358

S 87,926 S 173,715

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(Thousands ofDollars)

December 3 I,

s993 2992

LlhBILITIEShND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Accrued interest
Short-term borrowings (Note 5)
Current maturities of long. term debt (Note 6)
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

$ 97,489 $ 105,718
96,303 117,694
57,674 58,579

148,000 195,000
78,841 94,217
60,845 78,909

539,152 650,117

Non.Current Liabilities
Long-term debt less current maturities (Note 6)
Other liabilities

2,633,620
8,246

2,774,305
9,449

Total non current liabilities 2,641,866 2,783,754

Deferred Credils and Other
Deferred income taxes (Note 4)
Deferred investment tax credit
Unamortized gain - sale of utilityplant
Other deferred credits

Total dcfcrrcd credits and other

1,278,673
127,331
107,344
221,762

1,735,110

578,020
133,359
116,167
133,138

960,684

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 13)

MinorilyIttterests

Non-redeemable preferred stock of APS (Note 7)

Redeemable preferred stock of APS (Note 7)

Connnon StocL Eqttily (Note 8)

Common stock, no par value; authorized
150,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding
87,423,817 in 1993 and 87,161,872 in 1992

Rctaincd earnings (deficit)

193,561

197,610

168,561

225,635

1,642,783 1,646,772

6,717 (165,047)

Total common stock equity 1,649,500 1,481,725

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 6,956,799 $ 6/70,476
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATIOiV

December 3 I,

(Tbousands ofDollars) t993 I992

ASSETS

Curresst Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Customer and other rcccivables - net
Accrued utilityrcvcnucs (Note 1)
Materials and supplies (at average cost)
Fossil fuel (at average cost)
Other current assets
Deferred income taxes (Note 4)

Total current assets

$ 52,127 $ 87,926
126,343 157,433
60,356 51,517
96,174 95,978
34,220 36,668
13,782 8,000

100,234 105,348

483,236 542,870

Issvestmessts artd Otfier Assets

Real estate investments - net
Other assets

Total investments and other assets

402,873
136,074

538,947

394,527
142,309

536,836

UlililyPfant (Notes 6, 11 and 12)
Electric plant in service, including nuclear fuel
Construction work in progress

6,462,589
197,556

6,335,327
162,168

Total utilityplant
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

6,660,145
2,058,895

6,497,495
1,973,698

Nct utilityplant 4,601,250 4,523,797

Deferred Debits
Regulatory asset for income taxes (Note 4)
Palo Verde Unit 3 cost deferral (Notes 1 and 3)
Palo Verde Unit 2 cost dcfcrral (Note 1)
Other deferred debits

Total deferred debits

585,294
301,748
177,998
268,326

1,333,366

310,908
184,061
172,004

666,973

Total Assets $ 6,956,799 $ 6,270,476

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income
PINNACLB WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

Nollars in Thousands, Exccps Pcr Sharc Amounss) s993

Year Ended December 3 I,

s992 s99r

Operaling Revenues

Electric
Provision for rate refund (Note 3)
Real estate

S 1,686,290

32,248

$ 1,669,679

19,959

$ 1,515,289
(53,436)
12,697

Total 1,718,538 1,689,638 1,474,550

Fuel Expenses

Fuel for electric generation
Purchased power

Total

Operating Expenses

Utilityoperations and maintenance
Real estate operations
Depreciation and amortization
Taxes other than income taxes (Note 10)
Palo Verde cost dcfcrral (Notes 1 and 3)
Disallowed Palo Verde costs (Note 3)

231,434
69,112

300,546

401,216
38,220

223,558
222,345

230,194
57,007

287,201

390,512
27,309

220,076
217,063

223,983
49,788

273,771

401,736
25,482

219,010
215,541
(70,886)
577,145

Total 885,339 854,960 1,368,028

Operating Income (Loss)

Oiher Inmme (Deductions)

Allowance for equity funds
used during construction (Note 1)

Palo Verde cost dcfcrral (Notes 1 and 3)
Palo Verde accretion income (Note 3)
Intcrcst on long-term debt
Other intcrcst
Allowance for borrowed funds

used during construction (Note 1)
Prcfcrrcd stock dividend requirements of APS
Other - net

532,653

2 326

74,880
(245,961)

(16,505)

4,153
(30,840)

(2,282)

547,477

3,103

67,421
(272,240)

(12,718)

4,492
02,452)
(13,045)

(167,249)

3,902
63,068
5,306

(316,282)
(16,447)

6,636
(33,404)
(31,463)

Total

Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations
Before Income Taxes

Income Tax Expense (Benefit) (Note 4)

Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations

Income From Discontinued Operations
(Note 2)

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting for
Income Taxes (Note 4)

Nct Income (Loss)

Average Common Shares Outstanding

Earnings (Loss) Per Average Common Share
Outstanding

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Accounting change

Total

Dividends Declared Pcr Share

(214,229) (255,439) (318,684)

318,424
148,446

169,978

292,038
141,598

150,440

(485,933)
(145,616)

(340,317)

6,000 153,455

S 1.95 S

0.22

8 2.17 8

8 0.20 8

1.73 S 0.91)
0.07 1.76

1.80 S (2.15)

19,252

S 189,230 $ 156,440 $ (186,862)

87,241,899 87,044,180 86,937,052

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Report of Management and Independent Auditors'eport
PINNACLE WBST CAPITAL CORPORATION

Report of Management Independent Auditors'cport

The primary responsibility for the integrity of the Company's

financial information rests with management, which has pre-

pared the accompanying financial statements and related

information. Such information was prcparcd in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles appropriate in
the circumstances, based on management's best estimates and

judgments and giving due consideration to materiality. These

financial statements have been audited by independent audi ~

tors and their report is included.

Management maintains and relics upon systems of internal

accounting controls, which are periodically reviewed by both
thc Company's internal auditors and its independent auditors
to test for compliance. Reports issued by the internal audi-

tors are rclcased to management, and such reports, or sum-

maries thcrcof, are transmitted to the Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors and the independent auditors on a

timely basis.

Thc Audit Committee, composed solely of outside direc-

tors, meets periodically with the internal auditors and inde-

pendent auditors (as well as management) to review the work
of each. The internal auditors and independent auditors have

free access to the Audit Committee, without managcmcnt prc-
scnt, to discuss the results of their audit work.

Management believes that the Company's systems, poli-
cies and proccdurcs provide reasonable assurance that oper-
ations are conducted in conformity with the law and with
management's commitment to a high standard of business

conduct.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets ofPinnacle West Capital Corporation and its sub-

sidiaries as ofDecember 31, 1993 and 1992 and the related

consolidated statements of income, retained earnings and

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

Deccmbcr 31, 1993. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsi ~

bilityis to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with gcncrally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-

ance about whether the financial statements are free of mate-

rial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statcmcnts. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating thc overall financial state-

ment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a rea-

sonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements pre-

sent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Pinnacle West Capital Corporation and its subsidiaries at

December 31, 1993 and 1992 and the results of their opera-

tions and their cash flows for each of thc three years in the

period ended Deccmbcr 31, 1993 in conformity with generally

accepted. accounting principles.
As discussed in Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements, the Company changed its method ofaccounting
for income taxes cffectivcJanuary 1, 1993 to conform with
Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards No. 109.

Richard Sncll

Chairman &President
Henry B. Sargcnt

Executive Vice President

R Chief Financial Officer
Deloitte Bc Touche

Phoenix, Arizona
February 21, 1994



of fuel expenses was due to favorable market prices.

Utilityoperations costs were $ 15.3 miHion lower in 1992 as

compared to 1991 primarily due to lower operating costs at

Palo Verde, lower fossil plant overhaul costs and other miscel-

laneous cost reductions. PartiaHy offset ting these were an

obligation recorded for an employee gainsharing plan and

higher nuclear refueling outage costs.

iVOiV-CASII IN COKIE

Net income reflects accounting practices required for regu-

lated public utilities and represents a composite of cash and

non-cash items, including Allowance for Funds Used During

Construction (AFUDC), accretion income on Palo Verde

Unit 3 and the reversal of a refund obligation related to the

Palo Verde write-off(see "Consolidated Statements of Cash

Flows" and Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial State-

ments). APS recorded after-tax accretion income of$45.3

million, $40.7 millionand $3.2 million in 1993, 1992 and

1991, respectively. APS also recorded refund obligation

reversals in electric operating revenues of$ 12.9 millionafter

tax in each of the years 1993 and 1992 and $0.9 million in

1991. APS willrecord after-tax accretion income and refund

obligation reversals of $20.3 million and $5.6 million, respec-

tively, through June 5, 1994.

ACCOUNTING ISSUES

Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

describes a new accounting standard for income taxes which

required the recognition in 1993 of$ 193 millionof state tax

benefits related to net operating loss carryforwards.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIOiVS

Income from discontinued operations of$6.0 million

and $ 153.5 million in 1992 and 1991, respectively, resulted

from tax benefits recorded in connection with the

MeraBank set tlement.

PALO VERDE NUCLEAR GENERATING STATION

As APS continues its investigation and analysis of the Palo

Verde steam generators, certain corrective actions are being

taken. These include chemical cleaning, operating the units

at reduced temperatures, and for some periods, operating

the units at approximately 86'/0 power. So long as three

units are involved in mid-cycle outages and are operated at

the 86'/o level, APS willincur an average of approximately

$2 millionper month (before income taxes) for additional

fuel and purchased power costs. See "Palo Verde Tube

Cracks" in Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial State-

ments for a more detailed discussion.
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Management expects El Dorado's internal cash flows to be

sufficient to fund its operations for the foreseeable future.

Real estate operating revenues and operating expenses

were up $ 123 million and $ 10.9 million, respectively, in 1993

due to increased sales of rcsidcntial lots.

Results of Operations

1993 COMPARED TO 1992

Pinnacle West reported income from continuing operations

of $ 170.0 million in 1993 compared to $ 150.4 million in

1992, for an increase of$19.6 million. The primary factor

contributing to this increase was lower interest expense.

Interest costs in 1993 were $22.5 million lower than 1992

due to refinancing debt at lower rates, lower average debt

balances and lower interest rates on APS'ariable-rate debt.

Partially offset ting the lower interest expense were increased

taxes and higher utilityoperating cxpcnses.

Electric operating revenues were up $ 16.6 million in 1993

on sales volumes of20.1 million megawatt-hours (MWh)

compared to 20.6 million MWh in 1992. Although revenues

incrcascd $453 million due to growth in the residential

and business customer classes, these increases were largely

offset by milder than normal weather and reduced inter-

change sales to other utilities.

Fuel and purchased power costs increased $ 15.5 million in

1993 due to Palo Verde outages and reduced power opera-

tions (sce Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial State-

ments). Partially offsetting the $ 155 millionwere miscella.

neous items resulting in a net increase of$ 133 million over

1992. These increases are reflected currently in earnings

because APS does not have a fuel adjustment clause as part

of its retail rate structure. The nct result ofelectric operating

revenues less fuel and purchased power expense was an

increase of$3.3 millioncomparing 1993 to 1992.

In 1993, utilityoperations expense increased $ 11.8 million

over 1992 lcvcls primarily due to the implementation of new

accounting standards for postemployment benefits and

postretirement benefits other than pensions, which added

$ 17 million to expense in 1993 (see Note 9 of Notes to Con-

solidated Financial Statements). Partially offsetting these

factors were lower power plant operating costs, lower rent

expense and lower costs for an employee gainsharing plan.

1992 COMPARED TO 1991

Income from continuing operations in 1992 was $ 150.4 mil-

lion compared to a loss in 1991 of$340.3 million. This was

primarily due to the after-tax write-offs of $407 million in

1991 resulting from a rate case settlement with the ACC (see

"Rate Case Settlement" in Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements). Excluding the cffccts of the write-

offs, income from continuing operations increased by

$83.7 million in 1992 as a result of scvcral factors, including

higher revenues, lower interest costs and lower utility

operations expenses. Partially offsetting these factors were

higher fuel and purchased power costs and higher utility

maintenance expenses.

Electric operating revenues werc up $ 154.4 million during

1992 on sales volumes of20.6 million MWh compared to

20.0 million MWh in 1991. Thc volume increase of$48.6

miHion was largely due to growth in residential and business

customer classes and increased sales due to more normal

weather as compared to 1991. A price-rclatcd increase of

$85.9 millionwas largely due to an increase in retail base

rates effective December 6, 1991 and a higher average price

for interchange sales to other utilities. Also contributing to

the increase in 1992 was a $ 19.9 million reversal of a non-

cash refund obligation recorded in Deccmbcr, 1991 (see

Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Real estate revenues increased in 1992 primarily duc to

the sale of a golf course.

Interest costs were $47.8 million lower in 1992 as compared

to 1991 due to lower average debt babnces, lower interest

rates on APS'ariable-rate debt and lower interest rates on

refinanced debt.

Fuel expenses increased in 1992 over 1991 by $ 0.4 mil-

lion as a result of increased generation due to increased retail

and interchange sales, and increased gas prices. These

increases were partially offset by lower prices for coal and

uranium. The increase in the purchased power component
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ARIZONAPUBLIC SERVICE
INTERNALCASH GENERATION,
AFTER DIVIDENDS,AS A PERCENT
OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
(In Percentages)

1909

39

1990

54

1991

101

1992

127

1993

127

cxpccted to total approximately $ 187 million,$ 135 million

and $4 million for the years 1994, 1995 and 1996, respectively.

APS currently expects to issue in 1994 a total of approxi-

mately $ 125 millionof long-term debt (primarily first mort-

gage bonds) and approximately $ 125 millionof prcfcrrcd

stock. Of this, APS issued on March 2, 1994, $ 100 million

of its First Mortgage Bonds, 6~/9'/o series due 2004, and

applied the net procccds to the repayment of short-term

debt that had been incurred for thc rcdcmption of preferred

stock and for general corporate purposes. APS expects that

substantially all of the net proceeds of the balance of the

securities to be issued during 1994 willbe used for the

retirement of outstanding debt and preferred stock. On

March 1, 1994, APS redeemed all of the outstanding shares

of its $8.80 Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K ($100 Par

Value) in thc amount of $ 14.21 million. As ofApril4, 1994,

APS willbc rcdecming all $60.264 millionof its outstanding

First Mortgage Bonds, 10 I/4 lo Scrics duc 2019.

Provisions in APS'ortgage bond indenture and articles

of incorporation require certain coverage ratios to be met

before APS can issue additional first mortgage bonds or prc-

fcrred stock. In addition, the mortgage bond indenture

limits the amount of additional bonds which may be issued

to a percentage of net property additions, to property previ-

ously pledged as security for certain bonds that have been

redeemed or retired, and/or to cash deposited with thc mort-

gage bond trustee. Aftergiving effect to the transactions

described in the preceding paragraph, as of December 31,

1993, APS estimates that the mortgage bond indenture and

the articles of incorporation would have allowed it to issue

up to approximately $ 1.2 billion and $986 millionofaddi-

tional first mortgage bonds and preferred stock, respectively.

Thc Arizona Corporation Commission (ACC) has authori-

ty over APS with rcspcct to the issuance of long-term debt

and equity securities. Existing ACC orders allow APS to

have up to approximately $2.6 billion in long-term debt and

approximately $501 millionof preferred stock outstanding

at any one time.

Management does not expect any of the foregoing restric-

tions to limitAPS'bility to meet its capital requirements.

As of December 31, 1993, APS had credit commitments

from various banks totalling approximately $302 million,

which were available either to support the issuance of com-

mercial paper or to be used for bank borrowings. Commer-

cial paper borrowings totalling $ 148 millionwere outstand-

ing at the cnd of 1993.

NON-UTILITYSUBSIDIARIES

During the past three years, the non-utilitysubsidiaries gen-

erally financed all of their operations through cash flowfrom

operations and financings that did not involve Pinnacle 1Vest.

'unCor's capital needs consist primarily ofconstruction

expenditures, which are expected to approximate $33 mil-

lion, $ 18 millionand $ 14 million for 1994, 1995 and 1996,

respectively. Capital resources available to meet these

requirements include funds provided by operations and

external financings.

On March 2, 1994, SunCor issued $25 millionofCollater-

alized Mortgage Bonds, due in 2004. The bonds are secured

by specified parcels of real property and bear variable interest

based on London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). Simulta-

neously, $6 millionof 12 /o debt due in 1997 was prepaid.



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

The followingdiscussion relates to Pinnacle West Capital

Corporation (the Company) and its subsidiaries: Arizona

Public Service Company (APS), SunCor Development Com-

pany and El Dorado Investment Company. The discussion

also relates to the discontinued operations of MeraBank,

A Federal Savings Bank.

ARIZONAPUBLIC SERVICE
CONSTRUCTION EXPENDITURES

g7olkrsin hfillions)

Capital Needs and Resources

PARENT COMPANY

During the past three years, Pinnacle West's primary cash

needs were for the payment of interest and prepayment of

principal on its long-term debt (see Note 6 ofNotes to Con-

solidated Financial Statements). Additional cash needs in

1993 were related to the fourth quarter restoration ofcommon

stock dividends.

Dividends from APS have been Pinnacle West's primary

source of cash. Tax allocations within the consolidated

1989

270

1990
244

1991

172

1992

217

1993

251

1994

279

1995

302
1998

293

group and nct operating loss carryforwards associated with

MeraBank have also been sources of cash.

The non-utilitysubsidiaries (SunCor and El Dorado) are

also expected to contribute to Pinnacle West s cash flow.

Pinnacle West prepaid substantial amounts of its parent-

level debt in each of the last three years. Management

cxpccts Pinnacle West to have sufficient cash flowavailable

for mandatory and optional debt repayments to allow parcnt-

company debt to be reduced from $564 millionat thc cnd

of 1993 to approximately $300 millionby year-cnd 1995.

At the end of 1993, Pinnacle West had a $40 million

liquidityfacilityas summarized in Note 5 of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements; no borrowings werc

outstanding thereunder.

APS

APS'apital needs consist primarily ofconstruction expendi-

tures and rcquircd repayments or redemptions of long.term

debt and prcfcrred stock. The capital resources available

to meet thcsc requirements include funds provided by opera-

tions and cxtcrnal financings.

Present construction plans exclude any major bascload

generating plants for at least the next tcn years. In general,

most of the construction expenditures arc for expanding

transmission and distribution capabilities to meet customer

growth, upgrading existing facilitics, and cnvironmcntal pur-

poses. Construction expenditures arc anticipated to be $279

million, $302 million and $293 million for 1994, 1995 and

1996, respectively. These amounts include nuclear fuel expen-

ditures, but exclude capitalized property taxes and capitalized

intcrcst costs.

> In the 1991 through 1993 period, APS funded all of its

capital expenditures (construction expenditures and capital-

ized property taxes) with internally gcncratcd funds, after the

payment of dividends. For the period 1994 through 1996,

APS estimates that it willfund substantially all of its capital

expenditures with internally generated funds, after the pay-

ment of dividends.

During 1993, APS redeemed or repurchased approximately

$637 millionof long-term debt and prcferrcd stock, ofwhich

approximately $527 millionwas optional. Refunding obliga-

tions for preferred stock, long-term debt, a capitalized lease

obligation, and certain anticipated carly redemptions are
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r993

(Dollarsin Thousands, Except Per Share hmounts)

I992 IHI IP90 I989

ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Irrigation
Other

Total retail

Sales for resale
Transmission for others
Miscellaneous services

Electric operating revenues
Provision for rate refund

$ 665,261
646,021
178,679

9,763
12,427

1,512,151

119,385
7,979

46,775

1,686,290

$ 648,567
631,796
178,585

10,295
12,810

1,482,053

136,110
7,658

43,858

1,669,679

$ 590,345
585,952
165,822

12,398
12,956

1,367,473

125,226
7,871

14,719

1,515,289
(53,436)

$ 579,556
571,806
160,913

13,134
13,015

1,338,424

133,725
9,321

26,855

1,508,325

$ 559,755
521,665
172,556

14,424
12,241

1,280,641

100,372
14,117
52,024

1,447,154

Nct electric operating revenues $ 1,686,290 $ 1,669,679 $ 1,461,853 $ 1,508,325 $ 1,447,154

ELECTRIC SALES (MWh)

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Irrigation
Other

Total retail
Sales for resale

6,247,002
7,040,026
2,890,859

111,902
75,175

16,364,964

3,685,736

6,066,830
6,904,072
2,871,440

118,536
73,853

16,034,731

4,528,172

5,856,791
6,726 350
2,796,572

160,095
71,650

15,611,458

4,375,027

5,777,871
6,567,728
2,685,469

172,763
69,929

15,273,760

4,502,380

5,673,188
6,025,634
2,911,128

196,634
69,587

14,876,171

2,612,380

Total clcctric sales 20,050,700 20,562,903 19,986,485 19,776,140 17,488,551

ELECTRIC CUSTOhlERS ~ END OF YEAR

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Irrigation
Other

Total retail
Sales for resale

578,718
70,516
3,061

880
764

653,939

40

562,464
69,426

2,883
960
749

636,482

46

547,425
68,118
3,095

970
751

620,359

43

534,413
67,129

3,196
1,071

749

606,558

47

523,102
67,734
2,010
1,177

753

594,776
44

Total electric customers 653,979 636,528 620,402 606,605 594,820

QUARTERLY STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

Stock Symbol: PNKV

I993 High Low Close

Dividends
Per

Share I 2 High

Dividends
Per

Low Close Share

1st Quarter 21 3/4 19 5/8 21 5/8
2nd Quarter 23 1/2 .— 207/8 23 1/8
3rd Quarter 25 1/4 23 1/8 24 3/8
4th Quarter 24 3/8 20 3/8 22 3/8 $ 0.20

1st Quarter 18 1/4 16 3/4 17 5/8
2nd Quarter 18 3/8 16 7/8 18 1/8
3rd Quarter 20 17 7/8 19 3/8
4th Quarter 20 1/2 19 1/8 20 3/8
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Selected Consolidated Data
PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

(Dollars in Thousands, Exceps Pcr Share ilmounss)

~993 I992 r99I I990 1989

OPERATING RESULTS

Operating revenues

Electric
Provision for rate refund
Real estate

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued

operations - net of tax (b)
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting for income taxes (c)

$ 1,686,290

32,248

$ 169,978

19,252

$ 1,669,679

19,959

$ 150,440

6,000

$ 1,515,289 $ 1,508,325 $ 1,447,154
(53436)
12,697 81,264 44,492

$ 040,317)(a) $ 70,208 $ 124,553

153,455 27,125 (675,968)

Nct income (loss) $ 189,230 $ 156,440 $ (186,862) $ 97,333 $ (551,415)

CohthloN STOCK DATA

Book value per sharc - year-end

Earnings (loss) pcr average common
share outstanding

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Accounting change

Total

$ 18.87 $ 17.00 $ 15.23 $ 17 40 $ 16.31

$ 1.95 $ 1.73 $ (3.91) $ 0.81 $ 1.44
0.07 1.76 0.31 (7.80)

0.22

$ 2.17 $ 1.80 $ (2.15) $ 1.12 $ (6.36)

Dividends declared per share (d) $ 0.20 $ $ $ 0.80

Common shares outstanding
Year-end
Average

87,423,817 87,161,872 87,009,974 86,873,174
87,241,899 87,044,180 86,937,052 86,769,924

86,723,774
86,720,747

TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,956,799 $ 6,270,476 $ 6,147,639 $ 6,793,755 $ 6,791,748

LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

Long. term debt less current maturities
Other liabilities

$ 2,633,620 $ 2,774,305 $ 2,996,910 $ 3,218,168 $ 3,423,686
2,282,508 1,620350 1,429,488 1,702,628 1,581,148

4,916,128 4,394/55 4,426/98 4,920,796 ',004,834
Minorityinterests

Non-redeemable preferred stock ofAPS
Redecmablc prcfcrrcd stock of APS

Common stock equity

Total

193,561 168,561 168,561 168,561
197,610 225,635 227,278 192,453

1,649,500 1,481,725 1,325,402 1,511,945

$ 6,956,799 $ 6,270,476 $ 6,147,639 $ 6,793,755

168,561
204,021

1,414,332

$ 6,791,748

(a) Includes approximately S407 millionofwrite.offs and adjustments, net of income iax, related to Palo Verde. Sec Note 3 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b) Results of McraBank, A Federal Savings Bank, and Malapai Resources Company, a uranium mining company, are classified as
discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements. Sce Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(c) Results of the adoption ofStatement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." Sce Note 4
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(d) On October 20, 1993, the Pinnacle West Board of Directors restored a quarterly dividend, which was previously suspended in
October 1989.

18



intended to be stored in centralized locations away, from

the individual sites where the generating facilities are

located. An assessmcnt toward the nuclear waste fund,

originally intended to be applied to the study and devel-

opment of off-site disposal facilities for high-level waste

and levied on all nuclear generating plants in the U.S., is

included in APS'perating and maintenance expenses,

as is the cost of off-site transportation, processing and

storage of low-level waste.

However, off-site facilities for high-level waste will

not be available in the foreseeable future, and the off-site

facilitics for low-level waste'now being utilized for Palo

Verde may soon be closed to it. Due to the relatively

young age of Palo Verde, APS has on-site storage avail-

able for high.level waste in spent-fuel pools for a number

ofyears. With respect to low-lcvclwaste, the company

is exploring means to either ship the waste to an alterna-

tive site or to store it on-site until an off-site location

becomes available.

While believing that scientific and financial aspects

of thc waste issues can be resolved satisfactorily, APS

acknowledges that their ultimate resolution in a timely

fashion willrequire political resolve and action on national

and regional scales which it is less able to predict.

OTilER APS AGENDA ITEhls

Other significant items on the APS environmental agenda

include: continued emphasis on the conservation of

energy; environmental education through an innovative

alliance which includes APS, the EPA and the Arizona

Department of Environmental Quality; analyses of envi-

ronmental impacts at old manufactured gas and other

sites; support of the development of the electric car and

battery technologies; a pollution prevention program

which includes a targeted 90 percent reduction in the use

of chlorinated solvents; and thc support of research and

public education with respect to electric and magnetic

fields from home wiring, appliances and power lines.

SUNCOR

At Suncor, protecting the environment has often meant

putting aside more land in natural reserve than is

required by local ordinances, developing low-use hvater

techniques and committing significant resources to pro-

tecting plants, animals and terrain from damage as thou-

sands of acres are developed for use. The result of this

effort has benefited the environment, but has also added

value to SunCor projects.

There are a number of Superfund sites throughout

the metropolitan Phoenix area where contamination of

groundwater has occurred and at which remedial actions

are being taken by parties responsible for thc contamina-

tion. These clean-up activities take considerable time to

complete, and in the meantime contaminated ground-

water in one location may migrate beneath adjoining

locations. This appears to be occurring under a small

portion of SunCor's property in Goodyear. Although

SunCor is not a responsible party at any Superfund site,

it is closely monitoring the remediation effort at the

Goodyear property.

There is a growing concern in the develop-

ment community about possible state, local

and federal regulation which could affect

development costs. The impact of any

such regulation cannot be predict-

ed, but management believes

foreseeable outcomes will

not materially affect its

current projects.

gp»
df X~.



Environmental Report

Development and marketing activities continue at

SunCor's commercial and industrial projects. Market-

Place, southeast of Phoenix, and Talavi, northwest of

Phoenix, arc positioned for an upswing in the commercial

and industrial real estate markets.

SunCor's paramount strategy is to enhance its finan-

cial resources, customer base and managerial strengths

relative to its existing holdings. It willalso undertake new

projects (not necessarily confined to the Phoenix area),

where it can attract fina'ncial partners and homebuilders

and leverage its financial abilities, without making signifi-

cant financial commitments.

DIVIDENDAND OTIIER STRATEGIES

The basic strategy for SunCor and El Dorado Investment

Company, Pinnacle West's venture capital firm, is to cap-

ture thc value of their investments and provide cash to the

parent company for debt repayment.

El Dorado's primary business is liquidating its equity

holdings as soon and as advantageously as possible. Its

progress can be affected by the stock market, especially

the market for initial public offerings.

For the next few years, the non-utility subsidiaries

should be relatively earnings neutral, gcncrating com-

bined results in the area of plus or minus $ 10 millionpcr

year. They should, however, be positive producers of cash

to augment Pinnacle's ability to achieve its debt reduction

and dividend goals.

In October, the Pinnacle West board of directors

voted to restore dividend payments on the company's

common stock and declared a quarterly dividend of20

cents per share. The company's strategy calls for annually

increasing the dividend by significant increments, well

over the industry average rate of increase.

Pinnacle West recognizes the importance of safe-

guarding the environment and believes that superior

environmental performance is key to business success.

FOSSIL PLANTS

APS-managed fossil-fuel plants willnot require major

modifications to meet sulfur dioxide regulations estab-

lished by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

(EPA) under the Clean AirAct because of the company's

past investmcnt in pollution control equipment.

The EPA issued new rules in March 1994 for limit-

ing nitrous oxide emissions, which willrequire additional

investment for pollution control equipment at the

company's coal-fired Four Corners power plant by the

end of the decade. One estimate for APS'ost of compli-

ance with this requirement is $ 16 million.

By 1999, the Navajo coal-fired plant, which is 14

percent APS-owned and operated by another utility,will

have completed major modifications to reduce sulfur

dioxide emissions. APS estimates its share of the capital

costs for these modifications to be $74 million to be

incurred over the 1994 to 1999 period. The emission

reductions were negotiated with the EPA to address visi-

bilityconcerns, with Navajo being the first plant to

respond to these regional visibilityissues.

The Clean AirAct created the "Grand Canyon

VisibilityTransport Commission" that is chartered to

complete a study by November 1995 on visibilityimpair-

ment in the "Golden Circle of National Parks" on the

Colorado Plateau. The company has ownership interests

in Four Corners, Cholla and Navajo coal. fired plants

included within the study area and is working with the

Commission's staff to identify all significant sources con-

tributing to visibilityimpairment.

NUCLEAR PLANT

The nation's nuclear industry shares a large and growing

problem ofwhat to do with high-level (spent fuel) and

low-level radioactive waste, which national policy had
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about three percent for the next few years.

Cost management is both a short-term strategy, which

willbolster earnings, and a component of the new seven-

part plan that willcontribute to enhancing long-term share-

holder value. That plan is described in thc Chairman's

letter, beginning on page two of this annual report.

LONGER.TERh1 PLANNING

Based on that new seven-part plan and its own internal

objectives, APS expects to achieve additional efficiency

and productivity improvements while maintaining high

safety standards and achieving record customer satisfac-

tion levels.

Successful cost management resulted in APS not fil-

ing a request for a rate increase in December 1993 when a

Sing moratorium, which was part of the 1991 rate settle-

ment, expired. The 1991 settlement, with its principal

focus on the cost ofelectricity, is achieving what both the

Arizona Corporation Commission and management hoped

it would, and could provide the basis for transition into a

competitive future.

APS'ummer residential rates, once 13th highest in

the nation in 1988, now rank 39th per kWh used, based on

Edison Electric Institute (E.E.I.) rankings of invcstor-

owned utilities. The company is dedicated to continuing

that trend over the long term.

Perhaps more important to its future competitive

position is a utility's rates to large industrial and commer-

cial customers.

As one measure of that position, APS'verage indus-

trial rate is 6.18 cents per kWh, and the average rate for its

ten largest industrial customers is 530 cents. The average

unweighted industrial rate in the APS region is 6.31 cents,

based on E.E.I. rankings of ten neighboring utilities.

These rates and the fact that industrial and large com-

mercial users represent 14 percent of APS'evenues, are

indicators of the company's competitive position, which is

further strengthened by solid customer growth in its ser-

vice territory. Other positive factors included in this APS

competitive analysis are: a current and planned reserve

margin of 17 percent; no requirements to build base-load

'ower

plants for at least the next ten years; its segment-

specific, value-added marketing strategies; and the nature

of its current contracts with large customers. Taken togeth-

er, these factors willallow APS to focus on profitability.

There is excess power in the region that can affect

wholesale and spot market sales and the margins on those

sales. On the other hand, the long-term transmission

agreements with PacifiCorp provide APS with access to

new markets for both sales and purchases.

SUNCOR DEVELOPhIENT CohIPAN Y

Pinnacle's real estate subsidiary, SunCor Development

Company, had its strongest year ever, selling double the

number of lots it moved in 1992 and bringing more than

$30 millionofproduct to the market.

With more than $400 millionof book-value assets

and modest long-term debt, SunCor is one of the major

real estate firms in the Phoenix area. In 1993, it took

advantage of strong activity in the residential sector, to

which its resources are predominantly targeted.

It was a pivotal year for SunCor:

> AtPalm Valley in the Litchfield.Goodyear area where

SunCor is developing its largest master-planned

community, SunCor and four homebuilders are now

marketing product, and Robson Communities which

develops active-adult communities in the Phoenix area

sold 200 homes at PcbbleCreek, a 2,200.acre project

within Palm Valley. Also at Palm Valley, SunCor

opened an 18-hole golfcourse and clubhouse and

broke ground on phase one of a factory outlet mall.

13 Tatum Ranch was awarded the Homebuilders

Association MAMEaward for the best master-planned

community in the Phoenix market.

> Six of the area's most respected homebuilders began

selling homes at Scottsdale Mountain.

Growing pains in the form of an overloaded permit-

ting process, lack of skilled labor in some construction

trades and slow mortgage processing hampered the speed

at which SunCor was able to respond to residential

market demand. Higher mortgage rates could also have
'n

effect over the longer term.
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1993 Results and Outlook

l993 RESULTS

Pinnacle West's earnings for 1993 were up 13 percent due

primarily to strong 2.7 percent customer growth, lower in-

terest costs and cost management throughout the company.

The improvement was achieved even though it was a

bad weather year for the utilitybusiness in Arizona; a

mechanical problem in steam generators at Palo Verde

increased replacement power costs; and the implementa-

tion of new accounting standards for postrctirement and

postemployment benefits increased reported labor costs.

Afterabsorbing $ 17 millionof these accounting

changes, costs rdated to the Palo Verde outages and normal

cost increases, utilityoperations and maintenance expenses

still came in only 2.7 percent higher than 1992.

At year-end, parent-company debt was lowered to

less than half the 1990 peak amount of $ 1.2 billion, and

management expects to reduce the current balance of

$564 million to around $300 million by the end of 1995.

For the year, consolidated interest expense decreased

by approximately $22 million. APS reduced its weighted

average cost of debt from 9.45 percent in 1991, when it
began a major refinancing program, to 8.23 percent at

year-end 1993. It continued to cover more than 100 per-

cent of its construction program with funds from opera-

tions, and should nearly do so through 1996.

APS fossil-fuel plants were available to produce

power 89 percent of the time, with the company's Cholla

units reaching an outstanding mark of almost 95 pcrccnt.

Even with problems associated with its steam generators,

Palo Verde was the highest-producing nuclear facilityin

the country, according to NUCLEONICS WEEK;

NEAR TERht APS CtlALLENGES

Thc near future willbe very challenging for the company

as reported income willreflect the fall.offin 1994 and

1995 of non-cash income related to a 1991 rate settlement.

That settlement included two non-cash items —a

temporary write.down and an "in-lieu" refund obligation
—which were recorded as negative earnings impacts in

December 1991 and are being brought back or accrctcd

into income over the 30 months ending Junc 1994.

After income taxes, these non-cash earnings in 1993

totalled $58 million, or $0.67 per share. Since the accre-

tion ends in June 1994, this amount willfall to $26 million

after income taxes, or $030 per share in 1994, and to zero

in 1995.

Also in the neat term, there willbe residual effects of a

Palo Verde mechanical problem, which is particularly acute

in one of the two steam generators in Palo Verde Unit 2.

A steam generator is a very large piece of equipment,

some 68 feet tall and 20 feet hvide, containing 11,000

metal alloy tubes immersed in a pool ofwater. Heat from

the water passing from the unit's reactor through the

generator tubes is transfcrrcd to the surrounding water to

produce the steam used to generate electricity.

The occurrence of some cracks in these tubes is com-

mon in the industry, and when cracks are dctectcd in any

outage of the unit, the affected tubes are taken out of ser-

vice by plugging. Unit 2, howcvcr, has been found to have

a number of uncommon axial tube cracks in the upper

regions of its steam generators.

In March, a previously undetected crack in Unit 2

developed into a rupture allowing water containing

radioactivity from the reactor to flowunder pressure into

the water pool surrounding the tubes.

There were no significant health and safety con-

sequences, but there were possibilities of recurrence, and

until much later, those possibilities were not demonstrat-

ed to be confined to Unit 2. Note 0 of Notes to Consoli-

dated Financial Statements describes the tube cracking

problems in greater detail and remedial actions taken by

APS, and the fact that APS willincur an average of
approximately $2 million per month (before income

taxes) for replacement power as long as these particular

remedial actions continue at all three units.

The company's tools for mitigating the negative

effects of the fall-offof accretion income and the Palo

Verde problem are customer growth, cost management

and interest expense reduction.
" Population growth that is double the national average,

job creation'and a solid pace ofeconomic development

willfuel customer growth that is cxpccted to average



John Sawhill
PRESIDENT
THE NATURE CONSERVANCY
ARLINGTON, VIRGINIA

An Environmental
V2e$8 —Whom the gods would
destroy, Peter Drucker urrote in a recent

WALLSTREET JOURNAL piece, they
first send 40 years ofsuccess. ~ Drucker is
referrirrg, of course, to the kind of com-

placency and hidebound attitudes that, over

time, tend to permeate successful businesses.

We can all think ofexamples of companies that

fit this mold, once robust enterprises that fail to

take advantage of new opportunities or respond to

changing circurrrstances. ~ From my vantage point
at The Nature Conservancy, I have watched this process

play itself out as businesses have struggled to deal with
the fullarray ofenvironmental issues before them. Some

resist change; others embrace it. And based on these obser-

vations, I am more convinced than ever that companies that

seek out the opportunities that environmental protection offers

willoutperform and outcompete those companies that resort to

stalling tactics, litigation, or simply sticking their headsin the
sand. ~ My reasoning is simple. As a high-priority public policy

issue, the environment willnot go atvay. Indeed, it will likely
become even more important. The public strongly supports environ-

mental protectiorr, and as our natural heritage comes under increasing

strain, this pressure willsurely increase. Wise companies are positioning

themselves now to take advantage of these changes. ~ For the electric

utility and other industries, this rnight take several forms. Instead of
complying with current regulatory standards, forinstance, farsighted companies

are ensuring that their operations today willmeet the far stricter standards we

can assume for the future. ~ The key is for a company to make a real commitmerrt

to the environment and to follow up on that commitment with innovative
approaches and solutions. ~ In Arizona, a state ofprecious resources and spectacular,

fragile landscapes, it is especially important for companies to take the responsibility for
protecting our cormnon natural heritage. By making environmental concerns central to

business, companies such as Pinnacle West, Arizona Public Service and SunCor
Development can take the lead in ensuring a healthy environmental and economic future
for the state.

THE COMPANY'S ENVIRONMENTALREPORT BEGINS ON PAGE 16.
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Thoughts From An
Outside Director —Th.

electric utilityindustry is undergoing
radical change to a more competitive, mar-

ket-oriented environment, and that is fine—I
have long favored more competition in tradition-

ally regulated industries. ~ My perspective as a

Pinnacle 1%est and APS board member and my viewfrom
"outside" as someone in the natural gas side of the energy

business, together indicate that these companies are well-
positioned to make the transition to this netv world. I have seen

dramatic market changes in the gas business, so I think Iknow what
it takes. APS is one of a handful of utilities that has segmented and

analyzed its markets and customers, and one of a very few that has
undergone significant internal change to prepare for the future. ~ As former

chairman of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, I would remind readers

of this annual report that there remains a fundamental difference between electric
utilities and other competitive businesses: regulation. Tf)is "stillregulated" status

in a changing, competitive environment presents unique challenges and dual
pressures to satisfy both our regulators and our stockholders. ~ We are

partners with the regulators, charged with providing reliable,
low-cost electric service to our customers. We also must

provide adequate returns to our shareholders.
Pinnacle West recognizes both of these goals

and is striving to achieve them in a
balanced way.

Martha 0. Hesse
OUTSIDE DIRECTOR
PINNACLE WEST AND APS,
FORMER FERC CHAIRMAN
HOUSTON, TEXAS
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Keith D. Sprinkle
CHAIRh!AN
PINNACLE WEST SHAREHOLDERS ASSOC.
PHOENIX'RIZONA

An Individual Shareholder
V2eED —Ihave been an Arizona Public Ser-

vice Compassy and Pinnacle West shareholder
since 1952, and a faithful—though not alsuays

happy —passenger on the company's roller-
coaster ride through the late 1980s and into the
less-lurbulent days of this decade. ~ Regaining
control of Pinnacle West has been no small
accomplishment. The company has gone through
tremendous changes since 1989. When the bottom
dropped out of the real estate snarket, fornser
subsidiary MeraBank left Pinnacle West with
a mountain of debt. PacifiCorp made a series of
buyout offers that Pinnacle West deensed inade-
quate. Palo Verde was going through a period
of dismal perfornsance and became the subject of
an extended rate case as Unit 3 was worked into rate
base. ~ Those were some of the key issues confrontirsg
Dick Snell as he took the helm early in 1990. Shortly
thereafter, Snell announced a seven-step plan designed to
return the company to financial health and svell-being.
And in four years, his program has reduced the debt and
reinstated the dividend as plarsned. ~ Pinnacle West
refocused its attention on its core business —Arizona Public
Service. And, APS has turned its attentioss to becoming a

much leaner and more efficiesst company lo meet challenges,
such as competition, that may transform the electric utility
business over the upcoming years. ~ Based on those new and
evolving challenges, I think today's utilityshareholder needs to
consider whether company management is stuck in business-as-

usual, or whether it is agile enough to make the tough and
creative decisions necessary to thrive in a changing business
climate. From my vantage point, the management teans at
Pissnacle West and APS seems better conditioned than most to
adapt to changing times.
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lose a net ofover 200,000 residents to other states.

Arizona mill represent one primary destination,
ruhich ruillhelp raise the state's population by
another 2.5 percent in 1994. BEYoND 1994 lVe
believe that Arizorra should outperform the
nation during the next feru years. Its trump
cards willbe technology, international trade,
tourism and population growth. Demographic
trends suggest a continued migration from
east to south and mest in the United States.
Arizona's economy willboth support and
benefit from those trends.

An ECOnOmiC PerSPeCti Z e —Based on our
ssment of current and prospective forces, rve believe that

izona's economy is on a solid growth track. THE STATE's

RFQRh1ANcE IN 1993 Arizona chalked up an impressive gain
1993, mith an average increase in non-farm jobs of 3.6

ercent, well above the national average. Arizona also
experienced the greatest amount ofinmigration last year since

1987, mhich helped push population groruth to 2.7 percent,
more than double the national rate. PRosPEGTs FoR 1994

Arizo>ra entered the year ruith substantial momentum.
Employment groruth is likely to again surpass 3 percent in
1994, which would be mell above the U.S. average pro-

jectedd

at slightly less than 2 percent. ~ As the national
recovery moves into its fourth year, it should provide
support for such states as Arizona. Business firms con-
tinue to invest aggressively irr capt'tal equipment, which
mill benefit Arizona's electronics, telecommunications
and other technology industries. Improving corrfidence
and real incomes millboost the state's tourist industry.
Internatiorrally, approval of the North American Free
Trade Agreement (NAFTA) ruillhelp insure further
expansion of trade and investment between Arizona
and Mexico. a Arizona's favorable economic prospects,
climate and quality of life willbe ongoing magnets
forpopulation groruth. Although Californiais likely
to begin its recovery over the next year, it stillmill

A. Lynn Reaser, PhD
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT
Cc CHIEF ECONOhIIST
FIRST INTERSTATE BANCORP
LOS ANGELES, ChLIFORNIA
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HOuSing Market —The Phoenix

housing market contirrues to outperform the

housing markets in much of the rest of the

nation, with Phoenix ranked as the rrumber

one housing rrrarket in the West and the
number four housing rrrarket in the nation as a

whole based on single family permits issued in
1993. This ranking is expected to be maintained
even though Phoerrix is clearly the smallest ofthe

major national markets in population. Our
forecast is for continued growth of this rrature.
~ Starrding out in 1993 urere nerv single-family
permits, up 23 percent and just rnissirrg a 1986

record; sales of nerv homes in the rrretro-area

county, up 16 percent; and resale activity, rvhich may

have set a record at more than 44,000 recorded sales,

up 16 percent. ~ SunCor Development Company is the
area's leading masterplanned cormmrnity developer of
general housing commurrities, with class "A"master-

planned community offerings at Scottsdale Mountain,
Tatu»r Ranch in Phoenix, and Palm Valley in
GoodyearlLd chfield Park. ~ Tatum Ranch is the number

one performing master-planned cornmurrity in the
northeast metro Phoenix area and nu»rber four overall in
the metro area among golfcourse general housing master-

planned communities. ~ SunCor's new and exclusive

Scottsdale Mountain master-plamred corrrrnurrity represents

the best that the city ofScottsdale has to offer, and
'xpectedto become a top-ranked master plan amo

Scottsdale's renowned mountainside non-golf master pla
~ The rretvest Sun Cor master plan, Palm Valley, is positior

to dominate future housirrg activity in the urestern portio
the Phoenix metropolitan area, an area rvhich rve expe

grow in market share in the near- and mid-terms due t
favorable commuting time to the central core of the metr

and to an expectation ofan expanding employment base

West Valley. ~ These three class "An master-planned cornr

offerings, coupled rvith the strong group of leading horne

rvho havejoirsed to produce housing in SunCor's comrrr

suggest that these communities willtend to remain in I
ranks ofcommunities in the region for several years to corr

R.L. Brown
PUBI ISHER
R.I,. BROWN HOUSING REPORTS
hlUNDS PARK, ARIZONA
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March 31, 1994

gl ~ ~

A s most ofyou arc aware, on
December 8, 1993, thc U.S.
Bankruptcy Court for the

Wcstcm DistrictofTexas cnteicd an
order confirming El Paso Electric's
(EPE) plan of reorganization. Thc
plan, if approved by regulators,
would allow EPE to emerge from
bankruptcy as a wholly-owned sub-
sidiaiy of Central and South West
Corporation (CSW), a public utility
holding company based in Dallas,
Texas. The plan was confirmed fol-
lowing an overwhelming vote by all
ofEPE's creditor groups and share-
holders. In fact, of those common
shareholders voting, 98 percent of
the shares werc voted in favor of the
plail.

Confirmation ofour plan of reorga-
nization paves the way for EPE to
cmcrgc from bankruptcy in a healthy
financial position. Throughout this
process, our goal has been —and
continues to be —to secure a viable
solution that is fair and equitable for
EPE's creditors, shareholders, and
customers. Our plan of reorganiza-
tion and acquisition by CSW will
accomplish that goal.

On thc effective date of the merger,
EPE common shareholders will re-
ceive CSW common stock in ex-

. change for their EPE shares accord-
ing to a formula that valued EPE
common stock at $3.00 per sharc on
the confirmation date of the plan of
reorganization (approximately one-
tcnth of a CSW common sharc for
every outstanding EPE common
share). Additional consideration to
EPE common shareholders (in the
form of CSW common shares hav-
ing a value ofup to $ 1.50pershare of
EPE commonstock) may be realized
through the resolution of certain
matters and the sale of certain non-

utilityassets. In connection with the-
additional consideration that maybe
achieved, in recent weeks EPE has
rcceivcd approval from the Bank-
ruptcy Court to scil the assets of
Triangle Electric Supply Co., which
will result in thc realization of ap-
proximately $ 10 million for EPE's
common shareholders. The Com-
pany hopes it willcomplete thc sale

by thc cnd ofApril 1994.

, The Company also has filed a simi-
lar request for approval from the
Bankruptcy Court for the settlement
of federal income tax claims of the
IRS, which will result in thc real-
ization of additional consideration
having valucofapproximately$ 27.8
million for EPE common share-
holders under the provisions of the
merger agreemcnt. Assuming these
values are realized, they willbc added
to thc previously realized $2.3 mil-
lion and up to $ 13.8 millionthat will
be crcditcd immediately prior to the
effective date of the merger. Thus,
EPE willachieve thc maximum ad-
ditional consideration amount pro-
vided in themergeragrcement. Value,
also willbe added forEPE common
shareholders based on the dividends
paid on CSWcommonstockbetwecn
thc confirmation date of the plan of
reorganization and the effective date
of the merger.

Even withBankruptcy Court confir-
mation and creditor and shareholder
support, however, the mergcrcannot
bc accomplished and realized until
approvals arc obtained from various
state and federal regulatory agen-
cies, including the Public Utility
Commission of Texas, thc New
Mexico Public UtilityCommission,
thc Sccuritics and Exchange Com-
mission, the Department ofEnergy,
the Federal Energy Regulatory



Commission, and the NuclcarRegu-
latory Commission, among others.
Thus, wc anticipate thecffcctivedate
of the mcrgcr willbe sometime bc-
twccn 18 and 24 months from the
confirmation date.

Toward that end,on January 10, EPE
filed for a $41.4 million (or 15 per-
cent) base rate increase in its Texas
jurisdiction. Because EPE's current
rates are not sufficient to cover thc
cost ofproviding electric service to
our customers, a rate increase is
neccssaty forEPE to reorganize and
become financiallyviable. However,
CSW has offered our Texas cus-
tomers a settlement proposal that
would nullify nearly all the initial
effects of EPE's $41.4 million rate
request. Thcscttlementsecksalowcr
$25 million base rate increase from
Texas customers, offset by about.
$ 13 million in fuel savings and a

one-time $ 16.4 million fuel refund
to bc credited to customers over 12
months. This means bills for EPE's
Texas customers wouldincrcaseonly
about 2 to 3 percent in the first year
of the merger.

There has been much local publicity
about the so-called "high rates" ofEl
Paso Electric. However, it is impor-
tant to put our rates in the proper
perspective as they affect thc
Company's business, and the cost of
living and commerce in our service
territory. The fact is the average
electric bill for Texas residential
customers is about $52 pcr month.
This is among the lowest average
electricbillofanymajorcityin Texas.
It also is in the lowest one-third per-
centile ofaverage bills in the nation.
Further, an average household elec-
tricbillinour service area represents

only 2.3 percent of median house.-

hold income. This is lower than most
other areas ofTexas and below the
national average.

Merging El Paso Electric into the
Central and South West operating

system willyield economies ofscale
that will bcncfit our customcrs-
ratc increases willbe stabilized and
substantially lower than ifEl Paso

Electric had remained an indepcn-
dcnt stand-alone company. These
efficiencies will help lower thc
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Company's operating and mainte-
nance costs. And, perhaps more im-
portantly, the merger willguarantee
that electric service willcontinue to
be reliable for all customers in El
Paso Electric's service territory for
many years to come.

El Paso Electric is an attractive ac-

quisition candidate bccausc our scr-
vice territory and total number of
customers continue to grow, while
other areas throughout the southwest
and thc country are cxpcricncing
limited growth in electricity sales.

Thc Company once again achieved
record peak demands in 1993, re-
cording an all-time total system peak
demand of 1,335 megawatts (MW)
on August 11, which was a 2.5 per-
cent increase over the prior record
peak of 1,302 MW in 1992. EPE's
1993 native peak demand of 997
MW also was a new record, in-
creasing 2.4 pcrccnt from a peak of
974 MWin 1992. In addition, native
system sales and total system sales

increased 1.8 and 2.9 percent, rc-
spcctivcly, over thc previous year,
and our total number of customers
incrcascd 2.8 percent. Looking
ahead, wc continue to expect steady
electrical and economic growth in
the communities we serve.

Further, the recent approval of the
North American Free Trade Agree-
ment should enhance continued
growth in our service territory, and

provide theopportunity forincrcased
sales into the Republic of Mexico.
This is yct another reason that Cen-

tral and South West negotiated a

merger agrccmcnt with EPE. Not
onlydoes our Company offera solid,
growing service territory, but itpro-
vides CSW with increased transmis-
sion access to the wcstcm U.S. and

Mexico.

El Paso Electric currently has a con-
tract with Mexico through 1996 to
provide up to 150mcgawatts offirm
power sales to Mexico's rapidly
growing northcm border area. These
sales continue, and our relationship
with Mexico and its representatives
is excellent. Central and South West
also has along-standing relationship
with Mexico. In fact, in late-1993,
CSW announced the opening ofnew



offices located in Mexico City to
fosl.r an already strong relationship
willithat country's government and

<, 3ustiy, and to pursue further clec-
tncal sales into Mexico.

In an effort to posture our company
better in anticipation of its merger
into the Central and South West

system. the Company teduced its
number ofsenior managers in early-
1994. These personnel reductions
allowed EPE to reduce layers of
management and to begin aligning
itself more closely with CSW in
anticipation of the completion and

implementation of the merger.

In addition, the Company and CSW
have implemented a transition pio-
ccss. We will emphasize extcmal
and internal communications to ad-
dress and accommodate concerns of
employees and shareholders more
effectively, and to foster improved
relations and acceptance by our
community leaders, citizens'nd
customers. This process will be
spearheaded by Curtis L, Hoskins.
Curt has been the Company's'hief
operating officer since May 1990
and was elected president inJanuary
ofthis year. Curt's work, leadership
and assistance to me has been in-
valuable over the past four years,
and his experience with utility
mergers willcontinuetobeextremely
important as we go forward to
complete this process.: .-

Eduardo A. Rodriguez also was'pro-
moted to senior vice president and
general counsel. Eddie's oversight
and leadership of the legal facets of
thebankruptcy and mergerprocesses
have been —and continue to be-
instrumental in achieving a very
successful solution.

In summary, while this past year has
been difficult, it also has been
punctuated by success. When it was
clearthatEPEcouldnotemerge from
bankruptcy as a stand-alone com-

pany, thc next altcmative was to
identify a strong, viable and highly-
rcspcctcd entity to negotiate a busi-
ness combination or mcrgcr. Our
merger into thc Central and South
West system will have positive,
lasting effects on each constituency
that EPE scrvcs.

We finally have idcntificd and are

moving toward a viable solution,
and the potential benefits to our
shareholders, creditors and cus-
tomers are significant. Yct, we still
face the complex and demanding
challenges of obtaining regulatoiy
approvals during this transition pe-
riod. Rest assured that all of us at
EPE remain fullydedicated to com-
pleting this merger in a timely and,
efficient manner.

Finally, inclosing, Iparticularly want
to thank our employees, who can-
tinue to perform at exceptional lev-
els during a very difficultperiod of
time. They are the strength of our
Company, and I congratulate them
on their ability to stay focused and to
continue providing superior cus-
tomer service and administrative
support. I also want to thank each
member of EPE's Board of Direc-
tors for their strong leadership, and
for their tremendous commitment of
time, energy and resourcesin getting
this process accomplished. Thus, I
encourage you to vote your proxy
for the three'EPE Board members
who are currently slated for re-elec-
tion. Finally, and most significantly,
Iwish to thank you—oursharehold-
ers —foryour continued support of
EPE's Board, senior management
and employees.

One final note —this letter to share-
holders presents only an overview.
For a comprehensive discussion of
our plan and thc merger agreement
with CSW, I encourage you to read
the detailed discussion of these and
other important issues facing our
Company contained in the attached

(P

Annual Report on Form 10-K. We
will,ofcourse, kccp you informed of
future developments.

Sincerely,

David H. Wiggs, Jr.
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer
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Eduardo A. Rodriguez (12)
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and Gcncral Counsel
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Wilfred E. Binns (11)
Prcsidcnt and Sole Sharcholdcr,
Binns Construction &Realty, Inc.,
Las Cruccs, New Mexico

Sidney G. Baucom (2)
OfCounsel, Jones, Waldo, Holbrook
&McDonough, Salt Lake City, Utah

Wilson K. Cadman (1)
Retired in 1992. Prior to rctircmcnt,
Chairman of thc Board, Prcsidcnt and
Chief Executive Officer, Kansas Gas
&Electric Co., Wichita, Kansas
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President and Principal Sharcholdcr,
Cardwcll Propcrtics, Inc., El Paso,
Texas (multi-business holding and
invcstmcnt company)

George W. Edwards, Jr. (1)
Prcsidcnt and Chief Executive
Officer, Kansas City Southern
Railway Co., Kansas City, Missouri

Curtis L. Hoskins (4)
President &Chief Opcnting Officer

Joscfina A. Salas-Porras (15)
Educator, El Paso, Texas
(consultant in second language and
multicultural training)

Thomas C. Simpson (1 1)
President and Principal Shareholder,
Simpson Farms, Inc., Las Cruces,
N.M.

I I ~

David H. Wiggs, Jr. (6)
Chairman of thc Board
and Chief Executive Officer

Curtis L. Hoskins (4)
President &Chief Opcnting Officer

Julius F. Bates, Jr. (22)
Vice Prcsident&ustomcr Services

'ohn

E. Droubay (4)
Vice President and Trcasurcr

Russell G. Gibson (4)
Controller
and Chief Accounting Officer

Gary R. Hcdrick (16)
Vice Prcsidcnt-Financial Planning

'

and Rate Administration

John C. Horne (21)
Vice Prcsidcnt-
Transmission Systems Division

James A. Mayhcw (14)
Vice Prcsidcnt-
Rates and Energy Utilization

Robert C. McNicl (16)
Vice Prcsidcnt-
Ncw Mexico Division

Guillcrmo Silva, Jr. (15)
Secretary
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Shareholders may obtain infoima-
tion relating to their share position,
dividends, transfcrrequiremerits,lost
certificates, and other related mat-
ters by telephoning BONY Share-
holder Services at 1-800-524+458.

'his service is available to all share-
holders Monday through Friday,
8 a.m. to 6 p.m„Eastern Time,:

Shareholders also may obtain this
information by writing to:
Shareholder Relations Dept.,
Bank of New York,, „.
Church Stiect Station
P.O. Box 11258
New York, Ncw York 10286-1258.

Shaieholdersshould dircctquestions
about thc activities and operating
results of the Company to:

The Office of the Secretary
El Paso Electric Company
P.O. Box 982
El Paso, Texas 79960.

Or call: 1-800-592-1634 or
1-800-351-1621.

The common stock ofEl Paso Elec-
tric Company is traded and quoted
on the NASDAQStock Market. Thc
ticker symbol for thc common stock
is ELPAQ. ("Q" indicates Company
is operating under Chapter 11 ofthe
United States Bankruptcy Code.)

El Paso Electric and The Bank of
Ncw York (BONY) act as co-trans-
fer agents and co-registrars for the
Company's common and pieferred
stock., BONY maintains au share-
holder records of the Company.

A complete copy ofEl Paso „
Electric.'s Annual Report on Form.
10-K for the year ended December
31, 1993, which has been filed.,
with the Securities and Exchange ~

Commission, including Financial
Statements and Financial State-
ment schedules, willbe provided"
to shareholders without charge
upon written request to:

The Office of the Sectetaty
El Paso Electric Company
Post Office Box 982
El Paso, Texas 79960.
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ANNUALMEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The annual meeting ofEl Paso Electric Co. willbe held in the Sixth
Floor Conference Room of the Company's offices located at the
Centre Building, 123 Pioneer Plaza, El Paso, Texas, 79901, on

Monday, May 23, 1994, at 10 a.m„El Paso time. Inconnection with
this meeting, proxies willbe solicited by the Board ofDirectors of
the Company. A notice of the meeting, together with a proxy
statement, a form ofproxy and the Annual Report to Shareholders

for 1993, were mailed on or about April 12, 1994, to shareholders

ofrecord as ofMarch 25, 1994.



March 31, 1994

s most ofyou arc awam, on
December 8, 1993, the U.S.
Bankruptcy Court for the

Wcstem DistrictofTexas entered an

order confirming El Paso Electric's
(EPE) plan of reorganization. The
plan, if approved by regulators,
would allow EPE to emerge from
b~ruptcy as a wholly-owned sub-

sidiary of Central and South West
Corporation (CSW), a public utility
holding company based in Dallas,
Texas. The plan was confirmed fol-
lowing an overwhelming vote by all
ofEPE's creditor groups and share-
holders. In fact, of those common
shareholders voting, 98 percent of
the shares were voted in favor ofthe
plan.

Confirmation ofour plan of reorga-
nization paves the way for EPE to
emerge from bankruptcy in a healthy
financial position. Throughout this
process, our goal has been —and
continues to be —to secure a viable
solution that is fair and equitable for
EPE's creditors, shareholders, and
customers. Our plan of reorganiza-
tion and acquisition by CSW will
accomplish that goal.

On the effective date of the merger,
EPE common shareholders willre-
ceive CSW common stock in ex-
change for their EPE shares accord-
ing to a formula that valued EPE
common stock at $3.00 pcr sharc on
the confirmation date of the plan of
reorganization (approximately one-
tcnth of a CSW common share for
every outstanding EPE common
share). Additional consideration to
EPE common shareholders (in thc
form of CSW common shares hav-

ing a value ofup to $ 1.50pershare of
EPE common stock) maybe realized
through the resolution of certain
matters and the sale of certain non-

utilityassets. In connection with the
additional consideration that maybe
achieved, in recent weeks EPE has

received approval from the Bank-

ruptcy Court to scil the assets of
Triangle Electric Supply Co., which
will result in thc realization of ap-

proximately $ 10 million for EPE's

common shareholders. The Com-

pany hopes it willcomplctc the sale

by the end of April 1994.

The Company also has filed a simi-
lar request for approval from the
Bankruptcy Court for the settlement
of federal income tax claims of thc
IRS, which will result in thc real-
ization of additional consideration
having value ofapproximately $27.8
million for EPE common share-
holders under the provisions of the
merger agrcemcnt. Assuming these
values are realized, they willbe added

to the previously realized $2.3 mil-
lion and up to $ 13.8 millionthat will
be credited immediately prior to the
effective date of the merger. Thus,
EPE willachieve the maximum ad-

ditional consideration amount pro-
vided in themergeragreemcnt. Value
also willbe added forEPE common
shareholders based on thc dividends
paid on CSWcommonstockbetween
thc confirmation date of thc plan of
reorganization and thc cffcctive date
of the,merger.

Even withBankruptcy Courtconfir-
mation and creditor and shareholder

support, however, the merger cannot
be accomplished.and realized until
approvals arc obtained from various
state and fcdcral regulatory agen-

cies, including the Public Utility
Commission of Texas, the New
Mexico Public UtilityCommission,
the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission, the Department ofEnergy,
the Federal Energy Regulatory



Commission, and the Nuclear Regu-
latory Commission, among others.
Thus, we anticipate theeffectivedate
of the merger willbe sometime be-

tween 18 and 24 months from the
confirmation date.

Toward thatend, on January 10, EPE
filed for a $41.4 million (or 15 per-
cent) base rate increase in its Texas
jurisdiction. Because EPE's current
rates are not sufficient to cover the
cost of providing electric service to
our customers, a rate increase is
necessary forEPE to reorganize and

become financiallyviable. However,
CSW has offered our Texas cus-
tomers a settlement proposal that
would nullify nearly all the initial
effects of EPE's $41.4 million rate
request. Thesettlcment seeks alower
$25 millionbase rate increase from
Texas customers, offset by about.
$ 13 million in fuel savings and a

one-time $ 16.4 million fuel refund
to be credited to customers over 12

months. This means bills for EPE's
Texas customers would incrcasconly
about 2 to 3 percent in the first year
of thc merger.

Thcrc has been much local publicity
about the so-called "high rates" ofEl
Paso Electric. However, it is impor-
tant to put our rates in the proper
perspective as they affect the
Company's business, and the cost of
living and commerce in our service
territory. The fact is the average
electric bill for Texas residential
customers is about $52 per month.
This is among, the lowest average
electricbillofanymajorcr'tyin Texas.
Italso is in the. lowest one-third per-
centile ofaverage bills in the nation.
Further, an average household elec-
tricbillin our service arearepresents
only 2.3 percent of median house-
hold income. This is lower than most
other areas ofTexas and below the
national average.

Merging El Paso Electric into the
Central and South West operating

system willyield economics ofscale
that will benefit our customers—
rate increases willbe stabilized and
substantially lower than ifEl Paso

Electric had remained an indepen-
dent stand-alone company. These
efficiencies will help lower thc
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Company's operating and mainte-
nance costs. And, perhaps more im-
portantly, the mcrgcr willguarantee
that electric service willcontinue to
be reliable for all customers in El
Paso Electric's service territory for
many years to come.

El Paso Electric is an attractive ac-

quisition candidate because our ser-
vice territory and total number of-
customers continue to grow, while
otherarcas throughout thesouthwest
and the country are experiencing
limited growth in electricity sales.

The Company once again achieved
record peak demands in 1993, re-
cording an all-time total system peak
demand of 1,335 megawatts (MW)
on August 11, which was a 2.5 per-
cent increase over the prior record
peak of 1,302 MW in 1992. EPE's
1993 native peak demand of 997
MW also was a new record, in-
creasing 2.4 percent from a peak of
974 MWin 1992. In addition, native
system sales and total system sales

increased 1.8 and 2.9 percent, re-

spectively, over the previous year,
and our total number of customers
increased 2.8 percent. Looking
ahead, we continue to expect steady
electrical and economic growth in
the communities wc serve.

Further, the recent approval of the
North American Frcc Trade Agrce-
mcnt should enhance continued
growth in our service territory, and

provide thcopportunity forincrcased
sales into thc Republic of Mexico.
This is yct another reason that Cen-
tral and South West negotiated a

merger agreement with EPE. Not
onlydoes our Companyoffera solid,
growing service territory, but itpro-
vides CSW with increased transmis-
sion access to thc western U.S. and

Mexico.

El Paso Electric currently has a con-
tract. with Mexico through 1996 to
provide up to 150 megawatts offirm
power sales to Mexico's rapidly
growing northcm border area. These
sales continue, and our relationship
with Mexico and its rcprcsentatives
is excellent. Central and South West
also has along-standing relationship
with Mexico. In fact, in late-1993,
CSW announced the opening ofnew



offices located in Mexico City to
foster an already strong relationship

> with that country's government and
industry, and to pursue further elec-
trical sales into Mexico.

II

In an effort to posture our company
better in anticipation of its merger
into the Central and South West
system, the Company induced its
number ofsenior managers in early-
1994. These personnel reductions
allowed EPE to reduce layers of
management and to begin aligning
itself more closely with CSW in
anticipation of the completion and

implementation of the merger.

I

In addition, the Company and CSW
have implemented a transition pro-
cess. We will emphasize external
and internal communications to ad-
dress'and accommodate concerns of
employees and shareholders more
effectively, and to foster improved
relations and acceptance by our
community leaders, citizens and
customers. This process will be
spearheaded by Curtis L. Hoskins.
Curt has been thc Company's chief
operating officer since May 1990
and was elected president in January
ofthis year. Curt's work, leadership
and assistance to me has been in-
valuable over the past four years,
and his experience with utility
mergerswillcontinuetobecxtremely
important as wc go forward to
complete this process.

Eduardo A. Rodriguez also was'pro-
moted to senior vice president and
general counsel. Eddie's oversight
and leadership of the legal facets of
the bankruptcy andmergerprocesses
have been —and continue to be-
instrumental in achieving a very
successful solution.

In summary, while this past year has
been difficult, it also has been
punctuated by success. When it was
clearthatEPEcouldnotemerge from
bankruptcy as a stand-alone com-

pany, the next alternative was to
identify a strong, viable and highly-
rcspected entity to negotiate a busi-
ness combination or merger. Our
merger into the Central and South
West system will have positive,
lasting effects on each constituency
that EPE serves.

We finally have identified and are

moving toward a viable solution,
and the potential benefits to our
shareholders, creditors and cus-
tomers are significant. Yet, we still
face the complex and demanding
challenges of obtaining regulatory
approvals during this transition pe-
riod. Rest assured that all of us at
EPE remain fullydedicated to com-
pleting this merger in a timely and
efficient manner.

Finally, inclosing, Iparticularly want
to thank our employees, who con-
tinue to perform at exceptional lev-
els during a very difficultperiod of
time. They are thc strength of our
Company, and I congratulate them
on their ability to stay focused and to
continue providing superior cus-
tomer service and administrative
support. I also want to thank each
member of EPE's Board of Direc-
tors for their strong leadership, and
for their tremendous commitmcnt of
time, energy and resources in getting
this process accomplished. Thus; I
encourage you to vote your proxy
for the three EPE Board members
who are currently slated for re-elec-
tion. Finally, and most significantly,
Iwish to thank you—oursharchold-
crs —foryour continued support of
EPE's Board, senior management
and employees.

One final note —this letter to share-
holders presents only an overview.
For a comprehensive discussion of
our plan and the merger agrcemcnt
with CSW, I encourage you to read
the detailed discussion of these and
other important issues facing our
Company contained in thc attached

Annual Report on Form 10-K. We
will,ofcourse,keep you informed of
future developments.

Sincerely,

David H. Wiggs, Jr.
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer



I I
Eduardo A. Rodriguez (12)
Senior Vice President
and General Counsel

David H. Wiggs, Jr. (6)
Chairman of thc Board
and Chief Executive Officer

WilfrcdE. Binns (11)
President and Sole Shareholder,
Binns Construction &Realty, Inc.,
Las Cruccs, New Mexico

Sidney G. Baucom (2)
OfCounsel, Jones, Waldo, Holbrook
&McDonough, Salt Lake City, Utah

Wilson K. Cadman (1)
Retired in 1992. Prior to retirement,
Chairman of thc Board, President and
Chief Exccutivc Officer, Kansas Gas
&Electric Co., Wichita, Kansas

James A. Cardwell (4)
President and Principal Shareholder,
Cardwell Properties, Inc., El Paso,
Texas (multi-business holding and
investmcnt company)

George W. Edwards, Jr. (1)
President and Chief Executive
Officer, Kansas City Southern
Railway Co., Kansas City, Missouri

Curtis L. Hoskins (4)
Prcsidcnt &Chief Operating Officer

Josefina A. Salas-Porras (15)
Educator, El Paso, Texas
(consultant in second language and
multi-cultural training)

Thomas C. Simpson (11)
President and Principal Shareholder,
Simpson Farms, Inc., Las Cruccs,
N.M.

David H. Wiggs, Jr. (6)
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

Curtis L. Hoskins (4)
President &Chief Operating Officer
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Shareholders may obtain informa-
tion relating to their share position,
dividends, transferiequirements,lost
certificates, and other related mat-
ters by telephoning BONY Share-
holder Services at 1-800-524%58.
This service is available to all share-
holders Monday through Friday,
8 a.m. to 6 p.m., Eastern Time.
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Shareholders also may obtain this
information by writing to:
Shareholder Relations Dept.,
Bank of New York
Church Street Station
P.O. Box 11258
New York, New York 10286-1258.

Shaieholders shoulddiiectquestions
about the activities and operating
results of the Company to:

The Office of the Secietary
El Paso Electric Company
P.O. Box 982
El Paso, Texas 79960.

Or call: 1-800-592-1634 or
1-800-351-1621.

The common stock ofEl Paso Elec-
tric Company is traded and quoted
on theNASDAQStockMarket. The
ticker symbol for thc common stock
is ELPAQ. ("Q" indicates Company
is operating under Chapter 11 ofthe
United States Bankruptcy Code.)

El Paso Electric and The Bank of
New York (BONY) act as co-trans-
fer agents and co-registrars for the
Company's common and pieferied
stock. BONY maintains all share-
holder records of thc Company.

I'

A complete copy ofEl Paso
Electric's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December
31, 1993,.which has been filed
with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, including Financial
Statements and Financial State-
ment schedules, willbe provided
to shareholders without charge
upon written request to:

The Office of the Secretary
El Paso Electric Company
Post Office Box 982
El Paso, Texas 79960.
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DEFINITIONS

The followingabbreviations, acronyms or defined terms used in this report are defined below:

Abbreviations,
Acronvms or Defined Terms Terms

ADR
AFUDC
AIP
AiNPP Participation Agreement

APB
APS
Bankruptcy Case

Bankruptcy Court

Bankruptcy Code
CCN
CFE
Common Plant or Common
Facilities

Company
Confirmation Date ........
CSW
CSW Sub

CWIP
Disclosure Statement

DOE
DOJ
EPA
Effective Date
EPE .

FERC
FPA
Four Corners
Franklin or Franklin Land

'TC
HSR Act
IID

1

IRS
KV .

KW
KWH
LIBOR

Merger Agreement

Arizona Department ofRevenue
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
Arizona Interconnection Project
Arizona Nuclear Power Project Participation Agr'cement dated

August 23, 1973, as amended
Accounting Principles Board
Arizona Public Service Company
The case commenced January 8, 1992 by El Paso Electric

Company in the Bankruptcy Court as Case No. 92-10148-FM
United States Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of

Texas, Austin Division
United States Bankruptcy Code, 11 U. S. C. 5101 et seq.
Certificate ofConvenience and Necessity
Comision Federal de Electricidad - Mexico

Facilities at or related to the Palo Verde Station that are
common to all three Palo Verde Units

El Paso Electric Company
December 8, 1993; the date the Plan was confirmed by the

Bankruptcy Court
Central and South West Corporation
A wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary ofCSW to be

formed in connection with the transactions contemplated by
the Merger Agreement

Construction Work in Progress
Disclosure Statement related to ModifiedThird

Amended Plan ofReorganization
United States'Department ofEnergy
United States Department ofJustice
United States Environmental Protection Agency
The date the Plan becomes effective
El Paso Electric Company
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Federal Power Act
Four Corners Project or Four Corners Plant

'ranklin Land 8r, Resources, Inc„a former subsidiary of
the Company

Federal Trade Commission
Hart-Scott Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976
Imperial Irrigation District, an irrigation district in

Southern California
Internal Revenue Service
Kilovolt(s)
Kilowatt(s)
Kilowatt-hour(s)
The rate of interest, per annum, equal to the London Interbank

Offered Rate (90-day LIBORfor 1994 is assumed to be 3.5%)
Agreement and Plan ofMerger dated as ofMay 3, 1993 among

the Company, CSW and CSW Sub, as amended



Abbreviations,
Acron ms or Defined Terms Terms

MW
iVIWH
NASD
NASDAQ

Navajo Nation
New Mexico Commission or
i/MPUC

NMED
NOL
NRC
Owner Participants

Owner Trustee

Palo Verde Participants

Palo Verde Station or
Palo Verde Project or
Palo Verde or PVNGS .

Plan
P¹VI
PUHCA
RCF

Reorganized EPE

SEC
SFAS'PS

TEP
Texas Commission ...
Texas District Court
TNP
TNRCC .

Megawatt(s)
iVIegawatt-hour(s)
National Association ofSecurities Dealers, Inc
National Association ofSecurities Dealers Automated

Quotation System
Navajo Nation ofIndians

New Mexico Public UtilityCommission
— New Mexico Environment Department
Net Operating Loss
Nuclear Regulatory Commission
The entities that participate as equity investors in the

trusts that, through the Owner Trustee, purchased and
leased back portions of the Company's interests in
Palo Verde Units 2 and 3

The First National Bank ofBoston, which acted as purchaser and
lessor under the sale and leaseback transactions involving
Palo Verde Units 2 and 3, in its capacity as trustee for. the
trusts established for the benefit of the Equity Parti'cipants

Those utilities who share in power and energy entitlements,
and bear certain allocated costs, with respect to PVNGS
pursuant to the ANPP Participation Agreement

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station
Modified Third Amended Plan ofReorganization
Public Service Company ofNew Mexico
Public UtilityHolding Company Act of1935
Revolving Credit Facility pursuant to the Credit Agreement

dated as ofOctober 26, l989, as amended, among El Paso
Electric Company, each of the Banks signatory thereto, and
Chemical Bank, as Agent Bank

El Paso Electric Company after completion of its reorganization
in bankruptcy

Securities and Exchange Commission
Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards
Southwestern Public Service Company
Tucson Electric Power Company
Public UtilityCommission ofTexas
State District Court ofTravis County, Texas
Texas-New Mexico Power Company
Texas Natural Resources Conservation Commission,

successor to the Texas AirControl Board and the Texas Water
Commission
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would alter, compromise or modify existing financial and regulatory structures. See "Alternatives to
the Plan," below. It is therefore not possible at this time to state with certainty the nature or degree to
which the existing financial and regulatory structures will be altered, compromised or modified.
Accordingly, estimates and evaluations ba0ed on the historical results ofCompany operations could be
subject to material changes as a result of the eventual resolution of the Bankruptcy Case.

Modified Third Amended Plan ofReorganization

On September 8, 1992, the Company filed a plan of reorganization, which was amended
subsequently, based on the Company remaining an independent company. On December 8, 1992, the
Company began solicitation of the plan of reorganization, but suspended solicitation on December 23,
1992, followinga ruling by the'Bankruptcy Court in a pending adversary proceeding. See "Treatment
ofPalo Verde" below.

t,

Concurrently with pursuing the initial plan of reorganization, the Company had engaged in an
analysis of potential combinations with other companies in the event the stand-alone plan of
reorganization could not be consummated. On May 3, 1993, the Company and CSW entered into the
Merger Agreement, which provides for the Company to become a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSW.'n May 5, 1993, the Company filed its Third Amended Plan of Reorganization and Third'Amended

" Disclosure Statement in connection with the Merger Agreement, which was modified subsequently.
The related disclosur'e statement was approved by the Bankruptcy Court by orders dated August"27,
1993, and September 15, 1993, and solicitation of the Plan began shortly thereafter. On November 15,
1993, voting on the Plan concluded, with at least 92% of those voting in each applicable class of
creditors and interest holders voting in favor of the Plan. l

Prior to the confirmation of the Plan, certain technical modifications to the. Plan that did not
require creditor or interest holder approval were made. On December 8, 1993, the Bankruptcy Court
entered an order confirming the Plan. A description of the primary features of the Plan is set forth
below. V

Description of the Merger

The Plan proposes a reorg'anization of the Company pursuant'to which the Company would
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSW. Under the Plan, creditors and equity security holders of
the Company would receive for their claims cash and/or securities of either the Company, as
reorganized, andlor securities ofCSW or would have their claims cured and reinstated pursuant to the
Bankruptcy Code.'ursuant to the Merger Agreement, and effective simulta'neously with the
effectiveness of the Plan, CSW Sub would merge with and into the Company (the "Merger"), and CSW
would become the owner of all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company.
The Company would continue to operate as a public utility company and would become a direct,
wholly-owned, operating subsidiary of CSW. The Company's shareholders would receive
consideration as described below. Secured creditors generally would receive value equal to 100% of
their allowed claim. Small unsecured creditors also would receive 100% of their allowed claim and
other unsecured creditors would receive 95.5% of the principal amount of their allowed claim and
would receive interest on the 95.5% amount on a current basis through the Effective Date, as described
more fullybelow.

I

CSW, a Delaware corporation, is a registered holding company under the PUHCA. CSW owns all
of the outstanding shares of common stock of Central Power and Light Company ("CPL"), Public
Service Company of Oklahoma ("PSO"), Southwestern Electric Power Company ("SWEPCO"), and
West Texas Utilities Company ("WTU")(collectively, the "CSW Electric Operating Companies" ), and
has certain other subsidiaries and affiliates. The CSW Electric Operating Companies are public
utility companies engaged in generating, purchasing, transmitting, distributing and selling
electricity. CPL and WTU operate in portions of south and central west Texas, respectively; PSO



Item 1. Business
PARTI

Introduction

The Company was incorporated in Texas in 1901. Its business is the generation and distribution
ofelectricity through an interconnected system to approximately 262,000 customers in El Paso, Texas,
and an area of the Rio Grande Valley in West Texas and Southern New Mexico, and to wholesale
customers located in such diverse locations as Southern California and Mexico. The Company had
approximately 1,140 employees as of December 31, 1993, approximately 29% ofwhich are covered by a

collective bargaining agreement that expires in February 1995. The Company's principal offices are
located at 303 North Oregon Street, El Paso, Texas 79901 (telephone 915/543-5711).

The Company's service area extends approximately 110 miles northwesterly from El Paso to the
Caballo Dam in New Mexico and approximately 120 miles southeasterly from El Paso to Van Horn,
Texas. The service area has an estimated population, of 784,000, including approximately 631,000
people in the metropolitan area of E1Paso. Copper smelting and refining, oil refining, garment
manufacturing, cattle raising and agriculture are significant industries in E1Paso, which is also an
important transportation and distribution center. Historically, the Company's major franchises have
been with the cities of El Paso, Texas, and Las Cruces, NewMexico. The franchise with the City of
El Paso expires in March2001 and does not contain renewal provisions. The Company's 25-year
franchise with the City of Las Cruces expired in March 1993 and the Company and the City entered
into a one-year franchise agreement while negotiations for a.long-term agreement continued. The
one-year franchise expired March 18, 1994, and the parties continue to negotiate. For a discussion of
the status of the Company's major franchises and major customers, including the potential loss of
certain of such franchises and customers, see Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis
ofFinancial Condition"and Results ofOperations —.OperationalChallenges."

I

Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company
Filing

On January 8, 1992, the Company filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11

of the Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court. The filing followed an attempt by the Company
during 1991 to negotiate a restructuring of its obligations with its creditors and the draws in late
December 1991 on letters of credit related to the Company's sale and leasebacks of portions of its
interest in Palo Verde. The Company's management-has continued to manage the operations and
affairs of the Company, subject to the authority of the Company's Board of Directors, as debtor in
possession. Certain actions of the Company during the pendency of the bankruptcy„proceedings,
however, including, without limitation, transactions outside of the ordinary course of business, are
subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court. In addition, with the execution of the Merger
Agreement (described herein), certain actions may be prohibited or limited or the consent of or notice
to CSW required.

Effect ofBankruptcy on Disclosures Contained Herein

The discussions and descriptions of Company events and the analysis of their potential impact on
financial results herein are premised on the assumption that the Company's operations will be

maintained within existing financial agreements, as modified by the Plan, and regulatory structures
prior to the Effective Date of the Plan. This report must be read with the understanding that the Plan,
which has been confirmed by the, Bankruptcy Court, but has not become effective, will alter,
compromise or modify the existing financial'and regulatory structures if it becomes effective.
Substantial conditions to the Plan becoming effective exist, as discussed herein, and the Company
believes, but can give no assurance, that such conditions willbe satisfied. It is possible that the Plan
willnot become effective. If the Plan does not become effective, another plan of reorganization also



operates in portions of eastern and southwestern Oklahoma; and SWEPCO operates in portions of
northeastern Texas, northwestern Louisiana and western Arkansas..

Certain conditions specified in the Plan and the Merger Agreement must be satisfied or waived

prior to the Effective Date of the Plan for the Merger to be consummated and the Plan to become

effective. A summary ofsuch conditions is set forth below.
I

Conditions to Effectiveness of the Plan and Merger

The Merger willbecome effective upon the issuance of a certificate of merger by the Secretary of
State ofTexas or at such later time as may be provided in Articles ofMerger that willbe filed with the

Secretary of State of Texas upon the satisfaction of all conditions to effectiveness of the Plan and

Merger. The Merger Agreement and Plan contain numerous conditions to effectiveness, including but
not limited to the followingdescribed conditions:

r

(i) receipt of the regulatory approvals and determinations that, in the judgment of the
Company and CSW, are reasonably required to implement the provisions of the Plan and
consummate the Merger. Such regulatory approvals generally include approvals and/or
determinations 'by the FERC, the SEC, the Texas Commission, the New Mexico
Commission and the NRC, as well as a filingwith both the FTC and DOJ pursuant to the
HSR Act and the expiration or termination of the waiting period applicable to such filing;

(ii) 'he absence of occurrences that result or could result in a material adverse effect on the
Company or CSW;

(iii) performance by the Company, CSW and CSW Sub ofall covenants contained in the Merger
Agreement; and

(iv) receipt of an investment-grade rating for all publicly tradeable Reorganized EPE First
Mortgage Bonds and Reorganized EPE Second Mortgage Bond's.

Other than certain regulatory, or statutory approvals that may not be waived, CSW and the
Company may waive all or any portion ofany of the conditions to effectiveness of the Plan and Merger.
A number of the conditions have already been satisfied or have had significant steps taken toward
their satisfaction: the Plan was confirmed on December 8, 1993; settlements (that become effective on
the Effective Date) were entered into on November15, 1993 (and have been approved by the
Bankruptcy Court) resolvihg the adversary proceeding between the Company and the Palo Verde
Owner Participants and providing for the transfer back to the Company of title to the leased portions
of Palo Verde on the Effective Date; a capital structure for the Company as of the Effective Date has
been designed that the Company believes will meet the rating agencies'equirements. for an
investment-grade rating; and applications have been filed with the FERC, NRC, SEC, the Texas
Commission and the New Mexico Commission, as discussed more fullyin "Regulatory Aspects of the
Plan and 'Merger," below. Nevertheless, the conditions to effectiveness are significant and there can
be no assurance that all such conditions willbe satisfied.

Regulatory Aspects of the Plan and Merger

Consummation of the Plan and Merger is conditioned on receipt of required regulatory approvals,
including those discussed below. In addition, Section 1129 (a) (6) of the Bankruptcy Code provides that
a plan of reorganization may be confirmed orily if any governmental regulatory commission with

- jurisdiction, after confirmation of the plan, over rates of the debtor has approved any rate change
provided in the plan, or such rate change is expressly conditioned on such approval. The effectiveness
of the Plan is expressly conditioned upon obtaining Texas and New Mexico orders, including rate
orders, establishing certain ratemaking, accounting and regulatory treatments acceptable to CSW



unless this condition is waived by CSW and the Company, There is no anticipated change to rates
charged FERC jurisdictional customers under the Plan. Under the Merger Agreement, CSW is given
the right to designate lead counsel with respect to, and control all applications, notices, petitions and
filings relating to, the regulatory approvals and determinations described herein that are conditions to
the effectiveness of the Merger. The Merger Agreement provides that both CSW and the Company are
required to use reasonable best efforts to secure such approv'als and determinations. The Merger
Agreement further provides that CSW must use reasonable efforts in controlling the applications,
notices, petitions and filings to preserve the Company's ability to file independent rate proceedings
with and seek rates from appropriate Texas regulatory authorities based upon the Company's own cost
of service components (assuming the Merger is not consummated), in the event that the Company
seeks rate relief in any independent proceeding not precluded by the Merger Agreement.

Proposed Texas Rate Treatment. The effectiveness of the Plan and the Merger is conditioned
upon the receipt by the Company and CSW of the following Texas regulatory approvals and
determinations unless such conditions are waived by CSW and the Company:

(i) a final order of the Texas Commission satisfactory to CSW and the Company authorizing a
base rate increase of $25 million to be effective for the Company in 1994 and authorizing
certain ratemaking, accounting and regulatory treatments of the assets, expenditures,
costs and revenues of the Company;

(ii) a final order of the Texas Commission satisfactory to CSW and the Company to the effect
that the combination of the Company with CSW Sub contemplated under the Plan is in the
public interest and authorizing certain regulatory treatments with respect to the
combination; and

h

(iii) a final order of the Texas Commission satisfactory to CSW and the Company to the effect
that the repurchase by the Company of the previously leased Palo Verde Unit 2 and 3

assets and the ratemaking treatment for the repurchased assets as plant-in-service in rate
base at the net depreciated original book cost are in the public interest.

Rate F<iling. The Company filed on January 10, 1994, for its fifth increase under the terms of the
Rate Moderation Plan ordered by the Texas Commission in Docket 7460, and a base rate increase
under the inventory plan for Palo Verde Unit 3 established in Docket 9945. See "Business—
Regulation —Texas Rate Matters," below. The proposed rate changes represent what the Company

'believes is supported under Texas law and prior Texas Commission orders, adjusted to reflect its
proposed acquisition by CSW. The filingis proceeding under Docket 12700.

I

"" The total amount of the Company's requested cash base rate increase, exclusive of fuel, in the
filing is approximately $41.4 million. The total increase consists of (i) a base rate increase of
$ 8.3 million, constituting the proposed 3.5 percent increase contemplated under the Rate Moderation
Plan for costs other than those associated. with Palo Verde Unit 3; and (ii) a base rate increase of
$33..1 million, constituting the proposed increase under the inventory plan for Palo Verde Unit 3. As
discussed below, CSW has made a contemporaneous settlement offer that proposes rates lower than
those reflected in the Company's rate filing.

In the Docket 12700 proceeding, the Company has further proposed to reconcile its Texas fuel
"'costs and revenues for the, period from April 1989 through June 1993 and to decrease its current
average fixed fuel factor. The proposed decrease in the average fixed fuel factor is anticipated to
decrease annual fuel revenues by approximately $ 14.3 million. As a result of the fuel reconciliation
and treatment of other fuel-related items, the Company has accrued in its financial statements and
proposes to refund to Texas jurisdictional customers (as a credit to fuel revenue collections)
approximately $ 16.4 million over a 12-month period. In addition, the Company proposes to recover
from Texas jurisdictional customers over a 12-month period a rate case expense surcharge of



(i), a final order of the Ã34PUC satisfactory to the Company and CSW approving the
combination of the Company with CSW;

r

(ii) a final order of the NMPUC satisfactory to the Company and CSW authorizing a base rate
increase for the Company of$6 millionfor the,'New Mexico jurisdiction to be effective as of
J nuary1 1995 ascontemplatedby the rate plan set forth in an exhibit to the Plan,,and

f hc 'tsauthorizing certain ratemaking, accounting and regulatory treatments of the asse s,

expenditures, costs and revenues of the Company;

(iii) a final order of the NMPUC satisfactory to the Company and CSW authorizing the
issuance by the Company of the securities required for the consummation of the Plan;

R
4

(iv) a final determination by the NMPUC that none of the transactions between, the Company
and CSW contemplated by either the Plan or Merger Agreement involve a Class II
t ansaction (which generally relate to certain investments or transactions with affiliates)ransac

1or, if the NMPUC determines that a Class II transaction is involved, a satisfactory fina
order by the iNMPUC approving a diversification plan relating to the combination of the
Company with CSW and the transactions between the Company and other CSW
subsidiaries which are conducted in the normal course of operations of the CSW System;

, and h

It I

'v)a final determination by the NMPUC that the Company does not require a new CGA as a
result of the transactions between the Company and CSW, as contemplated in either the
Plan or Merger Agreement, or, ifthe NMPUC determines that a new CCY is required for
the NMPUC, a satisfactory final order issuing a new CCN to the Company.

The Company andlor CSW, as appropriate, will file one or more joint applications seeking the
regulatory approvals described above. The Company and CSW filed an application (the "New Mexico
Merger Application") with the New Mexico Commission on RMarch 14, 1994,, which has been docketed
as NMPUC Case Noh2575. The New Mexico Merger Application requests the New Mexico
Commission, to the extent necessary and appropriate under the law, to approve (i) the acquisition by
CSW of the outstanding common stock of the Company,"(ii)the accounting treatment of the Merger;
(iii)the reacquisition of -portions of Palo Verde by the Company and the proposed accounting,
regulatory and tax treatment associated with the reacquisition; and (iv) a General Diversification
Pla for the Company for activities that will occur, as a result of the Merger. Under New Mexicon

bliCommission rules, a General Diversification Plan is required for certain transactions among'a pub ic
- utilityand its affiliates. hs a result of the Merger, the Company would become affiliated with CSW
and its subsidiaries and affiliates. 'the New Mexico igerger Application does not include any requests
related to establishing different rates or related to the issuances of securities pursuant to the an;h Pln
s h requests will be included in separate applications. While the, Company believes that the

with, approvals and ratemaking, accounting and regulatory treatments being sought are in accordance wi
the relevant provisions of New Mexico law and the NMPUC's rules, no assurances can be given that
the NMPUC will grant the approvals requested or make the determinations sought. While no

~ assurances can be given, the Company believes that the necessary, New Mexico regulatory proceedings
can be completed within 18 months, offilingthe applications with the NMPUC.

4 'I I

iVRC and Atomic Energy Act issues,'he Company holds NRC operating licenses in connection
with its ownership interests in Palo Verde. The operating license authorizes the Company to be a

~ 'articipant in the facility.. The Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended (the,"Atomic Energy Act"),
provides that such licenses or. any rights thereunder may not be transferred or in any manner disposed

~ of, directly or indirectly, to any person through transfer of control unless the NRC finds that such
transfer is in accordance with the Atomic Energy Act and applicable NRC requirements and consents
to the transfer. On January 13, 1994, APS, as Operating Agent for Palo Verde, joined. by the
Company, filed a request with the NRC (i) for consent to the indirect transfer of the Company's



approximately $ 8.7 million. The net effect of the proposed changes, together with the requested rate
increases, would be an approximate $ 19.4million increase in revenues from Texas jurisdictional
customers for the first 12-month period the changes are in effect.

The Company has not included 'in the rate filing a request- to recover the costs of bankruptcy
reorganiiation'r the $288.4 million from the draws on the letters of credit related to the Company's
sale and leasebacks of portions of its interest in Palo Verde, which draws occurred in late December
1991 and early January 1992. The Company has sought to reserve the ability to seek recovery of such
costs ifthe Plan does not become effective.

Texas Merger Application. In addition to the Company's rate filing, the Company and CSW filed
on January 10, 1994, a Joint Report and Application (the "Texas Merger Application") with the Texas
Commission requesting (i) a determination that the acquisition'by CSW ofone hundred percent of the

'"

Company's common stock is consistent with the public interest; and (ii) certain determinations
regarding the regulatory treatment of the Company's proposed reacquisition of the portions of
Palo Verde that itpreviously sold and leased back.

As part. of the Texas Merger Application and as a basis of settlement, CSW proposes rates for
Texas jurisdictional customers of the Company that are substantially less than those reflected in the
Company's rate case filing. The CSW settlement offer is contingent on the determination by the Texas
Commission that CSW's acquisition of the Company is consistent with the public interest and the
other regulatory determinations and approvals requested in the Texas Merger Application. The
proposed settlement offers (i) to limitthe non-fuel base rate increase forTexas jurisdictional customers
to $25 million;(ii) a proposed $ 12.8 million reduction in fixed fuel'factors; (iii)a refund of $ 16.4 million
over a 12-month period of over-recoVered fuel costs and other fuel-related items; and (iv) a rate case
expense surcharge of $ 4.1 million related to previous rate cases to be collected over a 12-month period.
Taking into account the annual reduction in fuel costs and the proposed fuel refund, the Company's

'evenues from Texas jurisdictional customers would not increase during the first year after the rate
change goes into effect. The settlement rate plan proposed by CSW also provides for (i) a freeze in the
effectiveness of any additional base rate increase until 1997; (ii) a limitation in the frequency of base
rate increases following the rate freeze period through 2001 to not more'than once every other year
(i.e., 1997, 1999 and 2001); and (iii) a limitation 'on the'amount of the 1997, 1999 and 2001 base rate
increases, such that each increase would not exceed'eight percent of total revenues.

The Company expects the City ofEl Paso and some intervenors in Docket 12700 willcontest both
'he Merger and the proposed rate increase. However, at this time, the City of El Paso has taken no

official action in opposition to or support of the Merger or requested rate increase. The Company
anticipates the number of intervenors will be greater than in a typical rate filing. SPS and other
Texas'utilities have filed motions to intervene. The Company cannot predict at this time whether the
settlement proposal will be adopted by the Texas Commission as proposed or whether the Texas
Commission willenter the requested findings in connection with the Texas Merger Application. The
Texas Merger Application has been consolidated with Docket, 12700. The presiding officers approved a
stipulation under which hearings in the consolidated proceeding will begin'n late July 1994. The
Company will be entitled to increase its rates under bond in mid-July 1994, subject to refund
depending on the final outcome of the proceeding. The Company has not determined what level of
increase would be implemented under bond, should it choose to do so. The Company anticipates a final
order willbe issued in Docket 12700 during the first halfof 1995.

II

Proposed New Mexico Rate Path. The effectiveness of the Merger Agreement and, therefore, the
Plan and the Merger contemplated thereby are, unless waived by CSW and the Company, conditioned
on the receipt by the Company and/or CSW of the following New Mexico regulatory approvals and
determinations: b



possession and ownership interest in the Operating Licenses for Palo Verde Units 1, 2, and 3 that
would occur as,a result of the Merger; and (ii) to amend the Operating Licenses for Units 2 and 3 to
delete provisions of those licenses related to the Company's sale and leaseback transactions involving
those units. On March 2, 1994, the NRC published in the Federal Re ister its proposed determination
that the January 13, 1994 request "involve[d] no significant hazards consideration." The .'VRC has
proposed to determine'that the requested amendment would not: (i) involve a significant increase in
the probability or consequences of an accident previously evaluated; (ii)create the possibility of a new
or different kind of accident from any previously evaluated; or (iii)involve a significant reduction in a
margin ofsafety.

Pursuant to standard NRC practice, on March 14, 1994, the NRC requested public,comment on
the proposed transfer ofcontrol ofownership. In that Notice, the YRC also provided an opportunity for
comment on "whether, significant changes in the licensees'ctivities have occurred since the
completion, of the previous antitrust review." In that Notice, the YRC staff stated that, "[t]he NRC will
consider the FERC proceeding to the maximum extent possible in resolving issues [of competitive
aspects) brought before the YRC." Pursuant to the NRC Notice, timely written comments have been
requested to be submitted to the NRC within 30 days of the Notice.

The request to the NRC specifies that the requested amendments to the Operating Licenses and
consent become effective on the Effective Date upon notification by thy applicants, that all necessary
regulatory approvals have been obtained, but the Company cannot predict at this time whether and
when the approvals and consent willbe granted.

FERC and Federal Power Act Issues. Under the FPA, FERC regulates certain activities of
"public utilities," which includes the Company. The FPA requires the Company to obtain FERC
authority to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of its interstate transmission facilities, including a merger
that vests control in another person. Also, FERC approval of other transactions contemplated under
the Plan may be required including: (i) the issuance and sale by the Company of new securities; and
(ii) the amendment of the CSW System Operating Agreement to include the Company as a party.

The Company and CSW are seeking use of the transmission system of SPS, an electric utility
based in Amarillo, Texas, to coordinate the operations of the Company and the CSW Electric
Operating Companies. The Company has requested that SPS agree to provide the transmission
service and make the system modifications necessary to accomplish such coordination. On
November 4, 1993, the Company and Central and South West Services, Inc. ("CSWS"), as agent for the
CSW Electric Operating Companies, filed an application with the FERC under Sections 211 and 212 of
the FPA seeking an order of the FERC directed to SPS and requiring SPS to provide firmand non-firm
transmission services in connection with transfers of power between the control areas of PSO and the
Company in connection with the post-merger coordinated operations of the Company and the CSW
Electric Operating, Companies, pursuant to the CSW System Operating Agreement. This
transmission service is sought as one means to meet the requirement of the PUHCA that the electric
utilityoperating subsidiaries of a registered holding company system be physically interconnected or
capable of physical interconnection and under normal operating conditions be economically operated
as a single interconnected and coordinated electric system. On December 22, 1993, SPS responded to
the application and requested that the application be dismissed or, in the alternative, be set for
hearing. In the December 22, 1993 response and subsequent pleadings, SPS argues that the requested
transmission services (i) would adversely affect SPS's system reliability and harm it and its native
customers, (ii) would be impermissibly anti-competitive and (iii) is beyond that which can be ordered
under the FPA. SPS also claims the Company and the CSW Electric Operating Companies failed to
make a good faith request for the transmission services as required by FERC regulations. The FPA
provisions authorizing such transmission requests were added in the Energy Policy Act and, as a
result, there is little prece'dent or guidance available with respect to their application.



On January 10, 1994, as supplemented January 13, 1994, the Company and CSWS, on behalf of
the CSW Electric Operating Companies, filed a joint application with the FERC pursuant to Section
203 of the FPA requesting a determination by the FERC that the Merger and the resulting disposition
by the Company of indirect control over its'jurisdictional facilities, consisting of the Company's
interstate transmission facilities, is consistent with the public interest. Tw'enty-nine parties have
filed motions to intervene or protests in the Section203 filing. The Company and CSWS have
requested expedited consideration of the joint application, but the Company cannot predict at this time
when the FERC willissue its decision on the Joint'Application.

Under the FPA, the FERC will approve a merger ifit finds it to be "consistent with the public
interest." In making its public interest determination, the FERC typically applies six criteria:
(i) whether the proposed merger will have an adverse effect on the rates 'and operating costs of the
merging utilities and/or their surviving corporation; (ii) whether the merger will have'a negative
impact on competition; (iii) whether the proposed accounting treatment is consistent with FERC
regulations; (iv) whether the purchase price is reasonable; (v) whether the acquiring utility has
coerced the acquired utility into accepting the merger; and (vi) whether the proposed inerger will
impair effective regulation either by the FERG or the appropriate state and local regulatory
authorities.

J

CSWS also filed with the,FERC on January 10, 1994, for approval under Section 205 of the FPA,
an agreement among the Company, CSWS and the CSW Electric Operating Companies to amend the
CSW System Operating Agreement and to make the Company a party to the CSW System'Operating
Agreement.

A

No assurance can be given that the FERC willgrant the required approvals under the FPA, when
such approvals might be granted, or upon what terms or conditions such approvals might be given. It
is a condition to the obligations'of CSW, CSW Sub and the Company under the Merger Agreement that
a FERC order approving the Merger not contain conditions substantially more onerous than those in
recent FERC orders with respect to mergers involving electric utilit'ycompanies.

SEC and PUHCA Issues. CSW is a public utilityholding company as defined in the PUHCA and
is registered under such Act. CSW 'is required to obtain the approval of the'SEC prior to
consummating the Merger. The SEC is directed to approve a proposed merger unless it finds that
(i) the acquisition would tend toward interlocking relations or a concentration of control of public
utility companies, of a kind or to an extent detrimental to 'the public interest or the interest of
investors or consumers; '(ii) the consideration to be paid in connection with the acquisition is not
reasonable or does not bear a fair relation to the sums invested in or the earning capacity of the utility
assets underlying the securities to be acquired; or (iii) the acquisition would unduly complicate the
capital structure of the applicant's holding company system or would be detrimental to the public
interest or the interest of investors or consumers or the proper functioning of such holding company
system. To approve a proposed acquisition, the SEC must find that the acquisition would tend toward
the econoinical and efficient development of an integrated public utilitysystem and would otherwise
conform to the PUHCA's integration and corporate simplificatioti standards. The SEC also must find
that all state laws that apply to the Merger have been satisfied, unless it determines that compliance
with such state laws would be detrimental to the purposes of the PUHCA.

Under the PUHCA, the SEC must find that after the Merger the Company and CSW will
constitute an integrated electric system. As noted, the Company and CSW propose to coordinate their
operations by means of transmission service to be provided by SPS. In the past, the SEC has

determined that integration may be effected by means of transmission rights on unaffiliated systems.

SEC approval under the PUHCA willalso be required for certain proposed transactions relating
to the Merger. SEC approval will be required for the formation of CSW Sub. In addition, SEC

approval (unless an exception is granted) willbe required in connection with (i) the issuance "ofCSW



common stock to the holders of the Company's common stock and certain creditors, and (ii) the
issuance of Reorganized EPE's securities to holders of the Company's securities and certain creditors
pursuant to the Plan.

CSW filed an Application-Declaration on Form U-1 (the "Application-Declaration" ) with the
SEC on January 10, 1994 pursuant to the PUHCA to seek authorization (i) of the merger ofCSW Sub
with and into the Company and the acquisition of the Company by CSW through such merger; (ii) of
the issuance of securities by the Company and CSW in connection with the Plan and Merger and
certain related transactions; and (iii)to engage in certain hedging trans'actions, all "as presented in the
Application-Declara/i'on.

CSW has notified the Company of its intention to request a no-action letter from the SEC with
respect to the issuance of CSW common stock and Reorganized EPE preferred stock pursuant to the
Plan without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and related matters.

Other Regulatory Filings. Under the FPA and the Department of Energy Act, the DOE must
authorize persons to transmit electric energy from the United States. The Company holds an
authorization to transmit electric energy to CFE. Under. the Plan, CSW would become the owner of
the common stock of the Company. The DOE requires that notice of a succession ofownership be filed
with the DOE. In general, this notice must be filed at least 30 days prior to the effective date of any
succession in ownership. The Company intends~to file a notice of succession in ownership with the
DOE at the appropriate time.

NI

The Company also must file a notice related'to the Merger with the FTC and DOJ pursuant to the
HSR Act. The applicable waiting period following'such filingmust have expired before the Effective
Date without an adverse ruling or other action by the FTC and DOJ with respect to any
anticompetitive effects of the Merger.'he Company intends to file a notice pursuant to the HSR Act
at the appropriate time.

Treatment ofPalo Verde

Major aspects of the Plan include (i) the rejection of the Company's leases relating to Palo Verde
(the "Palo Verde Leases" ), which extend to the'Company's entire interest in Palo Verde Unit 2,
approximately 40% of the Company's interest in Palo Verde Unit 3 and approximately one-third of its
interest in the Common Plant; (ii) the resolution of any and all claims relating to such leases by the
agreement that an amount equal to $700million wo'uld be the allowed claim of holders of lease
obligation bonds related to the Palo Verde Leases and pursuant to settlement agreements entered into
between the Company, the Owner Trustee and each of the Owner Participants; (iii)reacquisition of
the leased portions of Palo Verde by the Company and (iv) the Company's assumption of the ANPP
Participation Agreement and related agreements.

Adversary Proceeding. On September 9, 1992, the Company filed an adversary proceeding
against the lessors and the indenture trustees for the'lease obligation bonds. The Company sought a
declaratory judgment that the Palo Verde Leases are leases of real property under the

Bankruptcy'ode

and, therefore, (i) the Palo Verde Leases were rejected pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, and
(ii) the Company's liabilityfor damages resulting, from the rejection of the Palo Verde Leases would be
limited to approximately $273 million. In addition, the Company sought a declaratory judgment that
its liabilityfor lease rejection would be fullysatisfied by the proceeds of $ 288.4 million from draws on
letters ofcredit provided by the Company in connection with the Palo Verde Leases.

The defendants in the adversary proceeding asserted other claims against the Company,
including claims for prepetition rent, postpetition rent, and fees and expenses incurred in connection
with the Bankruptcy Case. In addition, the inde'nture trustees alleged that if the Palo Verde Leases



are leases of real property under the Bankruptcy Code, then the purchasers of the lease obligation
bonds were defrauded by the Company.

On December 15, 1992, the Bankruptcy Court granted partial summary judgment against the
Company with respect to one issue on lease rejection damages, holding that the proceeds of the draws
on the letters of credit do not satisfy or offset the maximum claim allowable in the event the Palo
Verde Leases were determined to be real estate leases. Following the ruling, the Company suspended
solicitation on its Second Amended Plan of Reorganization and intensified its examination of
alternatives. The Company ultimately entered into the Merger Agreement with CSW on May 3, 1993.
On i%lay 26, 1993, the Bankruptcy Court vacated the order of December 15, 1992, which left all issues
in the adversary proceeding open.

Treatment of Adversary Proceeding Under the Plan. The Plan sets forth a proposed resolution
pursuant to which the holders ofbonds issued by two funding corporations would have allowed claims
of $700 million and such claims would be discharged by the issuance of securities in an amount equal
to 95.5% of the allowed claims. See "Treatment ofClaims Under the Plan —Class 12- Claims Related
to Palo Verde Leases, Palo Verde Lease Obligation Bonds and Palo Verde Secured Lease Obligation
Bonds," below. The members ofClass 12(a) accepted such proposal by voting in favor of the Plan.

The Plan also proposes a settlement of the claims by and against the Owner Participants
pursuant to settlement agreements. The Company has entered into a settlement agreement with each
of the Owner Participants and the Owner Trustee, which were approved by the Bankruptcy Court, but
such settlement agreements will not become effective unless and until the Plan becomes effective.
Pursuant to the settlement agreements, the Owner Participants would retain the $288.4 million of
proceeds from draws on the letters of credit. The Company and the Owner Participants would execute
mutual releases and the adversary proceeding would be dismissed with prejudice at the Effective Date.
In addition, any interest of the Owner Participants in Palo Verde would be transferred to the Company
at the Effective Date, so the Company would regain the ownership interest of the portions of Palo
Verde that were the subject of the Company's sale/leaseback transactions. Certain obligations of the
Company under the participation agreements in the sale/leaseback transactions, such as the
indemnification provisions, would survive pursuant to the terms of the settlement agreements.

Tmplications for Adversary Proceeding ifPlan Does Not Become Effective. As a result. of the vote
of the holders ofClass 12(a) claims and the settlement agreements, the adversary proceeding would be

resolved by entry ofan order dismissing the proceeding with prejudice. There would be no rulings on
the substantive issues in the proceeding. If the Plan does not become effective, no entry of the
dismissal order would occur. The Company would be faced with the alternatives of pursuing the
adversary proceeding or seeking some other resolution. If the Bankruptcy Court were to grant the
Company's motion for summary judgment, then the Palo Verde Leases would be deemed to be true
leases of real property under the Bankruptcy Code, and the leases would be deemed to have been
rejected on September 8, 1992, and the Company's liability for lease rejection damages would be

limited under the Bankruptcy Code to three years of the rent reserved under the leases. The Company
contends that this statutory amount is $273million. Such amount would be offset by the

$288.4 million proceeds from the draws on the letters of credit if the Bankruptcy Court ruled in the
Company's favor. The defendants in the adversary proceeding contend that the statutory amount
should include other Palo Verde expenses, but they have not disclosed an amount thereof. The
defendants also contend that rejection of the leases would breach other contractual provisions and
warranties and give them the right to recover additional damages that are not subject to the statutory
limit. The amount of such alleged damages has not been specified, but the indenture trustees assert
that total damages may exceed the outstanding amount of lease obligation bonds ($698 million in
principal plus accrued interest).

If the Bankruptcy Court were to find that the Palo Verde Leases are true leases of personal

property under the Bankruptcy Code, then the leases would not be deemed to have been rejected on
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September8, 1992. The Company could nevertheless seek to reject the leases pursuant to the
Bankruptcy Code, in which case the lessors could claim damages as provided in the leases. If the
Bankruptcy Court were to find that the Palo Verde Leases are not true leases under the Bankruptcy
Code, then the leases could not be rejected, and the indenture trustees may contend that, the lease
obligation bonds should be treated as direct obligations of the Company. The Company, cannot
quantify the monetary consequences to the Company under any of these scenarios.

ANPP Participation Agreement. The Company currently intends,to assume the ANPP
Participation Agreement and other agreements related to the operation of Palo Verde and has entered
into a Cure and Assumption Agreement with the other Palo Verde Participants that was approved by
the Bankruptcy Court on november 19, 1993. Pursuant to the agreement, the AÃPP Participation
Agreement and other operating agreements related to Palo Verde would be assumed by the Company
effective on the Effective Date. See "Facilities —Palo Verde Station —ANPP Participation
Agreement," below.

Treatment ofClaims Under the Plan

The following is a description ofeach class ofcreditors and interest holders and a summary of the
treatment, of such class under the Plan. Except as noted below, claims of secured creditors would be
paid in full, including post-petition interest, but with instruments that are likely to bear interest rates
that are lower than in existing arrangements. Unsecured claims generally would receive,.notes of
Reorganized EPE and/or CSW common stock equal to 95.5% of their allowed claims, and post-petition
interest beginning on the dates noted below through the Effective Date at 90-day LIBOR plus 200
basis points. Other classes of claims are unimpaired, including claims related to pollution control
revenue bonds, as noted. Allmembers of a class would receive the treatment provided for the class,
regardless ofwhether the member voted in favor of the Plan.

Class 1 - First Mortgage Bonds. Allowed claims arising from the Company's,Fjrst Mortgage
Bonds (excluding bonds held as collateral to secure other debt of the Company) would be paid in full
through the issuance of Reorganized EPE First Mortgage Bonds (Series A and B) in the amount of the
principal of the First Mortgage Bonds and unpaid interest on such bonds. In addition, the unpaid
interest prior to July 1, 1992 on the First Mortgage Bonds would accrue interest at 90-day LIBORplus
200 basis points from the due date of each installment of interest through the Effective Date. Such
interest on interest would be paid in cash at the Effective Date.

The Company has paid interest monthly on the First Mortgage Bonds at the contract non-default
rate from July 1, 1992 through the current date pursuant to applicable orders of the Bankruptcy Court
and intends to do so through the Effective Date.

Class 2 - Second Mortgage Bonds. Allowed claims arising from the Company's Second Mortgage
Bonds (excluding bonds held as collateral to secure other debt of the Company) would be paid in full,
through the issuance of Reorganized EPE Second Mortgage Bonds in the amount of the principal
Second Mortgage Bonds and unpaid interest prior to July1, 1992 on such bonds. In addition, the
unpaid interest on the Second Mortgage Bonds would accrue interest at 90-day LIBORplus 200 basis
points from the due date of each installment of interest through the Effective.Date. Such interest on
interest would be paid in cash at the Effective Date.

The Company has paid interest monthly on the Second Mortgage Bonds at the contract
non-default rates from July 1, 1992 through the current date pursuant to applicable orders of the
Bankruptcy Court and intends to do so through the Effective Date.

h

Class 3 - Reuoiuing Credit Facility. Allowed claims arising from or related to the RCF, which are
secured by First Mortgage Bonds and Second Mortgage Bonds, would be discharged through the
issuance, in the amount of the outstanding principal balance of the RCF plus interest accrued through
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June 30, 1992, of either (a) Secured Notes of Reorganized EPE under a term loan agreement in the
amount of the claim secured by a combination ofpledged Reorganized EPE First Mortgage Bonds and
Reorganized EPE Second Mortgage Bonds or (b) at the'reditors'lection, subject to certain
limitations, Reorganized EPE First Mortgage Bonds in an amount equal to one-third of the claims and
Reorganized EPE Second Mortgage'Bonds in an amount equal to two-thirds of the claims. In addition,
interest on the unpaid interest would accrue at the contract non-'default rate through the
Confirmation Date and would accrue at 90-day LIBOR plus 150 basis points from the Confirmation
Date through the Effective Date. Such interest on interest would be payable in cash on the Effective
Date. 4

The Company has paid interest monthly on the claims under the ROF from July 1, 1992 through
the current date pursuant to applicable orders of the Bankruptcy Court and anticipates it will
continue to do so through the Effective Date. Ifsuch interest is not paid, then interest would accrue on
the unpaid interest at higher contract default rates.

Class 4 - Claims Under Three Series ofPollution Control Bonds. Class 4 consists ofclaims arising
under or related to three series of pollution control bonds that are secured by Second Mortgage Bonds.
These claims are considered unimpaired. The pollution control bonds would remain outstanding and
any claims would be unaltered by the Plan. It is contemplated that certain modifications to the
documents gov'erning the bonds would be made after the Effective Date and the bonds remarketed or
refunded soon after the Effective Date.

1

Class 5 - Claims Relating to the Letters of Credit Associated with the Three Series ofPollution
Control Bonds (Class 4). The issuers of letters of credit associated with the three series of secured
pollution control bonds have coinmitted to'provide replacement letters of credit on certain terms. The
issuers would receive Secured Notes from Reorganized EPE under term loan agreements, secured by
pledged Reorganized EPE Second Mortgage Bonds, with respect to outstanding draws on the existing
letters of credit and accrued interest on such unreimbursed draws through July 7, 1993. In addition,
interest on the certain amounts of unpaid interest and unreimbursed draws would accrue from July 8,
1993 through the Effective Date at rates related to contract rates, and would be paid in cash on the
Effective Date. Unpaid letter ofcredit fees also would be paid on the Effective Date.

I

Subsequent to the Confirmation Date, the Company has been reimbursing the issuing banks all
amounts drawn on the letters of credit for the payment "of interest on the three series of pollution
control bonds whose claims are included in Class 4.

'The reimbursement obligations under the replacement letters of credit (post-Effective Date)
would be secured by p!edged Reorganized EPE Second Mortgage Bonds. Ifa letter ofcredit issuer does
not provide a replacement letter of credit, it would receive Reorganized EPE Second Mortgage Bonds
for claims the Bankruptcy Court determines are secured claims and Senior Fixed Rate Notes for
claims determined to be unsecured claims.

Class 6- Claims Asserted 6y the Nuclear Fuel Trust. Class 6 consists ofclaims related to the trust
established for purposes of financing the purchase and enrichment of nuclear fuel for use by the
Company at Palo Verde. Holders of claims in Class 6 would receive, at the holder's election, either
(a) Secur'ed Notes ofReorganized EPE secured by pledged Reorganized EPE Second Mortgage Bonds or
(b) Reorganized EPE Second Mortgage Bonds. In addition, an amount equal to 85% of the interest
accrued and unpaid through Septeinber 10, 1993 would be paid in cash at the Effective Date.

Interest on the principal amount of the claims of approximately $1.3million accrued from
September 10, 1993 through the Confirmation Date and was paid at the Confirmation Date. From the
Confirmation Date to the Effective Date, interest willaccrue on the principal amount of the claims at
90-day LIBORplus 200 basis points and willbe payable quarterly and at the Effective Date.

F
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Class 7- Other AllowedSecured Claims. These claims, which consist ofany other secured claims,
are unimpaired and, at the option of the Company and CSW, would receive one of the following
treatments: (a) be paid in full in cash at the Effective Date; (b) be reinstated and remain unaltered by
the Plan; (c) have defaults cured and the obligation reinstated; or (d) receive the collateral.

Class 8 - Alloioed Priority Claims. The claims, which consist of allowed claims with priority
under certain provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, are unimpaired and such claims would be unaltered
by the Plan.

Class 9 - Allowed Customer Refund and Deposit Claims. The claims, which are all allowed
claims by the Company's customers for refunds and deposits that are not Class 8 claims, would be
unimpaired and such claims would be unaltered by the Plan.

Class 10 - Claims Under One Series of Pollution Control Bonds. Class 10 consists of claims
arising under agreement's related to one series of pollution control bonds, which are not secured. The
claims are unimpaired and the pollution control bonds would remain outstanding and any claims
would be unaltered by the Plan. It is contemplated that certain modifications to the documents
governing the bonds would be made and the bonds remarketed or refunded soon after the Effective
Date.

Class I1 - Claims Related to Letter ofCredit Associated with the Series ofPollution Control Bonds
(Class 103. The issuer of the letter ofcredit has committed to provide a replacement letter ofcredit on
certain terms. The allowed claims ofClass 11 would be the unreimbursed amounts drawn on the letter
of credit (with exceptions for amounts drawn to pay principal) and unpaid letter of credit fees. The
claims would be discharged by the issuance ofSenior Notes of Reorganized EPE in a principal amount
equal to 30% of the allowed claims, CSW common stock equal to 60% of the allowed claims and, at the
election ofReorganized EPE, Senior Notes ofReorganized EPE or CSW common stock equal to 5.'5% of
the allowed claims. In the event there is a draw on the existing letter of credit before the Effective
Date to pay the principal amount of the purchase price of any of the pollution control bonds that have
not been cancelled or extinguished, the claim would be discharged by Senior Floating Rate Notes
under a term loan agreement.

In addition, holders ofClass 11 claims willaccrue interest at 90-day LIBOR plus 200 basis points
on 95.5% of the principal amount of the claims from June 25, 1993 through the Effective Date (and on
100% of the amount of any letter of credit draw to pay the principal of any pollution control bonds).
Interest totaling approximately $ 101,000 through the Confirmation Date was paid at the
Confirmation Date. Interest willbe paid quarterly thereafter and at the Effective'Date.

Reimbursement obligations under the replacement letter ofcredit (post-Effective Date) would be
secured by pledged Reorganized'EPE Second Mortgage Bonds. If the letter of credit issuer does not
provide a replacement letter ofcredit, allowed claims would be discharged through Senior Fixed Rate
Notes equal to one-third of the claims and CSW common stock equal to two-thirds of the claims.

I

Class 12 - Claims Related to Palo Verde Leases, Palo Verde Lease Obligation Bonds and Palo
Verde Secured Lease Obligation Bonds. Class 12(a) consists"of holders of Palo Verde Lease Obligation
Bonds and Secured Lease Obligation Bonds and the amount of allowed claims is stipulated to be
$700 million. The $700 million allowed claims would be discharged through the pro rata distribution
of the following securities in the amount of95.5% of the allowed claims: Senior Notes of Reorganized
EPE in an amount not less than one-third and not more than two-thirds of the amount distributed for
such claims and the remainder in CSW common stock. Class 12 (b) consist of the Owner Participants,
who in addition to the Owner Trustee, have entered into settlement agreements with the Company.
The Owner Participants would transfer their interests in leased Palo Verde assets to the Company,
release their claims for any additional damage amounts under the Palo Verde Leases, retain
$288.4 million previously drawn on letters ofcredit, and be released from claims by the Company and
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be indemnified by the Company from claims of third parties, as provided in the settlement
agreements.

In addition, holders of Class 12(a) claims will accrue, interest at 90-day.LIBOR plus 200 basis
points on 95.5% of $700 million from July 29, 1993 through the Effective Date. Interest totaling
approximately $14.4 million through the Confirmation Date was paid at the Confirmation Date.
Interest willbe payable quarterly thereafter and at the Effective Date. The amounts paid have been
offset against amounts accrued in connection with the Palo Verde Leases. See Part II, Item 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation —Liquidity
and Capital Resources -Obligations Subject to Compromise —,AiNPPParticipation Agreement."

Class 13 - Unsecured Claims. Class 13 consists ofgeneral unsecured prepetition claims in excess
of $ 100,000, which would be discharged by the issuance ofa combination of notes of Reorganized EPE
and CSW common stock as follows: Senior Notes in an amount equal to 30% of the claims, CSW
common stock equal to 60% of the claims, and, at the option of Reorganized EPE, Senior Notes or CSW
common stock equal to 5.5% of the claims,

In addition, holders of Class 13 claims willaccrue interest at 90-day LIBOR plus 200 basis points
on 95.5% of the principal amount of their claims from June 25, 1993 through the Effective Date.
Interest totaling $8.2million through the Confirmation Date was paid at the Confirmation Date.
Interest willbe payable quarterly thereafter and at the Effective Date. )

Class 14 - Unsecured Claims Up to $100,000. General unsecured claims up to $ 100,000 are
unimpaired and would be paid in cash at the Effective Date.

Class 15 - Preferred Stock Interests. See "Consideration to Shareholders Pursuant to the Plan
and Merger Agreement," below.

Class 16- Common Stock Interests. See "Consideration to Shareholders Pursuant to the Plan and
Merger Agreement," below. )

Payment of Cash in Lieu of CSW Common Stock. The Plan provides for the issuance of CSW
common stock to:holders of allowed claims in Classes 11, 12(a), 13 and, possibly, 15 to satisfy a

percentage of their allowed claims. Pursuant to, the terms of the Plan, CSW could elect to pay holders
ofallowed claims in such classes cash on the Effective Date in an amount equal to the value ofsome or
all of the CSW common stock that would have been distributed. IfCSW elects to pay cash in lieu of
CSW common stock, it must be on a pro rata basis to the holders ofallowed claims in Classes 11, 12(a)
and 13, and no holders of allowed Class 15 claims could receive cash in lieu of CSW common stock
unless cash had been paid in lieu ofall CSW common stock that would have been distributed to holders
ofallowed claims in Classes 11, 12(a) and 13.

I

Restrictions on the Transfer of CSW Common Stock Issued Pursuant to the Plan. The Plan
contains provisions that would restrict the transfer of CSW common stock issued under the Plan for a

period of time.following the Effective Date. For shares ofCSW common stock that would be issued to
holders of allowed claims in Classes 11, 12(a) and 13, there would be graduated lock-up periods such
that one-third of the shares'of CSW common stock would be eligible to be transferred immediately,
two-thirds would be eligible for transfer after 90 days from the Effective Date and 100% would be

eligible for transfer after 180 days from the Effective Date. For shares of CSW common stock that
would be issued to holders ofallowed Class 15 and Class 16 interests, no such shares would be eligible
for transfer until 240 days after the Effective Date. To enforce the restrictions, the Plan provides for
the delayed issuance og escrow ofshares ofCSW common stock through the applicable lock-up periods.
Holders of such shares would be compensated for the dividends that would have been paid on such
shares, either at the time of.payment or at the end of the lock-up periods. Holders who would receive

14



no more than 5,000,shares of CSW common stock in satisfaction of their allowed claims or interests as

of the Effective Date would be exempt from the restrictions on transfer.
1

Interim Distributions Under the Plan. As discussed above, the Plan required the Company to
make payments to certain classes of creditors at the Confirmation Date and thereafter until the
Effective Date of the Plan, or until further order of the Bankruptcy Court. These payments are. in
addition to periodic interest payments on secured debt that the Company has been making since
July1, 1992,pur'suant to applicable orders of the Bankruptcy Court. The interim payments are
intended to compensate the holders of the claims during- the period from the Confirmation Date to the
Effective Date. These interim payments consist of (i) amounts characterized as interest on unsecured
and undersecured debt and on the claims of the holders of the bonds related to the Palo Verde Leases;
(ii) amounts characterized as periodic payments to holders of the Company's 'preferred stock, which
the Bankruptcy Court has ruled are not dividends; and (iii) fees of professional advisors (including
attorneys) and other expenses of certain classes of creditors and interest holders, Pursuant to these
provisions of the Plan, at the Confirmation Date the Company paid a total of approximately
$ 24 million in interest and approximately $ 1.1 million to the holders of the Company's preferred stock
for the period to the Confirmation Date. In addition, the Company paid or has accrued a total of
approximately $ 13.3 millionfor fees and expenses, including fees ofattorneys and financial advisors of
creditors and interest holders, incurred through the Confirmation,Date, as provided under the terms of
the Plan. The Company estimates that interest payments and periodic payments aggregating
approximately $ 15.4 million per quarter will be made through the Effective Date of the Plan. These
estimates of interim payments do not include payments on secured debt of approximately $ 5 million
per month that the Company has been making.

Consideration to Shareholders Pursuant to the Plan and Merger Agreement

Common Stock. At the Effective Date, the issued and outstanding shares of Company common
stock (other than treasury shares and any shares held'by CSW or CSW Sub) would be converted into
CSW common stock. Outstanding options to purchase common stock of the Company would be
converted into options to purchase sha'res of CSW common stock. The conversions would be based on
the ratio of the number of shares of CSW common stock credited to the CSW Common Stock
Acquisition Fund (which is defined in the Merger Agreement and is referred to herein as the "Fund")
to the number ofoutstanding shares of the Company's common stock at the Effective Date. The Fund
is a system for tracking the consideration that the Company's common shareholders would receive
through the Merger, including the'additional consideration that can be achieved through the
Company's resolution ofcertain matters, such as the settlement ofcertain claims and the realization of
certain assets. The maximum amount of additional consideration that can be obtained is $ 1.50 per
share of the Company's common stock outstanding on the, Confirmation Date, or approximately
$ 53.3 million (the Maximum Consideration Amount"). No shares of CSW common stock or cash
actually are placed in the Fund. The Fund was created on the Confirmation Date and, on that date, a
total of 3,699,573 shares ofCSW common stock were credited to the Fund, based on (i) a value of$ 3.00
per share of the Company,'s common stock, (ii) 35,544,330 shares of Company common stock
outstanding on the Confirmation Date, (iii) an average trading price of $29.4583 for CSW common
stock, and (iv) the realization prior to the, Confirmation Date of approximately, $2.3 million in
additional consideration through the resolution ofcertain litigation. As items specified in the Merger
Agreement in connection with the additional consideration are resolved, additional shares of CSW
common stock will be credited to the Fund. Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the
number ofadditional shares willbe deter'mined based, on the amount realized, the date of resolution of
the item and the closing price of CSW common stock on such date.', Pursuant to the Second
Amendment to the, Merger Agreement, as a result of the proposed settlements with the Owner
Participants in the Palo Verde sale/leaseback transactions and APS on certain claims, an additional
amount of up to $ 13.8 million will be added to the additional consideration one day prior to the
Effective Date, ifand to the extent the Maximum Consideration Amount has not been reached.
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In June 1993, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Triangle Electric Supply
Company, Inc. ("Triangle Electric") as a result of the settlement of certain litigation. On March 22,
1994, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the sale by Triangle Electric of substantially
all of its assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents) at net book value, subject to certain adjustments,
plus $ 1,550,000 for a covenant not to compete. The Company has filed a notice with the New Mexico
Commission seeking prior approval of the disposition. The Company estimates that, upon the closing
of the transaction, approximately $ 10 millionof additional consideration willbe credited to the Fund.
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, additional shares of CSW common stock would be credited to the
Fund based on the amount ofadditional consideration ultimately realized and the closing price ofCSW
common stock on the date the matter is resolved.

The Company also has filed a motion with the Bankruptcy, Court seeking approval of a
settlement with the IRS related to their claim against the Company for prepetition tax years. If
approved, the settlement would result in the resolution of the IRS's proof of claim for approximately
$6.2million. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the settlement would generate approximately
$27.8 million of additional consideration (the difference between $34.0 million and the $ 6.2 million
proposed settlement with the IRS). The Merger Agreement provides that additional sh'ares of CSW
common stock would be credited to the Fund based on the $ 27.8 millionofadditional consideration and
the closing price ofCSW common stock on the date of resolution. See Item 3, "Legal Proceedings- Tax
Matters —Federal Tax Matt'ers." If the Company realizes the additiohal consideration as discussed
above, the Maximum Consideration Amount would be achieved for the common shareholders. The
Company willcontinue to resolve all matters that can result in additional consideration.

h

In addition to the shares credited to the Fund in connection with the Maximum Consideration
Amount, as described above, shares of CSW common stock will be credited to the Fund through the
Effective Date based on the aggregate dividends that would have been paid on the shares of CSW
common stock credited to the Fund. The number and timing of shares of CSW common stock credited
for dividends will be determined as provided in the Merger Agreement, and is based on the closing
price of CSW common stock on the dividend payment date and the number of shares credited to the
Fund on the ex-dividend date for payment of CSW dividends. As of March 15, 1994, 3,757,009 shares
of CSW common stock have been credited to the Fund, including 57,436 shares of CSW common stock
based on payments of dividends on CSW common stock. "CSW common stock is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange, symbol CSR. The closing price for CSW common stock on March 15, 1994
was $ 26.00 per share,

If the Maximum Consideration Amount described above has not been realized, then as of the
Effective Date the Company would establish a liquidation trust (the "Liquidation Trust"), assign
thereto all of the Company's rights to and interests in certain contingent items described in the
Merger Agreement which are not disposed ofor determined prior to the Effective Date, and advance to
the Liquidation Trust cash (not to exceed $ 1,000,000) for expenses of the trustee of the Liquidation
Trust. Any cash proceeds in the Liquidation Trust (after payment ofexpenses related to the operation
of the Liquidation Trust) resulting from dispositions of the assets or from such reductions in claims
determined after the effective date would be distributed pro rata to the holders, as of the Effective
Date, of the Company's common stock until the Maximum Consideration Amount has been reached
and then would be returned to the Company.

Ifanother plan of reorganization involving CSW or an affiliate of CSW were to become effective,
then pursuant to terms of the Merger Agreement, unless the Company has withdrawn the Plan or
proposed a stand-alone plan of reorganization inconsistent with the Merger Agreement or has
breached the Merger Agreement in a material manner, CSW would be required to pay to holders of the
Compa'ny's common stock an amount equal to the difference between the aggregate amount that
would have been paid to such holders under the Plan and the amount actually paid under the other
plan ofreorganization (the "Price Protection" ).
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Preferred Stock. Pursuant to the Plan, the allowed interests of preferred shareholders would be

the sum of (a) the aggregate amount of the redemption prices on the Effective Date of the preferred
stock and (b) the aggregate amount of dividends accrued and unpaid prior to the bankruptcy filingon

January 8, 1992 (two quarters of dividends). These interests would be satisfied under the Plan by the
issuance of securities having a value in the amount of $ 68 million. Under the Plan, the Company's
preferred stock would be converted to either (a) shares of Reorganized EPE Preferred Stock or (b) if
CSW so elects before December 8, 1994, a combination of shares of Reorganized EPE Preferred Stock "

and CSW common stock.

In addition, periodic payments willaccrue from August 20, 1993 to the Effective Date at the rate
of 90-day LIBOR plus 200 basis points on the amount of the preferred 'stock distribution amount.
Payments totaling $ 1.4 millionwere made through December 31, 199).

Termination ofMerger Agreement

CSW has the right to terminate the Merger Agreement if certain events, including but 'not

limited to the following, occur;

(i) the Company withdraws or modifies in a manner adverse to CSW its recommendation or
approval of the Plan, the Vferger Agreement or the Merger, or approves or recommends a
proposal or acquisition with a party other than CSW or a subsidiary ofCSW;

(ii) a material breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement of the Merger
Agreement by the Company;

I.

(iii) failure to obtain any required'statutory approvals or regulatory determinations that are
conditions to the effectiveness of the Merger or the inability to satisfy any other conditions
to the effectiveness of the Plan and Merger; or ll

(iv) the Company files an independent case related to rates before the Texas Commission,
except as permitted by the Merger Agreement.

The Company has the right to terminate the iMerger Agreement ifany of the following events
occur:

(i) failure to obtain any required statutory approvals or regulatory determinations that are
conditions to the effectiveness of the Plan and Merger;

C

(ii) material breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement of the Merger
Agreement by CSW;

V

(iii) CSW withdraws or modiTies in a manner adverse to the Company its recommendation or
approval of the Plan, the Merger Agreement or the Merger; or

(iv) the Company determines in accordance with its fiduciary duties as debtor-in-possession to
engage in an acquisition transaction with a par'ty unrelated to CSW.

Either party may terminate the Merger Agreement if (i) the Effective Date has not occurred
within 18 months (or, ifextended by the parties, within 24 months) of the Confirmation Date; or
(ii)prior to the Effective Date the Plan is terminated or the confirmation order is vacated or reversed.

In the event the Merger Agreement is terminated, it shall become void and, other than (i) the
possible payment of a termination fee, by the Company or CSW to the other party; (ii) the possible
payment-of the Price Protection; and (iii) under certain circumstances, the reimbursement to the
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Company by CSW ofcertain costs, interest and expenses related to the Merger borne by the Company,
there is no other obligation or liabilityon the part of the Company, CSW or CSW Sub. Termination
fees of $ 25 or $ 50 million (in the case of any payments due from the Company to CSW) or $25 million
(in the case ofany payment due from CSW to the Company) are payable only in limited circumstances.
The amount of the termination fee payable by the Company,,if any, depends on the reason for
termination'.

Actions Related to Bankruptcy Case Prior to the Effective Date

Prior to the Effective Date, current management of the Company will continue to manage and
run the Company, subject, to the oversight of the Board of Directors and required approvals of the
Bankruptcy Court for certain actions. Under the Merger Agreement, the Company is prohibited from
undertaking certain actions, which generally are extraordinary in nature; may be required to notify or
obtain the approval ofCSW prior to undertaking other actions; and its ability to take certain actions is
limited in other respects. With those limitations, the Company is continuing to operate and complete
the actions required to reach the Effective Date.

Interim payments willbe made prior to and at the Effective Date, as set forth in the Plan, and as
described-above in "Treatment of Claims Under the Plan." The Company and CSW continue to meet
periodically with an oversight committee representing all classes of creditors to inform them of the
status of the condition's to effectiveness of the Plan and to provide other information.

The Company is continuing its analysis of its executory contracts to determine whether the
Company should assume or reject all or a portion of these contracts. The Company has motions
pending to assume (i) the lease related to the Company's sale and leaseback transaction involving
generation equipment at the Copper Power Station (the "Copper Lease" ), to the extent the Copper
Lease may in any respect be an unexpired lease of non-residential real property; and (ii) the lease, as
amended, with the Navajo Nation in connection with the construction and operation of the
Four Corners Project (the "Navajo Lease" ). For a description of the Copper Power Station and
Four Corners Project, see "Facilities —Copper Power Station" and "Facilities —Four Corners Project."

«

The Company also is continuing its analysis of the proofs ofclaim filed in the Bankruptcy Case in
an effort to reconcile the claimants and the claimed amounts with the Company's books and records
and, prior to the Effective Date, willdetermine which it willobject to. The general deadline for filing
creditors'laims against the Company with the Bankruptcy Court was June 15, 1992. Approximately
500 proofs of claim or interest had been filed with the Bankruptcy Court as of December 31, 1993.
Many of the proofs ofclaim are voluminous and duplicative. The Company's counsel is also involved in
the process ofanalyzing the factual and legal bases ofmany of the proofs ofclaim.

- Based on the evaluation to date, the following table represents the proofs of claims, exclusive of
proofs of claims that have been withdrawn voluntarily or for which objections by the Company have
been upheld and those for which amounts have been paid, as of December 31, 1993, that have been
filed and that, include a specified amount.

Cat or ofClaims

Claims that correspond to Company books and records .

Palo Verde lease obligation bond claims .

Litigation claims
Tax claims
Executory contract claims
Other

Subtotal

Amount
(In55onaanda)

$ 1,220,095
743,082

50,111
54,182
11,019
18 748

2,098,237

Claims that are duplicative of the above
Total

3 284 517
~5382 754
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The Company does not a'cknowledge the validity of any proofs of claim represented in the table

and reserves its right to object to all proofs of claim, Claims related to the Palo Verde lease obligation
bonds are unliquidated claims that are included in Class12 under the Plan and would be allowed

claims in the amount of $700 million under the Plan. Tax claims represent unliquidated amounts

related primarily to asserted tax deficiencies in federal income taxes, as discussed in Item 3, "Legal

Proceedings- Tax Matters- Federal Tax Matters." Litigation claims primarily reflect miscellaneous

personal injury litigation for which the Company has adequate liability insurance and commercial

litigation. The Company believes that the duplicate claims will not be allowed claims in the

Bankruptcy Case. The claims for executory contracts are for unliquidated damages for leases or other

executory contracts the Company has not rejected. Ther'e also are approximately 70 proofs of claims

that do not specify an amount and, therefore, are not reflected in the table above. The Company

cannot predict the amount of claims that ultimately willbe allowed by the Bankruptcy Court in the

Bankruptcy Case.

Alternatives to the Plan

If the Plan does not become effective, the Company would consider other alternatives to the

Merger, including another merger or business combination with an entity not affiliated with CSW, a

stand-alone plan that would'involve a restructuring under FERC jurisdiction or a stand-alone plan
under existing regulatory frameworks. Under each of these alternatives, the treatment of Palo Verde
and the pending adversary proceeding would present a major consideration.

The restructuring under FERC jurisdiction would result in a conversion of the Company into a,
holding company with integrated multiple corporate subsidiaries that would be subject to increased

FERC regulation and, possibly, SEC regulation under the PUHCA. Operating subsidiaries would
perform the electric generating operations of the Company, the operation of transmission facilities, its
retail electric distribution operations in Texas, its retail electric distribution operations in
'NewMexico, and its general and administrative functions such as engineering, accounting,
management and similar services.

It is also possible that the Bankruptcy Court would allow a third party, to file a plan of
reorganization that may involve a merger, business combination or acquisition.

Any plan of reorganization other than the Plan may provide for different securities and
treatments than those provided in the Plan, and could result in lower recoveries for creditors and
interest holders and/or could require larger rate increases than proposed pursuant to the Plan. The
Company cannot predict (i) what the treatment of claims and interests would be under any alternate
plan of reorganization, (ii) in what respects actions proposed under the Plan would be modified, or
(iii)the amount of time that would be involved before any such alternate plan of reorganization were
effective.

Although the Company believes it is unlikely, and the Bankruptcy Court has indicated it would
be an undesirable outcome, ifno other plan of reorganization proves viable, the Bankruptcy Court also
could order the liquidation of the Company.

Overview
Regulation

Effect ofBankruptcy on Regulation. The Bankruptcy Code provides that the Bankruptcy Court
shall confirm the Company's plan of reorganization only if"any governmental regulatory commission
with jurisdiction, after confirmation of the plan, o'ver the rates of the debtor has approved any rate
change provided for in the plan, or such rate change is expressly conditioned on such approval." To
date, the Company has not asserted arguments in the regulatory proceedings that the provisions of the
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Bankruptcy Code, together with applicable provisions of other federal statutes, grant the Bankruptcy
Court the authority to preempt otherwise applicable regulatory authority'and processes, and it is
uncertain whether the Company would prevail on such arguments, ifasserted. As discussed above, in
"Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company —Regulatory Aspects of the Plan and
Merger," the Company or, where appropriate, CSW or APS, have filed or will file applications with
various regulatory bodies to seek approvals or findings necessary to consummate the Merger and
otherwise satisfy the conditions to the effectiveness of the Plan. The discussion of the applications
filed or to be filed before the regulatory bodies pursuant to the Plan and the pending regulatory
appeals discussed below in "Texas Rate Matters" and "iVew Mexico Rate Matters" should be read in
the context of the preemption issue discussed above.

On June11, 1992, an agreed order was entered in the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to which
appeals in Dockets 7460, 8588, and 9165 (discussed below in "Texas Rate Matters" ) may go forward in
state court and, upon remand, before the Texas Commission. The agreed order provided that it was
not a determination of the applicability of the automatic stay in bankruptcy as to any other regulatory
appeal or a determination of the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court or any other court or regulatory
authority with respect to the Company's rates or service. On September 20, 1993, the Bankruptcy
Court entered an order lifting the automatic stay in the appeals of the Company's other, Texas rate
proceedings, consisting of Dockets 9945, 8018, 8078, 8363, and 9069 (discussed below in "Texas Rate
Matters" ).

Texas The rates and services of the Company in Texas municipalities are regulated by those
municipalities and in unincorporated areas by the Texas Commission. The largest municipality in the
Company's service area in Texas is the City of>E1 Paso. The, Texas Commission has exclusive de novo
appellate jurisdiction to review municipal orders and ordinances regarding rates and services, and its
decisions are subject to judicial review.

The Texas Commission has jurisdiction to grant and amend CCiVs for service territory and
certain facilities, including generation and transmission facilities. Although the Texas Commission
does not have the authority to approve transfers of utility assets, it is required to evaluate certain
t'ransfers ofutilityassets and mergers and consolidations of regulated utilitycompanies to determine
ifthose transactions are consistent with the public interest. Upon a finding that such a transaction is
not in the public interest, the Texas Commission is required to consider the effects of the transaction in
future ratemaking proceedings and is required to disallow the effects, of the transaction if it will
unreasonably affect rates or service. j

t

NewMexico, The NewMexico Commission has jurisdiction over the Company's rates and
services in New Mexico. The HewiVIexico Commission must grant prior approval of the issuance,
assumption or guarantee of securities; the creation of liens on property located within the state; the
consolidation, merger or acquisition of some or all of the stock of another utility; and the sale, lease,
rental, purchase or acquisition of any public utilityplant or property constituting all or part of an
operating unit or system. The Yew Mexico Commission also has jurisdiction as to the valuation of
utility property and business; certain extensions, improvements and additions; Class I and II
transactions (as defined by the New Mexico Public UtilityAct); abandonment of facilities and the
certification and decertification ofutilityplant.

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The Company is subject to regulation by the FERC in
certain matters, including rates for wholesale power sales and the issuance of securities. In 1992, the
Congress enacted the Energy Policy Act, which, among other things, removes certain restrictions on
utilityparticipation in the competitive wholesale generation market. In addition, subject to certain

, limitations, the legislation provides that the, FERC also may order electric utilities, including the
Company, to provide certain transmission services. The legislation also, expands the authority ofstate
utility commissions to examine the books and records, of electric, utilities. See "Bankruptcy
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Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company —Regulatory Aspects of, the Plan and Merger,"

above.

Nuclear Regulatory Commission. The, Palo Verde Station is subject to the jurisdiction of the

NRC, which "has authority,to issue permits and licenses, to regulate nuclear facilities in order to

protect the health and safety of the public from radiation hazards and to conduct environmental

reviews pursuant'to the National Environmental Policy Act. Before any nuclear power plant can

become operational, an operating license from the NRC is required. The NRC has granted facility
operating licenses for Unit 1, Unit 2 and Unit 3 at Palo Verde for terms. of forty years each, beginning
December 31, 1984, December 9, 1985 and March 25, 1987, respectively. Full power operating licenses

for Units1, 2 and 3 were issued by the ÃRC in June1985, Apri11986 and November1987,,

respectively. In addition, the Company (along with the other Palo Verde Participants other than APS)

is separately licensed by the NRC to own its proportionate share thereof. See ".Facilities- Palo Verde

Station." On January.13, 1994, APS, as Operating Agent ofPalo Verde, joined by the Company, filed a

request with the NRC (i) for consent to the indirect; transfer of the Company's possession and

ownership in the Operating Licenses for Palo Verde Units 1, 2 and 3 that willoccur as a result of the

merger of a special-purpose subsidiary of CSW with and into the Company; and (ii) to amend the

Operating Licenses for Units 2 and 3 to delete provisions of those licenses related to the Company's

sale and leaseback transactions involving those units. The request to the NRC specifies that the

requested amendments to the Operating Licenses and consent become effective on the Effective Date,

upon notification by the applicants that all necessary regulatory approvals have been obtained, but
the Company cannot predict at this time whether and when the approvals and consent willbe granted.
See "Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company —Regulatory Aspects of the Plan
and Merger," above".

, Accounting for the Effects'of Regulation. Prior to December 31, 1991, the financial statements of
the Company were prepared pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 71, as amended, "Accounting for
the Effects ofCertain Types of Regulation," which provides for the'recognition of the economic effects
of regulation. In early 1992, the Company determined that there existed substantial doubt concerning
whether the criteria for reflecting the ec'onomic effects of regulation continued to be met as a result of
continuing cash flow problems arising from inadequate rate, relief and the uncertainty, surrounding
regulation during the reorganization process, including the regulatory treatment; if any, of the

$288.4 million letters of credit draws. "The Company concluded that it was not'reasonable to assume

that its rates were, or willbe, without giving consideration to possible outcomes of the reorganization
process, designed to recover its costs on a timely basis. Because of the uncertainty of the nature ofany
reorganization plan ultimately consummated and the assessment of the nature of regulation, the
Company concluded that it did not then and does not currently have sufficient assurance to reflect the
economic effects of regulation in its general purpose financial statements. Therefore, as required by
generally accepted accounting principles, the. Company eliminated from its 1991 balance sheet the

aggregate effects of regulation, which resulted in a $ 311 million extraordinary charge to results of
operations for. the year ended December 31, 1991. This amount included approximately $200 million
of operating expenses primarily related to Palo Verde and approximately $ 80 millionof income taxes
related to the Palo Verde sale/leaseback transactions which had been deferred by the Company's
regulators for recovery in future periods. Furthermore, the Company did not record the letter ofcredit
draws amounting to $ 288.4 million as an asset and has not recorded any new assets reflecting the
economic effects ofregulation since,,1991 in its general purpose financial statements.

Although the outcome of the reorganization'process cannot- presently be determined, the
Company believes that the rates established in conjunction with any reorganization plan will be

designed to recover „the Company's costs, including a return on equity, after the establishment of an

appropriate capital „structure, as well as to reflect other,. changes that may result from the
reorganization. „The Company expects that, upon effectiveness of any plan of reorganization, its
regulated operations willmeet the SFAS No. 71 criteria necessary to reflect the effects ofregulation in
its general purpose financial statements. Such rates may include the recovery of some or all items
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that, at that time, are not reflected as regulatory assets on the Company's general purpose financial
statements. However, in the absence of application of purchase accounting applied in the event of a
change in control occurring as part of the reorganization, there does not appear to be any applicable
accounting precedent for the restoration of such amounts as assets created prior to the re-adoption of
SFAS iso. 71. Restoration of such amounts as assets willdepend upon a number of factors, including
intervening developments in accounting standards and other,.accounting literature, the outcome of
which cannot currently be determined. In March 1993, the Finahcial Accounting Standards Board's
Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus that ifa rate-regulated enterprise initially fails to
meet the regulatory asset recognition requirements ofSFAS No. 71, but meets those requirements in a
subsequent period, then regulatory assets should be recognized in the period the requirements are
met. Although the Emerging Issues Task Force's consensus applied to rate-regulated enterprises
currently meeting the requirements of SFAS Ão. 71, the Company believes that this consensus
supports the Company's position regarding restoring previous'et regulatory assets in its general
purpose financial statements. In the event it is concluded that such restoration is not appropriate
under generally accepted accounting principles, the Company would be precluded from recognizing
historical amounts as regulatory assets in its general purpose financial statements. Ifit is determined
that such restoration is appropriate, regulatory, assets would be recorded to the extent items allowed to
be recovered in the rate making process have not been reflected as assets in the Company's general
pur pose financial statements.

Texas Rate Matters

Rale Moderation Plan —Palo Verde Units I and 2. In 1988 the Texas Commission established a
rate moderation plan in Docket 7460 based on a contested stipulation, pursuant to which the Texas
jurisdictional portion of the Company's investment in Palo Verde Unit 1, Common Plant, and lease
payments on Unit 2 (to the extent of approximately 83% of those lease p'ayments) were to be phased-in
to rates in four steps. The order in Docket 7460 also settled all issues concerning the prudence of the
Company's initial decision to participate in Palo Verde and all issues concerning prudence in the
construction of Units 1 and 2. (The prudence of the Company's decision to continue its investment in
Unit 3 after 1978 and the prudence in the construction of Unit 3 were the subject of Docket 9945,
discussed below.) The Docket7460 order was upheld by the Texas Court of Appeals for, the
3rd Judicial District at Austin, Texas (the "Court of Appeals" ), on August26, 1992, except for a
determination that deferred carrying costs may not be included in rate base. The case has been
appealed to the Texas Supreme Court by the Company and other parties. See discussion below under
"Deferred Accounting Cases."

The first base rate increase contemplated under the rate moderation plan'was ordered'in
Docket 7460, and the remaining three increases were sought and ordered in subsequent rate filings
(Dockets8363, 9165, and 9945). As a result of these filings, the Texas Commission has allowed
periodic rate increases which allow 'the Company to recover some, but not all, of its revenue
requirements associated with its investment in Units 1 and 2 (as established in these rate cases), and
the Company has been permitted to defer those unrecovered revenue requirements on its regulatory
books of account for collection in later years. In Docket 9945, the Texas Commission limited. each
future base rate increase intended to recover those deferrals to 3.5%. In connection with. the
Company's discontinuation of reporting under SFAS No. 71 as of December 31, 1991, approximately
$46.1 million of "phase-in deferrals" previously recorded pursuant to this. plan have been eliminated
from the Company's general purpose financial statements and reported as part of the extraordinary
charge to results ofoperations for the year ended December 31, 1991.

Dockets 8363 and 9165 have been appealed to the Texas District Court,, where the appeals
remain pending. A hearing on the, appeal of Docket8363 has been scheduled for July1994. No

'earing on the appeal of Docket 9165 has been scheduled. The outcome of these appeals and the
results or materiality offinal dispositions of these cases presently cannot be determined.
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Docket 9945. On December 28, 1990, the Company filed with the Texas Commission a combined

request for the scheduled fourth base rate increase under the Docket 7460 rate moderation plan
discussed above and for the recovery, also on a moderated basis, of the Texas jurisdictional portion, of
the Company's in'vestment in Palo Verde Unit 3, including the lease payments, net ofdeferred gain, on

the Company's sales "and leasebacks of a portion of its interest in Unit 3. The Company's combined

request was for $ 131.3 million, which included approximately $49 million related to the Units 1 and 2

rate moderation plan and approximately $82.3 million related to Unit3. Of the total'request,
approximately $ 38 millionwas to be in cash with the balance deferred for subsequent recovery.

The Texas Commission issued its final order in Docket 9945 on November 12, 1991, approving a

total increase in Texas base revenues of approximately $ 47 million, consisting of $ 37 million in cash

and $ 10 millionofphase-in deferrals. The order approved a cash increase ofapproximately $7 million
as the fourth increase under, the Units 1 and 2 rate moderation plan with a phase-in deferral of

$ 10 million for future recovery in rates. The order limited each future increase in base rates under the
Units 1 and 2 plan to 3.5%, but also approved a regulatory non-cash revenue adjustment recommended

by the Hearing Examiners, which was necessary to provide for full'recovery of the phase-in deferrals
during the remaining term of the Units 1 and 2 rate moderation plan..The balance of the $ 37 million
cash'ncrease (approximately $ 30 million) represented operating and maintenance expenses,

decommissioning expenses and ad valorem taxes on Unit 3 of'Palo Verde, as well as an allowance for
purchased power capacity. The balance did not include any current return of or return on the owned

portion of Unit 3 or recovery of the lease expenses related to Unit3. Recovery of these costs has been

held in abeyance to be included subsequently in Texas rates over a scheduled period of time, as

discussed below.

The Texas Commission disallowed approximately $32 million of Unit 3 capitalized costs, on a

total Company basis, as imprudently incurred. The order also disallowed $9.8 million, on a total
Company basis, of previously deferred costs related to the 1989-90 outages of Units 1 and 2. The
Company recorded pre-tax write-oII's of. $24.1million and $6.3million, respectively (the Texas
jurisdictional amounts of these disallowances), in results ofoperations in the third quarter of 1991.

' ~

With respect to the rate treatment of Unit 3, the Texas Commission adopted an inventory plan,
pursuant to which the Company's investment in Unit 3 was neither included in rates nor expressly
disallowed, but instead held in abeyance to be included subsequently in Texas rates over a scheduled
period of time. In justifying the inventory plan, the Texas Commission found (i) the Company was
imprudent in not attempting to sell a portion of its interest in Palo Verde between 1978 and 1981,
(ii) the Company failed to demonstrate that it would not have been unable to sell such interest ifithad
attempted to do so; and (iii)as a result of such imprudent action, the addition of Unit 3 to the
Company's system would result in excess capacity. However, the Texas Commission further found
that Unit 3 would become "used and useful" to the Texas jurisdiction in the followingpercentages: 0%
(in Docket 9945), and 40%, 65%, 85% and 100% thereafter. It is the Company's position that the
successive phases of the inventory plan were to be implemented on an annual basis; however, other
parties may contest that position. Other parties also may contest whether the inventory plan
constituted a proper determination by the Texas Commission of when Unit 3 would become used and
useful. During the period Unit 3 is held in inventory, the Company will recover the operating and
maintenance expenses, decommissioning expenses and ad valorem taxes associated with Unit 3, along
with an allowance for purchased power capacity. Pursuant to the order, but subject to possible
changes that could result from an effective reorganization plan, the Company expects to recover, in
future years, the following at the applicable inventoried percentages: a return of and on the plant
costs associated with the owned portions of Unit 3 and the amount of lease payments due under the
sale and leaseback transactions the Company entered into in connection, with Unit 3. Under the order,
the Company willretain the benefits of its sales to CFE for at least the period covered by the first rate
order under the inventory plan. For a discussion of the sales to CFE, see PartII, Item 7,
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations -Results of
Operations."

23



The Company disputes there was any imprudence, either in connection with the Unit 3
capitalized costs or in retaining its full investment in Palo Verde. The Company challenged both
aspects of the Texas Commission's order in the Company's Motions for Rehearing and has continued
such challenges on appeal. The Company filed an appeal with the Texas District Court, on April21,
1992. The City of El Paso and two intervenors also appealed. On October 27, 1993, the Texas District
Court affirmed the final order of the Texas Commission except in two respects. The Texas District
Court held the Texas Commission erred (i) by refusing to include certain disallowed utilityexpenses as
deductions when computing federal income tax expense for ratemaking purposes and (ii) by granting
rate base treatment for post-in-service deferred carrying costs associated with Palo Verde. The second
holding is consistent with the decision of the Texas Court of Appeals in Docket 7460, discussed below
under "Deferred Accounting Cases." The Company has appealed the decision, as have the City of
El Paso and the two intervenors who were parties to the appeal before the Texas District Court. The
ultimate outcome of the appeals and their results or the materiality thereof cannot be predicted at this
time.

t

Deferred Accounting Cases. The Company has received a series oforders authorizing the deferral
of operating costs incurred,'and carrying charges accrued, on each unit of Palo Verde between" the
unit's in-service date and the date of its,inclusion in Texas rates. Certain orders have also permitted
the. Company to include in rate base and amortize the deferred costs over the lives,of Units 1 and 2
(approximately 40 years for ratemaking purposes). All of these "deferred accounting orders" have
been appealed. The ultimate outcome of these appeals and their results or the materiality thereof
cannot be predicted by the Company at this time.

I

The deferred accounting order in Docket 7460 (regarding Units'1 and 2) has been the subject of
two rulings by the Court of Appeals and is currently pending before the Texas Supreme Court. In its
first ruling on August 14, 1991, the Court of Appeals held that none of the deferred costs could be
included in rate base. As a result of that ruling, the Company discontinued deferring for financial
reporting purposes Unit 3 operating and maintenance expenses and.related carrying costs as ofJuly 1,
1991. The Company and other parties filed Motions for Rehearing, in response to which the Court of
Appeals issued a subsequent ruling on August 26, 1992, holding that'deferred operating costs may be
placed in rate base. Although the Cour't of Appe'als maintained its position that deferred carrying
costs may not be included in rate base, it stated that its opinion did not preclude the recovery of
carrying costs without rate base treatment. This would allow recovery of the carrying costs, but might
not allow the Company to'earn a return on the unamortized balance of those carrying costs. The
Company estimates that the amount of return on such carrying costs previously included in revenue
requirements authorized by the Texas Commission, on an unmoderated basis, is approximately
$ 33.4 millionas ofMarch 31, 1994. The Texas Supreme Court granted writoferror with respect to the
issue of the propriety of deferred accounting orders and heard oral argument on the case on
September 13, 1993 (along with three similar appeals involving other Texas electric utilities). The
Texas Supreme Court has not issued its ruling on the appeals, If the Court of Appeals'ecision is
upheld by the Texas Supreme Court and remanded to the Texas Commission, it is possible'hat the
return on the deferred carrying costs will not be refunded, but will instead be offset against the
balance of unamortized phase-in deferrals. It is"also possible that the Texas Commission could find
that the inability to earn a return on deferred carrying costs has increased the Company's risk and
could, correspondingly, adjust the Company's allowed rate of return such that the previously
determined total revenue requirement would remain unchanged.

In connection with the Company's elimination of net regulatory assets from its balance sheet as
of December 31, 1991, approximately $94'illion 'of Units 1 and 2 accounting deferrals and
$60.3million of Unit 3 accounting deferrals have been eliminated and reported as part of the
extraordinary charge to results of operations for the year ended December 31, 1991. Ifthe Court of
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Appeals decision is upheld and assuming no refund willbe required (as discussed above), there willbe

no additional write-offs required in the Company's general purpose financial statements.

Rate Case Expenses Incurred in Docket 7460. The issue of recovery of expenses incurred by the

Company and the City of El Paso in connection with Docket 7460 was severed from the issues ruled
'upon by the Texas Commission in that Docket and was assigned to a new Docket 8018 for
consideration. On September 20, 1991, the Texas Commission issued its final order in the case and

approved the reimbursement of approximately $ 10.8 million for expenses incurred by the Company
and approximately $ 1.1 million for expenses incurred by the City of El Paso. The Texas Commission
further directed that such amounts be surcharged to the'Company's Texas customers over a one-year
period, which. the Company completed in November 1992. The City of E1Paso filed an appeal of the
Texas Commission's order in Docket 8018 with the Texas District Court, and oral arguments were
held Narch18, 1994. After hearing arguments, the Texas District Court affirmed the Texas
Commission's decision. Further appeals by the City of El Paso are possible. The ultimate outcome of
any such appeal and its result or the materiality thereof cannot be predicted at this time.

n

In connection with the Company's elimination of net regulatory assets from its balance sheet as"'fDecember 31, 1991, the unrecovered balance ofall rate case expenses previously deferred, including
cases other than Docket 7460, was eliminated. The Company expects that all of these costs ultimately'illbe collected in full from its Texas customers.

Texas Recognition ofPalo Verde Sales and Leasebacks, In its Docket 8363 order and a separate
order issued in August 1989 (Docket 8078), the Texas Commission found the Company's Unit 2 and
Unit 3 sales and leasebacks to be in the public interest, The rulings, ifupheld on appeal, would ensure
that the Texas Commission will consider those transactions in connection with the Company's rate
cases. The finding on the Unit 2 sales and leasebacks, in addition to findings regarding federal income
tax expense and other ratemaking issues, is a part of the City of El Paso's appeal of the Docket 8363
order. The City of E1Paso appealed 'the Texas Commission's order in Docket 8078 with respect to the
Unit 3 transactions to,the Texas District Court. A hearing on the appeal of Docket 8078 has been
scheduled for August 1994. While the Company believes that the Texas District, Court willuphold the
Texas Commission's orders, the ultimate outcomes of the appeals and their results or the materiality
thereof cannot be predicted with certainty at this time.

Performance Standards for Palo Verde.'n '1991, the Texas Commission established performance
standards in Docket 8892 for the operation of the Palo Verde units. Each Palo Verde unit included in
Texas rates is evaluated annually to determine ifits three-year rollingaverage capacity factor entitles
the Company to a reward or a penalty. There are five performance bands based around a target
capacity factor of70%. Neither a penalty nor a reward would result from capacity factors from 62.5%
to 77.5%. Capacity factors are calculated as the ratio of actual generation to maximum possible
generation. Ifthe capacity factor for any unit is 35% or less, the Texas Commission is required to
initiate a proceeding to determine whether such unit should continue to be included in rate base.

The performance standards are effective as of the date each unit is included in Texas rates, which
was April22, 1988 for Units 1 and 2. In June 1993, the Company filed its third annual performance
report with the Texas Commission. The Company incurred neither a penalty nor a reward for the
1993 report. The three-year capacity factor was 72.9% for Unit 1 and 75.2% for Unit 2. The Company
expects the report to be filed with the Texas Commission in 1994 to reflect performance for Units 1 and
2 resulting in neither a penalty nor a reward, though the projected capacity factor for Unit 2 is
projected to be only slightly above the point at which a penalty could be incurred.

h

Recovery ofFuel Expenses. The Company recovers fuel and purchased power costs from its Texas
customers pursuant to a fixed fuel factor established by the Texas Commission. Fuel revenues
collected under the fixed fuel factor must be periodically reconciled to costs allowed by the Texas
Commission. The Company's last reconciliation, Docket 8588, was for the period Augustl, 1985
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through March 31,- 1989, and involved over $200 million in Texas fuel costs. The final order issued in
1990 required a refund of approximately $7.1 million, plus interest, which the Company completed
over a twelve-month period beginning in February1991. The Company and the City of E1 Paso
appealed the Texas Commission's order in Docket 8588 to the Texas District Court. On november 25,
1991, the Texas District Court entered judgment on the appeals, upholding the Texas Commission's
order on all points except the Company's appeal of the treatment ofcertain purchased power capacity
costs during 1985-86. With regard to those costs, totaling approximately $4.2 million, the Texas
District Court held that the Texas Commission erred in failing to justify adequately its decision not to
allow the Company to recover such costs through its reconcilable fuel account. The Texas District
Court remanded the case to the Texas Commission with instructions to reconsider the allowance of
such costs, Both the Texas Commission and the City of El Paso appealed the Texas District Court's
decision to the Court ofAppeals. On March 10, 1993, the Court ofAppeals affirmed the decision of the
Texas District Court. On February 2, 1994, the Texas Supreme Court denied the applications for writ
oferror filed by the City ofEl Paso and the Texas Commission. The case willbe remanded to the Texas
Commission for a new hearing" to address whether the Company should be allowed to include the
purchased power capacity charges as reconcilable fuel costs and recover such costs. The ultimate
outcome of this hearing cannot be predicted at this time.

On January 26, 1993, the Texas Commission adopted a new fuel rule allowing for adjustment of
the fixed fuel factor every six months on a prescribed schedule and requiring reconciliation of fuel
costs and revenues whenever three years of fuel data have accumulated. Under the new rule, both
refunds and surcharges are allowed without changing the fixed fuel factor where the cumulative over-
or under-recovered fuel balance, including interest, is greater than or equal to 4% of the estimated
annual fuel costs adopted most recently by the Texas Commission. The Texas Commission is required
to act on a petition to change a fixed fuel factor within sixty or ninety days, depending on whether a
hearing is required. The Company is allowed under the prescribed schedule to petition for a change in
its Texas fixed fuel factor in January and July ofeach year under the new rule.

Ratemaki ng Treatment ofFederal Income Taxes. In a 1987 case involving an electric utility, the
Texas Supreme Court determined that, under certain circumstances, it is appropriate to allow only
"actual taxes incurred" for ratemaking purposes. The Court of Appeals has applied the Texas
Supreme Court decision to another utility. Public UtilityCommission of Texas v. GTE-Southwest,

'33S.W.2d 153 (Tex. App. - Austin 1992, writ granted). The Texas Supreme Court heard oral
argument in that case in September 1993 and has not ruled yet.

Additionally, the Texas Commission has recently applied various forms of the "actual taxes
incurred" methodology in rate proceedings involving other utilities. There is significant uncertainty
as to the application of the methodology used in those proceedings. The Texas Commission historically
had granted rates that included an income tax component based on a "stand alone basis" and on the
utility's allowed return on equity. The Texas Commission has now altered this policy. The appeals
related to Dockets 8363 and 9945 include claims that the Texas Commission failed to adhere to the
"actual taxes incurred" methodology in setting the federal income tax expense component of the
Company's rates. As a result, any remand of Dockets 7460, 8363, 9165 or 9945 to the Texas
Commission could include a reconsideration of the respective federal income tax components, which
were based on the "stand alone" methodology previously used by the Texas Commission.

Depending on the outcome of any such'remand, the Company may be required to refund certain
amounts collected in rates since 1988. The likelihood and amount of any refunds are uncertain at this
time because the ultimate outcome of the pending appeals is unknown, and the Company. cannot
predict the result ofany remand.

Texas Rates Proposed in the Plan ofReorganization. For a discussion of the rate path proposed as
part of the Company's Plan, see "Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization- Regulatory Aspects of
the Plan and Merger -Proposed Texas Rate Treatment," above.

26



New Mexico Rate Matters
II

Rate Moderation Plan-Palo Verde. In 1987, the iNew iMexico Commission approved a stipulation
in Case 2009 establishing a rate moderation plan, pursuant to which the New Mexico jurisdictional
portion of the Company's interest in Unit 1'and one-third of Common Plant and approximately 83% of
the lease-payments on Unit 2 and the related Common Plant were phased-in to rates in three steps.

After the third step of the phase-in, the plan froze New Mexico rates through December 31, 1994. The
Company agreed that it will not request rate base or cost of service treatment, or other rate
recognition, for Unit 3 and its related Common Plant.

The Company willbe required to recover the New Mexico jurisdictional portion'of the Company's
investment in Unit 3 through off-system sales in the economy energy market. For',several years,
market prices for economy energy sales have not been at levels sufficient to recover the New Mexico
portion of the Company's current operating- expenses related to Unit 3, including decommissioning
costs and lease payments. The Company expects these market prices to remain at such levels in the
near term. The Company projects, however, that the market prices of economy energy ultimately will
rise to a level sufficient to recover the New iVIexicojurisdictional portion of the Company's investment
in Unit 3 over the remaining life of the asset.

Performance Standards for Palo Verde. In 1986, the New Mexico Commission established
performance standards in Case 1833 for the operation of the Palo Verde units. The entire station is
evaluated annually to determine ifits achieved capacity factor entitles the Company to a reward or a

penalty. There are five performance bands based around a target capacity factor of 67.5%. Neither a

penalty nor a rew'ard would result from capacity factors from 60% to 75%. The capacity factor is
calculated as the ratio of actual generation to maximum possible generation. Since Unit 3 is not in
rate base for purposes ofNew Mexico rates, any penalty or reward calculated on a total station basis is
limited to two-thirds of such penalty or reward. If the'annual capacity factor is 35% or less, the
New Mexico Commission is required to initiate a proceeding to reconsider the rate base treatment.

Annual FilingRequirements. Pursuant to the New Mexico Cominission's order in Case 1833, the
Company must make annual filings, at least through the term of the rate moderation plan, to reconcile
fuel costs and establish the fixed fuel factor for New Mexico customers. An annual performance
standards report is included in the fuel reconciliation and any resulting rewards or penalties are
included in the establishment of a new fixed fuel,factor, ifa new factor is warranted. The Company
has received an extension through March'31, 1994 to file its annual fuel reconciliation report for the
period January 1, 1993 through December 31, 1993. The Company expects such report willresult in a
significantly higher fuel factor, including no reward or penalty under the performance standards. The
new factor is proposed to be implemented in May 1994. The Company also has requested an extension
to file a cost ofservice compliance report with the New Mexico Commission in June 1994.

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Rate Matters

The majority of the Company's rates for wholesale power and tr ansmission services are subject, to
regulation by the FERC. Sales of wholesale power subject to FERC regulation make up a significant
portion, approximately 15% in 1993, of the Company's operating revenues. Although rates to
wholesale customers require FERC approval, the Company and its wholesale customers generally
have established such rates through negotiations, based on certain cost of service assumptions, subject
to FERC acceptance of the negotiated rates.

The Company has a long-term firm power sales agreement with IID providing for the sale of
100 MWoffirmcapacity to IID through April2002. The Company also provides contingent capacity of
50 MW to IID. The agreement generally provides for level sales prices over the life of the agreement,
which were intended to recover fully the Company's projected costs, as well as a return. Because of the
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levelized rate, such costs and return were anticipated to exceed revenues for. a number of the early
years of the agreement with a reciprocal effect in the later years of the agreement. The Company has
accrued revenues under the terms of the agreement in the amounts of $ 2.4 million, $ 2.9 million, and
$4.9 million in 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively. Such accrued amounts, which since the inception of
the agreement aggregate $ 32 million as of December 31, 1993, are recorded as a long-term contract
receivable on the Company's balance sheets. Based on the contractual payments, recovery of the
unbilled amounts should begin in 1995. The agreement also provides that the Company may seek
increases in the sales price ifsufficient evidence exists to determine that certain operating costs have
increased above those used in determining the original sales price.

The Company has a firm power sales agreement with TNP, providing for sales to, TNP in the
amount of79 MW in 1993 and 75 MW thereafter through 2002, subject to provisions in the agreement
that allow a reduction to a minimum of 25 iVIW in the amount of demand on a yearly basis, TNP has
provided the Company notice that it would take advantage of the provisions to reduce the contract
demand to 25 iMW for 1994 and 1995, while preserving its option to maintain or reduce its contract
demand in subsequent years. Sales prices, which,decline over the life of the agreement, are based on
substantially the same scheduled and projected costs and return as the IIDagreement discussed above.

3

Rate tariffs currently applicable to IID and TNP contain appropriate fuel and purchased power
cost adjustment provisions designed to recover the Company's fuel and purchased power costs.

Other Wholesale Customers
II

The Company has a sales agreement to provide capacity and associated energy to CFE through
the end of 1996. The sales willbe at 150 MW during the summer months and 120 MWat other times of
the year through the remaining term of'the agreement. Pricing for the'greement includes an
escalating capacity charge and recovery of energy costs at system-average costs plus third-party
energy charges. To support the requirements of the agreement with CFE, the Company entered into a
firmpower purchase agreement with SPS for at least 50 MWduring the term of the CFE contract.

r

Construction Program

The Company'as no current plans to construct any new base load generating facilities through
the year 2000. This, however, is subject to change depending on the the Company's continued ability to
receive a fullallotment ofpower from Palo Verde. For a discussion of the operations ofPalo Verde, see
Part 1, "Facilities, Palo Verde Station." Utilityconstruction expenditures reflected in the table below,
consist primarily of expanding and updating the electric transmission and distribution systems and
the cost of betterments and improvements relating, to the Palo Verde Station. The Company's
estimated cash construction costs for 1994 through 1997 set forth in the table below are approximately
$223 million. Actual costs may vary from the construction program estimates set forth below. Such
estimates are reviewed and updated from time to time to reflect changed conditions.

By Year (1)
In millions

By Function
In millions

$ 67
61

"74
21

223

1994 . $ 64 Production (1)
1995 . 53 Transmission
1996 . 47 'istribution
1997 . 59 General ..

Total.. i 223 Total

l a

(1) Does not include acquisition costs for nuclear fuel. See "Energy Sources —Nuclear Fuel."
o
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Facilities

As described below', the Company currently has a net installed generating capacity of 1,497 NW,
consisting of an entitlement of 600 MW from Palo Verde Units 1, 2 and 3, an entitlement, of 104 MW

from Four Corners Units 4 and 5, 478 iVIWat Newman, 246 iilWat Rio Grande and 69 MWat Copper.
t

Palo Verde Station

As of the date it filed the bankruptcy petition, the Company owned or leased a 15.8% interest in
each of the three 1,270 iMW nuclear generating units and Common Plant at the Palo Verde Station
near Phoenix, Arizona (owned as to Unit 1 and approximately 60% of Unit 3, and leased as to Unit 2

and approximately 40% of Unit 3). The Palo Verde Participants include the Company and six other
utilities: APS, Southern California Edison Company, PNM, Southern California Public Power

Authority, Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District and the Los Angeles
Department ofWater and Power, Palo Verde Participants share costs and generating entitlements in
the same proportion as their percentage interests in the generating units. APS serves as operating
agent for the Palo Verde Station.

In Augustand December 1986, the Company sold and leased back all of its 15.8% undivided
interest in Unit 2 and one-third of its undivided interest in certain Common Plant at Palo Verde for
approximately $ 684.4 million cash, In December1987, the Company sold and leased back

approximately 40% of its undivided 15.8% interest in Unit 3 for approximately $ 250 millioncash. The
sales were to the Owner Trustee as trustee for the Owner Participants. Of the total sales price of
approximately $934'.4 million, the Owner Participants paid approximately $ 192 million. The balance
of the sales price was obtained by the Owner Trustee securing debt financing through a pledge of its
rights under the leasebacks to 'the Company and, with respect to Unit 3, a pledge of the undivided
interest. A

ll

The Company's investment in Palo Verde, both directly and through the sale and leaseback
transactions, has a material impact on the Company's financial position and results ofoperations. See

Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data —Notes B and E of iNotes to Financial
Statements." Accordingly, an analysis of this investment and related obligations has been a central
issue in the Company's formulation of a reorganization plan. For a discussion of the proposed
treatment of Palo Verde under the Plan, see "Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the
Company —Treatment ofPalo Verde" above.

Operation ofeach of the three Palo Verde units requires an operating license from the NRC. Full
power operating licenses for Units 1, 2 and 3 were issued by the NRC in June 1985, April 1986 and ~

November 1987, respectively. The full power operating licenses, each valid for a period of 40 years, '.

authorize APS, as operating agent, for Palo Verde, to operate the three Palo Verde units at fullpower.
t

lVater Supply. In connection with the construction and operation of Palo Verde, APS, as

operating agent, has entered into contracts with certain municipalities granting APS the right to
purchase effluent for cooling purposes at Palo Verde. A summons served on APS in early 1986

required all water claimants in the Lower Gila River Watershed in Arizona to assert any claims to
water on or before January 20, 1987, in an action pending in iVaricopa County Superior Court (In re
The General Ad'udication of All Ri hts to Use Water in the Gila River S stem and Source, Supreme
Court Nos. WC-79-0001 through WC-79-0004 (Consolidated) [WC-1, WC-2, WC-3 and WC-4
(Consolidated)], iVIaricopa County Nos. W-l, W-2, W-3 and W-4 (Consolidated)). Palo Verde is located
within the geographic area subject to the summons, and the rights of the Palo Verde Participants,
including the Company, to the use ofgroundwater and effluent at Palo Verde is potentially at issue ig
this action. APS, as project manager of Palo Verde, filed claims that dispute the court's jurisdiction
over the Palo Verde Participants'roundwater rights and their contractual rights.to effluent relating
to Palo Verde and, alternatively, seek confirmation ofsuch rights. On December 10, 1992, the Arizona
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Supreme Court heard oral argument on certain issues in this matter that are pending on interlocutory
appeal and, as a result, issues important to the Palo Verde claims have been remanded to the tria
court for further action. No trial date has been set in this matter.

Although the'foregoing matter remains subject to further evaluation, APS has advised t eh
Company that APS expects that the described litigation willnot have a materially adverse impact on
the operation ofPalo Verde.

Liabilityand Insurance Matters. The Palo Verde Participants have insurance for public liability
payments resulting from nuclear energy hazards to the full limitof liabilityunder federal law. This
potential liabilityis covered by primary liabilityinsurance provided by commercial insurance carriers
in the amount of$200 millionand the balance by an industry-wide retrospective assessment program.
The maximum assessment per reactor under the retrospective rating program for each nuc ear
incident is approximately $79.2 million, subject to an annual limitof $ 10 millionper incident. Based
upon the Company's 15.8% interest in the three Palo Verde units, the Company's maximum potentia
assessment per incident is 'approximately $37.6million, with an annual payment limitation o
approximately $ 4.7 million.

The Palo Verde Participants maintain "all risk" (including nuclear hazards) insurance for
pr'bperty damage to, and decontamination of, property at Palo Verde in the aggregate amount of
$2.7 billion, a substantial portion of which must first be applied to stabilization and decontamination.
The Company has also secured insurance against portions of any increased cost of generation or
purchased power resulting from the accidental outage of any of the three units if the outage exceeds
21 weeks.

Decommissioning. For information regarding the obligations of the Company to plan and fund,
over the service life of Palo Verde, its share of the estimated costs to decommission Palo Verde, see
Part II, Item7., "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations —Operational Challenges" and Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary ata-
Note E of Notes to Financial Statements." The Company is currently collecting a portion of
decommissioning costs for its investment in Palo Verde Units 1 and 2 in all three jurisdictions, and for
Unit 3 in its Texas and FERC jurisdictions. The Company must fund the decommissioning
requirements for its New Mexico jurisdictional portion of Unit 3 through off-system sales of economy
energy. Because the Company is under fixed price contracts with its FERC customers, the amount o
decommissioning costs received in current rates is not sufficient to fund the FERC portion of the
revised decommissioning costs and, therefore, the Company must fund this shortfall.

ANPP Participation Agreement. Pursuant to the ANPP Participation Agreement, each
Palo Verde Participant is required to fund its proportionate share of operation and maintenance,
capital and fuel costs of Palo Verde. The Company's total monthly share of these costs is

t 1 $7 'll'on. The Participation Agreement provides that ifa Palo Verde Participant fails
to meet its payment obligations, each non-defaulting Palo Verde Participant s a pay i s
proportionate share of the payments owed by the defaulting Palo Verde Participant. On February 13,
1992, the Bankruptcy Court approved a stipulation between the Company and APS, as the operating
agent of Palo Verde, pursuant to which the Company agreed to pay its proportionate share of all
Palo Verde invoices delivered to the Company after February 6, 1992. The Company agreed to ma e
these payments until such time. as an order is entered by the Bankruptcy Court, ifever, authorizing or
directing the Company's rejection of the Participation Agreement governing the relationship among
the Palo Verde Participants. The stipulation also specifies that approximately $9.2 million of the
C

' l V d ment obligations are to be considered prepetition general unsecured claims
h ANPPof the other Palo Verde Participants. Pursuant to the Plan, the Company intends to assume the A

Participation Agreement and the other agreements related to the operation of Palo Verde. To
accomplish this and to resolve pending issues related to the assumption of the agreements and cure of
existing defaults, the Company and the other Palo Verde Participants have entered into a Cure an

30



Assumption Agreement that was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on November 19, 1993. The Cure
and Assumption'greemen't sets, forth the mechanism by which the ANPP Participation Agreement
and other operating agreements related to Palo Verde will be assumed as of the Effective Date.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Company paid APS, as operating agent; the amount of the prepetition
obligations and APS paid the Company amounts ofprepetition refunds that had been withheld, subject
to all of such amounts being returned in the event the Plan does not become effective. For a discussion
of the issues related to assumption of the ANPP Participation Agreement, see "Bankruptcy
Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company- Treatment ofPalo Verde," above.

i

Steam Generator Tubes. APS is continuing its investigation and analysis of steam generator
tube degradation experienced at the plant. The incidence was discovered following the rupture of a
tube in one steam generator in Unit 2 on March 14, 1993, APS declared an "alert" at Unit 2 due to the
rupture and took action to remove the unit from service. An alert is the next to the lowest of the four
NRC emergency classifications at a nuclear power plant. The alert was terminated on March 15, 1993.
Unit 2 began a regular refueling outage on March 19, 1993, which originally had been schedule to
begin March 20, 1993. The outage was extended to early September 1993 and expanded to encompass
testing and inspection of tubes in the two steam generators in the unit. In reports to the NRC, APS
indicated it determined the cause of the steam generator tube rupture to be due to intergranular
attack/intergranular stress corrosion cracking ("IGA/IGSCC") and that several environmental and
chemical factors contributed to the IGA/IGSCC. APS developed corrective actions designed to
mitigate the effects of the factors that contribute to IGA/IGSCC. Unit 2 was returnedito service in
early September 1993 at; a level of85% power.

On January 8, L994, APS removed Unit 2 from service to inspect and chemically clean the two
steam generators in a mid-cycle outage. APS has completed the inspection and the cleaning and the
available results of the inspection have revealed additional tube degradation of the type (axial
cracking in upper bundle) previously found in the unit's steam generators. The inspection also
revealed a more common type of tube degradation (circumferential cracking at tubesheet) that has
occurred in similarly designed steam generators at other nuclear plants. Unit 2 was returned to
service on March 22,1994 and has achieved 85% power as ofMarch 29, 1994.

In September 1993, APS removed Unit 1 from service for a regularly scheduled refueling outage,
during which an expanded inspection of the unit's two steam generators was scheduled. APS has
informed the NRC the inspection did,not reveal the accelerated tube degradation of the type
experienced in Unit 2, but that the inspection has revealed the more common type ofdegradation and
cracking (circumferential cracking at tubesheet). APS identified probable causes of the degradation
as well as preventive and corrective measures that can be taken. APS has operated Unit 1 at 85%
power until late February 1994, when it increased power to 86%.

Unit 3'was removed from service from late November 1993 to December 26, 1993 for a mid-cycle
outage during which APS inspected the unit's two steam generators. APS has informed the NRC that
the inspection did not reveal the type of steam generator degradation experienced in Unit 2's steam
generators; however, the. inspection did reveal the more common type of steam generator tube
degradation (circumferential cracking at tubesheet). Due to the foregoing, APS has operated Unit 3 at
85% power from September 1993 (other than during the mid-cycle inspection outage) until late
February, when it increased power to 86%. Unit 3 entered a regularly scheduled refueling outage on
March19, 1994, which will include additional inspection and chemical cleaning of the steam
generators.

As described above, APS has performed„and is continuing, certain actions related to the steam
generators, including chemical cleaning, operating the units at reduced temperatures and, for some
period, operating the units at 85'-86% power. APS has proposed that, as a result of these corrective
actions, all three units should be "returned to 100% power by mid-1995 and one or more units might be
returned to 100% power at'some point during 1994. As a result of the extended Unit 2 outage during
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1993, reduced power operations of each Unit beginning in September 1993 and the mid-cycle
inspection of Unit 2 beginning in November 1993, the Company estimates it incurred additional fuel
and'purchased power costs aggregating approximately $ 10 million, in 1993. During 1994, the

Company estimates that it will incur additional fuel and purchased power costs averaging
approximately $ 1 millionfor each month that the units are operated at 85-86% power.

Four Corners Project
t

The Company has an undivided 7% interest in Units 4 and 5 at Four Corners located in
northwestern New.Mexico. Each of the coalburning generating units has a 739 MW capability. For
emergencies each unit is rated at 784 MW. Both units are located adjacent to a surface-mined supply of
coal and are jointlyowned by the Company, APS (which is the operating agent for Four Corners), TEP,
PNM, Southern California Edison Company and Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and
Power District.

Pursuant to an agreement among the participants in Four Corners Units 4 and 5, each

participant is required to fund its proportionate share of operation and maintenance, capital and fuel
costs of Four Corners Units 4 and 5. The Company's total monthly share of, these costs "is

approximately $ 1.1 million. The agreement provides that ifa participant fails to meet its payment
obligations, each non-defaulting participant shall pay its proportionate share of the payments owed by
the defaulting participant. The Company has been paying operating and maintenance, capital and

fuel costs related to Four Corners incurred after the date of the Company's'bankruptcy petition, but
has not paid any amounts incurred prepetition. In December 1992, the Company filed a motion in the

Bankruptcy Court to assume all of the contracts related to Four Corners. The Motion has not yet'been
acted on by the Bankruptcy Court. Ifthe motion is approved by the Bankruptcy Cour t, the Company
would be obligated to pay the prepetition claims related to such contracts, which approximate

$ 1.2 million.

The Four Corners Plant is located on land held under easements from the federal government
and also under a lease from the Navajo Nation. Certain of the transmission lines and almost all of the
contracted coal sources for the Four Corners Plant are also located on Navajo land.

The participants in Four Corners are among the defendants in a suit filed by the State of
New Mexico in March 1975 in state district court in New i>lexico against the United States ofAmerica,
the City of Farmington, New Mexico, the Secretary of the Interior as Trustee for the Navajo Nation
and other Indian tribes and certain other defendants (State of New Mexico ex rel. New Mexico State
En ineer v. United States of America et al., San Juan District Court, Cause No. 75-184). The suit
seeks adjudication of the water rights of the San Juan River Stream System in New Mexico, which,
among other things, supplies the water used at Four Corners. No trial date has been set in this matter
and the case has been inactive for 'some time. An agreement reached with the Navajo Nation in 1985,

however, provides that ifFour Corners loses a portion of its rights in the adjudication, the iVavajo

iVation willprovide, at a cost to be determined at that time, sufficient water from its allocation to offset
the loss.

Newman Power Station

The Newman Power Station, located in El Paso, Texas, consists of three steam-electric units with
an aggregate capability of 266 MW and one combined-cycle unit with a capability of 212 iVIW. The

units primarily operate on intrastate natural gas, but also are capable of operating on interstate

natural gas and fuel'oil. See "Energy Sources-iVatural Gas."
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Rio Grande Power Station

The Rio Grande Power Station, located in Sunland Park, New Mexico, adjacent to El Paso, Texas,
consists of three steam-electric generating units which have an aggregate capability of 246 MW when
operating entirely on natural gas. The units operate primarily on interstate natural gas, but are also
capable ofoperating on fuel oil. See "Energy Sources-Natural Gas."

Copper Power Station

The Copper Power Station, located in E1Paso, Texas, consists of a 69 MW combustion turbine
capable of operating on fuel oil or natural gas and is used for peaking purposes. The combustion
turbine and other generation equipment at the station were sold and leased-back by the Company in
1980 pursuant to a twenty-year lease with an option to renew of up to-seven years. Such lease is
subject to review as an executory contract and may be assumed or rejected by the Company in the
course of its bankruptcy proceedings. In December1992, the Company filed a motion with the
Bankruptcy Court to assume all of the agreements related to the sale and leaseback. The motion has
not been ruled upon as of the current date. See "Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the
Company." The station" operates primarily on intrastate natural gas, but also is capable of operating
on fuel oil. See "Energy Sources-Natural Gas."

Transmission Lines

The Company owns the followingfacilities:

1. A 310-mile, 345 KV transmission line from TEP's Springerville Generating Plant near
Springerville, Arizona, to the Luna Substation near Deming, New Mexico, to the Diablo Substation
near Sunland Park, New Mexico. This line is known as the Arizona Interconnection Project (AIP) and
provides an interconnection with TEP for delivery of the Company's generation entitlements from
Palo Verde and Four Corners. The AIP also enables the Company to import low cost energy from the
Arizona/New Mexico power grid, enhances the Company's transmission system reliability, better
equips the Company to meet future strategic generating resource mix requirements and further
enables the Company to benefit from economy energy purchases.

2. A 202-mile, 345 KV transmission line from the Arroyo Substation, located near Las Cruces,
New Mexico, to PNM's West Mesa Substation located near Albuquerque, New Mexico. This line
provides the Company's primary interconnection with PNM over which the Company's Four Corners
entitlement is delivered. This entitlement is delivered from Four Corners to West Mesa over PNM's
345 KV and 230 KV transmission system in northern New Mexico. Additionally, through.;the
Company's interconnection with PNiVI, the Company has a major interconnection with the other five
participants in Four Corners, plus access to power the Company obtains from the economy markets
west and north ofFour Corners.

I

3. Undivided interests in a 196-mile, 345 KV transmission line from the Newman Power
Station across southwestern New Mexico, to TEP's Greenlee Substation in Arizona. Specifically, the
Company owns an undivided 40% interest in the 60-mile, 345 KV line between TEP's Greenlee
Substation and the Hidalgo Substation near Lordsburg, New Mexico; an undivided 57.2% interest in
the 50-mile, 345 KV line between'the Hidalgo Substation and the Luna Substation near Deming,
New Mexico; and a 100% interest in the 86-mile, 345 KV line between the Luna Substation and the
Newman Power Station. This line provides an interconnection withTEP for delivery of the Company's
entitlements from Four Corners and Palo Verde, as well as providing added stability, flexibilityand
reliability to the Company's system.

4. An undivided 66.67% interest in a 125-mile, 345 KV transmission line between the AiVIRAD
Substation near Oro Grande, New Mexico, and SPS's Eddy County Substation near Artesia,
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NewMexico. This line terminates at a high-voltage direct current (HVDC) converter facility
connected with SPS, providing the Company with access to the Southwestern Power Pool power
market.

F

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to regulation with respect to air, soil and water quality, solid waste
disposal and other environmental matters by federal, state and local authorities. These authorities

t'a ility operations and exercise continuing jurisdiction over facility modifications.
r aint . TheEnvironmental regulations can change at a rapid pace and cannot be predicted with certain y. e

construction of new facilities is subject to standards imposed by environmental regulation and
substantial expenditures may be required to comply with such regulations. Recognition in rates of the
capital 'expenditures and operating costs incurred in response to environmental considerations willbe

subject to normal regulatory review and standards. The Company analyzes the costs of its obligations
arising froin environmental matters on an on-going basis and believes ithas made adequate provision
in its financial statements to meet such obligations.

Clean AirAct,-- In November 1990, the Clean AirAct Amendments of 1990 (the "Clean AirAc ")

became law. The Clean Air Act establishes new regulatory and permittin*g programs that will be

administered by EPA or delegated to state agencies. Many provisions of the Clean AirAct willaffect
operations by electric utilities, including the Company. In particular, the followingareas addressed in
the Clean AirAct may have a significant impact on the Company: Title I dealing with'nonattainment
of national air ambient quality standards, Title IV dealing with acid rain, and Title V covering
operating permits. In addition, provisions addressing mobile sources of pollutants and hazardous air
pollutants may have a lesser impact on the Company's operations.

V h

The Company has completed an initial evaluation of the impact of the Clean Air Act on the
Company's operations and has developed a five-year plan beginning in 1993 to implement Clean Air
Act requirements on existing facilities. As part of the plan, the Company. willmake modifications to
existing facilities at the Newman Power Station and the Rio Grande Power Station, including
modifications to the steam generators and combustion. turbines and the installation of continuous
emissions monitoring equipment. The projected costs of 'these capital improvements are
approximately $ 5 millionover the five-year period of the plan.

Rio Grande Power Station. The Company has notified NMED of a spill of approximately
510 barrels of fuel oil which occurred at'the Rio Grande Power Station in August 1986. The initial site
assessment has been completed, a remediation plan has been submitted to iViVIED,and remediation is
progressing under the plan. Potential clean-up costs are currently estimated to be less than $ 500,000
to be incurred"over the next five to ten years. The New Mexico Water Quality Act provides for a

potential penalty of $ 1,000 for each day of violation, which for a five-year period could result in a

penalty of approximately $2 million. The Company has been in close communication with the NiMED
and does not believe that a penalty of such magnitude willbe assessed. The NEED has filed a proof of
claim in the Bankruptcy Case reflecting an alleged obligation in an unspecified sum based on alleged
ground water or soil contamination at the Rio Grande Power Station.

I

COL-TEX Refinery Site. In November 1991, the Company was notified by the TNRCC that the
Company had been identified as a potentially responsible party ("PRP") at the Col-Tex Refinery Texas
Superfund Site in Colorado City, iVlitchell County, Texas (the "Col-Tex Site"). The Col-Tex Site
consists of approximately 25 acres located along the Colorado River immediately west of Colorado

City Texas. The Col-Tex Site was the location of several oil refining companies that owned and/orl
operated at the Col-Tex Site from the 1920s to the late 1960s.

The State ofTexas, on behalf of the TNRCC, filed a-proof of claim in the Company's Bankruptcy
Case for remediation and oversight costs and requested that the claim be accorded administrative
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expense priority designation. The TÃRCC's position is that the Company. is a PRP and is, therefore,
jointly and severally liable for the fullcost ofclean-up and oversight at the Col-Tex Site. The TNRCC
has informed the Company informally that it estimates site assessment costs to be approximately
$ 3 millionand the total clean-up costs to be approximately $22 million. The Company disputes that it
is liable as a PRP under applicable law. Accordingly, the Company has not agreed to participate in the
assessment and remediation of the Col-Tex Site.

The Company also received notice on January12, 1993 of the State's review of liability in
connection with an expansion of the Col-Tex Site to an area referred to as Col-Tex II. The Company
has been identified as a PRP in connection with this expanded site, but its position with respect to
liabilitythere is consistent with its position with respect to the Col-Tex Site.

The following entities have filed proofs of claim in the Bankruptcy Case related to.potential
claims for contribution in the event any of such entities has liability for remediation and oversight
costs of the Col-Tex Site: ASARCO, Inc., Tesoro Petroleum Company, Fina Oil & Chemical Company
and Missouri Pacific Railroad Company.

4

On November 24, 1993, a Joint Motion for Order Approving the Withdrawal of Proofs of Claim
filed by the State of, Texas was filed in the Bankruptcy'ase by attorneys for the Company and the
State ofTexas. Fina Oil & Chemical Company filed an objection to the motion,and, at this tiine, no
action has been taken by the Bankruptcy Court.

I

General

Energy Sources

The following table lists the percentage contribution ofcoal, gas, uranium, and purchased power
to the total energy mix ofthe Company.

Uranium Gas Coal Purchased Power

1991 .......
1992 . ~.....
1993 .......,

53%
51
43

,
29%
31
29

10%
10
10

8%
8

18

For a discussion of the recovery by the Company of its fuel costs, see "Regulation —Texas Rate
Matters —Recovery of Fuel Expenses," "Regulation —New Mexico Rate Matters —Annual Filing
Requirements," and "Regulation —Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Rate Matters."

Nuclear
Fuel'uc1ear

Fuel Cycle. The fuel cycle for Palo Verde is comprised of the following stages: (i) the
mining and millirigof uranium ore to produce uranium concentrates; (ii) the conversion of uranium
concentrates to uranium hexafluoride; (iii) the enrichment of uranium hexafluoride; (iv) the
fabrication of fuel assemblies; (v) the utilization of fuel assemblies in reactors; and (vi) the storage of
spent fuel and,the disposal thereof. The Palo Verde Participants, including the Company, have.made
arrangements through contract flexibilities to obtain quantities ofuranium concentrate anticipated to
be sufficient to meet operational requirements through 1996. Existing contract options could be
utilized to meet approximately 50% of requirements from 1997 through 1999 and 30% of requirements
for 2000 through 2002. Spot purchases in the uranium market willbe made, as appropriate, in lieu

of'ny

uranium that might be obtained through contract flexibilities and options. The Palo Verde
Participants, including the Company, have contracted for all conversion services required through
1994 and for up to 65% ofconversion services required through 1998, with options to continue through
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the year 2000. The Palo Verde Participant's, including the Company, have an enrichment services
contract with DOE which obligates DOE to furnish the enrichment services required for the operation
of the three Palo Verde units over a term expiring in November 2014, with annual options to
terminate each year of the contract with ten years prior notice. In view of other alternatives, the
Palo Verde Participants have exercised this option, terminating 30 7o ofrequirements for 1996 through
1998 and 100% of requirements during the years 1999 through 2002. Purchasers of enrichment
services from the DOE are assessed for the costs of the decontamination and decommissioning of DOE
enrichment facilities pursuant to provisions of the Energy Policy Act of 1992. Existing contracts will
provide fuel assembly fabrication services for at least ten years from the operation date of each

Palo Verde unit and, through contract options, approximately fifteen additional years are available.

Spent fuel storage facilities at Palo Verde have sufficient capacity with certain modifications to
stor'e all fuel expected to be discharged from normal "operation ofall of the Palo Verde units through at,

least the year 2005. Pursuant to the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, as amended in 1987 (the
"Waste Act"), DOE is'obligated to accept and dispose of all spent nuclear fuel and other high-level
radioactive wastes generated by all domestic power'eactors. The NRC, pursuant to the Waste Act,
also requires operators of nuclear power reactors to enter into spent fuel disposal contracts with DOE.

APS, on behalf of itself and the other Palo Verde Participants, including the Company, has executed a

spent fuel disposal contract with DOE. The'Waste Act also obligates DOE to develop the facilities
necessary for the pe'rmanent disposal ofall spent fuel generated and to be generated by domestic power
reactors and to have the first such facility in operation by 1998 under prescribed procedures. In
November 1989, DOE reported that such permanent disposal facility will not be in operation until
2010, seven years later than previously reported. As a result, under DOE's current criteria for
shipping allocation rights, Palo Verde's spent fuel shipments to the DOE permanent disposal facility
would begin in approximately 2025. In addition, APS has indicated that on-site storage of spent fuel
may be required beyond the life of Palo Verde's generating units. APS also has indicated that
alternative interim spent fuel storage methods will be, available on-site or off-site for use by
Palo Verde to allow its continued operation beyond 2005 and to store spent fuel safely until DOE's

scheduled shipments from Palo Verde begin.

Nuclear Fuel Financing. Pursuant to the ANPP Participation Agreement, the Company has an
undivided interest in nuclear fuel purchased and to be p'urchased in connection with Palo Verde. The
Company has a nuclear fuel purchase contract with an independent trust for the purpose of financing
the Company's purchases of nuclear fuel. Prior to the filingof the Company's bankruptcy petition, the
trust generally financed nuclear fuel and all costs in connection with the acquisition of the Company's
share of nuclear fuel for use at Palo Verde up to $ 125 million pursuant to a borrowing facility that is

supported by a letter ofcredit. The Company had the option ofeither paying for the fuel from the trust
at the time the fuel was loaded into the reactor or paying for the fuel at the time heat was generated by
the fuel. Prior to the petition date of the Bankruptcy Case, the Company elected to pay for the fuel as

the heat was produced'from the fuel. Since the Company filed its bankruptcy petition, the Company
has not sought to finance its fuel costs from the trust, but has instead paid for nuclear fuel with
internally generated funds.

The trust has filed a proof ofclaim in the Bankruptcy Case, alleging an unliquidated prepetition
amount owed by the Company to it of not less than "approximately.$ 70.9 million, plus an additional
unliquidated amount for postpetition interest on the obligation and other fees and costs, plus an
additional unliquidated amount for fuel consumed by the Company after the petition date (which
amount the trust asserts is an administrative expense claim). The trust also has filed a proof ofclaim
in the Bankruptcy Case based on a related note'payable to the trust, alleging an unsecured prepetition
claim ofapproximately $9.9 million. The trust contends that it, has an enforceable property interest in
Palo Verde nuclear fuel, power, energy and revenues, which the Company is disputing in the

Bankruptcy Case. The trust and the Company entered into an interim adequate protection order in
the Bankruptcy Case, which essentially preserves the rights, positions and arguments of each party,
but does not resolve disputes as to the trust's claims and interests in property. For a discussion of the
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Executive Officers of the Company

iName ~Ae
Current Position and
Business Ex erience

Curtis L. Hoskins 56

David H. Wiggs, Jr.........,... 46
II

Chairman of the Board since May 1989; Chief Executive
Officer since March 1989; Director since January
1988; President from January l988'to January 1994.

Director since April1992 President since January
1994; Chief Operating Officer since May 1990;
Executive Vice President from May 1990 to January
1994; Executive Vice President, Utah,.Power 8c Light
Company, Salt Lake City, Utah, for more than five
years prior to April1989.

Eduardo A. Rodriguez ... 38 Senior Vice President, since January 1994; .

Vice President from April 1992 to Janua'ry 1994;
Secretary from January 1989 to January 1994;
General Cou'nsel since 1988.

J. Frank Bates 44 Vice President —Customer Services since June 1989;
Assistant Vice President —Customer Services from

~ November 1987 to June 1989.

John E. Droubay

Russell G. Gibson ...

Gary R. Hedrick

55

41

39

Vice President and Treasurer since September 1990;
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board, Energy Mutual Insurance Company and
Electric Life Insurance Company, Salt Lake City,
Utah, from May 1989 to September 1990; Treasurer,
Utah Power 8c Light Company, Salt Lake'City, Utah,
from May 1981 to January 1989.

Controller and ChiefAccounting Officer since September
1989; for more than 6 years prior thereto, partner or
member, Coopers 5, Lybrand (certified public
accountants).

Vice President — Financial Planning and Rate
Administration since September 1990; Treasurer
from 1988 to September 1990; Assistant Vice
President, Finance from February 1990 to September
1990.

John C. Horne

Robert C. McNiel

45

47

Vice President —Transmission Systems Division since
August 1989; Group Manager —Transmission and
Distribution from November 1987 to August 1989.

Vice President —New Mexico Division since December
1989; Assistant Vice President — New iMexico
Division from July 1989 to December 1989; Manager
—Energy Marketing from 1988 to July 1989.
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resolution of the disputes and the treatment of the trust's claim under the Plan, see "Bankruptcy
Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company —Treatment ofClaims Under the Plan," above.

Natural Gas

In 1993, the Company's interstate natural gas requirements at the Rio Grande Power Station
were met solely with spot natural gas purchases from various suppliers. The Company's interstate gas
is transported under a firm gas transportation agreement, which became effective September 1, 1991
and expires in 2001. Based on the current availability ofabundant, economic and reliable spot natural
gas, the Company anticipates it willcontinue to purchase spot natural gas for the Rio Grande Power
Station for the near term., For the long term, the Company willevaluate the continued availability of
spot natural gas versus other supplies in obtaining a reliable and economical supply for the
Rio Grande Power Station.

The intrastate natural gas requirements for the Newman Power Station and the Copper Power
Station are supplied and transported pursuant to an intrastate natural gas contract with'eridian Oil
Transportation ("MoTrans"), which is effective through December 31, 1995. Prior to the contract
expiring in 1995, the Company will evaluate a continued relationship with MoTrans versus other
suppliers to ensure the continued supply of reliable and economic natural gas for the Newman Power
Station and the Copper Power Station.

The Company's agreements to purchase natural'gas are generally executory contracts subject to
assumption or rejection in the Bankruptcy Case. The Company has filed a statement with the
Bankruptcy Court indicating that it intends to assume the MoTrans Agreement on the Effective Date.

Coal

The Company believes that the Four Corners Plant has sufficient reserves of low sulfur coal (the
sulfur content of which is currently running at 0.8%) committed to the plant to continue operating it
for its useful life. APS purchases all of the coal which fuels the Four Corners Plant from a coal supplier
with a long-term lease of coal reserves owned by the Navajo Nation. In 1993, the prices paid for coal
were relatively stable, although applicable contract clauses permit escalations under certain
conditions. In addition, major price changes from time to time result from contract renegotiation.
APS, as operating agent for Four Corners, entered into an incentive coal price agreement on behalf of
the Four Corners Participants effective November 1991 and continuing through 1994 providing for
price reductions on amounts ofcoal purchased in excess ofa set base amount.
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Name ~Ae
Current Position and
Business Ex erience

James A. Mayhew 39 Vice President — Rate and Energy Utilization since
September 1990; Vice President — Rates &,

Regulatory Affairs from August 1989 to
September 1990; Assistant Vice President —Rates &
Regulatory Affairs from June 1989 to August 1989;
Manager —Rates 8c Regulation for more than one
year prior to June 1989.

Guillermo Silva, Jr. 41 Secretary since January 1994, Assistant Secretary from
June 1989 to January 1994; and other supervisory
positions with the Company for more than one year
prior to June 1989.

The executive officers of the Company are elected no less often than annually and serve at the
discretion of the Board of Directors.
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..," Operating Statistics

1993
December 31

1992 1991

Operating Revenues
In thousands):
etail:
Residential
Commercial and industrial, small
Commercial and industrial, large .... '...
Sales to public authorities
Provision for refund
Other

*

Wholesale:-
Sales for resale
Economy sales

Total operating revenues

Number ofcustomers
(End ofyear):

Residential .

Commercial and industrial, small
Commercial and'industrial, large .

Other
Total

$ 147,966 $ 144,059 $ 130,260
147,418 142,133 127,504
50,516 51,108 47,931
74,611 72 039 65,625

(646) 46

412,359 409,002 374,389

235,151 228,688 223,684
23,338 22,883 22,417

74 68 68
3 395 3 251 3 156

261 958 254 890 249 325

128,157 110,776 75,443
3 078 4 982 12 573

~543 594 ~524 760 ~462 405

Average annual use and revenue per residential customer:
KWH 6 142 6,169 6,063
Revenue ~63I.68 ~636.93 ~588.11

Average revenue per KWH:
Rgesidential .

Commercial and industrial, small
Commercial and industrial, large .

Energy supplied net, KWH
(In thousandsf:

Generated .

Purchased and interchanged
Total

10.384
9.12
5.79

10.320
9.14
5.61

6,625,162 7,330,004
1 416 172 589 288
8 041 334 7 919 292

9.70'.44

5.55

6,128,171
1 273 440
7 401 611

Energy sales, KWH
(In thousands):
Retail:

Residential .

Commercial and industrial, small
Commercial and industrial, large ..
Sales to public authorities

Wholesale:
Sales for resale
Economy sales .

Total sales .

Losses and company use
Total

Native system:
Peak load, KW
Net generating capacity for peak, KW .

Load factor

Total system:
Peak load, KW .

Net generating capacity for peak, KW
Load factor

1,424,935 1,395,387 1,342,830
1,616,434 1,555,047 1,511,550

872,477 911,750 864,025
1 034 231 997 483 956 691
4,948,077 4,859,667 4,675,096

2,484,128 2,361,204 1,717,850
164 559 264 654 637 425

7,596,764 7,485,525 7,030,371
444 570 433 767 371 240

8 041 334 7 919 292 7 401 611

997,000 974,000 929,000
1,497,000 1,497,000 1,497,000

62. 1% 62. 3% 62. 6%

1,335,000 1,302,000 1,142,000
1,497,000 1,497,000 1,497,000

66.4% 66.4% 67.9%
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Item 2. Properties

The principal properties of the Company are described in Item 1, "Business," of this report, and

such descriptions are incorporated herein by reference thereto. Transmission lines are located either
on private rights-of-way, easements or on streets or highways by public consent. See Part II, Item 8,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data-iNote H of Notes to Financial Statements" for
information regarding encumbrances against the principal properties of the Company.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

, Automatic Stay of Litigation Due to Bankruptcy.

Upon the filing of the Company's bankruptcy petition, the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code

operate as a stay applicable to all en'tities of, among other things, the commencement or continuation
of judicial, administrative, or other actions or proceedings against the Company that were or could
have been commenced before the bankruptcy petition was filed. This stay is subject, to certain
exceptions-criminal actions'and actions by governmental units to enforce police or regulatory powers,
for example, are not stayed. The Bankruptcy Court also has discretion to terminate, annul, modify or
condition the stay.

P & C Lacelaw Trust Litigation

In September 1990, P & C Lacelaw Trust ("Lacelaw") filed suit in the 346th District Court of
El Paso County, Texas, Cause iNo. 90-10139, against the Company, Franklin, and DDG, Inc. ("DDG"),
the company that purchased all of the capital stock of Franklin from the Company in January 1990.
Lacelaw alleges that Franklin acted in bad faith and participated in self-dealing in connection with
Franklin's management, as general partner, ofa limited partnership between Franklin and Lacelaw,
the purpose ofwhich was to acquire, own and operate an office building in downtown El Paso. Lacelaw
further alleges that the Company is responsible for the actions of Franklin because Franklin allegedly
was the alter ego of the Company and that the Company breached fiduciary duties to Lacelaw in
connection with the mismanagem'ent and self-dealing by Franklin and through the sale of Franklin to
DDG. Lacelaw seeks (i)a declaratory judgment that the Company is a general partner in the
partnership; (ii) a judgment declaring Lacelaw's rights as a limited partner; (iii)an accounting of all
,financial transactions involving the partnership; and (iv) a dissolution of the partnership. Lacelaw
alleges actual damages of $3.2 million and punitive damages of at least $ 10 million. The Company
vigorously denies any liabilitywith respect to this lawsuit and believes that the claims are without
merit. Because of the automatic stay imposed as "a result of the Company's bankruptcy filing,
investigation and evaluation of the suit by counsel for the Company is in its preliminary stages and
only a minimal amount of discovery has been'conducted; therefore, the outcome of the suit cannot be
determined at this time. Lacelaw has filed a proof ofclaim in the Bankruptcy Case asserting a general
unsecured claim in excess'of $3 millionbased on the litigation, but has not attempted to liftthe stay.

Plains Electric Generation and Transmission Cooperative Litigation

On December 12, 1991, Plains Electric Generation and Transmission Cooperative, Inc. ("Plains" )
filed suit in the United States District Court for the District of New Mexico, Cause No. CIV91-1199,
against the Company alleging breach of a letter of understanding related to a potential option to
purchase up to 50 M% of transfer capability in the AIP ifcertain enhancements could be made to the
AIP to allow additional transfer capability. Plains seeks specific performance or, alternatively,
compensatory and punitive damages in an unspecified amount for breach ofcontract, breach of implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing, breach of the New Mexico Unfair Practices Act, and tortious
conduct for not performing the terms of the letter'of understanding. The Company filed an answer and
counterclaim to the action on January 6, 1992, denying all allegations and asserting that any dispute
should be subject to arbitration. The Company denies any liability with respect to the lawsuit and
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intends to defend the action vigorously. Due to the automatic stay imposed as a result of the
bankruptcy filing, no discovery has been conducted in this case; therefore, the outcome of the suit and
potential damages, ifany, cannot be determined at this time. Plains has filed a proof of claim in the
Bankruptcy Case for an unliquidated amount. The letter of understanding may or may not be an
executory agreement that is subject to assumption or rejection under the Bankruptcy Code.

Tax Matters

Federal Tax Matters. The IRS filed a second revised proof of claim on February 22, 1993 in the
amount of approximately $ 53.7 million, consisting of approximately $ 12.2 million of additional taxes
to be owed for the tax years 1983 through 1989, approximately $24.7 million of interest thereon
through the filingdate of the bankruptcy petition, and approximately $ 16.8 million in penalties. The
proof of claim is based on two examinations conducted by the IRS that are pending at the
administrative appeals level within the,.IRS. On March 28, 1994, the Company filed a motion and
form of agreed order with the Bankruptcy Court to seek approval of a settlement of the claims of the
IRS in the Bankruptcy Case in the amount of approximately $ 6.5 million, including interest. Under
the terms of the proposed settlement, the Company has requested approval from the Bankruptcy Court
to pay the IRS currently rather than at the effective date of a plan of reorganization and the IRS has
agreed to reduce the claim by 5%, to approximately $ 6.2 million. The Company believes, but can give
no assurance, that the Bankruptcy Court willapprove the terms of the settlement. The Company has
made adequate provisions for the claim in its financial statements.

Arizona Transaction Priuilege ("Sales" ) Tax. The ADR conducted an audit of the sales taxes paid
on lease payments under the Palo Verde Leases during the audit period of August 1, 1988 through
July 31, 1990. On March 10, 1992, the Company received copies of Notices of Proposed Assessment
(the "Sales Tax Notices" ) issued by the ADR to each of the taxpayer owner trusts in care of the Owner
Trustee. The original proposed total deficiency assessments, which covered only the audit period, were
approximately $8.8million, plus related interest thereon. On February22, 1993, the ADR filed
Notices of Jeopardy Assessment totaling approximately $7.8 million, including interest through
February 28, 1993, to convert the proposed deficiencies for the audit period into jeopardy assessments,
which are immediately collectible. On February 23, 1993 the ADR filed Notices of Tax Lien in the
Maricopa County Recorder's Office and with the Secretary of State of Arizona against the owner
trusts'nterests in Palo Verde. Under the Arizona tax statutes, the owner trusts can contest both the
jeopardy assessment and the underlying assessment. Although the ADR can take action immediately.
to collect the alleged deficiency from the owner trusts, including collection action and foreclosure on
the owner trusts'nterests in Palo Verde, the ADR has taken no action in that regard. The ADR also
may assert additional tax deficiencies for the period from August 1, 1990 through 1991, when the last
lease payments were received by the owner trusts. The Owner Participants have informed the
Company that the ADR has scheduled a hearing on April11, 1994.

Ifthe Owner Trustee or Owner Participants incur additional tax liabilityor other loss as a result
of the assessments, the Owner Trustee and Owner Participants may have a claim against the
Company for indemnification pursuant to the participation agreements and leases in the sale and
leaseback transactions. The Owner Trustee and Owner Participants have filed proofs of claim
alleging unliquidated amounts owed pursuant to the participation agreements and leases, which may
encompass claims for indemnification. Pursuant to the settlement agreements entered into between
the Company, the Owner Trustee and each Owner Participant in connection with the Plan, the
Company's indemnity obligations under the participation agreements generally would continue in
effect following the Effective Date, including any claim for indemnification as a result of this matter.
For a discussion of the settlement agreements, see "Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the

Company —Treatment of Palo Verde," above. If the Owner Trustee fails to contest the jeopardy
assessment or the underlying assessment, the Company would challenge the amount of any
indemnification claim. The Company cannot predict the outcome of the underlying tax dispute or any
claim for indemnification arising out of this matter.
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Other Legal Proceedings

Information regarding legal proceedings relating to the Company's bankruptcy filing,
Palo Verde, Four Corners, rates and regulation and environmental matters is included under the

subcaptions "Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company," "Regulation," "Facilities"
and "Environmental i>iatters" under "Business" in Item I and is incorporated herein by reference.

'he Company is a party to various other claims, legal actions and complaints, the ultimate
disposition of which, in the opinion of management, will not have a material adverse effect on the

operations or financial position of the Company.

Item 4. Submission ofMatters to a Vote of Security Holders

iNot applicable.
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PART II
'tem

5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company's common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Stock Market. The Company's
NASDAQ symbol for its common. stock changed from "ELPA" to "ELPAQ" to indicate that the
Company is the subject of bankruptcy proceedings. Under the terms of the Company's listing
agreement with the NASD and the bylaws of the NASD, the NASD may, as a result of the Company's
Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing,apply additional or more stringent criteria for continued inclusion of the
Company's common stock in the NASDAQ system or suspend or terminate the stock's inclusion in
NASDAQ. In addition, because the Company does not meet certain net worth requirements set forth
in Schedule D to the bylaws of the NASD,'he NASD may delist the Company's common stock from
NASDAQ. The NASD has not informed the Company ofany current intention to implement any of the
aforementioned measures. For a description of the treatment of common stock interests under the
Plan, see Part I, Item I, "Business —Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company—
Consideration to Shareholders Pursuant to the Plan and Merger Agreement."

The Company has paid no dividends on shares of its common stock since March 1989. The high
and low per share sale prices for the Company's common stock, as reported by NASDAQ, for the
periods during 1993 and 1992 indicated below, were as follows:

Sale Price
~Hi h Low

1993
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 35/s
33/8
33/gs
27/8

$ 2
2
27/ys
2>/2

1992
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 43/4
37/8
31/2
3

$ 2>/4
3
27/8
2'/8

At March 16, 1994, there were approximately 24,447 holders of record of the Company's common
stock.

The Board of Directors voted to suspend payment of dividends and mandatory sinking fund
payments on the Company's outstanding cumulative preferred stock commencing with dividend and
redemption payments due October 1, 1991. Such suspension has continued through the date of this
report. See Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations —Liquidity and Capital Resources —Preferred Stock Dividends and Sinking
Fund Payments." The Company cannot predict when the preferred stock dividends and sinking fund
payments will be resumed, but such payments are precluded by the Bankruptcy Code during the
Bankruptcy Case. For a description of the proposed treatment of the preferred stock interests under
the Plan, see Part I, Item 1 "Business —Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company-
Consideration to Shareholders Pursuant to the Plan and Merger Agreement."

Under the Company's articles of incorporation, as ofJuly 1, 1992, the holders of preferred stock
have the right (subject to satisfaction of certain procedural requirements) to elect two additional
directors to the Board of Directors. This right has accrued because dividends on the outstanding
preferred stock have accumulated and remained unpaid in a cumulative amount at least equal to four
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quarterly dividends. If preferred stock dividends in an amount equal to twelve full quarterly
dividends are unpaid, the holders of the preferred stock willbe entitled to elect the smallest number of
directors necessary to constitute a majority of the full Board of Directors" until all dividends of
preferred stock have been fully paid. Under the Plan, by voting in favor of the Plan, the preferred
shareholders have waived any right to elect a majority of the Board of Directors under the Company's

articles of incorporation.

The Company has not received notice of any preferred shareholder's desire or intent to exercise

the right to elect two additional directors and cannot predict whether or when any such action might
be taken. The PUHCA defines a "holding company" as, among other things and except as therein
provided, (i) any company that directly or indirectly owns, controls or holds with power to vote 10'r
more of the outstanding "voting securities" of a public utilitycompany or another "holding company;"
or (ii) any person or company which the SEC determines, directly or indirectly, to exercise (either
alone or pursuant to an arrangement or understanding with one or more persons) such a controlling
infiuence over the management or policies ofany public utilityas to make it necessary or appropriate
in the public interest or for the protection of investors or consumers that such person or company be

subject to the regulation of the PUHCA. A "voting security" is defined as, among other things, any
security presently entitling the owner or holder thereof to vote in the direction or management of the
affairs of a company. Previously, the shares of the Company's common stock were the only "voting
securities" outstanding. Now that the holders of the Company's preferred stock have the voting rights
described in the preceding paragraph, shares of the preferred stock also may constitute "voting
securities" under the PUHCA. Holders of significant positions in the preferred stock (ifsuch shares
constitute "voting securities" under the PUHCA) and/or in the common stock could, depending on the
circumstances, be deemed to be "holding companies." Any holder so deemed to be a "holding company"
would, subject to certain exceptions, be required to register as such under the PUHCA and, ifsuch
registration were required, such holder, as well as the Company, would become subject to extensive
regulation under the PUHCA.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

As ofand for the years ended December 31:

1993 = 1992 ,. 1991 1990
(In thousands exec pt per share data)

1989

Operating revenues
Operating income ..............
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before
extraordinary item and
cumulative effect ofa change
in accounting principle .......

Extraordinary item
Cumulative effect ofa change in

accounting principle
Net loss per weighted average

share ofcommon stock:
Loss before extraordinary
item and cumulative effect
ofa change in accounting
principle

Extraordinary item
Cumulative effect ofa change

in accounting principle
Dividends declared per

share ofcommon stock
Total assets
Additions to utilityplant,

before allowance for equity
funds used for construction

Obligations subject to
compromise ...,.............

Debt in default
Long-term, financing and

capital lease obligations ......
Preferred stock-

redemption required .........
Common stock equity (deficit) ...

$ 543,594
64,971

$ 524,760
67,036

$ 462,405
50,722

$ 445,309
44,799

(41,855)

(96,044)(s),

(28,180) " 1'266,912) (I) (21,864)
(289,102) (2)

(1.18) (0.79) (7.75) (I)
(8.14) (2)

(0.96)

(2.70)(3)

1,715,406 1,702,778 (4) 1,566,281 (5) 1,901,928

58,215 60,570

1,495,315 1,440,968

63,394

1,286,703

80,139

798,111

67 266(6) 67,266 (6) 67 266 (6) 79,360
~357 463 ~220 503) ~191 434) 371 690

$ 433,470
56,511

1,956

(0.28)

0.38
1,808,802

143,956

755,761

100,710
404 309

(1) Includes approximately $221.1 millionafter-tax loss attributable to letters ofcredit draws and approximately
$25.2 millionafter-tax write-offprimarily for regulatory disallowance in Texas Docket 9945.

(2) Refiects the after-tax effect resulting from the discontinuance of the application ofSFAS No. 71.
(3) Refiects the change in accounting for income taxes due to the implementation ofSFAS No. 109.
(4) Increase from 1991 primarily is due to increase in cash and temporary investment which results from the

nonpayment of interest and Palo Verde lease costs.
(5) Decrease from 1990 primarily is due to the write-offofregulatory assets.
(6) Includes approximately $3.3 millionofdividends in arrears.

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with Item 7, "Management's Discussion and
Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results ofOperations," and Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data," below.
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Item7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

Liquidityand Capital Resources

Overview
1

The Company filed a petition under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code on January 8, 1992 and

has continued operations as debtor-in-possession. For a number of years prior to the petition filing,
the Company was dependent on external financing through the capital markets for liquidityneeds. As
a result of the filingof the bankruptcy case and related cessation or limitation of payments on certain
of the Company's financial arrangements, the Company generated sufficient funds internally to meet
its liquidity needs in 1992 and 1993. At December 31, 1993,, the Company had a balance of
approximately $ 181 million in cash or cash equivalents. I

The Company has paid interest at contractual non-default rates on its First and Second Mortgage
Bonds, on its RCF, which is secured by pledged First and Second Mortgage Bonds, and on three series
of pollution control bonds, which are secured by pledged Second Mortgage Bonds, from July 1, 1992

through the current date pursuant to'applicable orders of the Bankruptcy Court. As discussed below
in "Obligations Subject to Compromise," and in Part I, Item 1, "Business -Bankrup'tcy Proceedings for
the Reorganization of the Company —Treatment of Claims Under the Plan," the Company expects to
continue such payments. As discussed in more detail in Part I, Item 1, "Business —Bankruptcy
Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company —Treatment of Claims'Under the Plan," pursuant to
requirements under the Plan, at'he Confirmation Date, the Company made interest and'periodic
payments at rates and for periods specified in the Plan on additional classes of creditors and interest
holders, together with certain fees and expenses for which payment was provided under the Plan. In
addition, pursuant to the Plan, interest payments willbe made to such creditors quarterly and on the
Effective Date and the Company will make periodic payments to holders of its preferred stock
quarterly and on the Effective Date. Through December 31, 1993, such payments or accruals totaled
approximately $ 40.4 million. The Company estimates the interest and periodic payments will total
approximately $15.4'million per quarter. Taking into account the payments that have been made and
the estimated quarterly payments, as well as expected revenues and projected costs for operations and
capital expenditures, the Company expects its cash balances willdecline; however, the Company does
not anticipate any requirement for external financing through the anticipated Effective Date of the
Plan.

Obligations Subject to Compromise I

In late December 1991, the Company ceased paying principal, interest and fees on portions of its
secured and unsecured debt except as described below. The Company also failed to make lease
payments ofapproximately $ 19.3 millionon Palo Verde Units 2 and 3 due January 2, 1992. Allof the
Company's debt is in default as a result of the events leading to the bankruptcy filing or the filing
itself. The Company expects to remain in default under its existing financing arrangements until a
plan of reorganization becomes effective pursuant to the bankruptcy case. These defaults generally
would entitle the Company's creditors to accelerate the outstanding principal amounts of debt and
pursue other remedies available under the applicable agreements. As a result of the automatic stay
imposed by the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, however, such creditors generally are prevented
from taking any action to collect such amounts or pursue any remedies against the Company other
than through the bankruptcy case. The terms and provisions of the Company's financing
arrangements, including the maturity dates, are subject to modification pursuant to a plan of
reorganization confirmed in the bankruptcy case.

First Mortgage Bonds. The Company has approximately $299.3 millionof First Mortgage Bonds
outstanding. The Company has not made either final maturity principal payment of approximately
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$ 10.4 million that was due in 1992 or the approximate $7 million in cash sinking fund payments due
in each of 1992 and 1993 under the Indenture of the First Mortgage Bonds. The Company does not
anticipate making the approximate $7 million cash sinking fund payment due in 1994. Additionally,
the Company has not made approximately $ 18.2 million in prepetition and postpetition interest
payments accrued through June 30, 1992. Pursuant to applicable Bankruptcy Court orders, the
Company is making and expects to make monthly interest payments on its First Mortgage Bonds in
1994. Approximately $ 30 million of interest accrues annually at the contractual rates on the First
Mortgage Bonds outstanding.

I

Second Mortgage Bonds: The Company has $ 165 millionof Second Mortgage Bonds outstanding.
The Company does not anticipate making the approximate. $ 8.8 million cash sinking fund payment
due in 1994. The Company has not made approximately $ 11.7 million in prepetition and postpetition
interest payments accrued through June 30, 1992. Pursuant to applicable Bankruptcy Court orders,
the Company is making and expects to make monthly interest payments on its Second Mortgage
Bonds in 1994. Approximately $20.3 million of interest accrues annually, based on contract rates, on
the Second Mortgage Bonds outstanding.

Pollution Control Bonds. The Company has approximately $ 195.6 million of tax exempt
Pollution Control Bonds outstanding consisting of four issues, of which three issues aggregating
approximately $ 159.8 million are secured by a second mortgage. Each of the tax exempt issues is
credit enhanced by a letter of credit. Prior to the petition date, interest and other payments on the
Pollution Control Bonds were made through draws,.on the letters of credit and the Company
reimbursed the letter of credit bank for such draws.= Subsequent to the petition filing, interest on all
the bonds has continued to be paid by draws on the letters ofcredit. The Company has paid a portion of
the resulting reimbursement obligations to the issuing banks on three Pollution Control Bond issues
through interest payments authorized by applicable orders of the Bankruptcy Court. The Company
has not reimbursed the letter 'of credit banks approximately $7.3 million in prepetition and
postpetition interest payments accrued and paid through draws on the letters of credit through June
30, 1992 on the three series of Pollution Control Bonds. Additionally, the Company has not
reimbursed the letter of credit bank for approximately $ 4.0 million in prepetition and postpetition
interest through December 31, 1993 paid on the fourth pollution control issue through draws on the
letter ofcredit.

In Nay 1992, one series of the secured Pollution Control Bonds was accelerated and the letter of
credit supporting such series was drawn upon for the principal and accrued interest. The Company
has not reimbursed„the letter of credit bank for the drawing, which aggregated approximately
$ 37.9 million. The Company has been informed that the letter of credit issuer for the accelerated
bonds asserts that the accelerated bonds, which remain outstanding, are held as collateral to secure
the reimbursement obligations of the Company to the letter of credit issuer. No court determination
has been made as to the validity or enforceability of the collateral interest asserted by such letter of
credit issuer. The Company currently is taking steps to amend the governing documents related to
this series of Pollution Control Bonds to allow the Bonds to be remarketed during the Company's
Bankruptcy Case, at the option of the letter of credit issuer. The amendments also would provide for
more flexibilityin interest rate features, such as a weekly rate, that would be, effective currently, and
a letter of credit issuing bank repurchase option that would be effective at the Effective Date of the
Plan. The Company expects, but can give no assurance, that the actions necessary to make such
amendments willbe completed during the second quarter of 1994.

With respect to another series of Pollution Control Bonds, the letter ofcredit issuer has informed
the Company that such letter ofcredit issuer has purchased all of the outstanding bonds of that series.
The Company currently is taking steps to amend the governing documents related to this series of
Pollution Control Bonds to allow the Bonds to be remarketed during the Company's Bankruptcy Case,

at the option of the letter of credit issuer. The amendments also would provide for more flexibilityin
interest rate features, such as a weekly rate, that would be effective currently, and a letter of credit
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issuing bank repurchase option that would be effective at the Effective Date of the Plan. The

Company expects, but can give no assurance, that the actions necessary to make such amendments
willbe completed during the second quarter of 1994.

A third series of Pollution Control Bonds was remarketed during June 1993 and currently
remains outstanding.. The, final series of Pollution Control Bonds was remarketed in November 1993

and remains outstanding. Both series of Pollution Control Bonds remarketed during 1993 may
continue to be remarketed pursuant to the terms of the bonds. The Company currently is taking steps

to amend the governing documents of the series ofPollution Control Bonds that have been remarketed
annually in June to provide for shorter interest periods currently, which would eliminate the need

for'nnual

remarketings, and to institute a repurchase option for the letter of credit bank that would be

effective at the Effective Date of the Plan. Such amendments may be made by the redemption of the

existing series of Pollution Control Bonds followed by the issuance of a new series of Pollution Control
Bonds containing the new provisions, but otherwise equivalent to the existing series. Such actions
would require the approvals of the FERC and the New Mexico Commission, and the Company has filed
applications seeking such approvals, The Company is attempting to make such changes as ofJuly 1,

1994 in conjunction with the expiration of the current interest period for the existing bonds., The
Company expects to make similar changes to the final series of Pollution Control Bonds, which have

been remarketed annually in November, at the time of the expiration of the current interest period.
The Company may be required to obtain the approval of the FERC and the New-Mexico Commission
for those changes.

Because of the pendency of the Company's bankruptcy petition as well as other defaults,
including the failure of the Company to reimburse the letter of credit issuing banks as described
above, the three series of bonds that have not been accelerated are subject to.acceleration at any time.
In the event that these bonds are accelerated and redeemed, the tax-advantaged interest rate of the
bonds may no longer be available to the Company.

RCF. The Company currently has a total of$ 150 millionofdebt outstanding under its RCF. The
RCF, which involves a syndicate of money center banks, provided for substantially all of the
Company's short-term borrowing prior to the filingof the bankruptcy petition. The RCF became due
and payable on January 9, 1992. The RCF is secured by $ 50 millionof First Mortgage Bonds and $ 100
millionof Second Mortgage Bonds. Interest on the RCF is calculated at, the contract non-default rate,
which is the administrating bank's currently quoted prime rate plus 1%. The Company has not paid
approximately $7.9 millionof interest accrued through June 30, 1992.

Palo Verde Leases. The Company has not made lease payments aggregating approximately
$ 201 million on Palo Verde Units 2 and 3 for the period from January 2, 1992 through January 2,
1994. There would be no obligation to make such payments under the Plan. Although the Company
has not been paying postpetition obligations arising under the Palo Verde Leases, except as described
below, the Company has expensed contract rents for financial reporting purposes of approximately
$ 20.8 millionfor each quarter.

I

Fuel Financings. The Company has (i) a nuclear fuel financing of approximately $ 60.6 million
secured by nuclear fuel and a note payable ofapproximately $9.8 million;and (ii) a fuel oil financing of
approximately $4.9 millionsecured by fuel oil. The Company has not made payments ofany principal
on, the nuclear fuel financing and note payable since the filing of the bankruptcy. petition. The
Company also has not made any interest payments on such amounts through September 10, 1993. As
a result of the confirmation of the Plan, the Company paid approximately $ 1.4 million for interest on
the nuclear fuel financing and note payable from September 10, 1993 through December 31, 1993 at
the interest rate specified in the Plan, which currently is lower than the contract rate. The total
amounts of principal and interest payments that came due but were not paid on the nuclear fuel
financing and the note payable totaled $ 47.9 million at December 31, 1993. Payments aggregating
approximately $700,000 were made during the second half of 1993 related to the fuel oil financing in
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connection with the sale ofa portion of the fuel oil inventory. The Company also paid approximately
$ 150,000 in interest through December 31, 1993 at the interest rate specified in the Plan for unsecured
debt in connection with the fuel oil financing.

Unsecured Debt. The Company's unsecured debt consists primarily of: (i) notes payable to banks
of approximately $288.4 million associated with draws on letters of credit related to the Company's
sale and leaseback'ransactions for Palo Verde Units 2 and 3; (ii) a Pollution Control Bond issue of
approximately $ 35.8 million (on which the Company did not make approximate $ 1.2 million interest
payments'due each of i%lay 1, 1992 and November 2, 1992 and approximate $700,000'nterest
payments due on both May 3, 1993 and November 1, 1993, as discussed above); (iii)a term loan note of
$25 million; (iv)a capitalized obligation ofapproximately $79.2 millionassociated with the Palo Verde
Unit 2 lease; and (v)'a capitalized, obligation of approximately $9.1 million associated with another
lease. Prior to the confirmation of the Plan, the Company did not make any payments on the
unsecured debt, except for lease payments on the $9.1 million capitalized obligation. Subsequent to
the confirmation of the Plan, the Company has made interest payments on the allowed claims of
certain classes of the unsecured creditors, as provided for in the Plan and as discussed in Part I, Item 1,
"Business —Bankruptcy Proceedings for the Reorganization of the Company —Treatment of Claims
Under the Plan."

Preferred Stock Dividends and Sinking Fund Payments

Under their existing terms, dividends of approximately $ 1.86 million on the Company's
outstanding cumulative preferred stock are due each January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1 and
mandatory sinking fund redemption payments are due on certain series of the Company's preferred
stock on certairt of these quarterly dates. On September 19, 1991, the Board of Directors voted to
suspend payment of dividends and sinking fund payments on the Company's preferred stock,
commencing with dividend and sinking fund payments due October 1,- 1991. Accordingly, the
Company has defaulted on its obligation to pay all dividends on all such quarterly dates, beginning
October 1, '1991, resulting in total unpaid preferred stock dividends ofapproximately $ 18.6 millionat
December 31, 1993. The Company also has missed sinking fund payments in the following amounts:
(i) $750,000 (7,500 shares at $ 100 per share) due each of October1, 1991, October1, 1992 and
October 1, 1993 on the Company's $8.95 Dividend Preferred Stock; (ii) $ 600,000 (6,000 shares at $ 100
per share) due each of October1, 1991, October 1, 1992 and October 1, 1993 on the Company's
$8.44 Dividend Preferred Stock; (iii)$400,000 (4,000 shares at $ 100 per share) due each ofJanuary 1,
1992, January 1, 1993 and January 1,"1994 on the Company's $ 10.75 Dividend Preferred Stock; (iv)
$ 10 million (100,000 shares at $ 100 per share) due July 1, 1992 and July 1, 1993 on the Company's
$ 11.375 Dividend Preferred Stock and (v) $ 5 million(50,000 shares at $ 100 per share) due July 1, 1992
and July 1, 1993 on the Company's $ 10.125 Dividend Preferred Stock. At December 31, 1993 the total
arrearage of mandatory sinking fund payments is $34.9million. The Company's aggregate
mandatory sinking fund redemption payments due during 1994, including the $ 400,000 due on
January 1, 1994, is approximately $ 11.75 million,none ofwhich has been or is anticipated to be paid.

The Company cannot predict when the preferred stock dividends and sinking fund payments will
be resumed, but such payments are precluded by the Bankruptcy Code during the Company's
Chapter ll bankruptcy case. Resumption of these payments also =-will depend on the plan of
reorganization ultimately adopted in the Company's bankruptcy case, which could substantially alter.
or eliminate the rights of the preferred and common stockholders. For a description of the treatment
proposed under the Plan, including periodic payments, see Part I, Item 1, "Business-Bankruptcy
Proceedings for Reorganization of the Company —Consideration to Shareholders Pursuant to the Plan
and Merger," and Part II, Item 5, Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters."
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Operational Challenges

The Company's major franchises are with, the Cities of El Paso, Texas, and Las Cruces,

New Mexico. The franchises grant the,Company the, right to utilize public rights-of-way and to place
, its facilities and structures necessary to serve its retail customers within such cities. The franchise

with the City ofEl Paso expires in March 2001, and does not contain renewal provisions. The Company
is facing significant near term challenges in connection with certain of its New Mexico customers,

including the City of Las Cruces and the military installations of White Sands Missile Range and

Holloman AirForce Base.

City ofLas Cruces

The Company's twenty-five year franchise with the City of Las Cruces expired in March 1993.

The Company and the City of Las Cruces entered into a one-year franchise while they continued
negotiations related to a new long-term franchise. These negotiations have not resulted in a new
franchise and the one-year franchise expired March 18, 1994. The Company has continued to provide
electric service to customers in the City of Las Cruces, consistent with its view that the right, and

obligation to serve customers within the City of Las Cruces is derived from the New Mexico Public
UtilityAct, as well as other New Mexico law, and not from the franchise. The City of Las Cruces has

acknowledged this obligation in a press release issued March 12, 1994, Sales to customers in the City
ofLas Cruces represented approximately 7% of the Company's operating revenue in 1993.

The City of Las Cruces is continuing its exploration and consideration ofalternatives for electric
service that may be available to it, including construction of its own distribution system and/or
purchase or condemnation of all or a portion of the Company's distribution system and other property
in the Las Cruces metropolitan area. In March 1993, the City of Las Cruces presented a proposal»
which the Company rejected, to purchase the Company's facilities used to serve customers within the
City of Las Cruces. Nevertheless, in January 1994, the City of Las Cruces issued two requests for
proposals ("RFPs"), one with respect to the provision ofa long-term supply of wholesale electric power
and one with respect to operations and maintenance services for a distribution system in the City of
Las Cruces. Proposals in response to the RFPs were due no later than February 2S, 1994. The City of
Las Cruces has not announced any decisions related to the RFPs or its intentions with respect to the
development of a competitive distribution system in view of the Company's refusal to sell its
distribution system. The Company did not respond to the RFPs, consistent with its position that the
franchise agreement does not govern the right or obligation to provide electric service.

The Company and the City of Las Cruces are continuing discussions related to the provision of
electric service to customers within the City ofLas Cruces. The Company also is considering the level
of franchise fees that should be paid ifthe franchise agreement is not replaced. The Company believes
that it will continue to provide electric service to the City of Las Cruces for the immediate future,
either under a franchise agreement or without an agreement in place, but pursuant to its right and
obligation under New Mexico law. Ifthe City of Las Cruces and the Company do not agree to a ne',
franchise agreement and the City of Las Cruces attempts to change the provider ofelectric service, the
Company willchallenge such actions in the New Mexico Commission, the appropriate courts, or both.

MilitaryInstallations
II

The Company is a party to contracts with each of the United States Department of the AirForce
("Air Force" ) and the United States Department of the Army ("Army") regarding the provision of
retail electric service at Holloman Air Force Base and White Sands Missile Range, respectively,
located in New Mexico. The Company's sales pursuant to such contracts represented approximately
2% of revenues in 1993. The Company's right to provide this service was authorized by the New
Mexico Commission in 1956 by the issuance of a CCN to the Company. The contract with the Army
was due to expire on December 31, 1993 but has been extended by unilateral action of the Army for an
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indefinite period. The contract with the Air Force expired o'n February 28, 1994. The Company
continues to provide the electric service under state approved tariffs and CCN authority. In 1993 the
Army notified the Company that it intends to conduct a competitive bidding procedure to determine
the provider of this electric service after expiration of the contract, but has taken no further action. On
June 15, 1993, the AirForce issued an RFP'o prospective electric utilityservice providers to provide

'lectrics'ervice to Hollom'an Air Force Base upon expiration of its service agreement with the
Company. Responses to the RFP were due August 12, 1993. The Company submitted its proposal to
the AirForce on August 12, 1993 and filed a protest to the issuance and terms of the Air Force's RFP.
The protest was upheld, but on technical grounds that have allowed the AirForce to proceed with the
competitive bidding process, although itwas delayed.

The Company believes that the procurement of retail electric service by the United States
Department of 'Defense by such competitive procedures 'is prohibited'y applicable federal
procurement law and that participation by public utilities in such competitive procedures to,attempt
to obtain the right to provide this retail electric service would be contrary to New Mexico utility
regulatory law and a violation of the Company's state-'authorized right,to provide this service. On
April 1,'993, the Company filed a Petition for Declaratory Order with the New Mexico Commission
seeking, among other things, a declaration that the Company currently is the only public utility
authorized under New Mexico utilityregulatory law to offer and provide this particular retail electric
service to Holloman Air Force Base and White Sands Missile Range. This proceeding has been
docketed as NMPUC Case No. 2505. The hearing examiner appointed to the case issued a report
recommending that the New Mexico Commission determine that the case is not ripe for
determination. In September, the Attorney General of New Mexico filed exceptions to the hearing
examiner's'recommended decision. - The Attorney General has taken the position that the case is ripe
for decision and has urged the New Mexico Commission to declare that utilities may not compete or
contract to provide retail service to existing loads of another utility in a bidding process conducted
outside ofa proceeding before the New Mexico Commission'. The iVew Mexico Commission has not yet
issued its decision. Although the Company believes that it is more probable than not that it will
continue to have the right and obligation to provide the retail electric service to the two military
installations, there is no assurance that this willbe the case.

'n January 4, 1994, the Company filed an action against the AirForce and related parties in the
United States District Court for the District of iVew Mexico seeking declaratory and injunctive relief,
iVo. CIV 94-6. The action requests a preliminary injunction against the Air Force's competitive bid
process for electric service at Holloman Air Force Base until the court determines whethe'r the
competitive bid process is contrary to federal law. The action also requests (i) a permanent injunction
ofcompetitive procurement of the retail electric utilityservice for Holloman AirForce Base from any
public utilityregulated under the New Mexico Public UtilityAct, and'(ii) a 'declaratory judgment that
the competitive p'rocurement of the retail electric utility service for Holloman Air Force Base
currently provided by the Company from any public utility regulated under the NewMexico Public
UtilityAct using competitive procedures based on "lowest net cost of service" is prohibited by federal
law because it is inconsistent with New Mexico law governing the provision of the service by public
utilities. A hearing on the Company's request for a preliminary injunction has been scheduled before
the United States District Court for April 18, 1994.

The Company believes that it willcontinue to provide electric service to the City of Las Cruces,
Holloman Air Force Base and White Sands Missile Range for the immediate future. The Company
also intends to pursue all available means, including litigation, to retain such customers for the long
term and believes, but can give no assurance, that it willprevail in its efforts to retain such customers
in the long term. If the Company is unable to do so, however, the Company intends to pursue all
available regulatory and legal avenues to obtain the appropriate recovery of its stranded investme'nt
related to such customers.

4
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Other

~ On February 8, 1993, Southern Union Gas'Company ("Southern Union") file'd a request with the

City of El'Paso that Southern Union's present franchise to provide gas service be'mended to permit
Southern Uriion to provide electric service..Such proposed service would coinpete with service

provided by the Company. The City of E1Paso has not acted on Southern Union's'request. Southern

Union:has not applied to the Texas Commission for' service territory CGN or a CCN to construct

facilities, although su'ch CCNs would be required in addition to the requested amendment to Southern

Union's franchise. Currently, the Company holds the only franchise with the City of El (aso to

provide electric service inside'he City, as well as the only CCN from the Texas Commission

authorizing electric service inside the City. The Company willoppose any request by Southern Union
for a CCN to provide electric service 'inside the City of E1Paso, but the Compan'y cannot, predict
whether a CCN would be granted=to Southern Union ifone is requested from the Texas Commission or

whether the City ofEl Paso willamend Southern Union's franchise.

General Industry
I

"In addition to these specific challe'nges, the Company faces many of the challenges facing the

electric "utilityindustry as a whole, including competitive factors and the costs of nuclear investment
and decommissioning. The level of competition has increased as a result of changes in, federal

regulatory provisions related to transmission practices and independent power p'roduction, including
cogeneration projects. The Energy Policy Act includes provisions authorizing the FERC to order
electric utilities to transmit power at wholesale at the request of third parties, such as independent

power producers and other utilities. Implementation of these provisions may involve changes in the
method of transmission 'pricing and increased compliance reporting to the FERC regarding
transmission system availability, State legislatures such as the New Mexico legislature also have

indicated they are considering retail wheeling policies that could result in increases to competition.
The Company believes" one benefit to the proposed Merger would be an improved ability to meet these

industry challenges.

"'Decommissioning costs continue to be significant to the Company. The costs are based on studies
that are updated periodically (generally every three years). The most recent study, dated December
1993,"estimates the cost to decommission the Company's share ofPalo Verde to be approximately $221

million (stated in 1993 dollars). As of December 31, 1993, the Company has accrued approximately
$30.1 million for decommissioning costs and the balance of funds in decommissioning trusts
established by the Company- totaled approximately $ 15.8 million. The updated studies have
continually reflected increases in costs to decommission as new developments unfold surrounding the
technical and safety aspects ofdecommissioning a nuclear facility. Although the Company is funding
and recording costs based on the latest information available, there can be'no assurances that
decommissioning costs will'notcontinue to increase in the future. Due to delays in the construction of
nuclear waste storage facilities as a result of opposition at the state and local level to the siting of
facilities, the Company may incur additional costs for the construction and operation of temporary or
permanent storage facilities at Palo Verde. See "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—
Note E ofNotes to Financial Statements."

The Energy Policy Act also provided. for an assessment for the decontamination and
decommissioning of DOE's uranium enrichment facilities. The Company has been advised by APS
that, based on preliminary indications, the annual assessment for Palo Verde is expected to be

approximately $ 3 millionfor fifteen years, plus increases for inflation. The Company willpay 15.8% of
the annual Palo Verde assessment. The Company accrued $7.1 million for this assessment in 1992 as

its portion of the entire assessment, and paid $400,000 to APS in 1993.
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Results ofOperations

The Company recorded a net loss applicable to common stock of $ 137.9 millionor$3.88 per share
in 1993. This compares to a net loss of $ 28.2 million ($ .79 per share) and $ 564'.3 million ($ 15.89 per
share) in 1992 and 1991, respectively. The principal factors giving rise to the loss in 1993 are
(i) revenues that are not sufficient to recover fully the Company's costs of service pnd debt service,
(ii) reorganization expenses incurred in connection with the Bankruptcy Case, and (iii)recognition of
the effects ofa change in accounting principle for income taxes. Similarly, the 1992 loss resulted from
insufficient revenues and reorganization expenses, including the write-off of debt issuance

costs.'peratingresults for 1991 are not readily comparable to 1993 and 1992 since prior to December 31,
1991 the Company reported its operating results in accordance with SFAS No. 71. See "Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data —Notes C and D of Notes to Financial Statements." The
Company does not anticipate any significant changes in results ofoperations prior to emergence from
bankruptcy. See Part I, Item 1, "Business —Bankruptcy Proceedings for Reorganization of the
Company —Regulatory Aspects of the Plan."

The primary reasons for increases or decreases in revenues, expenses and other items affecting
results of operations for the year ended December 31, 1993 compared to the year ended December 31,
1992; and for the year ended December 31, 1992 compared to the year ended December 31, 1991-are
discussed below,

Operating Revenues

Approximately 59% of the.Company's total revenues for the year ended December 31, 1993 were
generated from sales ofelectricity to Texas retail customers, principally in the City ofEl Paso, at rates
approved by the Texas Commission. Sales of electricity to New Mexico retail customers, the largest
portion of which are in the City of Las Cruces and certain military installations, represent 16% of the
Company's total revenues for such period. The balance of the Company's revenues are generated
through: (i) negotiated long-term contracts which a'e approved by the FERC (16% of the Company's
revenues for such period); and (ii) sales to CFE and economy energy sales which are based upon
current market prices (collectively, 9% of the Company's revenues for such period). Sales to (i)
residential customers; (ii) small commercial and industrial customers; (iii) large commercial and
industrial customers; and (iv) public authorities accounted for approximately'35%, 35%, 12% and 18%,
respectively, of the Company's operating revenue from retail sales. In 1993, IID, a wholesale
customer, accounted for 10.1% ofoperating revenues. No retail customer accounted for more than 3%
of operating revenues. See "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data —Note M of Notes to
Financial Statements."

Revenues by quarter typically vary due to the difference in climate throughout the year in the
Company's service area, refiecting higher temperatures and rate tariffs in the summer months.
Traditionally, operating revenues during the third quarter (the highest sales quarter) tend,to be 20-
25% greater than operating revenues generated during the first quarter (the lowest sales quarter).
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Operating revenues in 1993 were'3.6% greater than operating revenues'reported in 1992, while
,

.- operating revenues in'1992 were 13.5% greater than in 1991. The changes in operating revenues'were
attributable to the following(In thousands): '993

versus 1992 1992 versus 1991

Base revenues

Fuel revenues 15,457 2,233

$ 16,064 '60,427

Other 12 687 305

~18 834 '2 355

Base Revenues. The base revenue increase in 1993 is principally the result of(i) increases in total
system KWH sales of approximately 2.9% and (ii) increases in demand and capacity charges to CFE
and increases in capacity for IID. Increases in base revenues for 1992 were largely due to. (i) cash rate
increases ofapproximately $ 30 million and $7 millionannually, effective August 1991 and September
1991, respectively; which were granted by the Texas Commission in Docket No. 9945; (ii) increases in
total system KWH sales of approximately 13.0%; and (iii)increases in demand charges to IID for
increa'sed'capacity.

*'hanges

in KWH sales for 1993 compared to 1992 and 1992 compared to 1991 by customer class
are as follows:

1993 versus 1992 1992 versus 1991

Native system: It

residential
Commercial and industrial - small
Commercial and industrial - large
Public authorities

Native system coniposite
Sales for resale
Total system composite

2.1%%uo

3.9
(4.3)
3.7
1.8
5.2
2.9

3.9%
2.9
5.5
4.3
3.9

37.5
13.0

Total system firm energy sales increased from 7,220,871 MWH in 1992 to 7,432,205 MWH for
1993. Native system firm sales i'ncreased 88,410 MWH over the same time period. The number of
customers from December 31, 1992'o December 31, 1993 increased by approximately 2.8%.* The
Company achieved record peak demands in 1993, recording an all-time total system peak load of
1,335 MW on August 11, 1993, which was a 2.5% increase over 1992's record peak of 1,302 MW. The
Company's 1993 native system peak demand of 997 MW, which was also a new record, was a 2.4%
increase from the previous record of974 MWset in 1992.

As indicated in the table above, and except for the decline in large commercial and industrial
customers in 1993 as compared to 1992, the growth in native system sales is consistent with increases
in the number of customers served. The reduction of KWH sales in 1993 as compared to 1992 to large
commercial and industrial customers results from (i) the temporary cessation and temporary
reduction in operations by two customers and (ii)a reduction in sales to a third customer.

Fuel Revenues. Changes in fuel revenues are generally a. function of changes in fuel and
purchased and interchanged power expenses. However, because the Company has recorded a
provision for the sharing of profit from sales to certain customers and economy energy sales, the
increase in fuel costs willnot be offset entirely by increases in fuel revenues.
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Other. The 1993 reduction, in other revenues is principally due to the discontinuance of
surcharges (related to the, recovery of regulatory expenses) recorded in 1992 of approximately,
$ 11.7 million. In addition, economy energy sales decreased approximately $ 1.9 millions ~ *

Fuel and Purchased and Interchanged Power Expenses

The increase in fuel and purchased and interchanged power expense in 1993 compared to 1992

was due primarily to increased purchased power cost as a result of decreased power production at
Palo Verde and at local gas facilities, and increased unit gas costs. t

The increase in fuel and purchased and interchanged power expense in 1992 compared to 1991

was due primarily to increased production at local gas facilities and increased unit gas costs, offset by
decreased unit nuclear fuel costs.

Operation and.Maintenance Expense,

Operation and maintenance expense increased in 1993 as a result of (i) increased pension and
benefit costs, including an additional expense of $ 6.3 million in connection with the adoption of SFAS
No. 106 on January 1, 1993 and the recording of approximately $4 million for retirement agreements
with five former officers who retired in early .1994; and (ii) the settlement of certain transmission
disputes of approximately $2.4 million in 1993. These increases were offset in part by (i) decreased
outside services resulting from decreased legal costs of approximately $ 5 million; (ii)decreased Palo
Verde costs of approximately $ 3.6 million; and (iii) a decrease in bad debt expense of approximately
$2 million.

Operation and,maintenance expense increased in 1992 due to increased non-Palo Verde costs

resulting from (i) an additional provision of approximately $ 3.1 million for uncollectible accounts
associated with three large customers; (ii) the accrual ofapproximately $ 1.8 million in connection with
estimated environmental remediation costs; and (iii) increased local plant maintenance costs. The
above increase was partially offset by decreased Palo Verde costs resulting, from recording costs

associated with an early retirement plan in 1991 with,no comparable. amount in,1992.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 4

Depreciation expense decreased in 1993 compared to 1992 due primarily to a $7.1 million DOE
decommissioning charge reported in 1992 in connection with the Energy Policy Act, with no

comparable adjustment in 1993. The decrease was partially offset by an increase, in, the Company's
share ofdecommissioning expense related to Palo Verde, based on an updated study. For a discussion
of decommissioning costs, see "Operational Challenges —General Industry" above and "Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data-iNote E ofNotes to Financial Statements." ~

'" 'l
Depreciation expense increased in 1992 compared to 1991 due primarily to the $7.1 million DOE

assessment on Palo Verde and depreciation taken on the Texas portion, ofPalo Verde Unit 3.

Amortization expense decreased in 1992 compared to 1991 as a result of the discontinuance of the
application ofSFAS No. 71.

'L 'H

Federal Income Taxes

The Company recorded federal income tax benefits of approximately $7.9 million in 1993. The
increase in tax benefits in 1993 compared to tax benefits of approximately $4million recognized in
1992 results from (i) differences in recognizing income, taxes under, the provisions of SFAS No. 109 in
1993 as compared to APB Opinion No. 11 in 1992, primarily the recognition of the one percent increase
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in the federal income tax rate; (ii)an increase in're-tax loss, net of non-deductible reorganization
costs; and (iii)other adjustments to deferred taxes.

The Company recorded federal income tax benefits of approximately $ 107 million in 1991. The
decrease in income tax benefits in 1992 as compared to 1991 is primarily the result ofa decrease in the
pre-tax loss, net ofnon-deductible reorganization costs incurred in 1992.

Taxes Other Than Federal Income Taxes

Taxes other than federal income taxes increased in 1993 compared to 1992 due primarily to the
accrual of approximately $ 6.2 million for the settlement and anticipated settlement-of state income
and other tax claims.

Investment Income

Investment income decreased in 1992 compared to 1991 due to interest received in 1991 of
approximately $2.4 million on an income tax refund and interest of approximately $ 1 millio'n related
to a note receivable with no comparable amounts received in 1992. Beginning January 8, 1992,
interest earned on accumulated cash balances due to reorganization is reported under the heading
"Reorganization Items" in the Statements ofOperations.

Other Income, Net

Other income, net increased in 1993 compared to 1992 due to a gain of approximately $ 3 million
recognized in the second quarter of 1993 for the settlement ofcivil litigation.

Interest Charges

Interest charges increased in 1993 compared to 1992 primarily due to payments ofapproximately
$ 10.2 million upon confirmation of the Plan to unsecured and undersecured creditors, which interest
had not been previously accrued, and a $ 1.6 millioncharge in 1993 in connection with the settlement
and anticipated settlement of state income and other tax claims as discussed above. The increase was
partially offset by a reduction in interest rates.

Interest charges decreased in 1992 compared to 1991 due to the discontinuation of accruing
interest on the Company's unsecured and undersecured debt, and a decrease in the secured long-term
and short-term debt rates. The decrease is partially offset by interest on increased outstanding
balances under the RCF.

Reorganization Items

Pursuant to the provision of Statement of Position 90-7, "Financial Reporting by Entities in
Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy Code" ("SOP 90-7"), the Company reports net expenses
incurred as a result of the bankruptcy proceedings in a separate section in the statements of
operations. Professional fees and other costs increased in 1993 as a result of additional payments
pursuant to the Plan following the Confirmation Date. In addition, in accordance with SOP 90-7, the
Company incurred a one-time write-offin 1992 ofdebt issuance cost ofapproximately $ 13.3 million.

Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle

Effective January 1, 1993, the Company began reporting its financial results pursuant to the
provisions of SFAS ~>o. 109. The standard requires the use of the asset and liability method of
accounting for income taxes as opposed to the deferred method. The Company recognized a charge to
operations in January 1993 of approximately $96 million as a result of adopting SFAS No. 109. The

57



charge to operations consists of federal income tax benefits of approximately $ 153.2 million and state

income tax benefits of approximately $ 12.2 million, less valuation allowances of approximately

$219.2 millionand $ 42.2 million, respectively.

Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements

The Company has discontinued accruing dividends on preferred stock due to the Company's

bankruptcy filing. See "Financial Statements and Supplementa'ry Data —'.voteG of Notes to Financial
Statements."

Other 1991 Items

During 1991, the Company recorded an extraordinary item for the discontinuance of the

application of SFAS No. 71, a loss on the letter ofcredit draws, and an expense for debt restructuring,
all of which did not recur in 1992 and 1993. In addition, after discontinuance of application of SFAS

No. 71 in 1991, the Company no longer records the effects of regulation, and accordingly, certain items

recoi ded in 1991 are not reflected in 1992 and 1993.

Effects of Inflation

Over the recent past, inflation has been relatively low. As such, its impact to the Company's

results ofoperations and financial condition have not been significant.

Environmental Matters

For a discussion of environmental matters, see Part I, Item 1, "Business-Environmental
Matters."

Effect of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data- Note D ofNotes to Financial Statements"

regarding the effect of SFAS iNo. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities."
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'EPORT

The Shareholders and Board of Directors
El Paso Electric Company:

We have audited the financial statements of El Paso Electric Company (a debtor-in-possession as of
January 8, 1992) as listed in the accompanying index. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements base'd on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those s'tandards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial -statement presentation, We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of.E1 Paso Electric Company as of December 31, 1993 and 1992, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the year s in the three-year period ended December 31, 1993 in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that El Paso Electric Company
willcontinue as a going concern. As discussed in Note A of Notes to Financial Statements, El Paso
Electric Company filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code on January 8, 1992. The Chapter 11 case is administered by the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the Western District ofTexas. The Company is operating its business as
debtor-in-possession which requires certain of its actions to be approved by the Bankruptcy Court.
The Bankruptcy Court has confirmed the Company's'proposed plan of reorganization which
contemplates the Company would be acquired by Central and. South West Corporation.
Consummation of the plan of reorganization is subject to the satisfaction of certain significant
conditions, including numerous regulatory approvals. Continuation of the Company as a going
concern is dependent upon, among other things, the consummation of a plan of reorganization, the
Company's ability to generate suAicient cash from operations, most significantly its operations which
are subject to regulation of the rates it is allowed to charge as described in Note C of Notes to Financial
Statements and its ability to restructure or obtain financinq to meet its obligations. Further, as more
fullydescribed in Notes B, H, J, and K of Notes to Financial Statements, significant claims beyond

"'hose reflected as liabilities 'in the financial statements at December 31, 1993 have been or may be
asserted against the Company. The validity of these claims, as well as the amount and manner of
payment of all valid claims, will ultimately be determined by the Bankruptcy Court. These matters
raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. As a result of the
reorganization proceedings, the Company may sell or o'therwise realize assets and liquidate or settle
liabilities for amounts other than those reflected in the financial statements. Further, the
consummation of a plan of reorganization could materially change the amounts currently recorded in
the financial statements, and if no reorganization plan is consummated, it is possible that the
Company's assets could be liquidated. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that
might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

As discussed in Notes I and L, the Company changed its methods of accounting for income taxes and
postretirement benefits other than pensions, effective January 1, 1993.

KPMG PEAT iVIARWICK

El Paso, Texas
March 30, 1994
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EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

BALANCESHEETS

ASSETS

December 31
1993 1992

(In thousands)
Utilityplant (Notes C, D and E):
Electric plant in service
Less accumulated depreciation.and amortization

Net plant in service
Construction work in progress
Nuclear fuel; includes fuel in process of$9,937,000 and

$ 16,192,000, respectively
Less accumulated amortization

Net nuclear fuel
Net utilityplant .

Current assets:
Cash and temporary investments
Accounts receivable, principally trade, net ofallowance for

doubtful accounts of$ 6,004,000 and $4,769,000, respectively
Inventories
Prepayments and other

Total current assets

Long-term contract receivable (Note C)

Deferred charges and other assets

Total assets

$ 1,650,899
381 309

1,269,590
51,267

93,909
41 948
51 961

1 372 818

181,086

54,652
34,595
10 035

280 368

32 420

29 800

1 715 406

$ 1,620,796
342 527

1,278,269
41,946

105,654
44 559
61 095

1 381 310

162,535

51,896
36,578ll 351

262 360

30 049

29 059

1 702 778

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
t
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EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

BALANCESHEETS

CAPITALIZATIONANDJ IABILITIES

December 31
1993 1992

(In thousands)
Capitalization (Notes A, F, G and H);

Common stock, no par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized.
Issued and outstanding 35,544,330 and 35,534,963 shares,

respectively (Note F) ..
Accumulated deficit
Allowance for pension liability, less applicable income tax benefits

of$ 476,000 in 1992
Common stock deficit

Preferred stock, cumulative, no par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized:
Redemption required
Redemption not required

Obligations subject to compromise (Note H) .,
Total capitalization .

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable, principally trade
Customer deposits
Taxes accrued other than federal income taxes
Net overcollection offuel revenues
Other

Total current liabilities

Deferred credits and other liabilities:
Accumulated deferred income- taxes (Note I)
Accumulated deferred investment tax credit (Note I)
Deferred gain on sales and leasebacks (Note B)
Decommissioning (Note E)
Other

Total deferred credits and other liabilities .

$ 339,097
(696,560)

(357,463)

67,266
14,198

1 495 315
1 219 316

37,032
4,905

21,658
13,874

9 408
86 877

123,935
68,992

142,543
30,101
43 642

409 213

$ 339,078
(558,661)

925
(220,508)

67,266
14,198

1 440 968
1 301 924

26,120
4,719

20,374
13,635
14 030
78 878

46,028
74,455

149,575
22,001
29 917

321 976

Commitments and contingencies (Notes A, B, C, J, K and L)

Total capitalization and liabilities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

~1715 406 1 702 778
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EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

,',(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the ye'ars ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991
(In thousands except per share data)

Operating revenues
Operating expenses:

Operation:
Fuel
Purchased and interchanged power

Other
Maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Palo Verde deferred costs (Note C)
Phase. in plan defer rais (Note C), ....'..
Taxes:

Federal income tax benefits (Note I)
Other

4

1993

9 543 594

93,007
39 997

133,004
206,576

39,450
,

53,050

(10,360)
56 903

1992
524 760

90,840
16858

107,698
204,334

39,351
56,869

(1,067)
50 539

1991
462 405

82,418,,
18 326

'00,744
203,233

31,467
57,926

'(18,296)
(1,585)

(10,844)
49 038

Operating income
478 623, 457 724 411 683

64 971 87 036 50 722

Other income (deductions):
'l!

owance for equity funds used during construction(Note D) ......
Phase. in plan deferred return (Note C)
Regulatory disallowance (Note C)
Restructuring costs
Investinent income, . '.
Loss attributable to letters ofcredit draws (Note B)
Other,net ......,....'...........
Federal income (taxes) benefits applicable to other income (Note I) .

2,838
{831)

2 007

754
{343)
411

68
1,719

(30,978)
(10,773)

5,529,,
(288,416)

696
73

835'248

320)
Income (loss) before interest charges
Interest charges (credits):

Interest
Palo Verde deferred costs - carrying charges {Note C)
Other interest capitalized and deferred
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (Note D) ...

Loss before reorganizatfon and extraordinary items and
cumulative effect ofa change in accounting principle

Reorganization items (expense):
Debtcosts...
Professional fees and other
Interest earned on accumulated cash resulting from Bankruptcy case ..........
Federal income (taxes) benefits applicable to reorganization items.............

66 978 67 447 ~() 97 590

82,237

(3,998)

'3,176

(3,917)

92,876
(13,393)

(6,393)~3770)
78 239 69 259 69 314

(13,264)
'20,194)

3,806
3 204

(35,150)
6,152~(596~30 594 ~26 368

~li261 0 (1 812) '~f266 912

Loss before extraordinary item and cumulative effect ofa change
in accounting principle (41,855) (28,180) (266,912)

Extraordinary item, less applicable income tax
benefits of$22,365(Notes CandI) .

Loss before cumulative effect ofa change in accounting principle

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (Note I) ....
Netloss....
Preferred stock dividend requirements ($3,725 unpaid) (Note G)
Net loss applicable to common stock
Net loss per weighted average share ofcommon stock:

Loss before extraordinary item and cumulative effect
ofa change in accounting principle

Extraordinary item
.'umulativeeffect ofa change in accounting principle .

Net loss

See accompa'nying notes to financial statements.

(41,855) (28,180)

(96 044)

(137,899) (28,180)

S {137,899) S {28,180)

- $ (1.18~)~(0.79)
~~2.70

8 '3.88) 5 '0.79)
(g5,

~209 102
(556,014)

(556,014)
82

(8.14)

5 (16.89)
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EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY.

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

STATEMENTS OF ACCUMULATEDDEFICIT

For the years ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991
(In thousands)

1993 1992 1991

Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning ofyear
Add:
- Netloss .

Deduct;
'ash dividends (Notes F and G):

Preferred stock
Cumulative dividends in arrears:

Preferred stock-redemption required (Note G)

Accumulated deficit at end ofyear
'1

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding

(558,661) 8 (530,481) $ 33,'388

137 899) ~28 180 ~556 014)
~696 560) ~558 661 ~522 626

4,549

3 306
7 855

~696 560) ~558 661 ~530 481)

35 539480 35 530 264 35 515'060

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
1Q h
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EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JAiVUARY8, 1992)
4

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOiVS
For the years ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

1993 1992
(In thousands)

1991

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Loss before extraordinary item and cumulative effect ofa change

in accounting principle
Adjustments for non-cash items from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credit, net
Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Loss attributable to letters ofcredit draws
Regulatory disallowance
Debt costs
Other operating activities

Change in:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepayments and other
Long-term contract, receivable
Obligations subject to compromise
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities .

Deferred charges and credits
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities;
Additions to utilityplant
Allowance for equity funds used during construction
Other investing activities .

Net cash used for investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from long-term obligations
Redemption ofsecurities
Dividends paid
Redemption of long-term obligations .

iVet increase in short-term obligations
Other financing activities .

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and temporary investments
Cash and temporary investments at beginning ofyear .........
Cash and temporary investments at end ofyear

$ (41,855) $ (28,180) $ (266,912)

66,901 69,219
(24,077) (4,008)

(1,787)
13,264
(1,784)

78,068
(84,679)

(68)
288,416

30,978

- 3,171

(2,756)
1,983
1,316

(2,371)
'5,214

10,912
(2,913)
16 637

(1,582)
6,090
5,815

(2,850)
101,486
26,119
28,753

5 530

(6,097)
(7,501)
13,247
(4,909)

2,916
3,453~44 9631

77 204 217 872 5 120

(58,215)

409
57 806

(867)

20

(60,570)

60 570

(788)

30

(63,462)
68

1 295
62 099

43,133
(15,400)

(4,549)
(118,081)
145,000

745
847 ~758 50 848

18,551 156,544 (6,131)
162 535 5 991 12 122

~181 086 ~162 535 ~5991
Supplemental Disclosures ofCash Flow Information:

Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes .

Interest .

Reorganization items:
Cash interest received on accumulated cash resulting from

Bankruptcy case
Cash paid for professional fees and other

$ 17,064
64,712

5,685
29,021

$
32,498

3,361
11,759

$
82,438

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

A. Bankruptcy and Going Concern Presentation

On Januar'y 8, 1992 ("Petition Date" ) El Paso Electric Company (the "Company" ) filed a
petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the Western District ofTexas, Austin Division (the "Bankruptcy Court").
The filing followed an attempt by the Company during 1991 to negotiate a restructuring of its
obligations with its creditors and the draws in late December 1991 on letters of credit related to the
Company's sale and leasebacks of portions of its interest in Palo Verde. Since the Petition Date, the
Company has operated its business as debtor-in-possession, subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy
Court for certain of its proposed actions. On December 8, 1993 (the "Confirmation Date" ), the
Bankruptcy Court entered an order confirming the Company's Modified Third Amended Plan of
Reorganization, as corrected through December 6, 1993 (the "Plan"). The effectiveness of the Plan is
subject to satisfying certain significant conditions, discussed below.

As of January 8, 1992, actions to collect prepetition indebtedness or pursue prepetition claims
were stayed and contractual obligations incurred prepetition may not be enforced against the
Company. The Company has rejected certain executory contracts and leases as permitted by the
United States Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. 5101 et seq.(" Bankruptcy Code" ) and claims arising from
such rejections have been or willbe addressed through the reorganization process. Substantially all
liabilities as of the Petition Date would be modified pursuant to the Plan, which was approved by all
classes of impaired creditors and equity security holders in the voting process and confirmed by the
Bankruptcy Court on December 8, 1993. (See Note H for a description of estimated liabilities subject
to compromise).

'

The discussions and descr iptions of Company events and the analysis of their potential impact
on financial results herein are premised on the assumption that the Company's operations will be
maintained within existing financial agreements, as modified by the Plan, and regulatory structures
prior to the effective date of the Plan ("Effective Date" ). This report must be read with the
understanding that the Plan, whi'ch has been confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court, but has not become
effective, will alter, compromise or modify the existing financial and regulatory structures if it
becomes effective. Substantial conditions to the Plan becoming effective exist, as discussed herein,
and the Company believes, but can give no assurance, that such conditions will be satisfied. It is
possible that the Plan willnot become effective. Ifthe Plan does not become effective, another plan of
reorganization also would alter, compromise or modify existing financial and regulatory structures.
See "Alternatives to the Plan,'-'elow. It is therefore not possible at this time to state with certainty
the nature or degree to which the existing financial and regulatory structures will be altered,
compromised or modified. Accordingly, estimates and evaluations based on the historical results of
Company operations could be subject to material changes as a result of the eventual resolution of the
case commenced January 8, 1992 by the Company in the Bankruptcy Court as Case No. 92-10148-FM
("Bankruptcy Case" ).

The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. Continuation of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon, among other
things, a plan of reorganization becoming effective, the Company's ability to generate sufficient cash
from operations, most significantly its operations which are subject to regulation of the rates it is
allowed to charge as described in Note C, and its ability to restructure or obtain refinancing to meet its
obligations. Further, as more fullydescribed in Notes B, H, J and K, significant claims beyond those
reflected as liabilities in the financial statements at December 31, 1993 have been asserted against the
Company. The validity of these claims, as well as the amount and manner of payment of all valid
claims, will ultimately be determined by the Bankruptcy Court. As a result of the reorganization
proceedings, the Company may sell or otherwise realize assets and liquidate or settle liabilities for
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amounts other than those reflected in the financial statements. Further, the effectiveness ofa plan of
reorganization, could materially change the amounts currently recorded in the financial statements
and if no reorganization plan becomes effective, it is possible that the Company's assets could be

liquidated. "The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the

outcome of these uncertainties.

The Plan and Proposed Merger 't

the Third Amended Plan of Reorganization ("the Disclosure Statement" ), which provide for the

reorganization of the Company and its acquisition by Central and South West Corporation ("CSW"), a

registered public utilityholding company under the Public UtilityHolding Company Act of 1935, as

amended (the "PUHCA"). These replaced and superseded a previous plan which provided that the

Company would remain an independent company. Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, as

amended (the "Merger Agreement" ), and effective simultaneously with the effectiveness of the Plan,
CSW Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of CSW ("CSW.Sub"), would merge with
and into the Company (the "iVIerger"), and CSW would become the owner of all of the issued and

outstanding shares of common stock of the Company. On August 27, 1993, the Bankruptcy Court
approved the Disclosure Statement and subsequently the Company solicited the approval of the

various classes ofcreditors and security holders. At least 92% of those voting in each class ofcreditors
or holders of interests voted in favor of the Plan. The remaining members ofeach class willreceive the

same treatment under the Plan as those voting in favor of the Plan. On December 8, 1993, the

Bankruptcy Court entered an order'confirming the Plan.

Conditions to Effectiveness of the Plan and Mer er. The Merger Agreement and Plan
contain numerous conditions to effectiveness, including but not limited to the following described

conditions:

(i) receipt of the regulatory approvals and determinations that, in the judgment of the

Company and CSW, are reasonably required to implement the provisions of the Plan and
consummate the Merger, see "Regulatory Aspects of the Plan and Merger".below;

(ii) the absence of certain occurrences that could result in a material adverse effect on the

Company or the prospects for the business of the Company or CSW;

(iii) performance by the Company, CSW and CSW Sub ofall covenants contained in the Merger
Agreement; and

(iv) receipt of an investment grade rating for certain series of publicly tradeable first and

second mortgage bonds of the Company, as reorganized,

Other than certain regulatory or statutory approvals that may not be waived, CSW and the

Company may waive all or any portion ofany of the conditions to effectiveness of the Plan and Merger.

Re ulator As ects of the Plan and Mer er. Consummation of the Plan and Merger is

conditioned on receipt of required regulatory approvals, including those discussed below. The

effectiveness of the Plan is expressly conditioned upon obtaining Texas and New iilexico rate orders

establishing certain ratemaking, accounting and regulatory treatments acceptable to CSW, unless

this condition is waived by CSW and the Company.
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Public UtilityCommission of Teras ("Texas Commission" ), The effectiveness of the Plan and
the Merger is conditioned upon the receipt, of the following Texas regulatory approvals and
determinations:

(i) approval of a base rate increase of $25 million for the Texas jurisdiction and
determinations authorizing certain other ratemaking, accounting and regulatory
treatments;

(ii) determination that the Merger is in the public interest; and

(iii) de'termination that the reacqui'sition by the Company of the portions of Units, 2 and 3 at
the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde" or "Palo Verde Station" ) which .

are subject to the leases (the "Palo Verde Leases" ) described in Note B is in the public
interest.

The proposed Texas rate settlement plan offered by CSW and the Company proposes a Texas
jurisdictional base rate increase. of $25 millionfor the Company effective in 1994. Subject to receipt of
that increase and other acceptable accounting, ratemaking and regulatory treatments, the Company
would agree not to seek a base rate increase in Texas to be effective prior to January 1, 1997, and no
more often than every other year thereafter until the year 2001, subject to specified force majeure
events.

Neiu Mexico Public UtilityCommission ("Neio Mexico Commission" ). The effectiveness of the
Plan and the Merger are conditioned on the receipt of the following New Mexico regulatory approvals
and determinations:

(i) approval of the Merger and any required, authorizations or determinations related to
operating as a public utilityin New Mexico after the Merger;

(ii) approval of a base rate increase of $ 6 million for the New Mexico jurisdiction and
determinations authorizing certain other ratemaking, accounting and regulatory
treatments;

h

(iii) approval of the issuance by the Company of the securities required for the consummation
of the Plan; and

(iv) approval, required under the New Mexico law on diversification by public utilities, of the
transactions between the Company and CSW contemplated by either the Plan or Merger
Agreement.

"f

Nuclear Regulatory Commission ("NRC"). Approval of the NRC is required for the indirect
transfer of control of the Company's interest in the Palo Verde operating licenses and amendment of
those licenses to delete previously approved sale/leaseback arrangements.

P

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"). Approval of the FERC is required for,the
Company to, in effect, dispose of its interstate facilities through the Merger. Also, the FERC approval
ofother transactions contemplated under, the Plan may be required, including the issuance and sale by
the Company of new securities and the amendment of the CSW System Operating Agreement to
include the Company as a party. The. Company and CSW are seeking use of the transmission system
of Southwestern Public Service Company, an electric utility based in Amarillo, Texas ("SPS"), to,
coordinate the operations of the Company and the CSW electric operating companies. The Company
has requested that SPS agree to provide the transmission service and make the system modifications

69



EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

NOTES TO FliNANCIALSTATEMENTS - (Continued)

necessary to accomplish such coordination. The Company and CSW have filed a request at the FERC
seeking an order directing SPS. to provide the requested service (and make the necessary system
modifications). The Comp'any expects SPS to oppose the issuance of such order.

Securities,and Exchange Commissio'n ("SEC"). As a registered public utilityholding company
subject to the PUHCA, CSW is required to obtain the approval of the SEC prior to consummating the
Merger. Under the PUHCA, the SEC must find that after the Merger the Company and CSW will
constitute an integrated electric system. As noted above, the Company and CSW propose to coordinate
their operations by means of transmission service to be provided by SPS. In the past, the SEC has
determined that integration may be effected by means of transmission rights on unaffiliated systems.
SEC approval willalso be required for the formation of CSW Sub, the issuance of CSW common stock
to the holders of the Company's common stock and certain creditors', and the issuance of the
Company's securities to holders of the Company's securities and certain creditors pursuant to the
Plan.

Other Regulatory Filings. The Department of Energy ("DOE") must authorize persons to
transmit electric energy from the United States. The Company holds an authorization to transmit
electric energy to Comision Federal de Electricidad, the national electric utilityof Mexico ("CFE").
DOE's approval is required for this authorization to be assumed by CSW.

The Company also must file a notice related to the Merger with the Federal Trade Commission
and Department of Justice pursuant to the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976.
The applicable waiting period followingsuch filingmust have expired befo're th'e Effective Date of the
Plan and Merger without an adve'rse ruling or other action with respect to any anticompetitive effects
of the Merger.

Status and Timing. Certain of the above approvals have been requested and requests for other
approvals are in process. The Company estimates that the process to obtain the above approvals would
require up to 18 months, and perhaps longer. However, the Company can provide no assurance

that'll

required approvals willbe obtained or that the Plan and Merger willbe consummated.

Consideration to Creditors and Securit Holders. Under the Plan, existing creditors and
existing equity security holders of the Company would receive for their claims cash and/or securities of
the Company, 'as reorganized, and/or CSW or would have their claims cured and reinstated pursuant
to,the Bankruptcy Code. Shares ofCSW common stock, issued pursuant to the Plan would be subject to
different lock-up periods, during which transfer would be restricted, depending on the class ofcreditor
or interest holder.

'

Secured creditors generally would receive value equal to 100% of their allowed claim. Small
unsecured creditors also would receive 100% of their allowed claim. Other unsecured creditors would
receive 95.5% of the principal amount of their allowed claim.

The holders of claims under the Palo Verde Leases related to the bonds issued by two funding
corporations to finance the purchase price in connection with the Company's sale/leaseback
transactions of portions of Palo Verde (See iVote B) would have their claims satisfied 'by issuance of
securities equal to 95.5% of the amount of the allowed claim. The, allowed claim is set at $700 million
under the Plan. In addition, the owner participants in the sale/leaseback transactions have entered
into" se'ttlements with the Company of the pending adversary proceeding (See VoteB) that is
contingent on the Plan becoming effective.'ursuant to settlement agreements, on the Effective Date
of"the Plan all claims that were or might have been asserted against the Company by the Owner
Participants or against the Owner Participants by the Coinpany would be dismissed with prejudice by
the Bankruptcy Court. Further, at the Effective Date of the Plan, all obligations of the Company

70



EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

NOTES TO,FINANCI'ALSTATEMENTS - (Continued)

under the Palo Verde Leases and other documents related to the sale/leaseback transactions would be
deemed satisfied and discharged, except for certain specified provisions such as indemnification
obligations, as modified, and all right, title and interest in the property that was'the subject of the
sale/leasebacks would be vested in the. Company.

Upon consummation of the, Merger, shares of the Company's common stock outstanding
immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger (other than any such shares which are held in the
treasury of the Company or owned by CSW or CSW Sub) would be converted into the right to receive
shares of CSW common stock. The conversion would be based on the ratio of the number of shares of
CSW common stock credited to the CSW Common Stock Acquisition Fund (the "Fund") to the number
ofoutstanding shares of the Company's common stock on the Effective Date of the Plan. The Fund is a
systein for tracking the consideration that would be paid to the Company's common shareholders in
the Merger. No cash or shares, of CSW common stock are actually placed in the Fund. At the
Confirmation Date, 3,619,794 shares of'CSW common stock were credited to the Fund based on (i) a
value of $ 3i00 per share of the Company's common stock; (ii)35,544,330 shares of Company common
stock outstanding on the, Confirmation Date; and (iii)an average trading price of $29.4583 for CSW
common stock on the Confirmation Date. Additional shares of CSW common stock would be credited
to the Fund with,value up to $ 1.50 per share of the Company's.common, stock outstanding on the
Confirmation Date 'based on the resolution of certain contingent items described in the iMerger
Agreement as tangible and intangible assets and reductions in claims. In addition, shares of CSW
common stock based on the dividends that would have been paid by CSW on the amounts credited to
the Fund from the Confirmation Date to the Effective Date of the Plan willbe credited to the Fund.
The closing price for CSW common stock at March 15, 1994 was $26.00 per share. As of March 15,
1994, 3,757,009 shares ofCSW common stock have been credited to the Fund.

Pursuant to the Plan, the allowed interests of preferred shareholders would be the sum of the
aggregate amount of the redemption prices of the preferred, stock and the aggregate amount of
prepetition dividends. These interests would be satisfied under the Plan by the issuance of securities

"having a value in the 6mountof $ 68 million. Under the Plan, the Company's preferred stock would be
converted to either preferred stock of the Company, as reorganized, or a combination of CSW common
stock and preferred stock of the Company, as reorganized.

Interim Pa ments. In addition to the treatment of the prepetition claims of each class of
creditors and security holders, as discussed above, the Plan provjdes for the Company to make certain
payments at the Confirmation Date. and thereafter until the. Effective Date of the Plan. These
payments are in 'addition to periodic interest payments on secured debt that the Company has been
making since July 1, 1992 pursuant to orders of the Bankruptcy Court. The payments were negotiated
as. part of the process to achieve approval of the Plan and are intended to compensate certain holders of
claims and interests during the period from the Confirmation Date to the Plan's Effective Date. These
interim payments. consist of (i) amounts characterized as interest on unsecured and undersecured debt
and on the claims of the holders of the bonds related to the financing of the Palo Verde sale/leaseback
transactions; (ii)amounts characterized as periodic payments;to;holders of the Company.'s preferred
stock, which. the Bankruptcy Court has ruled are not dividends; and (iii)fees of advisors and other
expenses of the various classes of creditors and interest holders. The amounts paid under (i) and (ii)
are calculated at variable rates, primarilyat 90-Day LIBORplus 2% (5.3% at December 31, 1993).

To the extent that, liabilities and expenses related to these payments have been accrued by the
Company since the filing for bankruptcy, the Company has reduced such liabilities by the interim
payments. Otherwise, the interim payments have been expensed as interest or reorganization items.
Accordingly, amounts aggregating approximately $ 15.5 million through December 31, 1993, paid to
the Palo Verde Leases bondholders have been offset against accruals which the Company has been
recording on a regular basis; amounts aggregating approximately $ 10.2 million through December 31,

71



EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEiVIENTS - (Continued)

1993, paid on unsecured debt for which the Company had not been accruing interest were charged to
interest expense; and amounts aggregating approximately $ 14.7 million through December 31, 1993,
paid to holders of preferred stock as periodic payments and certain amounts of fees and expenses
charged to reorganization items. The Company estimates that interim payments aggregating
approximately $ 15.4 millionper quarter willbe made through the Effective Date of the Plan, of which
approximately $9.2 million would be offset against amounts which the Company has been recording
on a regular basis; $5.3million would be expensed as interest expense and $900,000 would be
expensed as reorganization items. These amounts are in addition to the monthly payments of
approximately $ 5 million on secured debt that the Company has been making and expects to continue
to make.

The Plan provides for other amounts to be paid at only the 'Effective Date of the Plan
representing interest on certain claims and fees incurred by certain classes, which are not included in
the interim payments set forth in the Plan, as described above. These amounts are. estimated to
aggregate approximately $ 14 million at December 31, 1993, of which approximately $ 11 million has
not been accrued by the Company because it is uncertain ifthe P)an willbecome effective. In addition,
certain of the Company's advisors in the bankruptcy proceeding have petitioned the Bankruptcy Court
for "success fees" related to the Plan. The success fees requested to date aggregate approximately
$7 million and if awarded by the Bankruptcy Court would become payable if the Plan becomes
effective.

Termination of Mer er A reement. Each of the Company and CSW have the right to
terminate the Merger Agreement in certain circumstances outlined in the Merger Agreement. In the
event the Merger Agreement is terminated, it shall become void and, other than (i) the possible
payment of a termination fee, by the Company or CSW to the other party; and (ii) under certain
circumstances, the reimbursement to the Company by CSW of certain costs, interest and expenses
related to the Merger borne by the Company, there is no other obligation or liabilityon the part of the
Company, CSW or CSW Sub. Termination fees of $ 25 or $ 50 million (in the case of any payments due
from the Company to CSW) or $ 25 million (in the case of any payment due from CSW to the Company)

're

payable only in limited circumstances. The amount of the termination fee payable by the
Company, ifany, depends on the reason for termination.-

Alternatives to the Plan. Ifthe Plan does not become effective, the Company would consider
other alternative's to the Merger including a merger or business combination with another entity or
entities and reorganizing as an independent company. It is 'also possible that the Bankruptcy Court
would allow a third party to file a plan of reorganization for the Company and such plan could involve
a merger, business combination or acquisition. Although it has indicated it is undesirable, ifno other
plan or reorganization is viable, the Bankruptcy Court could order the liquidation of the Company.
Any plan of reorganization other than the Plan would provide for different treatments of the claims of
the creditors and security holders than those set forth in the Plan. The Company cannot predict what
such treatments would be, in what respects actions proposed under the Plan would be modified, or the
amount of time that would be involved before any alternate plan would become effective. The
Company is considering what alternatives would be available in the event the Plan does not become
effective.

B. Sale and Leaseback Transactions and Letters ofCredit Draws

In August and December 1986 and December 1987, the Company consummated ten separate
sale/leaseback transactions involving all of its undivided interest in Palo Verde Unit, 2, one-third of its
undivided interest in certain common plant at Palo Verde and approximately 40%o of its undivided
interest in Unit 3. Pursuant to applicable agreements, the Company remains responsible, during the
terms of the Palo Verde Leases, for all operating and maintenance costs, nuclear fuel costs, other
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related operating costs of the leased-back facilities, and for decommissioning costs. Under their terms,
the leases related to Unit 2 and Common Plant expire in October 2013, while the leases related to Unit
3 expire in January 2017. Allof the Palo Verde Leases contain certain renewal options and provide for
repurchase options, at fair market value, at the termination of the lease. See Note A for a discussion of
the treatment of the Palo Verde Leases under the Plan.

The aggregate consideration received by the Company in the sale/leaseback transactions was
$ 934.4 million ($684.4 million in 1986 and $ 250 million in 1987).'ine of the ten transactions are
accounted for as operating leases; one transaction (sales price of $ 87.4 million) is accounted for as a
financing transaction. For the transactions accounted for as operating leases, the proceeds exceeded
the cost of the assets sold by $ 194 million, which amount has been deferred and is being amortized into
income, as a reduction to lease expense, over the primary terms of the leases.

All of the Palo Verde Leases and related documents provide that upon the occurrence of
specified events of loss or deemed loss events, as defined, the Company is obligated to pay the related
equity investor an amount in cash (secured by letters ofcredit) which may exceed the equity investor's
unrecovered equity investment. The Palo Verde Leases also contain provisions related to the
indemnification of the lessors in certain circumstances against certain losses, including the loss of
certain tax benefits, resulting from specified events.

The letters of credit related to the Unit 2 leases had expiration dates of December 31, 1991 and
January 2, 1992. During the second half of 1991, the Company pursued a comprehensive financial
restructuring which would have provided, among other things, for the'ssuance of required
replacement letters of credit by December 1, 1991, the earliest date required pursuant to the leases.
However, the Company failed to provide the replacement" letters of credit by such date. On
December 26 and 27, 1991, beneficiaries holding the letters of credit issued on the account of the
Company in connection with the Unit 2 sales and leasebacks drew and were paid the full available
amount of such letters of credit of approximately $208 million. As discussed in Note A, the Company
filed its bankruptcy petition on January 8, 1992. On January 9, 1992 the beneficiaries of the letters of
credit issued in connection with the Unit 3 sale and leaseback transactions also drew and were paid
the fullavailable amount ofsuch letters ofcredit ofapproximately $80.4 million.

As a consequence of the letters ofcredit draws, the Company incurred direct obligations totaling
approximately $288.4 million to the letters ofcredit banks. The obligations are unsecured prepetition
claims of the banks (see Votes A and H). The banks are precluded from taking any action to collect
their claim against the Company outside of the Bankruptcy Case and the Company is presently
precluded from paying the amount as a result of the bankruptcy filing. The Company has not made
lease payments on Palo Verde Units 2 and 3 and the non-payment of rent by the applicable grace
period provided in the Palo Verde Leases constitutes events of default under the leases, which
ordinarily would entitle the lessors to various remedies pursuant to the terms of the applicable
agreements, including, rescission or termination of the leases and liquidated damages. As a result of
the bankruptcy filing, however, the lessors are stayed for exercising any remedies under the Palo
Verde Leases except through the Bankruptcy Case. In connection with the Bankruptcy Case, the
lessors and the holders of bonds issued to finance the lessors'urchase of the interests in Palo Verde
have filed proofs ofclaims that collectively assert damages ofapproximately $743.1 million.

On September 9, 1992, the Company filed an adversary proceeding against the lessors,and the
indenture trustees of the lease obligation bonds. The Company sought a declaratory judgment that
the Palo Verde Leases are leases of real property under the Bankruptcy, Code, and therefore (i) the
leases" were rejected pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code and (ii) the Company's liability for damages
resulting from the rejection of the leases is limited to approximately $273 million. In addition, the
Company sought a declaratory judgment that its liabilityfor lease rejection was fully satisfied by the
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proceeds of $288.4 million in letters of credit provided by the Company in connections with the leases..

On December 15, 1992, the Bankruptcy Court granted partial summary judgment against the
Company with respect to one issue on lease rejection damages, holding that the proceeds of the letters
ofcredit do not satisfy or offset the maximum claim allowable in the event the leases were determined
to be real estate leases. The Bankruptcy Court suspended further consideration of tlie other issues
related to the proceeding and directed the parties to the litigation to seek a consensual resolution of
the issue. On May 26, 1993, the Bankruptcy Court vacated its partial summary judgment.

The defendants in the adversary proceeding have asserted other claims against the Company,
including claims for prepetition rent, postpetition rent, and fees and expenses incurred in connection
with the Bankruptcy Case. In addition, the indenture trustees have alleged that if the Palo Verde
Leases are leases of real property under the Bankruptcy Code, then the purchasers of the lease
obligation bonds were defrauded by the Company. The Company denies those allegations.

The ultimate impact of this litigation on the financial position of the Company is dependent
upon the, terms of the plan of reorganization that becomes effective and the resulting rate treatment
afforded (neither ofwhich can be determined at this time). Accordingly, no provision has been made in
the Company's financial statements. In the absence of a resolution of the nature and disposition of the
Palo Verde Leases, the Company is continuing to accrue the cost of, but is not paying, the contractual
rental rates (see Note H). See Note A regarding the treatment of the Palo Verde Leases proposed
under the Plan and interim payments made to the bondholders pursuant to the Plan.

During 1993, 1992 and 1991, contractual lease requirements including amortization of
transaction costs under the Palo Verde Leases accounted, for as operating leases amounted to

approximately $ 83.1 million, $ 83,2 million and $ 84.1 million. Future contractual minimum annual
rental payments required under such leases are as follows (In thousands):

Year Ending
December 31

1994 .

1995
1996 .

1997 .......
1998 .

Thereafter

The table does not reflect any of the potential effects
that would result from the Plan becoming effective.

$ 82,757
82,757
82,757
82,757
82,757

1,291,777

upon future contractual rental payments

C. Rate Matters

Overview
II

I

"Effect ofBankruptcy on Regulation. The Bankruptcy Code provides that the Bankruptcy Court,
shall confirm the Company's plan of reorganization only if"any governmental regulatory commission
with jurisdiction, after confirmation of the plan, over the rates of the debtor has approved any rate
change provided for in the plan, or such rate change is expressly conditioned on such approval." To

date, the Company has not asserted arguments in the regulatory proceedings that the provisions of the

Bankruptcy Code, together with applicable provisions ofother federal statutes, grant the Bankruptcy
Court the authority to preempt otherwise applicable regulatory authority and processes, and it is

uncertain whether the Company would prevail on such arguments, ifasserted. As discussed in Note A
above, the Company'or, where appropriate, CSW or APS, have filed or will file applications with
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various regulatory bodies to seek approvals or findings necessary to consummate the iMerger and
otherwise satisfy the conditions to the effectiveness of the Plan. The discussions of the applications
filed or to be filed before the regulatory bodies pursuant to the Plan and the pending regulatory
appeals discussed below in "Texas Rate Matters" and "New Mexico Rate Matters" should be read in
the context of the preemption issue discussed above.

1

On June 11, 1992, an agreed order was entered in the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to which
appeals in Dockets 7460, 8588, and 9165 (discussed below in "Texas Rate Matters" ) may go forward in
state court and, upon remand, before the Texas Commission. The agreed order provided that it was
not a determination of the applicability of the automatic stay in bankruptcy as to any other regulatory
appeal or a determination of the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court or any other court or regulatory
authority with respect to the Company's rates or service. On September 20, 1993, the Bankruptcy
Court entered an or'der lifting the automatic stay in the appeals of the Company's other Texas rate
proceedings, consisting of Dockets 9945, 8018, 8078, 8363, and 9069 (discussed below in "Texas Rate
Matters" ).

Texas. The rates and services of the Company in Texas municipalities are regulated by those
municipalities and in unincorporated areas by the Texas Commission. The largest municipality in the
Company's service area in Texas is the City of E1 Paso. The Texas Commission has exclusive de novo
appellate jurisdicti'on to review municipal orders and ordinances regarding rates and services, and its
decisions are subject to judicial review.

The Texas Commission has jurisdiction to grant and amend certificates of convenience and
necessity ("CCN") for service territory and certain facilities, including generation and transmission
facilities. Although the Texas Commission does not, have the authority to approve transfers of utility
assets, it is required to evaluate certain transfers of utilityassets and mergers and consolidations of
regulated utilitycompanies to determine ifthose transactions are consistent with the public interest.
Upon a finding that such a transaction is not in the public interest, the Texas Commission is required
to consider the effects of the transaction in future ratemaking proceedings and is required to disa!low
the effects of the transaction ifitwillunreasonably affect rates or service.

NewMexico. The NewMexico Commission has jurisdiction over the Company's rates and
services in New Mexico. The New Mexico Commission must grant prior approval of the issuance,
assumption or guarantee of securities; the creation of liens on property located within the state; the
consolidation, merger or acquisition of some or all of the stock of another utility;and the sale, lease,
rental, purchase or acquisition of any public utility plant or property constituting all or part of an
operating unit or system. The iNew Mexico Commission also has jurisdiction as to the valuation of
utility property and business; certain extensions, improvements and additions; Class I and II
transactions (as defined by the New Mexico Public UtilityAct); abandonment of facilities and,the
certification and decertification ofutilityplant.

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The Company is subject to regulation by the FERC in
certain matters, including rates for wholesale power sales and the issuance of securities. In 1992, the
Congress enacted the Energy Policy Act, which, among other things, removes certain restrictions'on
utilityparticipation in the competitive wholesale generation market. In addition, subject to certain
limitations, the legislation provides that the FERC also may order electric 'utilities, including the
Company, to provide certain transmission services. The legislation also expands the authority of state
utilitycommissions to examine the books and records ofelectric utilities.

Nuclear Regulatory Commission. The Palo Verde Station is subject to the jurisdiction of the
NRC, which has authority to issue permits and licenses, to regulate nuclear facilities in order to
protect the health and safety of the public'from radiation hazards and to conduct environmental

75



EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS - (Continued)

reviews pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act. Before any nuclear povter plant can
become operational, an operating license from the NRC is required. The NRC has granted facility
operatirg licenses for Lnit 1, Unit 2 and Lnit 3 at Palo Verde for terms of forty years each, beginning
December 31, 1984, December 9, 1985 and March 25, 1987, respectively. Full power operating licenses
for Unitsl, 2 and 3 were issued by the NRC in June1985, April1986 and November1987,
respectively. In addition, the Company (along with the other Palo Verde Participants other than APS)
is separately licensed by the NRC to own its proportionate share thereof. On January 13, 1994, APS,
as Operating Agent of Palo Verde, joined by the Company, filed a request with the NRC (i) for consent
to the indirect transfer of the Company's possession and ownership in the Operating Licenses for Palo
Verde Units 1, 2 and 3 that willoccur as a result of the merger of a special-purpose subsidiary ofCSW
with and into the Company; and (ii) to amend the Operating Licenses for Units 2 and 3 to'delete
provisions of those licenses related to the Company's sale and leaseback transactions involving those
units. The request to the NRC specifies that the requested amendments to the Operating Licenses and
consent become effective on the Effective Date, upon notification by the applicants that all necessary
regulatory approvals have been obtained, but the Company cannot predict at this time whether and
when the approvals and consent willbe granted. See Note A above.

-, Accounting for the Effects ofRegulation. Prior to December 31, 1991, the financial statementy of
the Company were prepared pursuant to the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB")Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 71, as amended, "Accounting for
the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation," which provides for the recognition of the economic effects
of regulation. In early 1992, the Company determined that there existed substantial doubt concerning
whether the criteria for reflecting the economic effects of regulation continued to be met as a result of
continuing cash flow problems arising from inadequate rate relief and the uncertainty surrounding
regulation. during the reorganization process, including the regulatory treatment, if any, of the
$288.4 million letters of credit draws. The Company concluded that it was not reasonable to assume
that its rates were, or willbe, without giving consideration to possible outcomes of the reorganization
process, designed to recover its costs on a timely basis. Because of the uncertainty of the nature ofany
reorganization plan ultimately consummated and the assessment of the nature of regulation, the
Company concluded that it did not then and does not currently have sufficient assurance to reflect the
economic effects of regulation in its general purpose financial statements. Therefore, as required by
generally accepted accounting principles, the Company eliminated from its 1991 balance sheet the
aggregate effects of regulation, which resulted in a $ 311 million extraordinary charge to results of
operations for the year ended December 31, 1991. This amount included approximately $200 million
of operating expenses primarily related to Palo Verde and approximately $ 80 million of income taxes
related to the Palo Verde sale/leaseback transactions which had been deferred by the Company's
regulators for recovery in future periods. Furthermore, the Company did not record the letter ofcredit
draws amounting to $288.4 million as an asset and has not recorded any new assets reflecting the
economic effects ofregulation since 1991 in its general purpose financial statements.,

Although the outcome of the reorganization process cannot presently be determined, the
Company believes that the rates established in conjunction with any reorganization plan will be
designed to recover the Company's costs, including a return on equity, after the establishment of an
appropriate capital structure, as well as to reflect other changes that may result from the
reorganization. The Company expects that, upon effectiveness of any plan of reorganization, its
regulated operations willmeet the SFAS No. 71 criteria necessary to reflect the effects of regulation in
its general purpose financial statements. Such rates may include the recovery of some or all items
that, at that time, are not reflected as regulatory assets on the Company's general purpose financial
statements. However, in the absence of application of purchase accounting applied in the event of a
change in control occurring as part of the reorganization, there does not appear to be any applicable
accounting precedent for the restoration of such amounts as assets created prior to the re-adoption of
SFAS No. 71. Restoration of such amounts as assets willdepend upon a number of factors, including
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intervening developments in accounting standards and other accounting literature, the outcome of
which cannot currently be determined. In March 1993, the Financial Accounting Standards Board's
Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus that ifa rate-regulated enterprise initiallyfails to
meet the regulatory asset recognition requirements ofSFAS No. 71, but meets those requirements in a
subsequent period, then regulatory assets should be recognized.,in the period the requirements are
met. Although the Emerging Issues Task Force's consensus applied to rate-regulated enterprises
currently meeting the requirements of SFAS No. 71, the Company believes that this consensus
supports the Company's position regarding restoring previous net regulatory assets in its general
purpose financial statements. In the event it is concluded that such restoration is not appropriate,,
under generally accepted accounting principles, the Company would be precluded from recognizing
historical amounts as regulatory assets in its general purpose financial statements. Ifit is determined
that such restoration is appropriate, regulatory assets would be recorded to the extent items allowed to
be recovered in the rate making process have not been reflected as assets in the Company's general
purpose financial statements.

Texas Rate Matters

Rate Moderation Plan —Palo Verde Units 1 and 2. In 1988 the Texas Commission established a
rate moderation plan in Docket 7460 based on a contested stipulation, pursuant to which the Texas
jurisdictional portion of the Company's investment in Palo Verde Unit 1, Common Plant, and lease
payments on Unit 2 (to the extent of approximately 83% of those lease payments) were to be phased-in
to rates in four steps. The order in Docket 7460 also settled all issues concerning the prudence of the
Company's initial decision to participate in Palo Verde and all issues concerning prudence in the
construction of Units 1 and 2. (The prudence of the Company's decision to continue its investment in
Unit 3 after 1978 and the prudence in the construction of Unit 3 were the subject of Docket 9945,
discussed below.) The Docket7460 order was upheld by the Texas Court of Appeals for the
3rd Judicial District at Austin, Texas (the "Court of Appeals" ), on August 26, 1992, except for a
determination that deferred carrying costs may not be included in rate base. The case has been:
appealed to'he Texas Supreme Court by the Company and other parties. See discussion below under
"Deferred Accounting Cases."

The first base rate increase contemplated under the rate moderation plan was ordered in
Docket,7460, and the remaining three increases were sought and ordered in subsequent rate filings
(Dockets 8363, 9165, and 9945). As a result'f these filings, the Texas Commission has allowed
periodic rate increases which allow the Company to recover some, but not all, of its revenue
requirements associated with its investment in Units 1 and 2 (as established in these rate cases), and
the Company has been permitted to defer those unrecovered revenue requirements on its regulatory
books of account for collection in later years. In Docket 9945, the Texas Commission limited each
future base rate increase intended to recover those.deferrals to 3.5%. In connection with the
Company's discontinuation of reporting under SFAS No. 71 as of December 31, 1991, approximately
$ 46.1 million of "phase-in deferrals" previously recorded pursuant to this plan have been eliminated
from the Company's general purpose financial statements and reported as part of the extraordinary
charge to results ofoperations for the year ended December 31, 1991.

Dockets 8363 and 9165 have been appealed to the Texas District Court, where „the appeals
remain pending. A hearing on the appeal of Docket 8363 has been, scheduled for July 1994. No
hearing on the appeal of Docket9165 has been scheduled. The outcome of these appeals and the
results or materiality offinal dispositions of these cases presently cannot be determined.

Docket 9945. On December 28, 1990, the Company filed with the Texas Commission a combined
request for the scheduled fourth base rate increase under the Docket 7460 rate moderation plan
discussed above and for the recovery, also on a moderated basis, of the Texas jurisdictional portion of
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the Company's investment in Palo Verde Unit 3, including the lease payments, net ofdeferred gain; on

the Company's sales and leasebacks of a portion of its interest in Unit 3. The 'Com'pany's combined

request was for $ 131.3 million, which included approxiinately $ 49 million related to the Units 1 and 2

rate moderation plan and approximately $ 82.3 million related to Unit3. Of the total request,

approximately $38 millionwas to be in cash with the balance deferred for subsequent recovery.

The Texas Commission issued its final order in Docket 9945 on November 12, 1991, approving a

total increase in Texas base revenues of approximately $47 million, consisting of $37 million in cash

and $ 10 millionofphase-in deferrals. The order approved a cash increase ofapproximately $7 million
as the fourth increase under the Units 1 and 2 rate moderation plan with a phase-in deferral of $ 10

million for future recovery in rates. The order limited each future increase in base rates under the

Units 1 and 2 plan to 3.5%, but also approved a regulatory non-cash revenue adjustment recommended

by the Hearing Exaininers, which was necessary to provide for full recovery of the phase-in deferrals
during the remaining term of the Units 1 and 2 rate moderation plan. The balance of the $37 million

, cash increase (approximately $30million) represented operating and maintenance expenses,

decommissioning expenses and ad valorem taxes on Unit 3 of Palo Verde, as well as an allowance for
purchased power capacity. The balance did not include any current return of or return on the owned

portion of Unit 3 or recovery of the lease expenses related to Unit 3. Recovery of these costs has been

held in abeyance to be included subsequently in Texas rates over a scheduled period of time, as

discussed below.

The Texas Commission disallowed approximately $32million of Unit3 capitalized costs, on a.

total Company basis, as imprudently incurred. The order also disallowed $9.8 million, on a total
Company basis, of previously deferred costs related'to the 1989-90 outages of Units 1 and 2. The

Company recorded pre-tax write-offs of $24.1million and $6.3million, respectively (the Texas

jurisdictional amounts of these disallowances), in results ofoperations in the third quarter of 1991.

With respect to the rate treatment of Unit 3, the Texas Commission adopted an inventory plan,
pursuant to which the Company's investment in Unit 3 was neither included in rate's nor expressly
disallowed, but instead held in abeyance to be included subsequently in Texas rates over a scheduled

period of time. In justifying the inventory plan, the Texas Commission found (i) the Company was

imprudent in not attempting to sell a portion of its interest in Palo Verde between 1978 and 1981;

(ii) the Company failed to demonstrate that it would not have been unable to sell such interest ifithad

attempted to do so; and (iii)as a result of such imprudent action, the addition of Unit 3 to the

Company's system would result in excess capacity. However, the Texas Commission further found

that Unit 3 would become "used and useful" to the Texas jurisdiction in the followingpercentages: 0%

(in Docket 9945), and 40%, 65%, 85% and 100% thereafter. It is the Company's position that the

successive phases of the inventory plan were to be implemented on an annual basis; however, other
parties may contest that position. Other parties also may contest whether the inventory plan
constituted a proper determination by the Texas Commission of when Unit 3 would become used and

useful. During the period Unit 3 is held in inventory,'he Company will recover the operating and

maintenance expenses, decommissioning expenses and ad valorem taxes associated with Unit 3, along

with an allowance for purchased power capacity. Pursuant to the order, but subject to possible

changes that could result from an effective reorganization plan, the Company e'xpects to recover, in
future years, the following at the applicable inventoried percentages: a return of and on the plant
costs associated with the owned portions of Unit 3 and the amount. of lease payments due under the

sale/leaseback transactions the Company entered into in connection with Unit 3. Under the order, the

Company will retain the benefits of its sales to CFE for at least the period cover'ed by the first rate

order under the inventory plan.
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The Company disputes there was any imprudence, either in connection with the Unit 3
capitalized costs or in retaining its full investment in Palo Verde. The Company challenged both
aspects of the Texas Commission's order in the Company's Motions for Rehearing and has continued
such challenges on appeal. The Company filed an appeal with the Texas District Court on Apri121,
1992. The City of El Paso and two intervenors also appealed. On October 27, 1993, the Texas District
Court affirmed the final order of the Texas Commission except in two respects. The Texas District
Court held the Texas Commission erred (i) by refusing-to include certain disallowed utilityexpenses as
deductions when computing federal income tax expense for ratemaking purposes and (ii)by granting
rate base treatment for post-in-service deferred carrying costs associated with Palo Verde. The second
holding is corisistent with the decision of the Texas Court of Appeals in Docket 7460, discussed below
under "Deferred Accounting Cases." The Company has appealed the decision, as have the City of
El Paso and the'two intervenors who were parties to the appe'al before the Texas District Court. The
ultimate outcome of the appeals and their results or the materiality thereof cannot be predicted at this
time.

Deferred Accounting Cases. The Company has received a series oforders authorizing the deferral
of operating costs incurred, and carrying charges accrued, on each unit of Palo Verde between the
unit's in-service date and the date of its inclusion in Texas rates. Certain orders have also permitted
the Company'to include in rate base and amortize the deferred costs over the lives of Units 1 and 2
(approximately 40 years for ratemaking purposes). All of these "deferred accounting orders" have
been appealed. The ultimate outcome of these appeals and their results or the materiality thereof
cannot be predicted by the Company at this'time.

The deferred accounting order in Docket 7460 (regarding Units' and 2) has been the subject of
two rulings by the Court of Appeals and is currently pending before the Texas Supreme Court. In its
first ruling on August 14, 1991, the Court of Appeals held that none of the deferred'costs could be
included in rate base. As a result of that ruling, the Company discontinued deferring for financial
reporting purposes Unit 3 operating and maintenance expenses and related carrying costs as ofJuly 1,
1991. The Company and other parties filed Motions for Rehearing, in response to which the Court of
Appeals issued a subsequent ruling on August 26, 1992, holding that deferred operating costs may be
placed in rate base. Although the Court of Appeals maintained its position that deferred carrying
costs may not be included in rate base, it stated that its opinion did not preclude the recovery of
carrying costs without rate base treatment. This would allow recovery of the carrying costs, but might
not allow the Company to earn a return on the unamortized balance of those carrying costs. The
Company'estimates that the amount of return on such'carrying costs previously included in revenue
requirements authorized by the Texas Commission, on an unmoderated basis, is approximately
$ 33.4 millionas of March 31, 1994. The Texas Supreme Court granted writoferror with respect to the
issue of the propriety of deferred "accounting orders and heard oral argument on the case on
September 13, 1993 (along with three similar appeals involving other Texas electric utilities). The
Texas Supreme Court has not issued its ruling on the appeals. If the Court of Appeals'ecision is
upheld, by the Texas Supreme Court and remanded to the Texas Commission, it is possible that the
return on the deferred carrying costs will not be refunded, but will instead be offset against the
balance of unamortized phase-in deferrals. It is also possible that the Texas Commission could find
that the inability to earn a return on deferred carrying costs has increased the Company's risk and
could, correspondingly, adjust the Company's allowed rate of return such that the previously
determined total revenue requirement would remain unchanged.

In connection with the Company's elimination of net regulatory assets from its balance sheet as
of December31, 1991, approximately $94 million of Units 1 and 2 accounting deferrals and
$60.3million of Unit 3 accounting deferrals have been eliminated and reported as part, of the
extraordinary charge to results of operations for the year ended December 31, 1991. If the Court of
II
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Appeals decision is upheld and assuming no refund willbe required (as discussed above), there willbe
no additional write-offs required in the Company's general purpose financial statements.

4

Rate Case Expenses Incurred in Docket 7460. The issue of recovery of expenses incurred by the
Company and the City of E1Paso in connection with Docket 7460 was severed from the issues ruled
upon by the Texas Commission in that Docket and was assigned,„to a new Docket 8018 for
consideration. On September 20, 1991, the Texas, Commission issued its final order in the case and
approved the reimbursement of approximately $ 10.8 million for expenses incurred by the Company
and approximately $ L1 million for expenses incurred by the City of El Paso. The Texas Commission
further directed that such amounts be, surcharged to the Company's Texas customers over a one-year
period, which the Company completed, in November 1992. The City of El Paso filed an appeal of the
Texas Commission's order in Docket8018 with the Texas District Court, and oral arguments were
held Narch18, 1994. After hearing arguments, the Texas District Court affirmed the Texas
Commission's decision. Further appeals by the City of El Paso are possible. The ultimate outcome of
any such appeal and its result or the materiality thereof cannot be predicted at this time.

In connection with the Company's elimination of net regulatory assets from its balance sheet as
of December 31, 1991, the unrecovered balance of all rate case expenses previously deferred, including
cases other than Docket 7460„+as eliminated. The Company expects that all of these costs ultimately
willbe collected in fullfrom its Texas customers.

Texas Recognition ofPalo Verde Sales and Leasebacks. In its Docket 8363 order and a separate
order issued in August 1989 (Docket 8078), the Texas Commission found the Company's Unit 2 and
Unit 3 sales and leasebacks to be in the public interest. The rulings, ifupheld on appeal, would ensure
that the Texas Commission will consider those transactions in connection with the Company's rate
cases. The finding on the Unit2 sales and leasebacks, in addition to findings regarding federal income
tax expense and other ratemaking issues, is a part of the City of El Paso's appeal of the Docket 8363
order. The City of E1 Paso appealed the Texas Commission's order in Docket 8078 with respect to the
Unit 3 transactions to the Texas District Court. A hearing on the appeal of Docket 8078 has been
scheduled for August 1994. While the Company believes that the Texas District Court willuphold the
Texas Commission's orders, the ultimate outcomes of the appeals and their results or the, materiality
thereof cannot be predicted with certainty at this time.

Performance Standards forPalo Verde. In )991, the Texas Commission established performance
standards in Docket 8892,for the operation of the Palo Verde units. Each Palo Verde unit included in
Texas rates is evaluated annually to determine ifits three-year rollingaverage capacity factor entitles
the Company to a reward or a penalty. There are five performance bands based around a target
capacity factor of70%. Neither a penalty nor a reward would result from capacity factors from 62.5%
to 77.5%. Capacity factors are calculated as the ratio of actual generation to maximum possible
generation. Ifthe capacity factor for any unit is 35% or less, the Texas Commission is required to
initiate a proceeding to determine whether such unit should continue to be included in rate base.

The performance standards are effective as of the date each unit is included in Texas rates, which
was April22, 1988 for Units 1 and 2. In June 1993, the Company filed its third annual performance
report with the Texas Commission. The Company incurred neither a penalty nor a reward for the
1993 report. The three-year capacity factor was 72.9% for Unit 1 and 75.2% for Unit 2. The Company
expects the report to be filed with the Texas Commission in 1994 to refiect performance for Units 1 and
2 resulting in neither a penalty nor a reward, though the projected capacity factor for Unit 2 is
projected to be only slightly above the point at which a penalty could be incurred.

4

1

Recovery ofFuel Expenses. The Company recovers fuel and purchased power costs from its Texas
customers pursuant to a fixed fuel factor established by the Texas Commission. Fuel revenues

80



EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS - (Continued)

collected under the fixed fuel factor must be periodically reconciled to costs allowed by the Texas
Commission. The Company's last reconciliation, Docket 8588, was for the period August 1, 1985
through March 31, 1989, and involved over $200 million in Texas fuel costs. 'Fhe final order issued in
1990 required a refund of approximately $7.1 million, plus interest, which the Company completed,
over a twelve-month period beginning. in February1991. The Company and the City of El Paso
appealed the Texas Commission's order in Docket 8588 to the Texas District Court. On November,25,
1991, the Texas District Court entered judgment on the appeals, upholding the'Pexas Commission's
order on all points except the Company's appeal of the treatment of certain purchased power capacity
costs during 1985-86. With regard to those costs; totaling approximately $4.2 million, the Texas
District Court held that the Texas Commission erred in failing to justify adequately its decision not to
allow the Company to recover such costs through its reconcilable fuel account., The Texas District
Court remanded the case to the Texas Commission with instructions to reconsider the allowance of
such costs. Both the Texas'Commission and the City of El Paso appealed the Texas District Court's
decision to the Court ofAppeals. On March 10, 1993, the Court ofAppeals affirmed the decision of the
Texas District Court. On February 2, 1994, the Texas Supreme Court denied the applications for writ
oferror filed by the City ofEl Paso and the Texas Commission. The case willbe remanded to the Texas
Commission for a new hearing.to address whether the Company should be allowed to include the
purchased power capacity charges as reconcilable fuel, costs and recover such costs.,The ultimate
outcome of this hearing cannot be predicted at this time.

On January 26, 1993, the Texas Commission adopted a new fuel rule allowing for adjustment of
the fixed fuel factor every six months on a prescribed schedule and requiring reconciliation of fuel
costs and revenues whenever three years of fuel data have accumulated. Under the new rule,cboth
refunds and.surcharges are allowed without changing the fixed fuel factor where the cumulative over-
or under-recovered fuel balance, including interest,,is greater than or equal,.to'4% of the estimated
annual fuel costs adopted most recently by the Texas Commission. The Texas Commission is required
to act on a petition to change a fixed fuel factor within sixty or ninety days, depending on whether a
hearing is required. The Company is allowed under the prescribed schedule to petition for a change in
its Texas fixed fuel factor in January and July ofeach year under the new, rule.

"
Ratemaking Treatment ofFederal Income Taxes. In a 1987 case involving an electric utility, the

Texas Supreme Court determined that, under certain circumstances, it is appropriate to allow only
"actual taxes incurred" for ratemaking purposes. The Court of Appeals has applied the Texas
Supreme Court decision to another utility. Public Utility Commission of Texas u. GTE-Southwest,
833S.W.2d 153 (Tex. App. - Austin 1992, writ granted). The Texas Supreme Court heard oral
argument in that case in September 1993 and has not ruled yet.

N

Additionally, the Texas Commission has recently applied various forms of the "actual taxes
incurred" methodology in rate proceedings involving other utilities. There is significant uncertainty
as to the application of the methodology used in those proceedings. The Texas Commission historically
had granted rates that included an income tax component based on a "stand alone basis" and on the
utility's allowed return on equity. The Texas Commission has now altered this policy, The appeals
related to Dockets 8363 and 9945 include claims that the Texas Commission failed to adhere to the
"actual taxes incurred" methodology in setting the federal income tax expense component of the
Company's rates. As a result, any remand of Dockets 7460, 8363, 9165 or 9945 to the Texas
Commission could include a reconsideration of the respective federal income tax components, which
were based on the "stand alone" methodology previously used by the Texas Commission.

II

Depending, on the outcome of any such remand, the Company may be required to refund certain „

amounts collected in rates since 1988. The likelihood and amount ofany refunds are uncertain at this
time because the ultimate'utcome of the pending appeals is unknown, and the Company cannot
predict the result ofany remand.
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Texas Rates Proposed in the Plan ofReorganization. The Company filed on January 10, 1994, for
its fifth increase under the terms of the Rate Moderation Plan ordered by the Texas Commission in
Docket 7460, and a base rate increase under the inventory plan for Palo Verde Unit 3 established in
Docket 9945. The proposed rate changes represent what the Company believes is supported under
Texas law and prior Texas Commission orders, adjusted to reflect, its proposed acquisition by CSW.
The filingis proceeding under Docket 12700.

The total amouiit of the Company's requested cash base rate increase, exclusive of fuel, in the
filing is approximately $ 41.4 million. The total increase consists of (i) a base rate increase of
$8.3 million, constituting the proposed 3.5 percent increase contemplated under the Rate Moderation
Plan for costs other than those associated with Palo Verde Unit 3; and (ii) a base rate increase of $ 33.1
million, constituting the proposed increase under the inventory plan for Palo Verde Unit 3. As
discussed below, CSW has made a contemporaneous settlement offer that proposes rates lower than
those reflected in the Company's rate filing.

In the Docket 12700 proceeding, the Company has further proposed to reconcile its Texas fuel
costs and revenues for the period from April 1989 through June 1993 and to decrease its current
average fixed fuel factor, The proposed decrease in the average fixed fuel factor is anticipated to a
decrease annual fuel revenues by approximately $ 14.3 million. As a result of the fuel reconciliation
and treatment of other fuel-related items, the Company has accrued in its financial statements and
proposes to refund to Texas jurisdictional customers (as a credit to'uel revenue collections)
approximately $ 16.4 million over a 12-month period. In addition, the Company proposes to recover
from Texas jurisdictional customers over a 12-month period a rate case expense surcharge of
approximately $ 8.7 million. The net effect of the proposed changes, together with the requested rate
increases, would be an approximate $19.4million increase in revenues from Texas jurisdictional
customers for the first 12-month period the changes are in effect.

The Company has not included in the rate filing a request to recover the costs of bankruptcy
reorganization or the $288.4 million from the draws on the letters of credit related to the Company's
sale and leasebacks of portions of its interest in Palo Verde, which draws occurred in late December
1991 and early January 1992. The Company has sought to reserve the ability to seek recovery of such
costs ifthe Plan does not become effective.

In addition to the Company's rate filing, the Company and CSW filed on January 10, 1994, a
Joint Report and Application {the "Texas Merger Application") with the Texas Commission requesting
(i) a determination that the acquisition by CSW of one hundred percent of the Company's common
stock is consistent with the public interest; and (ii) certain determinations regarding the regulatory
treatment of the Company's proposed reacquisition of the portions ofPalo Verde that itpreviously sold
and leased back.

il

As part of the Texas Merger Application and as a basis of settlement, CSW proposes rates for
Texas jurisdictional customers of the Company that are substantially less than those reflected in the
Company's rate case filing. The CSW settlement offer is contingent on the determination by the Texas
Commission that CSW's acquisition of the Company is consistent with the public interest and the
other regulatory determinations and approvals requested in the Texas Merger Application. The

„proposed settlement offers (i) to limitthe non-fuel base rate increase forTexas jurisdictional customers
to $ 25 million;(ii)a proposed $ 12.8 million reduction in fixed fuel factors; (iii)a refund of$ 16.4 million
over a 12-month period of over-recovered fuel costs and other fuel-related items; and (iv) a rate case
expense surcharge of$4."1 million related to previous rate cases to be collected over a 12-month period.
Taking into account the annual reduction in fuel costs and the proposed fuel refund, the Company's
revenues from Texas jurisdictional customers would not increase during the first year after the rate
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change goes into effect. The settlement rate plan proposed by CSW also provides for (i) a freeze in the
effectiveness of any additional base rate increase until 1997; (ii) a limitation in the frequency of base
rate increases following the rate freeze period through 2001 to not more than once every other year
(i.e., 1997, 1999 and 2001); and (iii) a limitation on the amount of the 1997, 1999 and 2001 base rate
increases, such that each increase would not exceed eight percent of total rev'enues.

The Company expects the City ofEl Paso and some intervenors in Docket 12700 willcontest both
the Merger and the proposed rate increase. However, at this time, the City of El Paso has taken no
official action in opposition to or support of the Merger'r requested rate increase. The Company
anticipates the number of intervenors will be greater than in a typical rate filing. SPS and other
Texas utilities have filed motions to intervene.. The Company cannot predict at this time whether the
settlement proposal will be adopted by the Texas Commission as proposed or whether the„. Texas
Commission willenter the requested findings in connection with the Texas iMerger Application. The
Texas Merger Application has. been consolidated with Docket 12700. The presiding officers approved a
stipulation under which hearings in the consolidated proceeding will begin in late July 1994. The
Company will be entitled to increase its rates undei'ond in mid-July 1994, subject to refund
depending,op the final outcome of the proceeding. The Company has not determined what level of
increase would be implemented under bond, should itchoose to do so. The Company anticipates a final
order willbe issued in Docket 12700 during the first halfof 1995,

New Mexico Rate Matters
I(

h,

Rate Moderation Plan-Palo Verde. In 1987, the New Mexico Commission approved a stipulation
ia Case 2009 establishing a rate moderation plan, pursuant to which the New Mexico jurisdictional
portion of the Company's interest in Unit 1 and one-.third ofcommon plant, and approximately 83% of
the lease payments on Unit 2 and the related common plant were phased-in to.rates in three steps.
After the third step of the phase-in, the plan froze New Mexico rates through December 31, 1994. The
Company agreed that it will not request rate base or cost of service „treatment, or other rate
recognition, fo'r Unit 3 and its related Common Plant.

The Company willbe required to recover the New Mexico jurisdictional portion of the Company's
investment in'nit 3 through off-system sales in the economy energy market. For several years,
market prices for econoiny energy sales have not been at levels sufficient to recover the New Mexico
portion of the Company's current operating expenses related to, Unit 3, including decommissioning
costs and lease payments. The Company expects these market prices to remain at such levels in the
near term, The Company projects, however, that the market prices of economy energy ultimately will
rise to a level sufficient, to recover the,New Mexico jurisdictional portion of the Company's investment
in Unit3 over the remaining life of the asset.

Ih

Performance Standards for Palo Verde. In 1986, the NewMexico Commission established
performance standards in Case 1833 for the operation of the Palo Verde units. The entire station is
evaluated annually to determine ifits achieved capacity factor entitles the Company to a reward or a
penalty. There are five performance bands based around a target capacity factor of 67.5%. Neither a
penalty nor a reward would result from capacity factors from 60% to 75%. The capacity factor is
calculated as the ratio of actual generation to maximum possible generation. Since Unit 3 is not in
rate base for purposes ofNew Mexico rates, any penalty or reward calculated on a total station basis is
limited to two-thirds of such penalty or reward. If.the annual capacity factor is 35% 'or less, the
New Mexico Commission is required to initiate a proceeding to reconsider the rate base treatment.

Annual Filing Requirements. Pursuant to the New Mexico Commission's order in Case 1833, the
Company must make annual filings, at least through the term of the rate moderation plan, to reconcile
fuel costs and establish the fixed fuel factor for New Mexico customers. An annual performance
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standards report is included in the fuel reconciliation and any resulting rewards or penalties are
included in the establishment of a new fixed fuel factor, ifa new factor is warranted. The Company
has received an extension through i>larch 31, 1994 to file its annual fuel reconciliation report for the
period January 1, 1993 through December 31, 1993. The Company expects such report willresult in a
significantly higher fuel factor, including no reward or penalty under the performance standards. The
new factor is proposed to be implemented in May 1994. The Company also has requested an extension
to file a cost of service compliance report with the New Mexico Commission in June 1994.

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Rate Matters

The majority"of the Company's rates for wholesale power and transmission services are subject to
regulation by the FERC. Sales of wholesale power subject to FERC regulation make up a significant
portion, approximately 15% in 1993,'f the Company's operating revenues. Although rates to
wholesale customers require FERC approval, the Company and its wholesale customers generally
have established such rates through negotiations, based on certain cost ofservice assumptions, subject
to FERC acceptance of the negotiated rates.

The Company has a long-term firm power sales agreement with Imperial Irrigation District
("IID")providing for the sale of 100 MW of firmcapacity to IID through April2002. The Company also
provides contingent capacity of 50 MW to IID. The agreement generally provides for level sales prices
over the life of the agreement, which were intended to recover fully the Company's projected costs, as
well as a return. Because of the levelized rate, such costs and return were anticipated to exceed
revenues for a number of the early years of the agreement with a reciprocal effect in the later years of
the agreement. The Company has accrued revenues under the terms of the agreement in the amounts
of $2.4 million, $2.9 million, and $ 4.9 million in 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively. Such accrued
amounts, which since the inception of the agreement aggregate $ 32 million as of December 31, 1993,
are recorded as a long-term contr'act receivable on the Company's balance sheets. Based on the
contractual payments, recovery of the unbilled amounts should begin in 1995. The agreement also
provides that the Company may seek increases in the sales price if sufficient evidence exists to
determine that certain operating costs have increased above those used in determining the original
sales price.

The Company has a firm power sales agreement with Texas-New 'Mexico Power Company
("TNP"), providing for sales to TNP in the amount of 79 MW in 1993 and 75 MW thereafter through
2002, subject to provisions in the agreement that allow a reduction to a minimum of 25 MW in the
amount of demand on a yearly basis. TNP has provided the Company notice that it would take
advantage of the provisions to reduce the contract demand to 25 MW for 1994 and 1995, while
preserving its option to maintain or reduce its contract demand in subsequent years. Sales prices,
which decline over the life of the agreement, are based on substantially the same scheduled and
pi ojected costs and return as the IIDagreement discussed above.

Rate tariffs currently applicable to IID and TNP contain appropriate fuel and purchased power
cost adjustment provisions designed to recover the Company's fuel and purchased power costs.

Other Wholesale Customers
'he

Company has a sales agreement to provide capacity and associated energy to CFE through
the end of 1996. The sales willbe at 150 MWduring the summer months and 120 MWat other times of
the year through the remaining term of the agreement. Pricing for the agreement includes an
escalating capacity charge and recovery, of energy costs at system-average costs plus third-party
energy charges. To support the requirements of the agreement with CFE, the Company entered into a
firmpower purchase agreement with SPS for at least 50 MWduring the term of the CFE contract.
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D. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General. The Company maintains its accounts in accordance with the Uniform System of
Accounts prescribed for electric utilities by the FERC. The Company, prior to December 31, 1991,
reported its regulated utility operations pursuant to SFAS No. 71,."Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation," as amended. As more fully, discussed in Note C, the Company
discontinued the application of SFAS No. 71 as of December 31, 1991 and accounted for such
discontinuation in accordance with SFAS No. 101, "Regulated Enterprises —Accounting for the
Discontinuation ofApplication ofSFAS No. 71.",

The Company has accounted for all transactions related to the reorganization proceedings in
accordance with Statement of Position 90-7, "Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization
Under the Bankruptcy Code" ("SOP 90-7"), issued by the American Institute of CertiTied Public
Accountants in November 1990. Accordingly, all prepetition liabilities of the Company that are
expected to be impaired under the plan of reorganization are reported separately in the Company's
balance sheet as obligations subject to compromise (See Note H for a description of such obligations).
Expenses and interest income resulting directly from the reorganization proceedings are reported
separately in the Statements ofOperations as reorganization items.

- The confirmation of the Plan (Note A) did not result in changes in the carrying amounts of the
Company's assets or liabilities or the accounting bases used by the Company. Changes caused by
emerging from bankruptcy would be, reflected at the Effective Date..In addition, the effects of the
Merger have not been reflected because of uncertainties regarding whether the Merger will be
consummated. In the event the Merger is consummated, it is anticipated that it would be recorded
using the purchase method of accounting whereby the Company's assets and liabilities would be
adjusted to market value on the Effective Date.

Utility Plant. Utilityplant is stated at original cost, less regulatory disallowances. Costs
include labor, material, construction overheads, an allowance for funds. used during construction
("AFUDC") and capitalized interest effective January 1,,1992 (see AFUDC discussion below).
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis at annual rates which will amortize the
undepreciated cost, of depreciable property over the estimated remaining service lives which range
from 12 years to 49 years. Palo Verde Station is being amortized on a straight-line basis over
approximately 40 years.

I

The Company charges the cost of repairs and minor replacements to the appropriate operating
expense accounts and capitalizes the cost of renewals and betterments. Gains or losses resulting from
retirements or other dispositions ofoperating property in the normal course ofbusiness are credited or
charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation.

Decommissioning cost for the Company's interest in Palo Verde is charged to depreciation
expense. The Company amortizes decommissioning costs over the estimated service life for the portion
of its owned interest and over the term of the related leases for the portions sold and leased back.

I
F

The cost of nuclear fuel is amortized to fuel expense on a unit-of-production. basis. A provision
for spent fuel disposal costs is charged to expense based on requirements of DOE for disposal cost of.
one-tenth ofone cent, on each kilowatt hour generated.

AFUDC. As a result of discontinuation of the application of SFAS No.,71, the Company
discontinued accruing AFUDC in 1992. In place ofAFUDC, the Company capitalizes to construction
work in progress ("CWIP") interest cost calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 34, "Capitalization of
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Interest Cost," and SOP 90-7. The amount of AFUDC was determined by applying an accrual rate to
the balance of certain CWIP costs. In this connection, the FERC has promulgated procedures for the
computation (a prescribed formula) of the accrual rate. The weighted average accrual rate for AFUDC
was 8.35% for 1991.

1

Cash and Cash Equivalents. All temporary cash investments with an original maturity of three
months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Investments. The Company values its investments at amortized cost. Such investments consist
primarily of municipal bonds in trust funds established for decommissioning Palo Verde. SFAS
iNo. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities," will require these
investments to be valued at market value beginning in'1994. The Company does not believe the
effects ofadopting SFAS No. 115 willbe significant.

Inventories. Inventories, primarily p'arts, materials and supplies, are stated at average cost.

Operating Revenues. Operating revenues are accrued for sales of electricity subsequent to
monthly billingcycle dates but prior to the end of the accounting month.

Fuel Cost Adjustment Provisions. Fuel revenues and expense are stated at actual cost incurred.
The Company's Texas and New Mexico retail customers are pres'ently being billed under fixed fuel
factors approved by the Texas Commission and the New Mexico Commission. Rate tariffs currently
applicable to certain FERC jurisdictional customers contain appropriate fuel and purchased power
cost adjustment provisions designed to recover the Company's fuel and purchased power costs. Any
difference in fuel cost versus cash recovery from the Company's ratepayers is reflected as
over/under-recovered fuel in the balance sheet.

Federal Income Taxes and Investment Tax Credits. Effective January 1, 1993, the Company
began accounting for federal income taxes under SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes," which
requires the asset and liabilitymethod of accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability
method, deferred income-taxes are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences of"temporary
differences" by applying enacted statutory tax rates for each taxable jurisdiction applicable to future
years to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing
assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 109 recognizes the effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rate in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Prior to 1993, in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 11 ("APB Opinion No. 11"), the Company
used the deferred method ofaccounting for income taxes.'nder the deferred method, deferred income
taxes are provided on timing differences between reporting income and expense items for financial
statement and income tax purposes. The Company recognized the effect of a change in accounting
principle for the adoption ofSFAS No. 109 by a $96 millioncharge to results ofoperations.

Investment tax credit generated by the Company is deferred and amortized to income over the
estimated remaining useful lives of the property that generated the credit.

Benefit Plans. See Note L for accounting policies regarding the Company's retirement plans
and postretirement benefits.

I

Reclassi fications. Certain amounts in the financial statements for 1992 have been reclassified
to conform with the 1993 presentation.

E
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E. Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station

The Company has a 15.8% undivided interest in the Palo Verde Station in which six other
utilities (collectively, the "Palo Verde Participants" ) have interests, including Arizona Public Service
Company ("APS"), who is the operating agent of Palo Verde. The operation of Palo Verde and the
relationship among the Palo Verde Participants is governed by the ANPP Participation Agreement. A
summary of the Company's 15.8% investment in the three 1,270 iVIWnuclear generating units, which
comprise Palo Verde Station and investment in other jointlyowned utilityplant, excluding fuel, is as
follows:

Electric Plant, Accumulated

'In thousands)

Construction Work
in Pro ress

December 31, 1993:
Palo'Verde Station
Other

$ 928,351
133,561

$ (112,296)
(49,628)

$ 19,881
1,833

December 31, 1992:
Palo Verde Station
Other

$ 916,604 .

133,301
$ (93,456)

(44,623)
$ 22,397

995

The Company's investment, at cost', in the Palo Verde Station in the amount of approximately
$948.2 million at December 31, 1993 excluded amounts of approximately $653.4million which
represent the book value of the Company's investment in Palo Verde Station which was sold and
leased back during 1986 and 1987 and for which the related leases are accounted for as operating
leases. See Note B of Notes to Financial Statements for information regarding such transactions and
the Company's lease obligations relating thereto. The Company's share ofdirect expenses ofoperating
jointly owned plant is included in the corresponding operating expense captions on the statement of
operations.

Steam Generator 7'u6es. Following the rupture of a steam generator tube in Unit2 on
iVIarch14, 1993,-APS began an inspection program of the steam generators in each unit. Such
program included inspections of tubes in both steam generators in each unit, beginning with Unit 2
during its scheduled refueling outage that began in March 1993, and continuing with the regularly
scheduled refueling outage for Unit 1 in September 1993 and mid-cycle inspection outages for Unit 3
in November 1993 and Unit 2 in January 1994.

APS identified and implemented corrective actions to address the accelerated tube degradation
found in Unit 2 and the more common typ'e of tube cracking found in each unit during the inspections.
Such corrective actions include chemical cleaning, operating at reduced temperature levels and, for a
period of time, operating each unit at 85-86% power.

Lia6ilityand Insurance Matters. The Palo Verde Participants have insurance for public liability
payments resulting from nuclear energy hazards to the full limitof liabilityunder federal law. This
potential liabilityis covered by primary liabilityinsurance provided by commercial insurance carriers
in the amount of $200 millionand the balance by an industry-wide retrospective assessment program.
The maximum assessment per reactor under the retrospective rating program for each nuclear
incident is approximately $79.2 million, subject to an annual limitof $ 10 million per incident. Based
upon the Company's 15.8% interest in the three Palo Verde units, the Company's maximum potential
assessment per incident is approximately $ 37.6 million, with an annual payment limitation of
approximately $4.7 million.
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The Palo Verde Participants maintain "all risk" (including nuclear hazards) insurance for,
property damage to, and decontamination of, property at Palo Verde in the aggregate amount of
$ 2.7 billion, a substantial portion of which must first be applied to stabilization and decontamination.
The Company.'has also secured insurance against portions of any increased cost of generation or
purchased power resulting from the accidental outage of any of the three units ifthe outage exceeds
21 weeks.

Decommissioning. The Company's depreciation. expense includes approximately $7.5 million,
$5.2million and $3.6million in 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively, for the estimated future
decommissioning costs for the owned and leased portions of Palo Verde based on decommissioning
studies performed for the Company. The above amounts reflect updated studies implemented in July
1992 and September 1993. The, Company is accruing its decommissioning obligation over the
estimated service life (approximately 40 years) for the portion of its owned interest in Palo Verde and
over the term of the related leases (27 to 29) years for the portions of Palo Verde that were sold and
leased back. As of December 31, 1993, the Company„has accrued approximately $ 30.1 million of
decommissioning costs, including interest, which is reflected in the Company's balance sheet in
deferred credits and other liabilities.

The Company is utilizing a site specific study for Palo Verde, dated December 1993, prepared
for the Company by an independent consultant,- that estimates the cost to decommission the
Company's share of Palo Verde to be approximately $221 million (stated in 1993 dollars). Such
amount includes an estimated cost to decoinmission on-site spent fuel storage facilities of
approximately $50million. The study assumes the prompt removaVdismantlement method of
decommissioning will be used to decommission Palo Verde. The study also assumes (i) that
decommissioning will take place from 2024,through 2035 for the production units', (ii) that
maintenance expense for spent fuel storage will be incurred from 2035 through 2067 and (iii) that
decommissioning of the spent fuel storage facilities willoccur in 2067. Although the study is based on
the latest available information, there can be no assurance that decommissioning costs will not
continue to increase in the future.

The Company has established trusts with independent trustees, which enable the Company to
record a current deduction. for federal income tax purposes of a portion of amounts funded. As of
December 31,,1993, the aggregate balance of the trust funds was approximately $ 15.8 million, which
is reflected in the Company's balance sheet in deferred charges and other assets. Earnings on the
trusts'unds ofapproximately $ 600,000, $ 500,000 and $400,000 in 1993, 1992 and 1991„respectively,
are reflected on the statements of operations as interest income. The Company is currently collecting
a portion of decommissioning costs for Palo Verde Units 1 and 2 in all three of its ratemaking
jurisdictions and for Unit 3 in its Texas and FERC jurisdictions. The Company must fund the
decommissioning requirements for the New Mexico jurisdictional portion of Unit 3 through off-system
sales of economy energy as Unit 3 is excluded from New Mexico jurisdictional rate base. Because the
Company is under fixed-price long term contracts with its FERC customers, the amount of
decommissioning costs received in current rates is insufficien to fund the FERC portion of
decommissioning'costs, and therefore, the Company "must fund this shortfall through internally
generated cash.

Currently, the Company is funding decommissioning costs over the estimated service life for its
owned portion of Palo'Verde and, prior to filingthe bankruptcy petition, over the term of the related
leases for the leased portion of Palo Verde. Subsequent to the filingof the bankruptcy petition, the
Company has made contribute'ns-to the decommissioning trusts pursuant to funding requirements of
the NRC, the ANPP Participation Agreement and orders of the Texas Commission, the New Mexico
Commission and the FERC. These funded amounts are slightly less than what would have been
required pursuant to provisions under applicable agreements related to the Company's sale/leaseback
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transactions for Units 2 and 3. Under the proposed terms of the Plan, the Com'pany would reacquire
all portions ofPalo Verde sold and leased back. Ifthis occurs, the Company anticipates it would accrue
for and fund all portions of the Palo Verde decommissioning costs over the operating license terms.
This funding method has been incorpora'ted in the rate request in the Company's rate filingcurrently
pending before the Texas Commission.

The Ene'rgy Policy Act includes an assessment for decontamination of the DOE's enrichment
facilities. The-total amount of this assessment has not yet been finalized; however, based on
preliminary indications, APS estimates that the annual assessment for Palo Verde will be
approximately $3 million, plus increases for inflation, for the next fifteen years. The Company
recorded a charge to results of operations in 1992 in the amount of approximately $7.1 million which
represents its portion of the estimated assessment.

J

The SEC'staff recently announced its intention to require that estimated total decommissioning
costs be recorded as a "liability in the financial statements beginning in 1994. The FASB indicated
that'it may consider the broader area of the treatment of environmental exit costs, which would
encdmpass decommissioning of nuclear power plants. The SEC staff has preliminarily indicated that
if the FASB considers this issue, it will:delay any change in the current practice of accruing the
decommissioning liabilityover the plant's useful life, pending FASB action. Ifthe SEC staff were to
require such a change in 1994, the Company would be required to record an additional liability of
approximately $ 191 millionbased on the current cost estimates discussed above. At the present time,
the Company cannot predict the effects on the financial condition or results of operations if it were
required to record the additional liability.

t

ANPP Participation Agreement. Pursuant to the ANPP Participation Agreement, each
Palo Verde Participant is required to fund its proportionate share of, operation and maintenance,
capital and fuel costs of Palo Verde. The Company's total monthly share of these costs is
approximately $7 million. The" ANPP Participation Agreement provides that if a PaloVerde
Participant fails to meet its payment obligations, each non-defaulting Palo Verde Participant shall
pay its proportionate share of the payments owed by the defaulting Palo, Verde Participant. On
February,13, 1992,'the Bankruptcy Court approved a stipulation between the Company and APS, as
the operating agent of Palo Verde, pursuant to which the Company agreed to pay its proportionate
share of all Palo Verde'invoices delivered to the Company after February 6, 1992. The Company
agreed to make these payments until such time as an order is entered by the Bankruptcy Court, if
ever, authorizing or directing the Company's rejection of the ANPP Participation Agreement
governing the relationship among the Palo Verde Participants. The stipulation also specifies that
approximately $9.2 million of the Company's Palo Verde payment obligations are to be considered
prepetition general unsecured claims of the other Palo Verde Participants. Pursuant to the Plan, the
Company intends to assume the ANPP Participation Agreement and the other agreements related to
the operation of Palo Verde. To accomplish this and to resolve pending issues related to the
assumption of the'agreements and cure of existing defaults, the Company and the other Palo Verde
Participants have entered 'into a Cure and Assumption Agreement that was approved by the
Bankruptcy Court on November19, 1993. The Cure and Assumption Agreement sets forth the
mechanism by which the ANPP Participation Agreement and other operating agreements related to
Palo Verde will be assumed as of the Effective Date. Pursuant to the agreement,"the Company paid
APS, as operating agent, the amount of the prepetition obligations and'APS, paid the Company
amounts ofprepetition refunds that had been withheld, subject to all of such amounts being returned
in the event the Plan does not become effective.
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F. Common Stock

In May 1989, the Board of Directors eliminated the second quarter 19S9 common stock dividend
and the Company has not paid dividends on its common stock since then. il

Resumption of dividends on common stock will depend on the terms of the Plan that becomes
effective in the Company's Bankruptcy Case as well as applicable provisions of state law and the
Federal Power Act. Under certain provisions of the Federal Power Act regarding the payment of
dividends on capital stock, as interpreted by the staff of the FERC, the Company is permitted to pay
dividends on its capital stock only out of retained earnings.

Employee Stock Pure/tase Plan. The Company has an employee stock purchase plan under
which eligible employees are granted options twice each year to purchase, through payroll deductions,
shares of common stock from the Company at a specified discount from the fair market value of the
stock; provided, however, that ifthe option price exceeds the fair market value of the stock on the date
of exercise of the option, the Company, in lieu of selling the stock at the option price, purchases in
the open market, for the accounts of the participants, that number of shares of common stock= as the
aggregate of the payroll deductions under the plan willpurchase. Discount from fair market value is
charged to expense. This employee benefit plan willterminate June 30, 1994.

i
'J

Employee Stock Compensation Plan. The Company has a broad-based, employee stock
compensation plan under which shares of Company common stock may be issued from time to time to
eligible employees. Under the plan, the Board's Compensation/Benefits Committee may direct the
issuance from time to time of Company common stock to compensate employees for past services
rendered to the Company or to pay for various employee benefits with common stock rather than with
cash. In 1991, the Board of Directors approved the reservation ofan additional 600,000 shares ofstock
for issuance under the plan. However, the Company has not filed the necessary applications with the
New Mexico Commission and the FERC to obtain approval of the issuance of the additional
600,000 shares or the registration statement related to such shares with the SEC and does not intend
to do so at the current time'arket value of shares issued would be charged to expense, Under the
Plan and Merger, this employee benefit plan would be terminated at the Effective Date of the Plan.

Employee Stock Option Plan. The Company's Employee Stock Option Plan was approved by the
Board of Directors in December 19S7 and received shareholder and regulatory approval in 198S.
Following amendment in 1990 to approve an increase in the number of shares available, the plan
authorizes the issuance of up to 3,000,000 shares of common stock pursuant to options which may be
granted at not less than fair market value.

At December 31, 1993, the outstanding common stock options are as follows:

Date of0 tions

August 23, 19S9
January 24, 1990
March 27, 1990
i%lay 21, 1990
November 19, 1990
May 18 1992
November 17, 1992 2 A ~ ~

Total options outstanding

Total options exercisable at December 31, 1993 .....

Option
Price

8 "8.875
8.625
8.375
7.250
3.875
3.000
2.500

Number
ofShares

325,600
100,000
145,800

50,000
895,525
750,000
722 100

2 989 025

1 516 925
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Subsequent to December 31, 1993, options representing 834,394 shares of the Company's
common stock expired. Options for a total of 840,394 shares are available for award under the stock
option plan.

Options granted November 19, '1990, May 18, 1992 and November 1'l, 1992 are exercisable in
installments, with 25% of the options exercisable immediately and an additional 25% exercisable each
fullyear from the date of the award. In addition, the options granted May 18, 1992 and November 17,
1992 are not exercisable with certain exceptions, until a plan of reorganization becomes effective in
the Company's Bankruptcy Case. Allother options granted were exercisable immediately. Alloptions
granted have a ten-year expiration period from the date of the award, subject to earlier termination in
the event of termination of employment, death, total and permanent disability or dissolution or
liquidation of the Company. The plan also provides for stock appreciation rights ifthere is a change in
control of the Company, as defined in the plan. Options are granted at the discretion of the
Compensation/Benefits Committee of the Board. During 1993 and 1992 there were no options
exercised. Under the Plan and pursuant to the Merger Agreement, options outstanding at the
Effective Date of the Plan would be converted to options to purchase common stock ofCSW.

Changes in common stock are as follows:

Shares
Common Stock

Amount

Balance December 31, 1990
Issuances ofCommon Stock:

1991
1992
1993

Balance December 31, 1993

35,352,211

173,250
9,502
9 357

35 544 330

(In thousands)

$ 338,302

745
31
19

339 097

Shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the above described stock benefit plans
were 3,116,680 at December 31, 1993.

Directors'Stocit Compensation Plan. In 1991, the Board of Directors approved a Directors'tock
Compensation Plan, which was submitted to and approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
Annual Meeting held May 20, 1991, subject-»to regulatory approval. However, the Company has not
filed the necessary applications with the New Mexico Commission and the FERC to obtain approval of
the issuance of up to 300,000 shares ofcommon stock under the plan or filed a registration statement
related to the shares to be issued under the plan with the SEC and does not intend to do so at the
current time. A total of300,000 shares of the Company's common stock would be reserved for issuance
under the plan if the regulatory approvals are obtained. Issuances at fair market value would be
charged to expense. Under the Plan and the Merger, this benefit plan would be terminated at the
Effective Date of the Plan.

G. Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors voted to suspend, effective for the October 1, 1991 scheduled payment
date, payment of preferred stock dividends, as well as sinking fund payments on the preferred stock.
The Company cannot predict when the preferred stock dividends and sinking fund payments will be
resumed, ifever, but such payments are precluded by the Bankruptcy Code during the Company's
Bankruptcy Case. (See Note A for the treatment of preferred stock, including interim payments,
under the Plan.)
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Since dividends on the outstanding preferred stock have accumulated and remained unpaid in a
cumulative amount at least equal to fouy quarterly dividends, pursuant to provisions of the Company's
articles of incorporation and applicable stock purchase agreements, the holders of the preferred stock
have been entitled (subject to satisfaction of certain procedural requirements) to elect two additional
directors to the Board of Directors since July 1, 1992 and will have such right until all dividends on
preferred stock have been fully paid or until dividends on any of the outstanding preferred stock
accumulate and remain unpaid in an amount equal to twelve full quarterly dividends. Under the
Company's articles of incorporation, ifpreferred stock dividends in an amount equal to twelve full
quarterly dividends are unpaid, the holders of the preferred stock would be entitled to elect the
smallest number ofdirectors necessary to constitute a majority of the full Board of Directors until all
dividends on preferred stock have been fully paid. When the right to elect directors accrues to the
holders of preferred stock, such. holders vote as a class. Under the Plan, by voting in favor of the Plan,
the preferred shareholders have waived any right to elect a majority of the Board of Directors under

3

the Company's articles of incorporation. The Company has not received notice of any preferred
shareholder's desire or intent to,exercise the right to elect two additional directors and cannot predict
whether or when any such action might be taken.

As discussed earlier, the Company suspended payment of dividends on all series of the
Company's preferred stock effective for the Oc'tober 1, 1991 scheduled payment date. The Co'mpany
accrued dividends on and increased the balance of preferred stock, redemption required, with an
offsetting decrease to retained earnings for the last two quarters of 1991. No such dividends have been
accrued on preferred stock, redemption not required. However, since dividends on all series of the
Company's preferred stock are cumulative, net loss applicable to common stock and net loss per
weighted average shares of common stock outstanding have been computed through December 31,
1991 assuming that all such dividends were accrued.

Because of the bankruptcy filing, the Company, beginning with the first quarter of 1992, ceased
accruing any dividends on preferred stock and eliminated the deduction of preferred stock dividend
requirements from the determination of net income (loss) applicable to common stock and net income
(loss) per weighted average shares of common stock outstanding insofar as the preferred stock is
subordinate to unsecured obligations.

Following is a summary ofcumulative per share dividends in arrears and cumulative dividends
in arrears of issued and outstanding preferred stock, as of December 31, 1993, calculated according to
the terms of the preferred stock:

Preferred Stock, Redemption Required:

$ 10.75 Dividend
$ 8.44 Dividend
$ 8.95 Dividend
$ 10.125 Dividend
$ 11.375 Dividend

Preferred Stock, Redemption not Required:

$ 4.50 Dividend
$ 4.12 Dividend
$ 4.72 Dividend
$ 4.56 Dividend
$ 8.24 Dividend

Cumulative
Per Share
Dividends
in Arrears

$ 26.88
21.10
22.38
25.31
28.44

$ 11.25
10.30
11.80
11.40
20.60

Cumulative
Dividends
in Arrears

(In thousands)

$ 1,398
2,059
2,014
2,531
8 531

16 533

169
155
236
456

'

080
2 096
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The aggregate amount ofaccumulated and unpaid preferred stock dividends as of December 31,
1993 is approximately $ 18.6 million (preferred stock, redemption required, approximately
$ 16.5 million, of which approximately $ 3.3 millionhas been accrued; preferred stock, redemption not
required, approximately $2.1 million).

Preferred Stock, Redemption Required. Following is a summary of issued and outstanding
preferred stock, redemption required:

$ 10.75 Dividend ...,...
$ 8.44 Dividend .......
$ 8.95 Dividend .......
$ 10.125 Dividend .......
$ 11.375 Dividend .......
Accrued dividends in

arrears

Shares

52,000
97,600
90,000

100',000
300 000
639 600

Amount
(In thousands)

$ 5,200
9,760
9,000

10,000
30 000
63,960

3 306
~67 266

Optional
Redemption

Price Per
Share at

December 31,
1993

$ 102.50
102.11
104.48
100.00 "

100.00

Each series of preferred stock, redemption required, is entitled to the benefits of its respective
annual sinking fund which requires redemptions of a specified number of shares or a percentage of
outstanding shares. The sinking fun'd redemption price on all series is $ 100 per share plus accrued
dividends.

Each series, other than the $ 10.75 series, is redeemable at the option of the Company at various
stated redemption prices. Optional redemptions are also generally restricted as to the timing of
redemption when such redemptions are part of or in anticipation ofany refunding involving the issue
of indebtedness or preferred stock having an effective interest cost or effective dividend cost of less
than the stated dividend rate ofeach preferred stock series.

Sinking fund requirements for each of the above series are cumulative and, in the event they
are not satisfied at any redemption date, the Company is restricted from paying any dividends on its
common stock (other than dividends paid in shares of common stock or other class of stock, ranking
junior to the preferred stock'as to dividends or assets). Sinking fund payments in the following
amounts have been missed: (i) $750,000 (7,500 shares at $ 100 per share) due each ofOctober 1, 1991,
October 1, 1992 and October 1, 1993 on the Company's $ 8.95 Dividend Preferred Stock; (ii) $ 600,000
(6,000 shares at $ 100 per share) due each of October 1, 1991, October 1, 1992 and October 1, 1993 on
the Company's $ 8.44 Dividend Preferred Stock; (iii)$ 400,000 (4,000 shares at $ 100 per share) due
each of January 1, 1992, January 1, 1993 and January 1, 1994 on the Company's $ 10.75 Dividend
Preferred Stock; (iv) $ 10 million (100,000 shares at $ 100 per share) due each ofJuly 1, 1992 and July
1, 1993 on the Company's $ 11.375 Dividend Preferred Stock and (v) $ 5 million (50,000 shares at $ 100
per share) due each of July 1, 1992 and July 1, 1993 on the Company's $ 10.125 Dividend Preferred
Stock. At December"'31, 1993 the total arrearage of mandatory sinking fund payments is
$ 34.9 million.
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$ 11,750
1,750
1,750
1,750
1,7501998

h

Redemptions ofpreferred stock, redemption required were as follows:

The aggregate contractual amounts of the above preferred stock required to be redeemed for
each of the next five years are as follows'(In thousands):

1994
1995
1996
1997

Shares Amount
(ln thousands)

Balance at December 31, 1990 793,600 $ 79,360
Redemption ofPreferred Stock, $ 10.75 Dividend ..... (4,000) (400)
Redemption ofPreferred Stock, $ 10.125 Dividend ... (50,000) (5,000)
Redemption ofPreferred Stock, $ 11.375 Dividend ... (100,000) ' '10,000)
Cumulative dividends in arrears 3 306

Balance at December 31, 1991, 1992 and 1993 ......... 639 600 ~67 266

Preferred Stock, Redemption not Required. Following is a summary of preferred stock issued
and outstanding at December 31, 1993 which is not redeemable except at the option of the Company:

$4.50 Dividend
$ 4.12 Dividend
$4.72 Dividend
$4.56 Dividend
$ S.24 Dividend

Shares

15,000
15,000
20,000
40,000
52 450

142 450

Amount
(Inthousands)

$ 1,534
1,506
2,001
4,000
5 157

~14 198

Optional
Redemption

Price Per
Share

$ 109.00
103.98
104.00
100.00
101.34

c

All preferred stock issues (redemption required and redemption not required) are entitled in
preference to common stock, to $ 100 per share plus accrued dividends, upon involuntary liquidation.
All issues are entitled to an amount per share equal to the applicable optional redemption price plus
accrued dividends, upon voluntary liquidation.

H. " Obligations Subject to Compromise

Under the Bankruptcy Code, certain claims against the Company in existence prior to the
Petition Date for reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code are stayed, subject to their treatment in
the Plan (or another plan of reorganization that becomes effective). Additional claims which may also
be subject to compromise, have arisen and may continue to arise subsequent to the Petition Date as a
result of rejection of executory contracts, including the Palo Verde Leases and other leases, and from
the determination by the Bankruptcy Court (or as may be agreed to by parties in interest) of allowed
claims for contingencies and other disputed amounts. In accordance with the SOP 90-7, these claims
are reflected, ateamounts expected to be allowed by the Bankruptcy Court, in the December 31, 1993
and 1992 balance sheets as "Obligations Subject to Compromise," which amounts could differ
substantially from the settled amounts. For a description of the treatment of claims under the Plan,
see Note A.
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The expiration date for filingcreditors'laims against the Company with the Bankruptcy Court
was Jun'e 15, 1992. Approximately 500 proofs of claim had been filed with the Bankruptcy Court and
as ofDecember 31, 1993, unresolved claims approximate $ 5.4 billion. There also are approximately 70
proofs ofclaims that do not specify an amount. The Company continues the process of reviewing each
proof of claim to reconcile the claimed amount with the Company's books and records and believes the
outstanding claimed amounts are grossly overstated. The Company's estimates of the allowed claims
as presented in the financial statements are therefore subject to change based upon the outcome of the
Chapter 11 proceedings.

In late December 1991, the Company ceased paying principal, interest and fees on portions of its
secured and unsecured debt except as described below. All of the Company's debt is in default as a

"result of the events leading to the bankruptcy filing or the filing itself, as discussed below. The
Company expects to remain in default under its existing financing arrangements until a plan of
reorganization becomes effective pursuant to the Bankruptcy Case. These defaults generally would
entitle the Company'.s creditors to accelerate the outstanding principal amounts of debt and pursue
other remedies available under the applicable agreements. As a result of the automatic stay imposed
by the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, however, such creditors generally are prevented from
taking any action to collect such amounts or pursue any remedies against the Company other than
through the Bankruptcy Case. The terms and provisions of the.Company's financing arrangements,
including the maturity dates, would be modified ifthe Plan becomes effective.

In accordance with SOP 90-7, through the Confirmation Date, the Company has been accruing
interest, at contractual non-default rates, only on debt secured by first or second mortgages to the
extent that the value of underlying collateral exceeds the principal amount of First and

Second'ortgage

Bonds and no interest was accrued on other debt. As described in Note A the Plan requires
the Company to make interim payments representing interest on other debt and such amounts have
been recorded since the Confirmation Date.

Since the filing of the petition for reorganization, the Bankruptcy Court has issued various
orders authorizing payment of interest accruing since July 1, 1992 to certain secured creditors. The
Company paid approximately $64.7million and $32.5 million for 1993 and 1992, respectively in
interest on First and Second Mortgage Bonds of the Company for the period ofJuly 1, 1992 through
December 31, 1993, including those bonds held as security for the Company's revolving credit facility,
described below, and interest on three series ofpollution control bonds. With respect to three series of
pollution control bonds, the Company has reserved its right to repayment from the banks issuing
letters ofcredit supporting such bonds ofamounts paid to reimburse the banks for interest paid on the
bonds through draws on the letters of credit in the event that the Bankruptcy Court determines the
payments to the banks were payments of unsecured claims. The Plan does not contemplate seeking
such a ruling, however. The contractual obligations of the Company's debt agreements require
principal payments to be made during the, next year of approximately $29.9 million; these amounts
are presented as non-current because of the stay as of the Petition Date. Contractual obligations of the
Company's debt agreements required principal payments in 1993,and 1992 of approximately
$26.1 million and $ 69.7 million, respectively, of which approximately $900,000 and $ 800,000 were
paid during the same respective periods. Contract non-default interest on unsecured and
undersecured debt was approximately $40.9 millionand $41.1 million in 1993 and 1992, respectively,
which has not been accrued by the Company. As explained in Note A above, interim payments of
approximately $10.2 millionwere accrued in 1993 and recorded as interest expense.
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The following is a summary ofobligations subject to compromise..

Secured Debt:
First Mortgage Bonds (1):

4 5/8% Series, issued 1962, due 1992
6 3/4% Series, issued 1968, due 1998
7 3/4% Series, issued 1971, due 2001

9% Series, issued 1974, due 2004
10 1/2% Series, issued 1975, due 2005
8 1/2% Series, issued.1977=, due 2007
9.95% Series, issued 1979, due 2004

13 1/4% Series, issued 1984, due 1994
11.10% Series, issued 1990, due 2001

December 31
1993 1992

(In thousands)

$ 10,385
24,800
15,838
20,000
15,000
25,000
17,559
17,700

153 000

$ 10,385
24,800
15,838
20,000
15,000
25,000
17,559
17,700

153 000
299 282 299 282

Second Mortgage Bonds (2):
11.58% Series, issued 1990, due 1997
12.63% Series, issued 1990, due 2005
12.02% Series, issued 1991, due 1999

Revolving credit facilitysecured by First and Second
Mortgage Bonds, due 1992 (3)

Pollution Control Bonds (4):
Secured by Second'Mortgage Bonds:

Variable rate bonds, due 2014, net of$ 1,740,000
and $ 1,703,000, respectively, on deposit with trustee

Variable rate refunding bonds, due 2014
Variable rate refunding bonds, due 2015

150 000 150 000

61,760
37,100
59 235

158 095

61,797
37,100
59 235

158 132

35,000 35,000
105,000 105,000

25 000 25 000
165 000 165 000

Nuclear fuel financing (5)
Accrued interest (6) .

„Other
Total secured debt

60,620 60,620
45,654 45,308
14 654 15 348

893 305 893 690

Unsecured Debt:
Notes payable to banks (7)
Pollution control bonds, variable rate, refunding bonds,

due 2013, net of $ 4,041,000 and $3,957,000, respectively
on deposit with trustee (4)

Promissory note due 1992 (8)
Financing obligation Palo Verde Unit 2 (9)
Accrued operating'lease cost, Palo Verde

Units 2 and 3 (Note B)
Capitalized lease obligation, Copper Turbine (10) ..........
Prepetition accrued interest
Other

Total unsecured debt

288,416 288,416

31,764
25,000
79,186

31,848
25,000
79,186

137,734 70,473
9,061 9,928
4,837 4,837

26 012 37 590
602 010 547 278

~1495 315 ~1440 968

96



EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS - (Continued)

(1) First Mortgage Bonds

The First Mortgage Indenture is secured by substantially all of the Company's utility plant.
Under the First Mortgage*indenture the Company may issue bonds to the extent of 60% of the
value ofunfunded (as defined in the Indenture) net additions to the Company's utilityproperty,
provided that earnings available for interest are at least equal to twice the annual interest
requirements on all bonds to be outstanding and on all prior lien debt.

The First Mortgage Indenture provides for sinking and improveinent funds, except as otherwise
noted, equivalent to 1%, (approximately $ 1 million at December 31, 1993), of the greatest
aggregate principal amount of such series outstanding prior to a specified date. The Company
has generally satisfied the 1% requirements for such series by relinquishing the right to use a
net amount of additional property for the issuance of the bonds or by purchasing bonds in the
open market. However, this requirement was not met in 1992 or 1993. With respect to the
9.95% series, the agreement provides for annual cash payments to the trustee equivalent to
4.25% of the greatest aggregate principal amount of such series outstanding at any one time
prior to a specified date, approximately $ 1.1 million as of December 31, 1993. With respect to
the 13.25% series, the agreement provides for annual cash p'ayments to the trustee equivalent
to 20% of the greatest aggregate principal amount of such series outstanding at any one time
prior to a specified date, $ 5.9 million as of December 31, 1993. With respect to 11.10% series,
commencing in June and December 1995, the agreement provides for semiannual cash
payments to the trustee equivalent to 7.14% of the greatest aggregate principal amount of such
series outstanding at any one time prior to a specified date. The following amounts are
contractually due as follows: 1992 —$ 18.4 million; 1993 —$8 million; 1994 —$ 8 million; 1995—
$23.9 million; 1996-$ 23.9 million; 1997 —$ 23.9 million; 1998 —$47 million.

(2) Second Mortgage Bonds

The Second Mortgage Indenture is secured by substantially all of the, Company's utilityplant.
Under the Second Mortgage Indenture the Company may issue bonds on the basis of 40% of the
value ofunfunded (as defined in the Indenture) net additions to the Company's utilityproperty,
or to the" extent of the principal am'ount ofretired bonds.

The Second Mortgage Indenture provides for sinking funds. With respect to the 11.58% series,
the agreement provides for annual cash payments to the trustee commencing in December

- 1994, equivalent to 25% of the greatest aggregate principal amount of such series outstanding
at any one time prior to a specified date. With respect to the 12.63% series, the agreement
provides for annual cash payments to the trustee commencing in December 2001, of a specified
amount. The following approximate amounts are contractually„due as fellows: 1994—
$ 8.8 million; 1995 —$8.8 million; 1996 —$ 8.8 million; 1997 —$ 8.8 million.

(3) Revolving Credit Facility
I'he

Company currently has a total of $ 150 millionof debt outstanding under a revolving credit
facility (the "RCF"). The RCF, which involves a syndicate of money center banks, provided for
substantially all of the Company's short-term borrowing prior to the filingof the bankruptcy
petition. The RCF became due and payable on January 9, 1992. The RCF is secured by $50
million of First Mortgage Bonds and $ 100 million of Second Mortgage Bonds. Interest, on the
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RCF is calculated at the non-default contract rate at the administrating bank's current quoted
prime rate plus 1%. Interest rate at December 31, 1993 was 7%.

(4) Pollution Control Bonds

The Company has approximately $ 195.6 million of tax exempt Pollution Control Bonds
outstanding con'sisting of fou'r issues, of which three issues aggregating $ 159.8 million are
secured by a second mortgage. The bonds bear interest at various rates (1.54% to 3.825% during
1993) which will cause the bonds to have a market value which approximates, as nearly as
possible, their par value. Each of the tax exempt issues is credit enhanced by a letter of credit.
Prior to the Petition Date, interest and other payments on the Pollution Control Bonds were
made through dravys on the letters of credit, and the Company reimbursed the letter ofcredit
banks for such draws. Subsequent to the petition filing, interest on all the bonds has continued
to be paid by draws on the letters of credit. The Company has paid a portion of the resulting
reimbursement obligations to the issuing banks on three Pollution Control Bond issues through
the interest payments authorized by the Bankruptcy Court.

In iilay 1992, one series of the secured Pollution Control Bonds was accelerated and the letter of
credit supporting 'such'series was drawn upon for the p'rincipal and accrued interest. The
Company has not reimbursed the letter of credit bank for the drawing, which aggregated
approximately $37.9 million. The Company has been informed that the letter of credit issuer
for the accelerated bonds asserts that the accelerated bonds, which remain outstanding, are
held as collateral to secure the reimbursement obligations of the Company to the letter ofcredit
issuer. No court determination has been made as to the validity or enforceability of the
collateral interest asserted by such letter ofcredit issuer."

With respect to another series of Pollution Control Bonds, the letter of credit issuer has
informed the Company that such letter of credit issuer has purchased all of the outsta'nding
bonds of that series. A third series of Pollution Control Bonds were remarketed during June
1993 and currently remains outstanding. The final series of Pollution Control Bonds was
remarketed in November 1993 and remains outstanding. Because of the pendency of the
Company's bankruptcy petition as well as other defaults, including the failure of the Company
to reimburse the letter ofcredit issuing banks as described above, the three series of bonds that
have not been accelerated are subject to acceleration at any time. In the event that, these'bonds
a'e accelerated and redeemed, the tax-advantaged interest rate of the bonds may no longer be
available to the Company.

(5) Nuclear Fuel Financing

The Company entered into a nuclear fuel purchase contract with a third party grantor trust,
RioGrande Resources Trust ("RGRT"), established for the sole purpose of financing the
purchase and enrichment of nuclear fuel for use by the Com'pany at Palo Verde. The aggregate
investment of RGRT is reflected on the Company's books at December 31, 1993. Prior to the
filingof the Company's bankruptcy petition, the trust generally financed nuclear fuel and all
costs in connection with the acquisition of the Company's share of nuclear fuel for use at
Palo Verde up to $ 125 million pursuant to a borrowing facility (contractual interest rate of
6.72% at December 31, 1993) that is supported by a letter of credit facility. The Company had
the option of either paying for the fuel from the trust at, the time the fuel was loaded into the
reactor or paying for the fuel at the time heat was generated by the fuel. Prior to the petition
date of the Bankruptcy Case, the Company elected to pay for the fuel as the heat was produced
from the fuel; however, no principal payments of any kind are currently being made to the trust
because of the Company's Bankruptcy Case. Since the Comp'any filed its bankruptcy petition,
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the Company has not sought to finance its fuel costs from the trust, but has instead paid for
nuclear fuel with its own funds. The trust contends that it has an enforceable property interest
in Palo Verde nuclear fuel, power, energy and revenues, which the Company is disputing in the
Bankruptcy Case. The trust and the Company have entered into an interim adequate
protection order in the Bankruptcy Case, which essentially preserves the rights, positions and
arguments of each party, but does not resolve disputes as to the trust's claims and interests in
property.

(6) Accrued Interest

The amount of accrued interest includes approximately $ 11.3 million of prepetition interest.
The remaining amount represents unpaid postpetition interest, primarily from January 9, 1992
through June 30, 1992.

(7) Notes Payable to Banks

The amount represents the aggregate amount of draws on letters of credit supporting, the sales
and leasebacks ofPalo Verde Units 2 and 3. See discussion of letters ofcredit draws at Note B.

(8) Promissory Note

The unsecured note due 1992 is floating rate, 6.00% at December 31, 1993.

(9) Financing Obligation, Palo Verde'Unit 2

In December 1986, the Company entered into a financing obligation related to one sale and
leaseback transaction involving Palo Verde Unit 2 (see Note B)., Semiannual payments
including interest (using an assumed interest rate of 9.01%), which began in July 1987, are
approximately $4.2million, with the last payment of approximately $2.1 million due in July
2013.

(10) Capitalized Lease Obligation, Copper Turbine

In 1980 the Company sold and leased back a turbine and certain other related equipment from
the trust-lessor for a twenty-year period, with renewal options for up to seven more years.
Semiannual lease payments, including interest, which began in January 1982, were
approximately $700,000 through January 1991, and approximately $900,000 thereafter to July
2000. The effective annual interest rate implicitin this lease is calculated to be 9.6%. Again to
the Company related to the sale of the turbine to the trust in the amount of approximately
$2.3 million is being amortized to income over the term of the lease. The Company has paid and
currently intends to continue to pay all postpetition lease payments on the Copper Lease.

Future contractual minimum annual principal requirements on secured and unsecured debt at
December 31, 1993 are as follows (In thousands):

1994
1995
1996
1997
1998

$ 29,941
38,830
36,481
36,121
50,508

As of December 31, 1993, approximately $94.1 million remained due on contractual minimum
annual principal reduction requirements for 1992 and 1993.
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The tabl'e above does not reflect any of the potential effects-upon future contractual debt
requirements that would result from the Plan becoming effective.

I. Federal Income Taxes
4

Effective January 1, 1993, the Company adopted SFAS No. 109*and has reported the
cumulative effect of that change, approximately $ 96 million, separately in the December 31, 1993
Statement of Operations. The charge to operations consists of the recognition of additional tax
benefits and valuation allowances as follows:

Additional net tax benefits
Valuation allowance

State " Total
(In thousands)

$ (153,232) $ (12,230) $ (165,462)
219 246 '2 260 . 261 506

Chargetoo9eratioaa ................. ~66014 " ~30030 ~96044

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities at January 1, 1993, after the adoption of SFAS No. 109, are
presented below (In thousands):

Deferred tax assets:

Benefits of tax loss carryforwards .

Letters ofcredit draws
Gain on sale and leaseback transactions
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits
Investment tax credit carryforward
Capital leases
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward
Other

Total gross deferred tax assets
Less valuation allowance (including a valuation

for state deferred tax assets of$42,260,000) .......
Net deferred tax assets

$ 75,631
98,061
52,400
24,423
28,492
20,598

548
25 311

375,464

113 953

Deferred tax liabilities:

Plant, principally due to differences
in depreciation and basis

Other
Total gross deferred tax liabilities ......

Net accumulated deferred income
taxes at January 1, 1993

(242,557)

~ 258 653

144 695
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As discussed in Note D, the Company's income tax provision was calculated under APB "Opinion
No. 11 prior to January 1, 1993 and'under SFAS No. 109 since that date. The Co'mpany'recognized
income taxes as follows:

Years Ended Decemb'er 31
1993 1992 1991

(In thousands)

Income tax expense (benefit):
Federal:

Current
Deferred '""

Investment tax credit amortization ...
Total .

V
~

$ 15,253 $ " '1 '
(2,766)

(20,345) (1,119)
'

(100,286)
~2841 ~2920 ~3992)
~7933 ~4008) ~107 044

State;
" Current $ ',316' '1 '$

Deferred ~892) '" 224 '67
Total . ~2 424 i 305 i '' 367

The 1993 current fede'ral income expense results from'the payment ofalternative minimum tax.
The 1993 current state income tax expense results from the settlement ofArizona tax claims.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 1993, are presented below (In thousands):

Deferred tax assets:

Benefits of tax loss carryforwards
Letters ofcredit draws
Gain on sale and leaseback transactions
Accrued lease expense
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits
Investment tax credit carryforward
Capital leases .

Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward
Other'otal gross deferred tax assets .

Less valuation allowance (including a valuation
for state deferred tax assets of$42,318)

Net deferred tax assets

$ 33,300
100,946
51,430
53,470
24,147
28,047
24,496
15,796
68 125

399,757

266 215
133 542

Deferred tax liabilities:

Plant, principally due to differences in depreciation and
basis differences

Other
Total gross deferred tax liabilities ...

Net accumulated deferred income
taxes at December 31, 1993

(234,783)
~22 694
~257 4'77

123 935
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The deferred federal income tax benefit in 1993 arises primarily, from differences in
depreciation methods and lives, deferred and capitalized expenses, accrued lease expense and the
recognition of tax benefits related to tax attributes.

The deferred federal income tax benefits from 1992 and 1991 are comprised of the
following.'ears

Ended December 31
1992 1991

Depreciation differences
Deferred and capitalized expenses .

Sale and leaseback transactions
Deferred fuel revenues

, Deferred revenues
Regulatory disallowanc'e

'estructuringcosts
Loss attributable to letters ofcredit draws .......
Net tax (benefits) of loss carryforwards ..........
Other"'xtraordinary item, net

Total deferred, federal income tax benefit

$ 10,535
(262)

1,788
(5,244)

(142)

(5,806)
(1,988) '

~1119)

$ 4,222
15,881
2,706

(3,359)
2,208

(7,631)
(3,663)

(98,061)
11,420
(1,791)

~22 365
~100 433)
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Federal income tax provisions differ from amounts computed by applying the statutory rate of
35% in 1993 and 34% in 1992 and 1991 to the book loss before federal income tax as follows;

Years Ended December 31
1993 1992 1991

(In thousands)

Tax benefit computed on loss before
extraordinary item at statutory rate

(Decreases) increases due to:
Amortization ofequity funds used during

construction
Investment tax credit amortization

(net ofdeferred taxes in 1993)
Tax benefits ofbook loss not recognized ...
Non-deductible reorganization costs
Increase in income tax rate
Other

1,629 1,557

(1,846)
r

11,745
3,403

~3809)

(2,920)

6,889

1 338

(3,992)
36,994

304

i

$ (17,426) $ (10,944) $ (119,542)

7 933 4 008 84 679

Tax benefit computed on extraordinary item
* at statutory rate
Increases due to:

Allowance for equity funds used during
construction written-off

Tax effect of tax-related regulatory assets
written-off .

Tax benefits ofbook taxable loss not
recognized

Other

Total federal income tax benefit ...
i

~7933 ~4008

(105,899)

6,376

26,917

44,841
5 400

22 365
~)07 004),.

Effective federal income tax i

benefit rate .............................. ~15.93 % ~12.45 % ~16.14 %

The Company has tax"NOL carryforwards and investment tax credit carryforwards that could
be reduced or eliminated, or the amounts that can be utilized in,any year could be limited, ifcertain
events occur as a part of the Company's reorganization. Such events include, but are not limited to,
debt forgiveness, the conversion ofdebt to equity or change in control of the Company. The occurrence
of such events cannot be predicted and their effects on the Company's tax attributes, ifany, cannot be
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estimated until a reorganization plan 'is consummated. A summary of the Company's NOL
carryforwards and investment tax credit carryforwards as ofDecember 31, 1993, follows:

Tax Year
Generated

Tax Year
Amount ~Ex tres

{Inthousands)

Tax NOLcarryforward:
1992
1991
1990

$ 880
62,127
61 996
95 003

2007
2006
2005

Investment tax credit carryforward
2005
2002
2001
2000

1990 „ $ 5,652
1987 9,830
1986 11,415
1985 144

~27 041

The 1990 NOL carryforward above has been offset by the estimated taxable income for the year
ended December 31, 1993 ofapproximately $ 50 million.

The federal income tax returns of the Company for the years 1983 through 1989 have been
examined by the IRS. The IRS has filed an amended 'proof of cl'aim in the Bankruptcy Case of
approximately $53.7 million, including interest and penalties up to January 8, 1992. The Company
has filed a motion with the Bankruptcy Court to approve a settlement reached with the IRS for such
claims in the amount of $ 6.5 million, including interest, The years 1990 through 1992 have not been
examined and are not covered by the proof of claim filed. The Company believes that adequate
provisions have been made through December 31, 1993 for the settlement amount and for any
additionhl tax that may be due for open tax years.

On August 10, 1993, President Clinton signed tax legislation which, among other provisions,
increases the corporate income tax rate to 35% retroactive to January 1, 1993. SFAS No. 109 requires
that deferred tax liabilities and assets be adjusted in the period of enactment for the effect of an
enacted change in tax laws or rates. The Company recognized a charge to earnings of $3.4 million in
the third quarter of 1993 to reflect the impact on net accumulated deferred income taxes related to
such increase in the tax rate.

s

J. Commitments and'Contingencies

Cash construction commitments, pursuant to ANPP Participation Agreement, for the Company
subsequent to December 31, 1993 are primarily related to Palo Verde and total approximately
$46.8 million.

Arizona Transaction Privilege ("Sales" ) Tax

The Arizona Department ofRevenue ("ADR")conducted an audit of the sales taxes paid on lease
payments under the Palo Verde Leases during the audit period of August 1, 1988 through July 31,
1990. On March 10, 1992, the Company received copies of Notices of Proposed Assessment (the "Sales
Tax Notices" ) issued by the ADR to each of the taxpayer owner trusts in care of the Owner Trustee.
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The'original proposed total deficiency assessments, which covered only the audit period, were
approximately $8.8million, plus related interest thereon. On February22, 1993, the ADR filed
Notices of Jeopardy Assessment totaling approximately $7.8 million, including interest through
February 28, 1993, to convert the proposed deficiencies for the audit period into jeopardy assessments,
which are immediately collectible. On February 23, 1993, the, ADR filed Notices of Tax Lien in the
Maricopa County Recorder's Office and with the Secretary of State of Arizona against the owner
trusts'nterests in Palo Verde. Under the Arizona tax statutes, the owner trusts can contest both the
jeopardy assessment and the underlying assessment. Although the ADR can take action immediately
to collect the alleged deficiency from the owner trusts, including collection action and foreclosure on
the owner trusts'nterests in Palo Verde, the ADR has taken no action in that regard. The ADR also
may assert additional tax deficiencies for the period from August 1, 1990 through 1991, when the last
lease payments were received by the owner trusts. The Owner Participants have informed the
Company that the ADR has scheduled a hearing on April 11, 1994;

f

If the Owner Trustee or 'Owner Participants incur additional tax liability or other loss as a
result of the assessments, the Owner Trustee and Owner Participants may have a claim against the
Company for indemnification pursuant to the participation agreements and leases in the
sale/leaseback transactions. The Owner Trustee and Owner Participants have filed proofs of claim
alleging unliquidated amounts owed pursuant to the participation agreements and leases, which may
encompass claims for indemnification. Pursuant to the settlement agreements entered into between
the Company, the Owner Trustee and each Owner Participan't in connection with the Plan, the
Company's indemnity obligations under the participation agreements generally would continue in
effect following the Effective Date, including any claim for indemnification as a result of this

matter.'ee

Note B. If the Owner Trustee fails to contest the jeopardy assessment or the underlying
assessment, the Company would challenge the amount of any indemnification claim. The Company
cannot predict the outcome of the underlying tax dispute or any claim for indemnification arising out
of this matter.

Environmental Matters H

The Company is subject to regulation with respect to air, soil and water quality, solid waste
disposal and other environmental matt'ers by federal, state and local authorities, These authorities
govern current facility operations and exercise continuing-jurisdiction over facility modifications.
Environmental regulations can change at a rapid pace and cannot be predicted with certainty. The
construction of new facilities is subject to standards imposed by environmental regulation and
substantial expenditures may be required to comply with such regulations. Recognition in rates of the
capital expenditures and operating costs incurred in response to environmental considerations willbe
subject to normal regulatory review and standards. The Company analyzes the costs of its obligations
arising from environmental matters on an on-going basis and believes it has made adequate provision
in its financial statements to meet such obligations.

Clean AirAct. In November 1990, the Clean Air,ActAmendments of 1990 (the "Clean AirAct")
became law. The Clean Air Act establishes new regulatory and perinitting programs that will be
administered by EPA or delegated to state agencies. Many provisions of the Clean AirAct willaffect
operations by electric utilities, including the Company. In particular, the followingareas addressed in
the Clean AirAct may have a significant impact on the Company; Title I dealing with nonattainment
of national air ambient quality standards, Title IV 'dealing with acid rain, and Title V covering
operating permits. In addition, provisions addressing mobile sources of pollutants and hazardous air
pollutants may have a lesser impact on the Company's operations.

The Company has completed an initial evaluation of the impact of the Clean Air Act on the
Company's operations and has developed a five-year plan beginning in 1993 to implement Clean Air
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Act requirements on existing facilities. As part of the plan, the Company willmake modifications to
existing facilities at th'e Newman Power Station and the Rio Grande Power Station, including
modifications to the steain generators and combustion turbines and the installation of continuous
emissions monitoring equipment. The projected costs. of these capital improvements are
approximately $5 millionover the five-year period of the plan.

t

Rio Grande Power Station. The Company has notified New iVIexico Environment Department
("KMED")of a spill of approximately 510 barrels of fuel oil which occurred at the Rio Grande. Power
Station in August 1986. The initial site assessment has been completed, a remediation plan has been
submitted to iNiXED, and remediation is progressing under the plan. Potential clean-up costs are
currently estimated to be less than $ 500,000 to be incurred over the next five to ten years. The
New Mexico Water Quality,Act: provide's for a potential penalty. of $ 1,000 for each day of violation,
which for a five-year period could result. in a penalty of approximately $2 millions The Company has
been in close communication with the NiVIED and does not believe that a penalty of such magnitude
willbe assessed. The NMED has filed a proof of claim in the Bankruptcy Case reflecting an alleged
obligation in an unspecified sum based on alleged ground water or soil contamination at the Rio
Grande Power Station.

COL-TEX Refinery Site. In November 1991, the Company was notified by the Texas Natural
Resources Conservation Commission ("TNRCC") that the Company had been identified as a
potentially responsible party ("PRP") at the Col-Tex Refinery Texas Superfund Site in Colorado City,
iVlitchell County, Texas (the "Col-Tex Site"). The Col-Tex Site consists of„'approximately 25 acres
located along the Colorado River immediately west ofColorado City, Texas. The Col-Tex Site was the
location of several oil refining companies that, owned and/or operated at the Col-Tex Site from the
1920s to the late 1960s.

The State ofTexas, on behalf of the TNRCC, filed a proof ofclaim in the Company's Bankruptcy
Case for remediation and oversight costs and requested that the claim be accorded administrative
expense priority designation. The TNRCC's position is that the Company is a PRP and is, therefore,
jointlyand severally liable for the fullcost ofclean-up and oversight at the Col-Tex Site. The TNRCC
has.informed the Company informally that it estimates site assessment costs to be approximately
$ 3 million and the total clean-up costs to be approximately $22 million, The Company disputes that it
is liable as a PRP under applicable law; Accordingly, the Company has not agreed to participate in the
assessment and remediation of the Col-Tex Site.

The Company also received notice on January 12, 1993 of the State's review of liability in
connection with an expansion of the Col-Tex Site to an area referred to as Col-Tex II. The Company
has been identified as a PRP in connection with this expanded site, but its position with respect to
liability.there. is consistent with its position with respect to the Col-Tex Site.

The following entities have filed proofs of claim in the Bankruptcy Case related to potential
claims for contribution in the event any of such entities has liabilityfor remediation and oversight
costs of the Col-Tex Site: ASARCO, Inc., Tesoro Petroleum Company, Fina Oil & Chemical Company
and Missouri Pacific Railroad Company.

On November 24, 1993, a Joint Motion for Order Approving the Withdrawal of Proofs of Claim
filed by the State of Texas was filed in the Bankruptcy Case by attorneys for the Company and the
State ofTexas. Fina Oil & Chemical Company filed an objection to the motion and, at this time, no
action has been taken by the Bankruptcy Court.
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Health Insurance Plan

The Company maintains a self-insurance program for that portion of health care costs not
covered by insurance. The Company is liable for claims up to $ 100,000 per employee or retiree
annually, and aggregate claims up to approximately $ 61 million annually.'elf-insurance costs are
accrued based upon the aggregate liability for reported claims and an actuarially determined
estimated liabilityfor claims incurred but not reported of approximately $ 800,000. See Note L for a
discussion ofSFAS No.

106.'.

Litigation

Automatic Stay ofLitigation Due to Bankruptcy

Upon the filingof the Company's bankruptcy petition, the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code
operate as a stay applicable to all entities of, among other things, the commencement or continuation
of judicial, administrative, or other actions or proceedings against the Company that were or could
have been commenced before the bankruptcy petition was filed. This stay is subject to certain
exceptions-criminal actions and actions by governmental units to enforce police or regulatory powers,
for'example, are not stayed. The Bankruptcy Co'urt also has discretion to terminate, annul, modify or
condition the stay.

P & C Lacelaw Trust Litigation

In September 1990, P S O'Lacelaw Trust ("Lacelaw") filed suit in the '346th District Court of
El Paso County,,Texas, Cause No. 90-10139, against the Compa'ny, F'ranklin, and DDG, Inc. ("DDG"),
the company that purchased all of the capital stock of Franklin from the Company in January 1990.
Lacelaw alleges that Franklin acted in bad faith and participated in self-dealing in connection with
Franklin's management, as general partner, of a limited partnership between Franklin and Lacelaw,
the purpose of which was to acquire, own and operate an office building in downtown El Paso. Lacelaw
further alleges that the Company is responsible for the actions ofFranklin because Franklin allegedly
was the alter ego of the Company and that the Company breached fiduciary duties to Lacelaw in
connection with the mismanagement and'self-dealing by Franklin and through the sale of Franklin to
DDG. Lacelaw seeks (i) a declaratory judgment that the Company is a general partner in the
partnership; (ii)a judgment declaring Lacelaw's rights as a limited partn'er,; (iii)an accounting of all
financial transactions involving the partnership; and (iv) a~tdissolution of-.the partnership. Lacelaw
alleges actual damages of $ 3.2 million and punitive damages of at least.$ 10 million. The Company
vigorously denies any liabilitywith respect to this lawsuit and believes that the claims are without
merit. Because of the automatic stay imposed as a result of the Company's bankruptcy filing,
investigation and evaluation of the suit by counsel for the Company is in its preliminary stages and
only a minimal amount of discovery has been conducted; therefore, the outcome of the suit cannot be
determined at this time. Lacelaw has filed a proof ofclaim in the Bankruptcy Case asserting a general
unsecured claim in excess of$ 3 millionbased on the litigation, but has not attempted to liftthe stay.

Plains Electric Generation and Transmission Cooperative Litigation

On December12, 1991, Plains Electric Generation and Transmission Cooperative, Inc.
"("Plains") filed'uit in the UnitedStates District Court for the District of IfewMexico, Cause
No. CIV91-1199, against the 'Company alleging breach of a letter of understanding related to a
potential option to purchase up to 50 MW of transfer capability in the AIP ifcertain enhancements
could be made to the AIP to allow additional transfer capability. Plains seeks specific performance or,
alternatively, compensatory and punitive damages in an unspecified amount for breach of contract,
breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, breach of the New Mexico Unfair Practices
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and tortious conduct for not performing the terms of the letter of understanding. The Company
filed an answer and counterclaim to the action on January 6, 1992, denying all allegations and
asserting that any dispute should be subject to arbitration. The Company denies any liabilitywith
respect to the lawsuit and intends to defend the action vigorously. Due to the automatic stay imposed
as a result of the bankruptcy filing, no discovery has been, conducted in this case; therefore, the
outcome of the suit and potential damages, ifany, cannot be determined at this time., Plains has filed a
proof ofclaim in the Bankruptcy Case for an unliquidated amount. The letter ofunderstanding may or
may not be an executory agreement that is subject to assumption or rejection under the Bankruptcy
Code.

L. Benefit Plans

Pension Plan. The Company's Retirement Income Plan (the "Retirement Plan" ) covers
employees who have completed one year of service with the Company, are 21 years of age and work at
least a minimum number of. hours each year. The Retirement Plan is a qualified noncontributory,
defined benefit plan. Upon retirement or death of,a vested plan participant, assets of the Retirement
Plan, are used to pay benefit obligations under the Retirement Plan. Contributions from the Company
are based on the minimum funding amounts required by the Department of Labor ("DOL")and IRS
under provisions of the Retirement Plan, as actuarially calculated. The assets of the Retirement Plan
are invested in equity securities, fixed income instruments and cash equivalents and are managed by,
professional investment managers appointed by the Company.

The Company's Supplemental Retirement and Survivor Income Plan for Key Employees
("SERP") is a non-qualified, non-funded defined benefit plan which covers, certain key employees of the
Company. The pension cost for th'e SERP is based on substantially the same actuarial methods and
economic assumptions as those used for the Retirement Plan. Pursuant, to an order of the Bankruptcy
Court, the Company, is authorized,to pay and has paid each recipient the lesser 'of $2,000 per month or
the amount he or she otherwise would have received under the SERP from the Petition Date forward.
The individuals have an unsecured prepetition claim against the Company for any amounts they
would have received in excess of the $2,000 per month. Pursuant to the Plan, the SERP would be„
assumed and the accumulated deficiencies to certain retirees would be paid. In addition, pursuant to
the Merger Agreement, CSW would honor the terms of the SERP.

During 1993, the Company entered into early retirement, agreements with five senior,,
executives. The cost of these agreements in excess of amounts previously provided through the
Retirement Plan and SERP was approximately $ 4 millionwhich was expensed in 1993'and included in
the Non-Qualified Retirement Income Plans below.

Net periodic pension cost for the Retirement Plan and Non-Qualified Retirement Income
Plans'nder

SFAS iNo. 87, "Employers'ccounting for Pensions," is made up of the components listed below
as determined using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method:

Years Ended December 31
1993 ,, 1992 1991

(In thousands)

Service cost for benefits earned during the period
Interest cost on projectedbenefit obligation .......
Actual return on plan assets
Net amortization and deferral .

Net periodic pension cost
Amount deferred due to actions
of the regulator

Net periodic cost recognized

$ 6,114
4,376

(1,769)
~1345

7,476

~7476

$ 2,165
4,235

(1,914)
653

3,833

$ 1,698
4,069

(6,808)
4 819

, 3,778

294
~3833 ~3484
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The assumed annual discount rates used in determining the net per'iodic pension cost were
8.00%, 7,25% and 8.00% for 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively. '-

h

The pension cost includes amortization of unrecognized transition obligations over a fifteen-
year period beginning in 1987.

The funded status'f the plans and amount recognized in the Company's balance sheets at
December 31, 1993 and 1992 are presented below:

h

December 31
1993 1992

Non-
Qualified

Retirement Retirement Retirement
Income Income Income
Plah Plans Plan

(In thousands)

Non-
QualiTied

Retirement
Income
Plans

Actuarial present value ofbenefit obligations:
Vested benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation ........

, Projected benefit obligation
Plan assets at fair value
Projected benefit obligation in excess of

plan assets
Unrecognized net (gain)/loss from

past experience
Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized transition obligation .......
Adjustment required to recognize

minimum liability
Accrued pension liability

~44 315 ~8993 ~37 281) 7 446
$ (47,877)

41 439
$ (58,289) $ (10,523)

43 351
$ (8,915)

(14,938) (10,523) (6,438)

6,414
816

3,265

2,239
(2,096)

348

(3,022)
906

3,673

(8,915)

2,869
(96)
452

4 443 10 032 4 881
1 756
7 446

/~41 8~45 ~7545 ~35 376) ~6024)

Actuarial assumptions used in determining the actuarial present value of projected benefit
obligation are as follows:

1993 1992

Discount rate
Rate of increase in compensation levels
Expected long-term rate ofreturn on plan assets

7.25%
6,00%
8.50%

8.00%
6.00%
8.50%

The Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation has filed a proof of claim in the amount of
approximately $5.5million based upon an assumed termination of the Retirement Plan effective
June 15, 1992. The Company has not terminated the Retirement Plan, the Company has made all
payments necessary to meet funding requirements and has no accumulated funding deficiency.

Other Postretirement Benefits. The Company provides certain health care benefits for retired
employees and their eligible dependents and life insurance benefits for retired employees only.
Substantially all of the Company's employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach
retirement age while working for the Company.
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SFAS No. 106, "Employers'ccounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions"
("SFAS No. 106"), was issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board in December 1990, SFAS
No. 106 requires a change from the pay-as-you-go accounting method for these postretirement beriefits
to the accrual accounting method, effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1992. The
Company adopted SFAS No. 106 as ofJanuary 1, 1993.

The accrual accounting method recognizes the costs of postretirement benefits other than
pensions over the years of service of employees, rather than yrhen the benefits are paid out after the
employee retires. The Company has elected to amortize the transition obligation at January 1, 1993 of
approximately $43.4 millionover 20 years.

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the year ended December 31, 1993 is as follows (In
thousands):

Service cost for benefits earned during the period
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement

benefit obligation
Amortization of transition obligation (based upon a

20yearperiod) ...........,.
Net periodic postretirement benefits costs .

$ 1,564

3,425

2 172
7 161

The funded status of the plan and amount recognized in the Company's balance sheet at
December 31, 1993 are presented below (In thousands):

Actuarial present value ofpostretirement
benefit obligation:

Accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation:

Retirees
Actives

Plan assets at fair value
Accumulated postretirement benefit

obligation in excess ofplan assets
Unrecognized net (gain)/loss from
1j'st experience .,

nrecognized transition obligation .

Accrued postretirement benefit liability

$ (23,358)
~80 008

(53,366)

(53,366)

5,818
41 267

6 281

For measurement purposes, a 15 percent annual rate of increase in the per capita cost ofcovered
health care benefits was assumed for 1994; the rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 6 percent for
2004 and remain at th'at level thereafter. The health care cost trend rate. assumption has a significant
effect on the amounts reported. To illustrate, increasing the assumed health care cost trend rates by 1

percentage point in each year would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of
December 31, 1993 by $6.4 millionand the aggregate of the service and interest cost components ofnet
periodic postretirement benefit cost for the year ended December 31, 1993 by $900,000.

Actuarial assumptions used in determining the actuarial present "value of accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation are as follows:

Discount rate ",............ 7.25%
Rate of increase in compensation levels ......... 6.00%
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In 1992 and 1991, the Company expensed postretirement,'ealth care costs, under the
pay-as-you-go.method, ofapproximately $900,000 and $ 600,000, respectively.

It

M. Franchises and Significant Customers

I'ranchises.The Company's major franchises are with the Cities of El 'Paso, Texas, and
Las Cruces, New Mexico. The franchises grant the Company the right'to utilize public rights-of-way
and to place its facilities and structures necessary to serve its retail cust'omers within such cities. The
franchise with the City ofEl Paso expires in i%larch 2001 and does notcontain renewal provisions. The
Company is facing significant near term challenges in connection with" certain of its New Mexico
customers, including the City of Las Cruces and the militar'y installations of White Sands Missile
Range and Holloman AirForce Base.

The Company's twenty-five year franchise with the City of Las Cruces expired in March 1993.
The Company and the City of ILas Cruces enter'ed into a one-year franchise while they continued
negotiations related to a new long-term franchise. These negotiations have not'resulted in a new
franchise and the one-year franchise expired March'18, 1994. The Company has continued to"provide
electric service to customers in the City of Las Cruces, consistent with its view that the right and
obligation to serve customers within the City of Las Cruces is derived from the New Mexico Public
UtilityAct; as well as other New Mexico law,.and'not from the franchise. The City of Las Gruces has
acknowledged this obligation in a press release issued March 1'2, 1994. Sales to customers in the City
ofLas Cruces represented approximately 7% of the Company's operating revenue in 1993.

The City of Las Cruces is continuing its exploration and consideration of alternatives for
electric service that may be available to it, including construction of its own distribution system and/or
purchase or condemnation of all or a portion of the Company's distribution system and other property
in the Las Cruces metropolitan area. In March 1993, the City of Las Cruces presented a proposal,
which the Company rejected, to purchase the Company's facilities used to serve customers within the
City of Las Cruces. Nevertheless, in January 1994, the City of Las Cruces issued two requests for
proposals ("RFPs"), one with respect to the provision ofa long-term supply ofwholesale electric power
and one with respect to operations and maintenance services for a distribution system in the City of
Las Cruces. Proposals in response to the RFPs were due no later than February 28, 1994, The City of
Las Cruces has not announced any decisions related to the RFPs or its intentions with respect to the
development of a competitive distribution system in view of the Company's refusal to sell its
distribution system. The Company did not respond to the RFPs, consistent with its position that the
franchise agreement does not govern the right or obligation to provide electric service.

It I

The Company and the City of Las Cruces are continuing discussions related to the provision of
electric service to customers within the City of Las Cruces. The Company also is considering the level
of franchise fees that should be paid ifthe franchise agreement is not replaced. The Company believes
that it will continue to provide electric service to the City of Las Cruces for the immediate future,
either under a franchise agreement or without an agreement in place, but pursuant to its right and
obligation under New Mexico law. Ifthe City of Las Cruces and the Company do not agree to a new
franchise agreement and the City of Las Cruces attempts to change the provider ofelectric service, the
Company willchallenge such actions in the New Mexico Commission, the appropriate courts, or both.
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On February 8,,1993, Southern Union Gas Company ("Southern Union") filed a request with
the City of El Paso that Southern Union's„present franchise to provide gas service be amended to
permit Southern Union to provide electric service. Such proposed service would compete with service
provided by the Company. The City of El Paso has not acted on Southern Union's request. Southern
Union has not applied to the Texas Commission for a service territory CCN or a CCN to construct
facilities, although such CCNs would be required in addition to the requested amendment to Southern
Union's franchise. Currently, the Company holds the only franchise with the City of E1Paso to
provide electric service inside the City, as, well as the only CCiV from the Texas Commission
authorizing electric service inside the City. The Company willoppose any request by Southern Union
for a CCN to provide electric service inside the City of El Paso, but the Company cannot predict
whether a CCiV would be granted to Southern Union ifone is requested from the Texas Commission or
whether the City ofEl Paso willamend Southern Union's franchise.

The Company is a party to contracts with each of the United States Department of the AirForce
("Air Force" ) and the United States Department of the Army ("Army") regarding the provision of
retail electric service at Holloman Air=Force Base and White Sands Missile Range, respectively,
located in New Mexico. The Company's sales pursuant to such contracts represented approximately
2% of revenues in 1993. The Company's, right to provide this service was authorized by the New
Mexico Commission in 1956'by the issuance of,a CCN to the Company. The contract with the Army
was due to expire on December 31, 1993 but has been extended by unilateral action of the Army for an
indefinite period. The contract with'the-Air, Force expired on February 28, 1994. The Company
continues to provide the electric service under state approved tariffs and CCN authority. In 1993 the
Army notified the Company that it intends to conduct a competitive bidding procedure to determine
the provider of this electric service after expiration of the contract, but has taken no further action. On
June 15, 1993, the Air Force issued an RFP, from prospective electric utility service providers to
provide electric service to Holloman AirForce Base upon expiration of its service agreement with the
Company. Responses to the RFP were due August 12, 1993. The Company submitted its,proposal to
the AirForce on August 12, 1993 and filed a protest to the issuance and terms of the AirForce's RFP.
The protest was upheld, but on technical grounds that have allowed the AirForce to proceed with the
competitive bidding process, although itwas delayed.

4

The Company believes that the procurement of retail electric service by the United States
Department of Defense by such competitive procedures is prohibited by applicable federal
procurement law and that participation by public utilities in such competitive procedures to attempt
to obtain the right to provide this retail electric service would be contrary to iVew Mexico utility
regulatory law and a violation of the Company's state-authorized right to provide this service. On
April 1, 1993, the Company filed a Petition for Declaratory Order with the New Mexico Commission
seeking, among other things, a declaration that the Company currently is the only public utility
authorized under New Mexico utilityregulatory law to offer and provide this particular, retail electric
service to Holloman Air Force Base and White Sands Missile Range. This proceeding has been
docketed as New Mexico Commission Case iVo. 2505. The hearing examiner appointed to the case
issued a report recommending that the New Mexico Commission deter mine that the case is not ripe for
determination. In September, the Attorney General of New Mexico filed exceptions to the hearing
examiner's recommended decision. The Attorney General has taken the position that the case is ripe
for decision and has urged the New Mexico Commission to declare that utilities may not compete or
contract to provide retail service to existing loads of another utility in a bidding process conducted
outside ofa proceeding before the New Mexico Commission. The New Mexico Commission has not yet
issued its decision. Although the Company believes that it is more probable than not that it will
continue to have the right and obligation to provide the retail electric service to the two military
installations, there is no assurance that this willbe the case.
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On January 4, 1994, the Company filed an action against'the Air-Force and related parties in
'heUnited States District Court for the District of New Mexico seeking declaratory and injunctive

relief, No. CIV94-6. The action requests a preliminary injunction against the AirForce's competitive
bid process for electric service at Holloman Air,Force'Base until the court determines whether the
competitive bid process is contrary to federal law. The action also requests (i) a permanent injunction
of competitive procurement of the retail electric utilityservice for Holloman AirForce Base from any ","

~ public utilityregulated under'the New Mexico Public UtilityAct, and (ii) a declaratory judgment that
the competitive procurement of the retail electric utility service for Holloman Air Force Base .
currently provided by the Company from any public utility regulated under the New Mexico Public
UtilityAct using competitive procedures based on "lowest net cost of service" is prohibited by federal
law because it is inconsistent with New Mexico law governing the provision of the service by public
utilities. A hearing on, the-Company's request for a preliininary injunction has been scheduled before'he United States District Court for April 18, 1994.

The Company believes that it willcontinue to provide electric service to the City of Las Cruces,
Holloman Air Fore'e Base and White Sands Missile Range for the immediate future. The Company
also intends to pursue all available means, including litigation, to retain such customers for the long
term'and believes, but can give no assurance, that it willprevail in its efforts to retain such customers
in the long term. Ifthe Company is unable to do so, however, the Company intends to pursue all
available regulatory and legal avenues to obtain the appropriate recovery of its stranded investment
related to such customers.

Significant Customers. In 1993, 1992 and 1991, IID, a wholesale customer, accounted for
approximately $ 55.0 million, $48.8 millionand $41.4 millionor 10.1%, 9.3% and 8.9%, respectively, of
operating revenue.

During 1993 the Company recorded revenues pursuant to its contract with CFE in the amount
of approximately $41.9 million. Tjie obligations of CFE under the agreement are subject to continued
budgetary authorization by the Ministryof Programming and Budgeting of Mexico for each calendar
year. The amount ofcapacity in 1992 began at 80 MW and increased to 120-150 MWduring 1992, and
willcontinue at that level through the term of the agreement.

N. Financial Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, "Disclosure. about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments" ("SFAS No. 107"), requires the Company to disclose estimated fair values for
its financial instruments. The Company has determined that cash and temporary investments, its
secured and unsecured debt which is included in liabilities subject to compromise, see Note H, and its
preferred stock meet the definition of financial instruments. Cash and temporary investments
carrying amounts approximate its fair value because of the short-term maturities of the investments.
Based on discussion with its financial advisor in bankruptcy, the fair value of the other financial
instruments depends upon the terms and conditions of a consummated plan of reorganization which
willresolve certain uncertainties described in Notes A, B, C and H. These uncertainties preclude the
Company from determining the fair value of these financial instruments during the pendency of its
reorganization proceedings.
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EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

(DEBTOR IN POSSESSION AS OF JANUARY8, 1992)

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS - (Continued)

O. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

1993 uarters 1992 uarters
tst 2nd 3 d 4th tst 2 d 3rd

(tn t ho os en de of dot lors except for per shore dots)
4th

Operating
revenues,,..........

Operating income ....
income (loss)

before reorganization
items and cumulative
effect ofa change
in accounting
principle ...........

Reorganization
items ..............

Income (loss) before
cumulative effectof
a change in accounting
principle ...........

Cumulative effect ofa
change in accounting
principle ...........

Net income (loss)
applicable to
common stock ......

iVet income (loss) per
weighted average
share ofcommon
stock before cumulative
effect ofa change
in accounting
principle .......,...

Cumulative effect ofa
change in accounting
principle per weighted
average share of
common stock ........

S 122,236 S 134,561
4,980 '6,499

S 151,441
27,593

S 135,356
, 15,899

S 121,985 S 124,762
16,178 18,339

S 150,316
29,657

(12,443) 2,835 9,995

(5,292) (3,264) (2,499)

(11,648) (1,986) 1,142

(19,539)
t

(3,865) (10,731)

13,154

(3,335)

(17,735) (429) 7,496 (31,187) (5>851) (9,589) 9,819

(96,044) (

'0.50)

(0.01) 0.21 (0.88) (0.16) (0.27) 0.27

2.70

(113,779) (429) 7,496 (31,187) (5,851) (9,589) 9,819

S 127,697
2,862

(14,122)

(8,437)

(22,559)

(22,559)

(0.63)

(1) Refiects the recognition ofapproximately $7.8 millionfor the settlement and anticipated settlement
ofstate income and other tax claims.

(2) Reflects interest payments on unsecured and undersecured debtof approximately $ 10.2 million.

(3) Refiects lower volume of sales and a charge of approximately $7.1 million resulting from DOE
assessment.

(4) Refiects the change in accounting for income" taxes from the deferred method to the asset and
liabilitymethod. See Note I.

(5) Reflects the interim payments or accrual of approximately $ 13.3 million for fees and expenses. In
addition, reflects interim payments to holders of the Company's preferred stock of approximately
$ 1.4 million. See Note A.
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Item9. Changes in and Disagreements'with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

iVotapplicable.

PART IIIand PART IV

This information set forth in Part IIIand Part IV has been omitted from this Annual Report to
Shareholders.
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